

тм

Insurance User Guide

Insurance User Guide

Insurance User Guide

by Evident

Patient centered. Community focused.



Insurance User Guide

Copyright © 2025 by Evident.

All rights reserved. This publication is provided for the express benefit of, and use by, Evident Client Facilities. This publication may be reproduced by Evident clients in limited numbers as needed for internal use only. Any use or distribution outside of this limitation is prohibited without prior written permission from Evident. The reception of this publication by any means (electronic, mechanical, photocopy, downloading, recording, or otherwise) constitutes acceptance of these terms.

Trademarks:

The Evident logo, as it appears in this document is a Trademark of CPSI.

Limitations:

Evident does not make any warranty with respect to the accuracy of the information in this document. Evident reserves the right to make changes to the product described in this document at any time and without notice.

Version : 22.01

Published : June 2025

Evident 6600 Wall Street Mobile Alabama 36695 T 800-711-2774 F 251-639-8214 evident.com



Table of Contents

Chapter 1	Introduction	
	Attestation Disclaimer	. 1
	What's New	. 1
	Unbilled Insurance Report - New Columns FA-13215	. 1
Chapter 2	Overview	
Chapter 3	Insurance Screens	
	Overview	. 5
	Claims By Patient	. 5
	New Insurance Hospital Base Menu	
	Claim Status	. 8
	Policy Information	10
	Insurance Company	10
	Subscriber	
	Contract Management Policy Information	
	Claim Approval	
	Generate Claim	
	Stay Information	14
	Patient Information	15
	DRG	
	Accident/Therapy/Treatment	
	Current Stay Information Insurance Diagnosis/Procedure	
	Insurance Diagnosis	
	Insurance Procedures	
	Detail Charges	
	Coverages	25
	View All Claims	29
	Patient Functions	29
	Receipt Entry	31
	APC Detail	32
	Detail Benefits	33
	Medical Necessity	36
	Deny Claim	36
	Hospital Base Menu	
	Coding Screen	
	Tickler System	

Т

Insurance User Guide

II

Receipt Information	40
Image Store/Retrieve	40
Print/View Options	41

Chapter 4 Registration's Role in Insurance Setup

Overview	42
Insurance Information	42
Medicare Questionnaire	43
Trauma Questionnaire	53
Printing Questionnaires	55
Referring Data	56

Chapter 5 Stages of an Insurance Claim

Overview	58
Progression of an Insurance Claim5	58
Insurance Indices	59
Reversing Claims ϵ	60
AutoGen Feature And Requirements 6	61

Chapter 6 The Insurance Billing Process

Overview	. 62
Daily Procedures	. 62
Insurance Verification/Pre-Authorization	. 62
Follow-up Procedures	
Secondary Billing	
Adjustment Claims/Rebilling	
Weekly Procedures	
Followup Procedures	
Secondary Billing Procedures	. 67
Interim Billing Procedures	. 72
Cycle Billing Procedures	. 75
Cycle Billing Table	. 76
Pay Source Table	
Exceptions List	
RHC Billing Procedures for Preventative Health Services	
RUG-III Billing	
Facilities with TruBridge Resident Assessment Instrument (RAI) software	
Facilities without TruBridge Resident Assessment Instrument (RAI) software	
	. 52

Chapter 7 Tables Affecting Insurance

Over	rview	94
Busi	ness Office	95
	Charge Summary Codes	95
	Referring Facilities	
	Referring Physicians	99

Table	of	Contents	
I GOIO	•••	0011101110	

Clinic Table	
Insurance	
Companies	
Insurance Company table, Page 1	
Insurance Company table, Page 2	
Insurance Company table, Page 3	
Insurance Company table, Page 4	
Insurance Company table, Page 5	
Insurance Company table, Page 6	
Insurance Company table, Page 7	
Insurance Company table, Page 8	
Insurance Company table, Page 9	
Insurance Companies, Policy Information	
Insurance Companies, Detail Benefits	
Insurance Companies, Separate Claims	
Insurance Companies, Room Type Coverage	101
Condition Codes	101
Occurence Codes	102
Value Codes	
Rejection Codes	102
EB/CCI Edit Codes	102
Treatment Qualifier Codes	102
Patient Intake	102
Accident Places table	102
Control	
Item Master	103
Pharmacy Information	
Detail Charges	
Physicians	
Physicians 999999 Maintenance	
Business Office Table Maintenance	
AHIS	
Medical Records	
Summarizing Revenue Centers	
Insurance Company table	
Summary Code table	
Grouper Screen	
Waste Capture for Pharmacy Items	

Chapter 8 Insurance Tickler

Overview	131
Table Maintenance	132
AHIS, Page 6	132
AHIS, Page 8	133
Collector ID's	134
Review Codes	135
Insurance Company table, Page 2	135
Insurance Company table, Page 3	136
Insurance Company table, Page 6	137
Insurance Company table, Page 7	139
Using The Insurance Tickler	140

III

Multi Facility	145
Collector Account Report - Report Writer	152
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Insurance Tickler Report	154
How to Print	155
Description and Usage	
Insurance Tickler File Maintenance	157

Chapter 9 Insurance Journals

Overview	161
Table Maintenance Affecting Journals	161
AHIS Control Record	162
Insurance Company table	
Building And Sorting Journals	165
Printing Journals	168
Insurance Journals	170
Correcting Journal Errors	172

Chapter 10 Printed Reports

Overview	174
AutoGen Insurance Claims	174
How to Print Description and Usage	
Unapproved Claims	177
How to Print Description and Usage	
Approved Claims (Chgs Needed)	179
How to Print Description and Usage Claims With Missing Information (By Ins)	180
How to Print Description and Usage Claims With Missing Information (By Phy)	182
How to Print Description and Usage	
Print UBs	-
How to Print Description and Usage Print 1500s	191
How to Print Description and Usage	
ICD-10 Test Print File	
How to Print Description and Usage Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Ins)	199
How to Print	

Table of Contents	
	1

Description and Usage Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Phy)	
How to Print	202
Description and Usage	
Insurance Billing Time Analysis	
How to Print	
Description and Usage Insurance Adjustments To A/R	
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	
How to Print Description and Usage	
Billed But Unpaid & A/R Balance = 0	
-	
How to Print Description and Usage	
Billed Claims By Date Range	
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Claim Reimbursement Report	
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Create Claims By Charge Period	
How to Print	217
Description and Usage	
Secondary Billing Report	219
How to Print	219
Description and Usage	220
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage	222 222 222
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records	222 222 222 222 224
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print	222 222 222 224 224
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage	222 222 222 224 224 224 224
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 222 224 224 224 224 224
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print	222 222 224 224 224 224 224 226 226
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage	222 222 224 224 224 224 226 226 226
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill	222 222 224 224 224 224 226 226 226 226
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill How to Print Description and Usage	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 229
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill How to Print Description and Usage Unbilled Insurance Report	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 226 229 229 229 229 230
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 229 229 229 230 230
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill How to Print Description and Usage Unbilled Insurance Report	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 229 229 229 230 230 232
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 229 230 230 230 232 234
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill How to Print Description and Usage Unbilled Insurance Report How to Print Description and Usage Crossover Forms Auto Reverse	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 229 230 230 230 232 234 234
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 229 230 230 232 234 234 234
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 229 229 229 230 230 230 232 234 234 235 238
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill How to Print Description and Usage Unbilled Insurance Report How to Print Description and Usage Crossover Forms Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage Insurance Reimbur sement Analysis How to Print Description and Usage	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 230 230 232 234 234 234 235 238 238 238
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 226 229 229 230 230 232 234 234 234 235 238 238 238
Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims How to Print Description and Usage Locked/Unlocked MDS Records How to Print Description and Usage Secondary Billing Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage APC Claims To Ready to Bill How to Print Description and Usage Unbilled Insurance Report How to Print Description and Usage Crossover Forms Auto Reverse How to Print Description and Usage Insurance Reimbur sement Analysis How to Print Description and Usage	222 222 224 224 224 226 226 229 229 230 230 230 232 234 234 234 235 238 239 241 241

v

Pending Claims	243
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Journals	246
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Print VP Forms	249
How to Print	249
Description and Usage	249
Print O/P Forms	249
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Print State Insurance Forms	
How to Print	249
Description and Usage	
Print Form 1491's (Ambulance)	
How to Print	250
Description and Usage	250
UB04 Edit List	
How to Print	250
Description and Usage	251
1500 Edit List	253
How to Print	253
Description and Usage	
Diagnosis Variance Report	
How to Print	256
Description and Usage	
Procedures Variance Report	
•	
How to Print	
Description and Usage	260

Chapter 11 Report Dashboard

Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Ins) - Report Writer	
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Cycle Billing Review Due	266
How to Print	
Description and Usage	
Unbilled Insurance Report - Report Writer	267
How to Print	
Description and Usage	

1

Chapter 1 Introduction

1.1 Attestation Disclaimer

Promoting Interoperability Program attestation confirms the use of a certified Electronic Health Record (EHR) to regulatory standards over a specified period of time. TruBridge Promoting Interoperability Program certified products, recommended processes and supporting documentation are based on TruBridge's interpretation of the Promoting Interoperability Program regulations, technical specifications and vendor specifications provided by CMS, ONC and NIST. Each client is solely responsible for its attestation being a complete and accurate reflection of its EHR use during the attestation period and that any records needed to defend the attestation in an audit are maintained. With the exception of vendor documentation that may be required in support of a client's attestation, TruBridge bears no responsibility for attestation information submitted by the client.

1.2 What's New

This section introduces the new features and improvements for the **Insurance** application for release Version 22.01. A brief summary of each enhancement is given referencing its particular location if applicable. As new branches of Version 22.01 are made available, the original enhancements will be moved to the Previous Work Requests section. The enhancements related to the most current branch available will be listed under the main What's New section.

Each enhancement includes the Work Request (WR) Number and the description. If further information is needed, please contact **Client Services** Support.

Unbilled Insurance Report - New Columns -- FA-13215

DESCRIPTION: When running the Unbilled Insurance Report in CSV format, users may now add the following new columns by selecting them from the Advanced tab:

- Accountants Category Code
- Accountants Category Description
- HIM Coding Status
- HIM Coding Status Datetime
- HIM Coding Status User Name

DOCUMENTATION: See Unbilled Insurance Report - Report Writer

Chapter 2 Overview

2

The TruBridge EHR Insurance System integrates information from Registration, Health Information Management and Account Detail to assist in the creation and the filing of insurance claims. The goal of the Insurance System is to organize and simplify the functions associated with the billing process.

The Insurance Billing process begins in Registration with the collection of insurance coverage information. This process is vital to billing. At the time of Registration, the insurance company, contract number, group name and number and subscriber information are entered into the system. If any of this information is not gathered, the billing process for the specific accounts will not be able to proceed. Therefore, it is vital to stress the importance of gathering all relevant insurance information at the time of Registration.

Coding of a patient's account also plays an important role in insurance billing. Once the diagnoses and procedures are entered by the Health Information Management department, a finish date will be entered. This signals the account has been coded completely, a DRG has been computed and the account is ready to proceed in the billing process.

Two reports indicate the Medical Record status of claims and should be reviewed by both the Health Information Management and Insurance departments. The Approved Waiting for Charges report and the Claims with Missing Information report both contain a column titled "Medical Records Complete?" If answered Y, the account has been coded and contains a finish date.

TruBridge EHR also utilizes Account Detail entered into the system during the billing process. Charges posted to an account are pulled to the claim when it is generated, as well as, patient and subscriber information. There are also several tables which directly affect the generation of claims. Therefore, it can be seen that many aspects of the system and the information entered, directly affect the insurance billing process, which will be explored further in this user guide.

NOTE: Facilities outside of the United States may choose a date format of MMDDYY, DDMMYY or YYMMDD to be used throughout the Insurance application. A TruBridge Representative will need to be contacted in order for the date format to be changed.

Major Financial Classes

The TruBridge EHR Insurance System uses a Financial Class code to represent Insurance Companies used within the system. These codes may be up to three characters in length. Several codes have been reserved to represent the most common Financial Classifications. They are as follows:

- B Blue Cross Carriers
- C Commercial Carriers
- M Medicare Carriers
- P Private Pay Patients
- S Tri-Care Carriers
- W Workman's Compensation Carriers
- X Medicaid Carriers

Inpatient Versus Outpatient Financial Classes

Each character in the Financial Class code is used to identify the type of claim more accurately. This is done by narrowing the description of the claim through the use of specific characters in each of the three positions. The system reads the alpha characters within the code to determine in which insurance company group it belongs. This allows the system to determine how the claim should be treated.

The first position is used to identify the insurance carrier. If this is the only character in the code, it is considered to be an Inpatient claim. Generally, this position will be occupied by one of the Financial Class codes previously identified. Inpatients typically have 1-character Financial Class code but may have a character in the second position.

The second position of this code will tell the system if this claim is for an Outpatient, a patient with physician components, or a specific Inpatient Financial Class. All Outpatient claims have a **B** in the second position. The insurance carrier's Financial Class code will occupy the first position, and a **B** will occupy the second position, indicating an Outpatient claim. Therefore, "MB" will be used to designate a claim as Medicare Outpatient.

Any type of patient may have accompanying physician charges. A **P** in the second position of the Financial Class code indicates a physician claim. "MP" would be the Financial Class code for a Medicare physician claim.

Inpatient Financial Class codes may have a numeric character in the second position to represent a specific insurance company. This would be used when there is a need to separate like Financial Classes. For example, if there are two Blue Cross plans in the area, "B" may be used for the most common Blue Cross plan, while using "B1" for the other Blue Cross plan.

Home Health claims and Swing Bed claims are often broken out under each Financial Class. An **H** in the second position of the Financial Class code is used to indicate a Home Health claim. "MH" would indicate a Medicare Home Health claim.

An **S** occupies the second position of the Financial Class code when this code is used for representing Swing Bed patients. Medicare Swing Bed claims are represented by "MS".

4 Insurance User Guide

Inpatient claims may also have an alpha character in the second position of the Financial Class code, as long as it is something other than a "B", "H", "S" or "P".

The third position of the Financial Class code may be used in two ways. It may identify a specific group of Outpatients, or it may be used in combination with the second character position to identify a totally different type of claim.

As with the second position, a numeric character can be used to represent a specific group in a Financial Class. For example, if there are two Blue Cross plans that need to be identified, the first may use the code "BB" for Blue Cross Outpatient while the second may use "BB1".

Other Code Uses

The third position allows for additional manipulation of the Financial Class codes to fit the needs of the individual facility. Many times it is to the advantage of the facility to bill Therapy patients, Skilled Nursing Facility patients and non-patients using a unique Financial Class code. TruBridge suggests using the following codes to aid in the billing of these types of claims.

Therapy accounts or recurring Outpatient claims may use the third position to identify these claims by placing an "R" in the third position of the Financial Class code. This, along with other criteria, will allow the claims to be billed by a date range. For more information on monthly billing see Interim Billing Process.

Skilled Nursing Facility patients may be identified by "EC" as the second and third character positions. A Medicare Skilled Nursing Facility patient would have the Financial Class code "MEC".

With HMO's and Managed Care programs on the rise, facilities are interacting with large numbers of commercial carriers. Occasionally, the Financial Class code of "C" does not allow for the segmentation of all commercial carriers due to the volume of commercial insurances. Additional letters may be used to designate commercial insurances and allow further segmentation. The only letters which may not be used for the commercial insurances are the Financial Class codes which have already been designated by TruBridge EHR as major financial classifications.

NOTE: Facilities outside of the United States may utilize a different address format to display in select areas of the Insurance application. The address may display the Province and Postal Code instead of the State and Zip Code when the Country Code field is set to a country code other than "US". A TruBridge Representative should be contacted for the foreign address fields to display.

5

Chapter 3 Insurance Screens

3.1 Overview

This section will discuss the Insurance Billing screens. These screens are used to store information needed to print a UB, 1500 or state insurance form.

Information pulls to the Insurance screens from Registration, Medical Records and the Account Detail of the patient. Data may also be entered manually by the Insurance Billing department.

Each Financial Class code that is set up in Registration creates a claim within the system. The insurance process begins here. All claims set up for an account are displayed on the Claims by Patient screen.

3.2 Claims By Patient

The Claims by Patient screen displays all insurance claims on the account. The top portion of the screen will display the patient's account number, name, admit date, discharge date and stay type. The following information will display for each claim: financial class code, primary switch, service from and to dates, claim status, total charges and expected pay.

NOTE: If the Medical Necessity Control Table has the "ABN Notification" field selected, the message "ABN On File" will display when an Advance Beneficiary Notice (ABN) is signed and the prompt "Did Patient agree to sign the ABN?" is answered **Yes**.

Thrive UX Help							Wallace Samantha	- Ø
SYSTEM MENU » SYSTEM MENU								
A A A A	ø						Signed On Emp: SDW Dep	ot: 058
ystem Menu	* Insurance Syste			1				
	New Insurance	Ho	spital Base Menu					
	Patient:	357828	BEECH D/	AVIS SANDERS	6			
	Admit Date:	05/14/15						
	Discharge Date:	05/14/15						
	Stay Type:	E.R.						
	Insurance MB	SW	Service From	Service To	Status	Total Charges .00	Expected Pay	
	MB	ř			APPROVED	.00	.00	

Claims by Patient

New Insurance

This option will be used to add a financial class to patient accounts.

NOTE: The New Insurance option will be disabled if <u>Restrict Payer Disclosure</u> $\begin{bmatrix} 42 \\ 42 \end{bmatrix}$ is selected on the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

New Insurance Hospital Base Menu Patient: 357828 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Admit Date: 05/14/15 Discharge Date: 05/14/15 Stay Type: E.R. SW Service From Total Charges Insurance Service To Status Expected Pay APPROVED .00 .00

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance

Insurance System - Claims By Patient

NOTE: For financial classes selected from the Person Profile, the insurance company's Name, Address-1, Address-2, City, State and Zip Code will copy from the Person Profile instead of the Insurance Company Table.

When **New Insurance** is selected the following screen will be displayed.

Insurance	System	? ×
New Insuranc		
	surance Select Surance Select Surance Select Ince coverage for this visit:	
Code	Insurance Name	Primary
М	MEDICARE-I/P	Y
MB	MEDICARE OP	Y
<u>0</u> H	Canoel	

Insurance System, New Insurance

Select Lookup to display a listing of financial classes by description.

• **NEIC:** Select **NEIC** to display a lookup for commercial payers only. This lookup uses the Financial Class description to display the Financial Classes available.

Hospital Base Menu

Selecting this option will return the cursor to the Hospital Base Menu.

3.3 Claim Status

To view a claim, select the desired Financial Class code. The system will then display the Claim Status screen. This screen outlines the overall status of the claim being processed. The lower portion of the screen offers a menu selection of additional insurance screens and the functions associated with the billing process.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim

Patient: 357828 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Insurance: MB MEDICARE OP Approval Sent: 5/14/15 Admitted: 5/14/15 357828XX001MB Approval Received: 5/14/15 Discharged: 5/14/15 357828XX001MB Claim Generated: Y Service From: 5/14/15 Claim Checked: Service From: Claim Checked: Service To: Edit Date: Total Charges: 0.00 Receipts Remit Total Charges: 0.00 1st 0.00 Double 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 Actual Payment: 0.00 0.00 0.00 R Comment:	Delete		DIA	Reverse					
Approval Received: 5/14/15 Discharged: 5/14/15 Claim Generated: Y Service From: Claim Checked: Service To: Billed Date: Edit Date: Total Charges: 0.00 Receipts Remit Less Non-Covered: 0.00 1st 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 2nd 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 Actual Payment: 0.00 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 Actual Payment: 0.00 0.00 Comment: Claim Maintenance Policy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions Medical Necessity Jickler System				S SANDERS					
Claim Generated: Y Service From: Claim Checked: Service To: Billed Date: Edit Date: Total Charges: 0.00 Less Non-Covered: 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 Actual Payment: 0.00 Claim Maintenance 0.00 Policy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions	Approval Received:							357828XX00	IMB
Claim Checked: Service To: Billed Date: Edit Date: Total Charges: 0.00 Less Non-Covered: 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 CorPay/Coins: 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 Comment: Claim Maintenance Policy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions			5/14/15			-	5/14/15		
Billed Date: Edit Date: Total Charges: 0.00 Receipts Remit Less Non-Covered: 0.00 1st 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 2nd 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 0.00 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 0.00 0.00 R Comment: 0.00 0.00 0.00 R Claim Maintenance				Y					
Total Charges: 0.00 Receipts Remit Less Non-Covered: 0.00 1st 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 2nd 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 0.00 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 0.00 0.00 R Comment:		ed:							
Less Non-Covered: 0.00 1st 0.00 Deductibles: 0.00 2nd 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 0.00 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 Actual Payment: 0.00 0.00 R Comment:									
Deductibles: 0.00 2nd 0.00 Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 0.00 Comment: 0.00 0.00 Claim Maintenance Eolicy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions Medical Necessity	-				4-1	Receipts		Remit	
Co-Pay/Coins: 0.00 Expected Payment: 0.00 Comment: 0.00 Claim Maintenance 0.00 Policy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions Medical Necessity Ickler System		verea:							
Expected Payment: 0.00 Actual Payment: 0.00 0.00 R Comment:					2nd				
Comment: Claim Maintenance Policy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions Medical Necessity Tickler System					A				
Claim Maintenance Policy Information View All Claims Detail Benefits Coding Screen Generate Claim Patient Eunctions Medical Necessity Ijckler System		ment.	0.00		Actual	Payment.	0.00	0	
		<u>P</u> oli	cy Information	Vie <u>w</u> All Claims		Detail Benefits	Coding S	Screen	
Stay Information Receipt Entry Deny Claim Receipt Information			,			_			
		<u>S</u> ta	y Information	Receipt Entry				ormation	
Detail Charges Line Item Receipt Detail Hospital Base Menu Electronic File Mgmt		De	tail Charges	Line Item Receipt Det	tail			Electronic File Mgmt	
Coverages Popup_Edit Print/View Options		9	⊇overages			Popup_Edit	Print/View	<u>Options</u>	

Insurance System - Claim Status

• **Delete:** Selecting this option will delete the claim from the account. It is important to remember if the claim is deleted from this option, it will be deleted from the account entirely. Deleting a claim in error may result in loss of patient information gathered during the registration process.

• DIA: The ability to associate a procedure with a diagnosis on a 1500 may be manipulated through the Insurance Claim Status screen by using diagnosis pointers. Select DIA to access the diagnosis pointers screen. The top 12 diagnoses from the Medical Records Grouper Screen will display at the top of the screen if the physician claim is generated. The first 10 generated charges will display at the bottom of the screen. To display the next 10 charges, select **Next** at the top of the screen. In the appropriate diagnosis column next to the charge line, enter the corresponding sequence letter of the diagnosis that should pull to locator 24E on the 1500. Up to four codes may be entered per charge line.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > DIA

> r Insu	rance System -	DIA							Signed On Emp	: SDW Dept: 058
N	lext									
EECH	DAVIS SANDE	RS		Insurance:	MP					
Diag N B	34690	CD10 343909 1189	Description Migraines Pneumonia							
SC	Code			Description		Date	Diag	Diag	Diag	Diag
SL	26180		618011PHY E			05/14/15				

Insurance System - DIA

- **Reverse:** This option will reverse a billed claim to the Ready to Bill status. It will also reverse a rejected claim so it may be rebilled; however, the status will remain at Rejected. Refer to System Security for access to this option.
- **Comment:** This line will contain two types of information; either system generated or manually entered comments. If the claim is an APC claim, the system will place a note "(APC CLAIM)" on this line. When a note is entered manually, this is a free-text field. This field will pull to several Insurance reports and is also an available element in the Ad Hoc Reporting System.

3.4 Policy Information

This screen contains information about the insurance policy of the claim being processed. Information pulls from the Registration and ADT screen screens and the Insurance Company table. However, some fields require the information to be entered manually. Below is a description of each field on the Policy Information screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Policy Information

G							Signed On Emp: SWW Dept: 001	
🍟 Insurance System -	Policy Information							
Detail Benefits	View <u>C</u> M	Eligibility Inquiry	/	PLE		Services Review	Add to Profile	
359050	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	MEC Me	edicare - SN	IF				
Insurance Company				Policy Information				
Name: MEC	Medicare - SNF			Contract#: PF	A7896521457		Primary: Y	
Address-1:			C	Group Info: 15	874574		Direct Pay: N	
Address-2:		<i>></i> >	E	Ben. Desc:				
City/State:		0000	0					
Phone:			N	ledigap#:		GBHC:	Payer ID: 00500	
Contact:	[
Subscriber				Claim Approval				
Name:	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS		5	Sent	06/26/18	Received: 06	/26/18	
Address-1:	15896 PINE ROAD		F	Precert#/Type:				
Address-2:		<i>2</i> 2		Phone#:		Medicar		
City/State:	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	AL 3669	5 C	Clinic Code:		Pat's Relation To Sub:	18 🎾	
Employer:	RETIRED			Subscriber's Sex:	M	Subscriber's DOB:	01/06/1951	
Emp. Address:		EID ESC 5		Aisc#3:		Release of Information		
Contract Management			E	Exclude from Net Calc	?:	N Reports: N	Other Coverages:	N
Plan: 🔊								
Network:	000							
EOB Indicator:								

Insurance System - Policy Information

Insurance Company

- Name: The Insurance Company name pulls from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen. Once the Financial Class code is entered in the Insurance Information section, the name associated with the code is displayed. The system allows the name of the Insurance Company to be over-keyed, or if it is correct, select **Enter**. When entered into the Registration and ADT screen, the name pulls to the Policy Information screen. This pulls to locator 38 on the UB.
- Address: The Insurance Company address pulls from page 1 of the Insurance Company table. This pulls to locator 38 on the UB.
- **Phone:** The Insurance Company phone number pulls from the Prov Phone field on page 2 of the Insurance Company table.
- Contact: This field allows a contact name to be entered and will also pull from Policy Information.

Subscriber

- Name: The Subscriber name pulls the patient name from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen for Medicare and Medicaid Financial Classes. For all other insurance types, the Guarantor name, from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen screen will pull. As with the Insurance Company name, the Subscriber name may be over-keyed. This pulls to locator 58 on the UB.
- Address: The Subscriber address pulls from the Guarantor/Ins tab in the Guarantor Demographics section.
- **Employer:** The employer name pulls from the Guarantor/Ins tab in the Guarantor Work Information section. This pulls to locator 65 on the UB.
- Emp Addr: The employer address field pulls from the Guarantor/Ins tab in the Guarantor Work Information section.
- EID: The Employer Information Data (EID) field requires the information to be manually entered.
- **ESC:** The Employment Status Code (ESC) field can be manually entered or if entered in Policy Information, it will pull to this field. However, if this field is blank, a "22", which signifies "Unknown", will print on the UB.

NOTE: For financial classes other than Medicare and Medicaid whether the guarantor information, patient information or blank pulls is dependent on the setting in the Copy Guarantor Info to Ins. Subscriber field on page 8 of AHIS.

Contract Management

The Contract Management fields are used for facilities that have purchased the Contract Management application.

- **Plan:** Information entered in the Guarantor/Ins tab in the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information, will pull, or the information may be manually entered. There is a lookup option.
- **Network:** Information entered in the Guarantor/Ins tab in the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information, will pull, or the information may be manually entered.
- EOB Indicator: Enter a Y if a paper EOB is requested. If no paper EOB is requested, enter an N.

Policy Information

• **Contract #:** The Contract Number may be manually entered or if entered in the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information, it will pull to this field. This pulls to locator 60 on the UB.

12 Insurance User Guide

- **Primary:** Answer **Y** to indicate this is the primary claim for the account. Using a **2** or **3** will designate these claims as secondary insurances. The system will then order the claims marked with a **2** as secondary claims and the claims with a **3** as tertiary claims.
- **Group Info:** The Group Information should include a *I* (forward slash) to separate the group name and number. If there is no group name, then the *I* should precede the group number. This information may be manually entered or if entered in the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information, will pull to this field. This pulls to locator 61 and 62 on the UB.
- Direct Pay: The Direct Pay field requires the information to be entered manually. This is a 1character field that accepts a Y or N. If the field is blank or answered N, the facility will receive the reimbursement. If the patient should receive the reimbursement, this field should be answered Y.
- Benefit Desc: The Benefit Description field's use varies from state to state. If necessary, information will be entered manually. This field will hold up to 110 characters of which 108 will transmit electronically. Type XMIT in the first four spaces of this field, and type what needs to pull to locator 19 on the 1500 form or to locator 80 on the UB. When using XMIT up to 91 characters will pull to locator 80 on the UB and up to 45 characters will pull to locator 19 on the 1500. To accommodate up to 71 characters on the 1500, type 1500 in the first four spaces of this field and type what need to pull to locator 19 on the 1500.
- **Medigap #:** The Medigap number is used for certain Intermediaries. This number pulls from page 3 of the Insurance Company table.
- **GBHC:** The Georgia Better Health Care (GBHC) is state specific.
- **Payer ID:** The Payer Identification field should remain blank until further notification. Once the HCFA mandate has been completed, this Payer ID will pull to claims in the place of the insurer's name and address. The Payer ID pulls from page 4 of the Insurance Company table.

Claim Approval

- Sent: This field is updated with the current date as soon as a claim is set up. There are two ways to set up a claim. The first is by adding the Financial Class code associated with the patient's Insurance Company on the Guarantor/Ins tab of the Registration and ADT screen. The second is by entering **New Insurance** at the top of the Insurance Claims by Patient screen, then keying in the Financial Class code for the intended insurance company or entering the first letters of the financial class description and selecting **Enter**.
- **Received:** This field works differently for each Financial Class code. Once a claim is set up, the system looks at the Require Approval field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. If this field is answered **Y**, the system requires a received date to be entered manually. If the field is answered **N**, the system will update the received field with the current system date when the claim is created.
- **Precert #/Type:** Enter the intermediary's authorization number in this field. This field will accept 25 characters. The Precert#/Type field will accept a 2-digit Qualifier code. If left blank, the Qualifier code will default to a value of "G1" in the ANSI 837 file. The "G1" code indicates a Prior Authorization number. The Precert# pulls to locator 63 on the UB.

- **Phone#:** The Phone number field pulls from page 4 of the Insurance Company table or it may be entered manually.
- **Medicare #**: Used to record the Medicare Contract Number that was used prior to the issuing of the Medicare Beneficiary Identifier (MBI). This will allow the legacy Medicare Contract # to be recorded for reporting purposes.
- Clinic Code: This 2-digit code pulls the clinic address located in the Clinic Table, in the Business Office tables, to locator 2 of the UB, locator 32 of the 1500 and/or locator 33 of the 1500. This information, if entered in the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information, will pull to this field.
- Pat's Relation to Sub: This code indicates the patient's relationship to the Subscriber. The code pulls to locator 59 on the UB. There is a lookup option.
- **Subscriber's Sex:** Enter the sex of the Subscriber if required by the State, or it will pull from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information.
- **Subscriber's DOB:** Enter the Subscriber's date of birth if required by the State, or it will pull from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen, Policy Information.
- Misc#3: This field is state specific.
- Release of Information: This field is used for institutional claims. If blank, the system defaults to Y. Otherwise, the facility may enter A, I, M, N, O or Y depending on specific requirements. This pulls to locator 52 on the UB.
- Exclude from Net Calc?: If this field is set to Y, the claim will not pull to the Insurance Adjustments to AR Report. Also, the claim will not pull the Estimated Contractual Amount to the Aged Trial Balance. If blank, the system defaults to N.
- **Reports:** If this field is set to **Y**, the claim will not appear on the following reports: Insurance Journals, Insurance Billing Time Analysis, Insurance Reimbursement Analysis and Insurance Receipt List.
- Other Coverages: If this field is set to Y the claim will not pull to locator 50 on the UB for other claims on the same account.

The following are options at the top of the Policy Information screen:

- Detail Benefits: Selecting this option will display the Detail Benefits screen for the claim.
- View CM: Selecting this option View CM, Contract Management, is only accessible for claims that will be tracked through Contract Management. This option will display the Selected Account Information screen in Contract Management.
- Eligibility Inquiry: Site specific.

Each field on the Policy Information screen, except the patient's name and account number, may be updated manually. Due to state requirements, some fields on this screen may store information differently.

3.5 Generate Claim

When a claim is generated, the charges from the Account Detail screen will be pulled to the Detail Charges screen. Service From and Service To dates will pull admit and discharge dates from the Registration and ADT screen. If there are no admit and discharge dates loaded, dates may be manually entered. The dates entered will pull to locator 6 on the UB.

3.6 Stay Information

This option stores information about the patient's current stay for the claim being processed. Information entered during the Registration process or by the Health Information Department will pull to this screen. Some of this information will pull to the Stay Information screen as soon as the claim is set up. Other information about the account will pull when the claim is generated. Below is a list of the fields on the Stay Information screen and a short description of each.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Insurance claim > <u>Stay Information</u>

÷		Signed On Emp: DWW Dept: 001
Insurance System - Stay Information MR Diags/Proc Name S7828 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Prior Stay	Ins <u>D</u> iagiProc
Patient Information Address 1: 128 PARK LANE Address 2: Chy/State/Zip/Cnt: Imployer: EVI EVIDENT Address: 6600 WALL STRE Sinth Date: 02/05/1951 Soc Ser IM Martal Status: DRG CD9: ICD10:	L 36695 MOB	Accident / Therapy / Treatment Date: Tme: Place: Qualifier: Millary? Emp Related? Other date/qual: Imme: Current Stay information Admt Date: Time: Disc. Date: Time: Code: Physician: Surgeon: Serv: PPS Code: PSRO Code: Millary: Utiler?: ICH: /

Insurance System - Stay Information

The following are options at the top of the Stay Information screen.

- Name: Select this option to change the patient name on the account.
- Prior Stay: The occurrence spans for prior stay information should be entered manually.

• Ins Diag/Proc: Allows access to the Grouper to review the coding on the account. See Insurance Diagnosis/Procedure 16.

The data that pulls to the Stay Information screen pulls from the Registration and ADT screen and Medical Records. This information may be changed, although the changes will not affect the fields from which it pulled. Therefore, if changes need to be made to a patient's account that should be reflected on all screens, the changes should be made on the screens where the information was originally entered. These changes will be reflected in the Stay Information screen as soon as the claim is generated.

Patient Information

- Address: The patient's address pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen. This may be over-keyed at any time before the claim is printed.
- **Employer:** The Employer field stores information from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Address: This Address field pulls the Employer's address from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Birth Date: The patient's Birth Date pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Soc Sec#: The patient's Social Security Number pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Med Rec#:** The Medical Records Number may be entered on the Patient tab of the Registration and ADT screen or in the DRG Grouper screen.
- Sex: The patient's Sex pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Marital Status: The patient's Marital Status pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Race: The patient's Race pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

DRG

- ICD9: ICD10: The computed DRG will pull from the Grouper screen.
- **HH HIPPS Codes/Dates:** This field is used with the Home Health Billing system. The 5-digit codes and dates may be manually entered or will pull from the PPS Grouper screens.

Accident/Therapy/Treatment

- Date: Time: Once the claim is generated, the accident date and time pull from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Place: Qualifier:** Once the claim is generated, the accident place and qualifier pull from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

- Military?: Emp Related?: Auto?: Information must be manually entered in the Military, Employee Related, and Auto fields.
- Other Date/Qual: Once the claim is generated, the other date and qualifier pull from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

Current Stay Information

- Admit Date: Time: Code: The admission information pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen once the claim is set up.
- **Disc Date: Time: Code:** The discharge information pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen once the claim is set up.
- **Physician:** The Physician number pulls from the Attending field in the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen once the claim is set up.
- Serv: The Service Code pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Surgeon:** The Surgeon's Physician number pulls from page 2 of the DRG Grouper Screen. An "S" will signify the surgeon that performed the procedures.
- **PPS Code: PSRO Code:** The PPS field is not used at this time. This code will pull from the PSRO Code field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. This pulls to locator 71 on the UB.
- Misc 2: This field is a state specific field, information should be entered manually.
- HHPPS CLASS: OUTLIER: This field is used with the Home Health Billing system.
- ICN: The Internal Control Number should be entered manually. This field is used when resubmitting a claim. This pulls to locator 64 on the UB.

Insurance Diagnosis/Procedure

The Insurance Diagnosis/Procedures (Ins Diag/Proc) option allows access to the Grouper screen so that Medical Record coding may be reviewed. There are two versions of the Grouper screen, the Medical Records Grouper and the Insurance Grouper, below is an explanation of each.

- **Medical Records Grouper**: Displays the coding information entered by Medical Records. Information entered here will automatically copy to the Insurance Grouper.
- **Insurance Grouper**: Displays the diagnosis and procedure information entered by Medical Records. The information displayed here may be edited to change the diagnosis and procedure information that displays on the insurance claim. Changes made on the Insurance Grouper will not copy back to the Medical Records Grouper.

Depending on the user's security, the Grouper screens may be view only, or maintenance may be allowed through this option. Listed below are the combinations of behavior controls that may be used

to assign access to the Grouper for insurance billers. The path to access these behavior controls is: **Special Functions > Identity Management > Logins > select a Login >** <u>Behavior Controls</u>.

- Insurance billers that require view only access to the Insurance Grouper should be given the following behavior controls.
 - Code by Insurance set to Allow
 - No rule for Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information -or- Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information set to Deny
- Insurance billers that require access to view and edit the Insurance Grouper should be given the following behavior controls:
 - Code by Insurance set to Allow
 - Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information set to Allow
- Insurance billers that require access to view and edit the Insurance Grouper AND access to view the Medical Records Grouper should be given the following behavior controls:
 - Code by Insurance set to Allow
 - Code by HIM set to Allow
 - Edit Non-HIM Diagnosis and Procedure Information set to Allow
- If the user's login is not assigned to the Health Information Management role, the login must also be given access to the Applications listed below. The path to access the Application rules for a login is: Special Functions > Identity Management > Logins > select a Login > <u>Applications</u>.
 - Coding set to Allow
 - Health Information Management set to Allow
 - Table Maintenance set to Allow**

NOTE: Access to the Table Maintenance application will only need to be granted if the user needs the ability to edit the Medical Records or Insurance Grouper.

Insurance Diagnosis

Selecting Ins Diag/Proc will display the Insurance Grouper Diagnoses screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Stay Information > Ins Diag/Proc

ECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 20001746	Sex: M DOB: 01/06/	1951 Age: 6	7 MR#: 970	886 Attending	Phy: Baxte	er James MD	Total Charges: \$0.00
Type: 2 2	Service Code: LA	Financial Class: MB		Service Da	tes: 08/02/2018 - 08	/02/2018	Disc Cd: H	Bill Date:
11: 0 kg/m2	BSA: 0.00 m2	Admit Weight: 0 Ibs 0.00 kg	ј 0.00 g					
New Diagnosis 🛛 🕅 Edit	🐼 Delete 🕜 Finish 🔌 Ins	ert Problems 🛛 🐉 Insert from Me	edNec 📄 🏴 Admittir	ng Flag 🛛 🏴 Reason fo	or Visit Flag			
	- 10 10	1.4	1.8	0 010				
Diagnoses								
Insurance	\sim		F	C/Set#: MB 001	\sim			
Rank ICD9 Code ICE	010 Code Description	P	OA Admitting	Reason for Visit	Code Class M	CE		

Insurance Diagnoses

The Diagnosis Codes and descriptions will pull from the Medical Records Grouper screen; however, they may be edited for insurance billing purposes by selecting either the **Insurance** or the **Insurance Admitting** option from the drop-down menu. Any changes made using either of these two options will not affect the Medical Records Grouper screen. Any changes that are made will only be reflected on the insurance claim. Below is a description of the drop-down options that are displayed.

- **Insurance:** Selecting the Insurance option will allow the primary and secondary diagnosis information to be edited. The Principle Diagnosis Code pulls to locator 67A on the UB. The Secondary Diagnosis Codes pull to locators 67B-Q, except for codes V00*-Y99* which will pull to locators 72A-C.
- **Insurance Admitting**: Selecting the Insurance Admitting option will allow the Admitting diagnosis that pulls to the insurance claim to be edited. This Admitting Diagnosis Code will pull to locator 69 on the UB.
- **FC/Set#**: Displays the Financial Class and Set Number on the claim that was used to access the Insurance Diagnosis/Procedure information screen. This option is view only.

If diagnosis codes have been added to the account, the existing diagnosis codes will display. For more information on updating the Diagnosis screen, please see the <u>Diagnosis</u> section of the Health Information Management documentation.

Insurance Procedures

Select **Procedures** from the navigation bar to view procedure Information.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Stay Information > Ins Diag/Proc > <u>Procedures</u>

ECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 20001746		DOB: 01/06/1951	Age: 67		970886		-	•	James MD		rges: \$0.00
Type: 2 2	Service Code: LA	Financial Clas			Service	Dates: 0	8/02/201	8 - 08/0	2/2018	Disc Cd: H	Bill Date:	
/ll: 0 kg/m2	BSA: 0.00 m2	Admit Weight:	0 lbs 0.00 kg 0.00 g									
New Procedure 📝 Edit	🙆 Delete 📀 Finish 🤱 Pai	tient's Physicians	🗃 PDF [🚨 Account	Detail								
_ .												
Procedures												
Insurance v				FC	/Set#: MB 001	\sim						
	Description			FC		Vod Mod	i Mod	Mod	Physician	Physician	Rev Cntr	MCE

Insurance Procedures

The Procedure Codes and descriptions will pull from the Medical Records Grouper screen; however, they may be edited for insurance billing purposes by selecting **Insurance** from the drop-down menu. Any changes made using this option will not affect the Medical Records Grouper screen. Any changes that are made will only be reflected on the insurance claim. Below is a description of the drop-down options that are displayed.

- **Insurance:** The Procedure Codes and date pull from the Medical Records Grouper screen. The Principle Procedure Code pulls to locator 74 on the UB. The first four Secondary Procedure Codes pull to locators 74A-E on the UB.
- **FC/Set#**: Displays the Financial Class and Set Number on the claim that was used to access the Insurance Diagnosis/Procedure information screen. This option is view only.

If procedure codes have been added to the account, the existing procedure codes will display. For more information on updating the Procedures screen, please see the <u>Procedures</u> section of the Health Information Management documentation.

3.7 Detail Charges

This option contains information from the patient's Account Detail. There are two Detail Charges screens that are used on the system. One is an itemized screen usually used for Outpatient claims. The other is a summarized screen for Inpatient claims.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Itemized Detail Charges

ient: 3	57828 BEEC	H DAVIS SANDERS	Insurance:	MB	MEDICARE (DP			
Code	Description	Date	Physician		Qty	CPT	MODS	Charges	Non-Cov
45	94640 IV SO	05/14/15			1.00			121.00	
46	#250514ER 9	05/14/15			1.00	99202		659.80	
64	#371906EKG	05/14/15			1.00	93005		99.50	
SL	#2618011PHY	05/14/15			1.00	99283		118.58	
							Blood:		
lood Furi		Replaced:	Not-Rep:	Rate:			Total:	998.88	
enied Ch									
eductible	1		Med Nec Days:		Totals		Print Form?	_	
lood Ded o-Pay:	luct:		Ready to Bill? Coinsurance:				Print Form? Elect. Bill?		
xpected	Pavr.	998.88	UB Bill Type :	131			Print Crossover?		
xpected	ray.	330.00	OD Dill Type .	101					

Insurance System - Detail Charges

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Select Claim > Summarized Detail Charges

Rev Coo	les	COB Pmt	Additional Mods	Next	Page	Previous Page	Delete Charges		
ient: 35		BEECH DAVIS SA	11	Insurance	-	MEDICARE-I/P	<u>D</u> elete entragee		
Code		Charge	Description		RM-Typ	e Qty	Rate	Charges	Non-Cov
)2	ROOM	CHARGE			S	3.00	539.00	1617.00	
55	LABOR	ATORY				2.00		109.60	
78	PHARM	ACY				3.00		79.80	
34	RESPIR	ATORY THERAPY				14.00		327.00	
							Blood:		
lood Furn		Replaced:	Not-Re	p:	Rate:		Total:	2133.40	
enied Cho	js:			,					
eductible:			Med Ne	ec Days:	0 Tota	ls			
lood Dedu	uct:		Ready	To Bill?			Print Form?		
o-Pay:			Coinsu	rance:			Elect. Bill?		
xpected F	ay:	2133.40	UB Bill	Туре:	111		Print Crossover	? 🗖	

Insurance System - Detail Charges

The majority of this screen is used to display the charges that will pull to a claim. Once a claim is generated, the charges within the date range selected will pull to the Detail Charges screen from the Account Detail. Charges may be manipulated on this screen without affecting the patient's Account Detail.

Outpatient claims pull an itemized Detail Charges screen. The Outpatient information pulls the Summary Code from the Item Master. The Charge Description looks to the Item Master at the time the charge is posted to the account to pull the Item Description. If the item has a CPT code loaded on the Item Master Maintenance screen, the description will pull with "#" and the item number preceding the summary code description. If the item does not have a CPT code loaded on the Item Master, the description from the Summary Code table will pull to the Detail Charges screen. The date the charge was incurred also pulls to these fields. The Physician name and number, based on what was entered during charging, pulls to these fields on the itemized Detail Charges screen. The quantity pulls from the Account Detail and is the amount that was entered during charging. The rate is calculated by taking the total charges from the Account Detail and dividing it by the quantity. CPT Modifiers pull from the Item Master Maintenance. The Modifiers are the last four characters in the 9-character CPT code. The covered and non-covered charge amounts are the same for itemized screens.

Inpatient claims pull a summarized Detail Charges screen. Like an Outpatient claim, the charges pull from the Account Detail. The charges pull the 2-character summary code that is associated with the charge in the Item Master. This pulls to the Account Detail at the time the charge is posted. The charge description pulls from the Account Detail that pulled from the description of the summary code at the time the charge was posted. Room Type is only used for room charges and pulls the type of room from the Census charges. The Quantity also pulls from the Account Detail. This is entered during the charging process. The Rate is the dollar amount charged for a single item. The system takes the total amount charged from Account Detail and divides it by the Quantity to get the rate. The Covered Charges are a total amount of charges less the Non-Covered Charges. Non-Covered Charges also show if the Coverage Percentage is less than 100 on the Detail Benefits screen. Not entering the Full Days on the Detail Benefits screen for Inpatient accounts also results in charges being non-covered.

NOTE: If the Contract Billing Report was used to transfer specific charges from a patient's account to a master account, only the charges that are not transferred will be included on the patient's insurance claim.

The following fields are on the Detail Charges screen for both itemized and summarized claims:

- Blood: The blood charges from the patient account will pull to this field.
- Blood Furn: Replaced: Not Rep: Rate: These fields require the information to be loaded manually. The Blood Furnished field stores the number of pints of blood furnished for the patient. Replaced is the field that stores the information on the number of pints of blood replaced. The number of pints of blood not replaced is loaded in the Not-Rep field. The Rate field is the average rate of each pint of blood.
- **Denied Chgs:** The Denied Charges field stores the dollar amount of the charges that the insurance company refused to pay. This field is updated manually and will reduce the expected pay for the claim.

- **Deductible:** The Deductible amount pulls the dollar amount that was loaded on the Detail Benefits screen. This field is also updated during the receipting process.
- Blood Deduct: The Blood Deductible should be entered manually.
- **Co-Pay:** This field may be updated at any time during the Insurance Billing process. When adjusting this field, the expected pay field will reflect the adjustment.
- Expected Pay: The Expected Pay field is calculated each time the claim is generated. The system takes the total charges for the claim less the Non-Covered, Deductible, Co-pay, Coinsurance and Denied Charges to compute the Expected Pay. This pulls to locator 55 on the UB.
- Med Nec Days: Medically Necessary Days should be entered manually.
- **Ready to Bill?:** This field defaults to No. When the claim has been through the billing process and is ready to bill, this field should be selected.
- **Coinsurance:** This field may be updated at any time during the Insurance Billing process. When adjusting this field, the expected pay field will reflect the adjustment.
- **UB Bill Type:** This field is computed by the system for Bill Types 111 114, 131 132, 831 and 851. Other Bill Types needed may be entered on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. This field's information may be over keyed at any time. This pulls to locator 4 on the UB.
- **Print Form ?:** The Print Form field should be answered when the claim is Ready to Bill. Selecting this field will allow the claim to print on a form, and leaving the field blank will suppress the claim from printing. Although the claim will not print, the system will still advance the claim status. For more information on this field, see Stages of an Insurance Claim section of this User Guide.
- Elec Bill?: This option is allowed on claims that have the Transmit Claim field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table set **Y**. This will allow the claim to pull to the electronic file for this Financial Class. For more information on this field see Insurance Tickler.
- Print Crossover?: This field should be answered Y if a crossover form will be printed for the claim.

The following options are located at the top of the screen:

- **Rev Codes:** This option will toggle back and forth from the Summary Code display to the Revenue Code display. Selecting **Rev Codes** will display the Revenue Code on the Detail Charges screen. Selecting **Sum Codes** will display the Summary Codes.
- **COB Prnt:** This option is state specific for Michigan.
- Additional Modifiers: This option will allow Additional Modifiers to be added to those already listed in the Detail Charges screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Select Claim > Detail Charges > <u>Additional Modifiers</u>



Insurance System - Additional Modifiers

Selecting the Additional Modifiers option will prompt for the Detail Sequence. Enter the number of the Detail Charge line that corresponds to the line in which the Modifier should be added; (ie. If the Modifier should be added to the third line down in the Detail Charges screen, enter a 3 in the box.) Select **OK** once the sequence number is entered. Enter the Modifier to be added and select Tab on the keyboard to move to the **Add** option. Selecting **Add** will display the Modifier.

Once all information has been entered, select **OK** to complete the addition of the Modifier. The Reset option may be selected if the information entered was incorrect and needs to be cleared. After a Modifier has been added it can be removed by entering the Detail Sequence number of the line, highlighting the incorrect Modifier, then selecting the **Remove** option. Additional Modifiers will pull to locator 44 of the UB and locator 24D of the 1500.

- Next Page: Previous Page: Select either option to view more or toggle back to prior charges on the Detail Charges screen.
- Delete Charges: This option will delete all charges on the page.
- Anesthesia: This view only option will display if there are anesthesia charges that have been generated on the claim. See Anesthesia Charging and Billing in Additional Documentation for more information.

3.8 Coverages

This option identifies other claims on the account that need to be indicated as an additional provider on the UB or on the 1500. Once identified, it links them together. Coverages will calculate on claims at the Unchecked, Ready to Bill or Pending status. If a claim has not been generated, it will not be considered as another coverage for a generated claim. Once a claim is at the Billed status, Coverages may not be manipulated.

Coverages look at the form code, dates of service, primary switch and financial class code to determine what claims should be linked. The system will also take into consideration Insurance Company Table settings such as the Form Code and Bill Physician Charges Separately fields on page 1, the Separate Claims option on page 4 and the Coverage Form Code field on page 6.

If the primary switch, contact number and financial class code are the same, the system will see them as the same Coverage and will not link them. For commercial financial classes, the system will look at the insurance company name rather than the financial class code.

The Exclude from Other Coverages field in Policy Information will exclude the claim from being set as a coverage for any other claim.

	Ins	Set	Primary	Charges	Expected-Pay			
	BB	1	2	876.30	876.30			
2.								
3.								
4.								
5.								
6.								
7.								
8.								
9.								
.0.	Ent	er:	(Exit	C-Calculate	D-Delete	A-Add	O-Override	
				C-Calculate	D-Delete	A-Add	0-Override	
				All In	surance Claims			
	Ins S	Set 1	Primary Nar			Charges	Expected	d-Pay

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>Coverages</u>

Insurance System - Coverages

26 Insurance User Guide

The Coverages screen will list which claims are linked in the top section of the screen. All other claims that are not linked, will be displayed in the bottom section of the screen. Below, is a listing and description of the different options within the Coverages Maintenance screen:

- **Calculate:** This option should be selected to manually calculate. Selecting calculate will reset all values and any manual changes made to the Coverages screen.
- **Delete:** This option will remove a claim already linked to the selected claim. Selecting Delete will prompt for the sequence number of the claim line that needs to be removed.
- Add: This option will add a claim as a linked coverage to the selected claim. Selecting Add will prompt for the sequence number of the claim line at the bottom of the screen that needs to be added.
- **Override:** This option may be used to override Coverage errors. This option should only be used if Coverages causing the error have been thoroughly reviewed and deemed necessary for the current billing scenario.

There will be instances when claims are linked incorrectly causing an error to flag on the account. A listing of Coverage errors an account can get are as follows:

- Total Coverage Charge Mismatch: This error occurs if the total charges by primary switch do not match. All charges are totaled by primary switch and compared for a mismatch.
- Service Date Mismatch: This error occurs when the service from and to dates are not within the same date range.
- Invalid Primary Switch: This error occurs when a coverage claim has a primary switch that is not equal to Y, 2 or 3.
- **Missing Coverage Claim**: This error occurs if one of the coverages on a claim does not exist. This may occur if a claim was deleted and coverages were not recalculated.
- **Multiple Preceding Claims**: This error can occur when calculating COB information for a secondary claim and there is more than one primary coverage claim.
Non-standard Coverages found: INVALID PRIMARY SWITCH ACCT: 357828 INS: BB SET: 001 Do you wish to continue?

Insurance System - Coverages

When exiting the coverage maintenance screen and an error found, the system will display a warning message, "Non-standard Coverages found: Do you wish to continue?" The message displayed will list a description of the error along with the account number, financial class code and set number. If this prompt is answered **Y**, the system will go back to the claim status screen, and no corrections will be made to the Coverages screen. If this prompt is answered **N**, the system will go to the Coverages screen so that corrections may be made.

Non-standard Coverages found: MISSING COVERAGE CLAIM ACCT: 357828 INS: MB SET: 001

Do you wish to continue?

Insurance System - Coverages

When leaving the Insurance, Claims by Patient screen, if there is a Coverage error that still exists, the system will display a warning message "Problems were found in claim Coverages. See details below. Do you wish to continue?" If this message is answered \mathbf{Y} , any claim at Ready to Bill or Pending status listed with Coverage errors will be moved back to the unchecked status. If a claim is moved back to the unchecked status because of Coverage errors, the comment box will add a note saying "COVG ERR." The system will also capture the login name and CS number of the person who answered the prompt \mathbf{Y} , and this information will display in the top of the Coverage Maintenance screen. If this prompt is answered \mathbf{N} , the system will go back into the Insurance screen so that Coverages may be corrected.

```
TOTAL COVERAGE CHARGE MISMATCH:

Total coverage charges for primary 2 = 876.30

do not match total coverage charges for primary Y = 854.20

For Primary 2 For Primary Y

Claim Total Coverage Charges Claim Total Coverage Charges

BB 876.30 MB 854.20

Please review coverages screens to verify.

Do you wish to continue?
```

Insurance System - Coverages

If the account is getting an error for Total Coverage Charge Mismatch, the above error screen will display. It will give a more detailed error message for the claims that were linked incorrectly. The error will show the total coverage charges for both the primary and the matching secondary claim along with what is setup for both claims as covered. By answering the prompt "Do you wish to continue?" with a **Y**, it will exit out of the Coverage Maintenance. If the prompt is answered with an **N**, it will go back to the Coverage Maintenance screen to correct the error.

3.9 View All Claims

View All Claims will return to the Claims by Patient Screen.

3.10 Patient Functions

Patient Functions will return the cursor to the Patient Functions screen.

Insurance User Guide 30

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Claim > Patient Functions

TOTAL COVERAGE CHARGE MISMATCH: Total coverage charges for primary 2 = 876.30 do not match total coverage charges for primary Y = 854.20

For Prim	ary 2		For Prima	iry Y		
Claim	Total Coverage	Charges	Claim	Total	Coverage	Charges
BB		876.30	MB			854.20

Please review coverages screens to verify. Do you wish to continue?

Accounts Receivable - Patient Functions

3.11 Receipt Entry

Receipt Entry allows a receipt to be posted against the claim. TruBridge recommends entering insurance receipts through the Insurance Receipt Entry option in Receipting to capture more detail.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Receipt Entry > <u>Select Billed Claim</u>

Accounts Receivable - Insurance Receipt Entry Accounts Receivable - Insurance Receipt Entry Update Note Entry Account Number: 12/18/15 1 Initials: SDW Account Number: 357828 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Service Fr Billed Amt: Payer: Service Fr Contractual GL: Account Ins Reimbursement Contractual GL Applied to Ded: Co-pay Amt: Consurance: Non-Covered: Eaclassical Contractual GL Covered Contractual GL Contra	BD Balance: 00 rom : Thru : tractual Approved
AR Balance: 876.30 Receipt Date: 12/18/15 1 • Remittance Date: 12/18/15 1 • Initials: SDW Account Number: 357828 SEECH DAVIS SANDERS BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Service Fr Billed Amt: Payer: Service Fr Service Fr Billed Amt: Account Ins Reimbursement Cont Contractual GL: Approved Amt: Account Ins Reimbursement Cont Co-pay Amt: Coinsurance: Coinsurance: Coinsurance Coinsurance Coinsurance	rom : Thru :
Receipt Date: 12/18/15 1 Remittance Date: 12/18/15 1 Initials: SDW Account Number: 357828 Second BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Receipt Type: Service Payer: Service Fit Billed Amt: Account Ins Reimbursement Contractual GL: Approved Amt: Applied to Ded: Co-pay Amt: Coinsurance: Coinsurance:	rom : Thru :
Account Number: 357828 Second BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Receipt Type: Payer: Service Fr Billed Amt: Account Ins Contractual GL: Account Ins Approved Amt: Account Ins Co-pay Amt: Coinsurance: Ins	
Receipt Type: Payer: Service Fr Billed Amt:	
Billed Amt:	
Contractual GL: Account Ins Reimbursement Contractual Con	tractual Approved
Contractual GL:	, ,
Applied to Ded: Co-pay Amt: Coinsurance:	
Co-pay Amt:	
Coinsurance:	
New Ownership	
Non-Covered:	
Payment Amt:	
Contractual Adj:	
APC Outlier:	
DRG:	
Payment Type:	
Save:	

Receipt Entry

3.12 APC Detail

APC Detail shows the estimated and actual APC reimbursement information.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>APC Detail</u>

No. Status BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Insurance: MB MEDICARE OP CD CPT MODS S Charges APC# Estimated Reim-Amt Coins + Deducts APC# Actual Reim Amt Artical Pace Artical Pace <t< th=""><th>CD CPT MODS S Charges APC# Estimated Reim-Amt Coins + Deducts APC# Actual Reim-Amt Coins + Deducts 46 99202 V 659.80 0605 86.40 25.00 20.0</th><th>Insurance S</th><th>System - A</th><th>PC Detail</th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th></th><th>Signed Or</th><th>n Emp: SDW Dept: 058</th></t<>	CD CPT MODS S Charges APC# Estimated Reim-Amt Coins + Deducts APC# Actual Reim-Amt Coins + Deducts 46 99202 V 659.80 0605 86.40 25.00 20.0	Insurance S	System - A	PC Detail							Signed Or	n Emp: SDW Dept: 058
46 99202 V 659.80 0605 86.40 55 85029 25.00 45 N 30.00 45 N 30.00 45 N 30.00 43 N 43.10 N 8.30 84 N 32.00 0368 137.14 78 N 14.70 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Initials: Total Coinsurance: Total Coinsurance: Total Deductibles:	46 99202 V 659.80 0605 86.40 55 85029 25.00 45 N 30.00 45 N 30.00 45 N 30.00 43 N 43.10 N 8.30 84 N 32.00 8461 X 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 14.70 740 740 78 N 14.70 Fotal Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Initials: Total Coinsurance: 223.54	atient: 357	828	BEECH	DAVIS S	ANDER	≀S	Insurance:	MB	MEDICA	RE OP	
55 85029 25.00 45 N 30.00 43 N 43.00 78 N 8.30 84 94681 X 78 N 7.40 78 N 14.70 Interview of the second sec	55 85029 25.00 45 N 30.00 45 N 30.00 78 N 8.30 84 94681 X 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 7.40 7.40 7.40 78 N 14.70 14.70 Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Reimbursement: 223.54 223.54 223.54	CD CPT	MODS	S C	harges	A	PC# Estimated Rein	n-Amt Coins + Dedu	ucts	APC#	Actual Reim-Amt	Coins + Deducts
45 N 43.10 43 N 43.10 78 N 8.30 84 94681 X 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: 223.54 Total Coinsurance: 223.54	45 N 30.00 43 N 43.10 78 N 8.30 84 94681 X 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Initials: 223.54 Total Coinsurance: 223.54		V			505	86.40			_		
43 N 43.10 78 N 8.30 84 N 32.00 84 94681 X 78 N 7.40 78 N N/R Verified Date: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: 70tal Coinsurance: 223.54 70tal Deductibles: 223.54	43 N 43.10 78 N 8.30 84 N 32.00 84 94681 X 78 N 7.40 78 N N/R Verified Date: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: 70tal Coinsurance: 223.54 Fotal Deductibles: 223.54		N									
78 N 8.30 84 N 32.00 84 94681 X X 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 7.40 78 N 7.40 78 N 7.40 78 N 14.70 Blood Charges: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Total Coinsurance: Total Deductibles:	78 N 8.30 84 94681 X X 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 7.40 78 N 7.40 78 N 7.40 78 N 14.70 Fotal Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Cotal Coinsurance: Total Coinsurance: Cotal Deductibles:											
84 94681 x 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 7.40 14.70 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Reimbursement: 223.54 223.54 M/R Initials:	84 94681 x 56.00 0368 137.14 78 N 7.40 14.70 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Total Reimbursement: 223.54 X23.54 X78	78	N	8.	30							
78 N 7.40 78 N 7.40 78 N 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Total Coinsurance: 223.54	78 N 7.40 78 N 7.40 78 N 14.70											
78 N 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Total Coinsurance: 223.54	78 N 14.70 Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Total Coinsurance: 223.54					868	137.14					
Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Total Reimbursement: 223.54 Total Coinsurance: Image: Coinsurance image: Coi	Total Charges: 876.30 M/R Verified Date: Blood Charges: Estimated Actual M/R Initials: Total Reimbursement: 223.54 Total Deductibles: Image: Comparison of the second s											
Total Coinsurance: Total Deductibles:	Total Coinsurance: Total Deductibles:	olar onarges	•				Actual	-			biood onarges.	
Total Deductibles:	Total Deductibles:	otal Reimbur	sement:		22	3.54						
Total Contractual: 652.76	Total Contractual: 652.76	otal Deductib	les:									
		otal Contract	ual:		65	2.76						

Insurance System - APC Detail

This screen shows each line of detail listed for a claim including any applicable APC's. The Estimated Reimbursement Amount for each APC is reflected as well as any Coinsurance or Deductible. The last two columns will reflect the actual reimbursements entered during Receipting.

3.13 Detail Benefits

Detail Benefits screen is used in the billing process of an insurance claim to store data that describes the terms and conditions of a given insurance policy. Described below are the fields for the Policy Detail Benefits screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Detail Benefits

Insur	ance System - Detail Benefits				
28	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	MB	MEDICARE OP		
	Full Days:	0		Covered Room Rate:	0.00
	CO Days:	0		Prior Payment:	
	Life Days:	0		Prior Payment Code:	
	Blood Deduct:	0		Special Program ID:	
	Part-A Deduct:	0.00		EPSDT Referral Given?	
	CO-Pay Rate:	0.00		EPSDT CCC:	
	CO-Pay Limit:	0.00		PSRO Approval From:	
	Semi-Pvt Rate:	539.00		PSRO Approval To:	
	Per Diem Rate:	0.00		Misc#4:	
	Life Days Used:	0		Misc #5:	
	Covered Days:	1		Misc #6:	
	Non-Cov Days:	0		LTCH Coverage End:	
	Co Days Used:	0		Delay Reason:	
	Effective Date:			MSP:	
	Coverage %:	0.00		Other Claim ID/Qual:	
	Date Care Ended:	000000			

Insurance System - Detail Benefits

- Full Days: In the Full Days field, the maximum number of days the insurance company has agreed to fully cover should be entered. This is a 3-digit field, therefore, 999 is used to represent an indefinite number.
- **Co Days:** Coinsurance Days are the number of days the insurance company and the patient agree to share a portion of the amount due. Enter the maximum number of days the insurance company has agreed to partially cover. If the number of days is unknown or does not apply to the claim, leave this field blank.
- Life Days: Lifetime Reserve Days usually only apply to Medicare claims. Enter the Lifetime Days the patient has for this claim. If this is unknown, leave blank.

The Full Days, Co Days and Life Days will also populate automatically when the claim is generated if information is loaded on page 6 of the Insurance Company table.

- **Blood Deduct:** This field should have the number of pints of blood to be paid by the patient. If this does not apply to the claim, leave the field blank.
- **Part-A Deduct:** The Part A Deductible may be loaded in this field. Deductibles lower the expected pay amount but do not affect the covered and non-covered dollar amounts. If the claim does not have a deductible, leave the field blank.
- **Co-Pay Rate:** If Coinsurance days are used, enter the rate that is to be paid by the patient. Otherwise, leave the field blank.
- **Co-Pay Limit:** This field is used when the patient is using Coinsurance days, and there is a limit to that rate. If the patient is not using Coinsurance days on this claim, this field should be blank.
- Semi-Pvt Rate: The Semi-Private room rate that is loaded on page 1 of AHIS will pull to this field on the Detail Benefits screen unless the Insurance Company table has a room rate loaded on the page 6. The Semi-Private room rate loaded in the Insurance Company table overrides the amount loaded in AHIS for that particular Financial Class.
- Per Diem Rate: If the Insurance Company for this claim uses a Per Diem Rate, the daily rate of the allowed reimbursement will pull from the Current P/D Rate field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. Otherwise, this field should be blank.
- Life Days Used: This field is used to store the number of Life Days Used for the insurance claim.
- Covered Days: Non-Cov Days: The Covered Days and Non-Covered Days fields are updated by the system. At the time the claim is generated, the system looks at the full days field and determines if the days are covered or non-covered. The number of days is then calculated by the system.
- **Co Days Used:** This field allows the number of Coinsurance Days that the patient has used to be stored on this claim.
- Effective Date: The Effective Date field allows the month, date and year to be entered. This is the date the insurance coverage begins. If the coverage began before the admission, it is not necessary to load information in this field.
- **Coverage %:** The Coverage Percent field is used when the insurance company does not cover the claim 100%. If the insurance coverage for this claim is 80%, enter **80** in this field.
- **Date Care Ended:** The Date Care Ended is similar to the effective date. This field allows for the month, date and year the active policy was discontinued.
- Covered Room Rate: This is an informational field.
- **Prior Payment:** The Prior Payment field is used to store insurance payments made on this account for the billing period prior to this bill being sent. If utilizing Automated Secondary Billing, the system will automatically update this field of the primary claim with the paid amount for that claim. This pulls to locator 54 on the UB.
- Prior Payment Code: This is a state specific field.

- Special Program ID: Not used at this time.
- EPSDT Referral Given?: Was Early and Periodic Screening, Diagnosis and Treatment referral given to patient? Enter a Y or N in this field.
- EPSDT CCC: Enter up to three Certification Codes for EPSDT from the following:
 - AV (available-not used)
 - NU (not used)
 - S2 (under treatment)
 - **ST** (new service requested)
- PSRO Approval From: Not used at this time.
- PSRO Approval To: Not used at this time.
- Misc #4, 5 and 6: These fields are informational fields and must be entered manually.
- LTCH Coverage End: If the patient's benefits expire prior to the time of discharge, the date coverage ends can be loaded in this field and the system will calculate a Per Diem reimbursement using the Admit Date as the begin date and this Coverage End date.
- **Delay Reason:** This is a 2-digit reason code placed on the Electronic File. The code represents the reason a claim is being billed late.
- **MSP:** This field will only pull a code if an account has a Medicare claim that is not primary. If the Medicare Questionnaire is not filled out, a code of 47 will pull to this field. If the Medicare Questionnaire has Part IV, question 9 answered Yes, a 12 should pull to the field. If the Medicare Questionnaire has Part VI, question 1 answered Y, a 13 should pull to this field. This code will pull after an N has been answered to Part I fields 1, 4 and 5, and Part II fields 1, 3 and 7.
- Other Claim ID/Qual: Enter the ID number and 2-digit qualifier. This pulls to locator 11b on the 1500.

3.14 Medical Necessity

The Medical Necessity option will allow existing ABN's to be viewed, or new ABN's to be created thru the Medical Necessity Lookup. For more information, please see the <u>Medical Necessity</u> user guide.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>Medical Necessity</u>

BEECH DAVIS SAN Pt Type: 3 BMI: 0 kg/m2		Account: 3 Service Cod BSA: 0.00	e: ER	Sex: M Financial Cla Admit Weigl	DOB: 02/05/1951 ass: MB nt: 0 lbs 0.00 kg 0.00 g	Age: 65	MR#: 000310 A Service Dates: 03/22/	ttending Phy: SMIT 2016 - 03/22/2016	H JOHN DAVID Disc Cd: H	Total Charges: \$687.80 Bill Date:
View Existin	g ABN's									
Date	Time	UBL	Printed	Signed						
03/23/2016	14:40:07	SDW	Ν	Ν	1					

Medical Necessity

3.15 Deny Claim

The Deny Claims option should not be used. If a claim needs to be rejected, please use the Insurance Receipt Entry approximation.

3.16 Hospital Base Menu

This option returns to the Hospital Base Menu.

3.17 Coding Screen

The Coding Screen stores information about Condition Codes, Occurrence Codes and Value Codes necessary for billing the patient's claim. Codes may be loaded as needed to pull to the UB and the1500. Many Intermediaries have specific requirements for these codes to pull and for this reason, may be hardcoded in the system for a particular state and/or a specific Intermediary.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > Coding Screen

e				Signed On Emp: SDW_Dept: 058
	nce System - Coding Screen			
357828	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	MB	MEDICARE OP	
Condition	Codes			Value Codes/Amounts
C5 POS	T PAYMENT REVIEW APPLICABLE			80 1.00 COVERED DAYS
				0.00
				0.00
				0.00
				0.00
				0.00
				0.00
Occurren	ce Codes/Dates			0.00
Occurren				0.00
				0.00
				0.00
				0.00

Insurance System - Coding Screen

 Condition Codes: The Condition Code fields are used to relate this claim with specific conditions of the bill that may affect the payer process. The 2-character code may be entered manually. It may also be loaded in PSRO Code field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. If a character is loaded in the Insurance Company table, it will pull to the Condition Code field with a "C" preceding it. Condition Codes may be set up in the Business Office tables. This pulls to locators 18-28 on the UB and locator 10d on the 1500.

NOTE: When a claim is generated and it has a of J loaded in the Insurance Company Table, page 1 the Form Code field, the Condition Codes section will pull blank.

• Occurrence Codes: The Occurrence Code fields are used to define a significant event related to the billing process. The system will pull the codes loaded in the Stay tab of the Registration and

38 Insurance User Guide

ADT screen. Additional 2-character codes may be entered manually. Occurrence Codes may be set up in the Business Office tables. This pulls to locators 31-34 on the UB.

• Value Codes: The Value Code fields store the data about specific rates or values associated with the claim. These codes and amounts may be entered manually. Value Codes may be set up in the Business Office tables. Value codes may hold dollar amounts in the millions.

NOTE: A lookup screen is provided for the Condition, Occurrence and Value Codes by entering a **?** in the desired field.

3.18 Tickler System

The Tickler System manually places the claim in the Insurance Tickler System or accesses the existing Tickler account if applicable. For more information see Insurance Tickler [131].

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>Tickler File Maintenance</u>

Insurance System - Tickler File Maintenance		
Patient Functions Insurance Notes	Delete Next Exit	
stient: 357828 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS llector: SDW SAMANTHA D WALLACE or Col: SDW SAMANTHA D WALLACE	Patient Information Admit/Disc: 05/14/15 - 05/14/15	Claim Information Service Prd.: 05/14/15 - 05/14/15
view Date: 01/18/16 Start Date: ish Date: Changed Date:	Stay Type: 3 E.R. Financial Class: MB MEDICARE OP Service: ER EMERGENC	Billed Date: Expected Pay: 876.30 Claim Status: UNBILLED
Code Review Reasons/Codes BILLED CLAIM	Birth Date: 02/05/51	Last Payment Date: Total Paid: Sub: BEECH DAVIS
	Name: MB MEDICARE OP Address-1: ATTN JOHN DOE Address-2:	Policy#: A123456789 Bill Code: Credit Code:
llect Code:	Phone Number: 20-555-4321 City/State: MONTGOMERY AL 35562-2222 Contact:	Contr. Code: Guar. Phone: 251-555-6899
rcle Code:	Contact.	

Insurance System - Tickler File Maintenance

3.19 Receipt Information

Receipt Information displays receipt information for the last three receipts. The electronic EOBs may be viewed from this screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>Receipt Information</u>

		CLAIM RE	IMBURSEMENT	INFORMATION
35782	28 BEECH D	AVIS SANDERS		
INSURANCE COMPANY: BB BLU	E CROSS OF AL	A-O/P		
	TOTAL	1ST	2ND	3RD
BILLED AMOUNT	876.30	876.30	876.30	876.30
APPROVED AMOUNT	568.23	568.23		
DEDUCTIBLE				
CO-PAY:				
COINSURANCE				
NON-COVERED	28.96	28.96		
REIMBURSEMENT	568.23	568.23		
CONTRACTUAL ADJUSTMENT:	279.11	279.11		
CONTRACTUAL GL ACCOUNT:	50115000	50115000		
REJECTION CODE				
RECEIPTS	REMIT	DATE		
1ST 12/18/15847.34	12/18	/15		
2ND0.00				
3RD0.00C0	DDE=F			
ACTUAL PAYMENT847.34	568.23 R	EIM		
ENTER: ("E"OB/Remit 0-Exit)			

Claim Reimbursement Information

3.20 Image Store/Retrieve

Image Store/Retrieve allows images of insurance cards or any other patient documentation that have been scanned into the system to be viewed or new images to be stored.

3.21 Print/View Options

When this option is selected, two other options will display. The first option is **Print Form** which will print the UB or 1500. The prompts displayed are the same as printing UB's through the Insurance reports under the Print Reports menu accessed from the Hospital Base Menu. The UB or 1500 may be printed and updated through this option if the claim is at the Ready to Bill status. The second option is **Display Form on Screen** which will display the UB or 1500 claim if it has been generated and will remain available until the claim purges. If the claim is at the Ready to Bill status, it will automatically be displayed without selecting an option.

NOTE: When printing UB claims that are itemized (not summarized) the charges will display in ascending order by revenue code and will be subsorted by service date.

Chapter 4 Registration's Role in Insurance Setup

4.1 Overview

42

Registration plays an important part in the Insurance Billing process. The information that is gathered at this time pulls to the Insurance Billing screens. It is essential that Registration personnel keep accurate information about patient accounts. The Registration and ADT screen screens will store information that is also recorded on the Policy Information, the Stay Information and the Detail Charges screens.

4.2 Insurance Information

The Insurance Information is listed in the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen and is used to enter information about each insurance claim associated with the patient's account. Each Financial Class code on this page creates a claim on the Insurance Claim Status screen. The Insurance personnel will bill these claims. Below is a description of each field under the Insurance Information section.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > Guarantor/Ins

atient Contact	Guarantor/Ins Stay Clinica	I							
Guarantor E	emographics		Guarantor W						
Name:	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	<i>P</i> 📀	Employer:	EVI EVID	DENT	P	City:	MOBILE	
Address1:	128 PARK LANE		Occupation:				State/Zip:	AL 36695	
Address2:			Address1:	6600 WA	ALL STRE		Phone:	800-711-2774	
City:	MOBILE		Address2:						
State/Zip:	AL 36695		Insurance Ir	formation					
			Fin.Class:	MB	P MEDICARE OP			Restrict Payer Disclosure	
Phone:	251-555-6899		Primary	Code	Name		Subscriber		
Cell Phone:			Y 2		MEDICARE OP BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P			AVIS SANDERS AVIS SANDERS	
Email:	DSB@GMAIL.COM		-	00			BEEGHD		
SocSec#:	555-23-6869								
Birth Date:	02/05/1951	MMDDCCYY							
Sex:	M Indigent:								
Cycle Cd:	CollectCd:	<i>></i>	1		Eligibility	1	Add		
Credit:	ContractCd:	🔎 BillSwitch:			Eißipiirk		Aud	►	

Accounts Receivable - Registration and ADT, Guarantor/Ins

• **Restrict Payer Disclosure:** The Restrict Payer Disclosure field will pull selected, if it was already selected from the Visit information screen; however, the field may be deselected. If the Restrict Payer Disclosure field is selected from the visit, the Fin Class field will auto populate P for Private Pay. The Eligibility and Add options will be disabled.

NOTE: Selecting Restrict Payer Disclosure will disable the <u>New Insurance</u> option on the Claims by Patient screen.

- **Primary:** The Primary Switch field is used to identify the claim as the primary claim when answered **Y**. The system will order the claim marked with a **2** as a secondary claim and the claim with a **3** as the tertiary claim.
- Code: The Financial Class code of the claim should be entered in this field. A lookup is provided.
- Name: The name of the Insurance Company associated with the Financial Class code will be displayed in this field.
- **Subscriber:** The Subscriber's name associated with this claim will be displayed. For Medicare and Medicaid patients, this field will default to the patient's name. For all other insurance types, it will default to the Guarantor's name or patient name depending on table setup. This field may be overkeyed if necessary.

Through the Insurance Information section, the system will allow the Policy Information screen to be accessed. This will aid in the billing process, so as much information as possible should be gathered at registration.

Once the correct Insurance Company has been selected, and the user exits the Insurance Information box, the Policy Information screen is displayed. This includes Insurance Company Information, Subscriber Information, Contract Number and Group Information.

See the <u>Policy Information</u> and <u>Detail Benefits</u> sections of this User Guide for further information.

4.3 Medicare Questionnaire

For specific Stay Types, Medicare requires a questionnaire to be filled out for the patient's stay. The system will store information for the Medicare Questionnaire and Medicare Trauma Questionnaire for each account.

To access the Medicare Questionnaire, select the **MSP** button on the Registration and ADT screen.

The Medicare Questionnaire can be set to automatically display at the time of registration. This is controlled in the Insurance Company table, page 4, the Medicare Questionnaire field. The options for this field are discussed in Insurance Company table, Page 4 101.

The following pages illustrate the screens of each questionnaire.

Insurance User Guide 44

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Part I

¢								
Name:	BEECH DAVIS SANDE	RS	Account:	357828	Enter	Туре:	CP	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn	Print Tra	auma Delet	te					
			CPSI S	System - MEDICA	RE QUESTIONNAIRE	- Part I		
1. Is th	he patient entitled to Bl	ack Lung Benefit	s?	(Y/N)				
		•			(MMDDCCYY)			
	If yes, on what date did lack Lung is primary onl			ung)	(
	the services to be paid						(Y/N)	
G(OVERNMENT RESEARCH	PROGRAM WILL PA	Y PRIMARY BEN	NEFITS FOR THESE S	SERVICES			
	the Dept. of Veteran A				our care at this facility?			
	es, DVA is primary for th			(Y/N)				
	as the illness/injury due /es, please provide	to a work related	d accident/cor	ndition?	(Y/N)			
	6. Illness/injury Date:		(MMDDC	CYY)				
	7. WC Plan Name:		(,				
	B. Address:							
	9. Policy #:	1		1				
10	0. Employer Name:							
11	1. Address:							
(WC is	primary only for claims	for work related	injuries or illn	esses)				

Medicare Questionnaire - Part I

After answering the questions on Part I, select **PgDn** to access Part II of the Medicare Questionnaire.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Part II

÷			Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
ame: BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 357828	Enter Type: CP	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn PgUp Print Trau	ma Delete		
	CPSI System - MEDICARE G	UESTIONNAIRE - Part II	
1. Was illness/injury due to a non-work relate	ed accident? (Y/M	۱)	
2. If yes, on what date did the accid	lent occur?	(MMDDCCYY)	
 What type accident caused the illness/inji If a no-fault or liability insurer exists, pleat 		ther)	
4. Insurer Name:			
5. Address:			
6. Claim #:			
(No fault insurer is primary payor only for clai	ns related to the accident)		
7. Was another party responsible for this acc			
· · · ·		_	
8. Insurer Name:			
9. Address:			
10. Claim #:			
(Liability insurer is primary payor only for cla	ims related to the accident)		

Medicare Questionnaire - Part II

After answering the questions on Part II, select **PgDn** to access Part III of the Medicare Questionnaire.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Part III

;				Signed On Emp: SDW_Dept: 058
ame: BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 357828	Enter Type:	CP	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn PgUp Print Tra	auma Delete			
	CPSI System - MEDICARE	QUESTIONNAIRE - Part III		
1. Patient entitled to Medicare based on:				
Age. Go to Part IV (Y/N)				
Disability. Go to Part V (Y/N)				
End-Stage Renal Disease (ESF	RD). Go to Part VI (Y/N)			
	RD" or "Disability" and "ESRD" may be care based on "Age" and "Disability" si ient's selections.*			

Medicare Questionnaire - Part III

Depending on how the question on Part III is answered, different parts of the Medicare Questionnaire will be accessed. If an **Y** is entered for Age, when selecting **PgDn**, Part IV will be accessed. If a **Y** is entered for Disability, when selecting **PgDn**, Part V will be accessed. If an **Y** is entered for End-Stage Renal Disease, when selecting **PgDn**, Part VI will be accessed. The questions on Part IV, V, and VI will vary.

If Age in Part III is answered **Y**, the following screen will display.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Part IV

9				Signed On Emp: SDW_Dept: 058
ame: BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 357828	Enter Type:	СР	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn PgUp Print	Trauma Delete			
	CPSI System - MEDICARE QUE	STIONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2	- Part IV	
1. Are you currently employed? If yes, please provide 2. Employer Name:	(Y/N)			
3. Address:				
If no, please provide				
4. Retired?: (Y/N) Ret	tirement Date:	(MMDDCCYY)		
No, Never Been Employed?	(Y/N)			
If married, is your spouse currently If yes, please provide	employed? (Y/N)			
6. Employer Name: 7. Address:				
If no, please provide				
8. Retired?: (Y/N) Sp	ouse's Retirement Date:	(MMDE	CCYY)	
No, Never Been Employed?	(Y/N)			
(If both patient and spouse are not en to questions in part I or II)	ηρίογed, Medicare is primary unless the p	batient answered Yes		

Medicare Questionnaire - Page 1 of 2 - Part IV

Select PgDn to access page 2 of Part IV, V or VI.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Page 2 of 2 - Part IV

	ma Delete				
	CPSI System	- MEDICARE QUESTION	NAIRE - Page 2 of 2 - I	Part IV	
9. Do you have group health pl	lan (GHP) coverage based	on your own or your spou	se's current employment?		(Y/N)
(If No, Medicare is primary p	avor unless questions in na	t I or II are ves)			
11. Does the employer that spo		• •	mplovees?		(Y/N)
If yes, GHP is primary, pleas			npioyees:		()
12. GHP Is primary, pieas					
13. Address:					
14. Policy Holder:		(Name In:	sured)		
15. Relation:		,			
16. Policy #:		(Health Insuranc	e Benefit Package #)		
17. Group ID:					
17B. Membership #:		(Identifier for Policy Holde	r/Patient)		
	additional insurance informa	tion:	Y/N)		
18. Patient refused to provide a	additional insulance informa		17/N)		
18. Patient refused to provide a (If No, Medicare is primary pay			(1/N)		
(If No, Medicare is primary pay		or II are yes)	Questions asked b	y: SDW	
(If No, Medicare is primary pay 19. Comments:	or unless questions in part I			y: SDW	
(If No, Medicare is primary pay 19. Comments: 20. Date questions asked:	or unless questions in part I 12/18/2015	or II are yes) (MMDDCCYY)	Questions asked b	y: SDW	
(If No, Medicare is primary pay 19. Comments: 20. Date questions asked:	or unless questions in part I 12/18/2015	or II are yes) (MMDDCCYY)	Questions asked b	y: SDW	
(If No, Medicare is primary pay 19. Comments: 20. Date questions asked:	or unless questions in part I 12/18/2015	or II are yes) (MMDDCCYY)	Questions asked b	y: SDW	
(If No, Medicare is primary pay 19. Comments: 20. Date questions asked:	or unless questions in part I 12/18/2015	or II are yes) (MMDDCCYY)	Questions asked b	y: SDW	
(If No, Medicare is primary pay 19. Comments: 20. Date questions asked:	or unless questions in part I 12/18/2015	or II are yes) (MMDDCCYY)	Questions asked b	y: SDW	

Medicare Questionnaire - Page 2 of 2 - Part IV

If Disability in Part III is answered Y, the following screen will display.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Part V

PgDn PgUp Print Trauma Delete CPSI System - MEDICARE QUESTIONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2 - Part V 1. Are you currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 2. Employer Name:	PgDn PgUp Print Trauma Delete CPSI System - MEDICARE QUESTIONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2 - Part V 1. Are you currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 2. Employer Name:)					Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
CPSI System - MEDICARE QUESTIONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2 - Part V 1. Are you currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide 2. Employer Name: 3. Address:	CPSI System - MEDICARE QUESTIONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2 - Part V 1. Are you currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide 2. Employer Name: 3. Address:	ame: BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account:	357828	Enter Type:	СР	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
1. Are you currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 2. Employer Name:	1. Are you currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 2. Employer Name:	PgDn PgUp Print	Trauma Del	ete			
If yes, please provide 2. Employer Name: 3. Address: If no, please provide 4. Retired?: (Y/N) Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY) No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N) 5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide 6. Employer Name: 7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	If yes, please provide 1f yes, please provide 2. Employer Name: 3. Address: If no, please provide 4. Retired?: (Y/N) No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N) 5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) 1f yes, please provide (Y/N) 6. Employer Name: (Y/N) 7. Address: (If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)		CPSI System	- MEDICARE QUEST	ONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2 - I	Part V	
If no, please provide 4. Retired?: (Y/N) Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY) No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N) 5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide 6. Employer Name: 7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	If no, please provide 4. Retired?: (Y/N) Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY) No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N) 5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide 6. Employer Name: 7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	If yes, please provide 2. Employer Name:	(Y/N)				
No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N) 5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 6. Employer Name: (Y/N) 7. Address: (Y/N) If no, please provide (MMDDCCYY)	No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N) 5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 6. Employer Name: (Y/N) 7. Address: (Y/N) If no, please provide (MMDDCCYY)						
5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 6. Employer Name: (Y/N) 7. Address: (If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	5. If married, is your spouse currently employed? (Y/N) If yes, please provide (Y/N) 6. Employer Name: (Y/N) 7. Address: (If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	4. Retired?: (Y/N)	Retirement Date:		(MMDDCCYY)		
If yes, please provide 6. Employer Name: 7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	If yes, please provide 6. Employer Name: 7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	No, Never Been Employed	? (Y/N)				
7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	7. Address: If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)		ntly employed?	(Y/N)			
If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	If no, please provide 7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	6. Employer Name:					
7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	7B. Retirement Date: (MMDDCCYY)	7. Address:					
		lf no, please provide					
7C. No. Never Been Employed? (Y/N)	7C. No, Never Been Employed? (Y/N)	7B. Retirement Date:		(MMDDCCYY)			
		7C No. Never Been Employed	2 (Y/N)	. ,			

Medicare Questionnaire - Page 1 of 2 - Part V

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Page 2 of 2 - Part V

PgUp Print Trauma Delete CPSI System - MEDICARE QUESTIONNAIRE - Page 2 of 8. Do you have group health plan (GHP) coverage based on your own, or a spouse's current employmer 9. Are you covered under the group health plan of a family member other than your spouse? If yes please obtain the following: 10. Name of Family Member Employer: 11. Address: 11. Address:	(Y/N			(Y/N)
CPSI System - MEDICARE QUESTIONNAIRE - Page 2 of 8. Do you have group health plan (GHP) coverage based on your own, or a spouse's current employmer 9. Are you covered under the group health plan of a family member other than your spouse? If yes please obtain the following: 10. Name of Family Member Employer: 11. Address: (If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? 13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: 18. Group ID:	(Y/N			(Y/N)
8. Do you have group health plan (GHP) coverage based on your own, or a spouse's current employmer 9. Are you covered under the group health plan of a family member other than your spouse? If yes please obtain the following: Name of Family Member Employer: Name of Family Member Employer: Address: (If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: GHP Name: GHP Name: Relation: Policy Holder: (Name Insured) Relation: Policy #: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) 18. Group ID:	(Y/N			(Y/N)
9. Are you covered under the group health plan of a family member other than your spouse? If yes please obtain the following: Name of Family Member Employer: Address: (If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: GHP Name: Address: SHP Name: Address: Relation: Policy Holder: (Name Insured) Relation: Relation: Policy #: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) Group ID: 	(Y/N)		(Y/N)
If yes please obtain the following: 10. Name of Family Member Employer: 11. Address: (If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: 13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: 18. Group ID:)	(Y/N)	
If yes please obtain the following: 10. Name of Family Member Employer: 11. Address: (If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: 13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: 18. Group ID:)		
11. Address: (If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? (If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: 13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: (Name Insured) 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: 18. Group ID:)		
(If No, Medicare is primary payor unless questions in part I or II are answered Yes) 12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: 13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: 18. Group ID:)		
12. Does the employer that sponsors your GHP employ 100 or more employees? (If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: 13. GHP Name: 13. GHP Name: (14. Address: (15. Policy Holder: (Name Insured) 16. Relation: (17. Policy #: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) 18. Group ID: ()		
If yes, GHP is primary, please obtain the following: 13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: (Name Insured) 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) 18. Group ID:)		
13. GHP Name: 14. Address: 15. Policy Holder: 16. Relation: 17. Policy #: 18. Group ID:	age #)			
14. Address:	age #)			
15. Policy Holder: (Name Insured) 16. Relation: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) 17. Policy #: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) 18. Group ID: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #)	age #)			
16. Relation:	age #)			
17. Policy #: (Health Insurance Benefit Package #) 18. Group ID:	age #)			
18. Group ID:	age #)			
18B. Membership #: (Identifier for Policy Holder/Patient)				
19. Comments:				
20. Date questions asked: 12/18/2015 (MMDDCCYY) Questions Asked By:	Asked By:	SDW		
21. Date responses given: 12/18/2015 (MMDDCCYY) Last Changed By:	ged By:			

Medicare Questionnaire - Page 2 of 2 - Part V

If End-Stage Renal Disease in Part III is answered **Y**, the following screen will display.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Part VI

¢				Signed On Emp: SDW_Dept: 058
lame:	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 357828	Enter Type: CP	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn	PgUp Print	Trauma Delete		
		CPSI System - MEDICARE QUES	FIONNAIRE - Page 1 of 2 - Part VI	
1. Do	you, your spouse, or a family n	nember have group health plan(GHP)cov	erage? (Y/N)	
lf v	ves, please provide:			
	2. GHP Name:			
;	3. Address:			
	4. Policy Holder:	(Name	nsured)	
:	5. Relation:			
	6. Policy #:	(Health Insuranc	e Benefit Package #)	
	7. Group ID:			
	8. Employer name:			
	9. Address:			
10	0. Membership #:	(Identifier for Policy Ho	lder/Patient)	
lf N	o, STOP, Medicare is primary.			
44 11-				
	ave you received a kidney trans		_	
12. lf y	yes, please provide date of tran	splant:	(MMDDCCYY)	

Medicare Questionnaire - Page 1 of 2 - Part VI

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > Page 2 of 2 - Part VI

ne: BEECH DAVIS SANDERS PgUp Print Traur	Account:				
PgUp Print Traur	Account.	357828	Enter Type:	СР	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
	ma Delete				
	CPSI System -	MEDICARE QUESTION	NNAIRE - Page 2 of 2 - F	Part VI	
1. Have you received maintena	nce dialysis treatments?	(Y/N)			
2. If yes, please provide date	e dialysis began:		(MMDDCCYY)		
3. If yes and you participated	d in a self-dialysis program, p	lease provide date traini	ng began:		(MMDDCCYY)
		-		1	
4. Are you within the 30 month (The 30-month coordination pe not yet enrolled in Medicare) be participating in a self dialysis tr 30-month coordination period s	riod starts the first day of the ecause of kidney failure (usua aining program or has a kidne	month an individual is e ally the fourth month of d ey transplant during the 3	lialysis). If the individual is 3-month waiting period, the		
4B. 30-month period start da	ate:	(MMDDC			
5. Are you entitled, based on eit	ther ESRD and age or ESRD	and disability?	(Y/N)		
•	-				
 Was your initial entitlement to If Yes, GHP continues to pay If No, initial entitlement is ba 	/ primary during 30 month cod		t) based on ESRD?		(Y/N)
7. Does the working aged or dis entitlement? (Y/N)	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	that is, is the GHP alrea	dy primary based on age o	r disability	
If Yes, GHP continues to pay If No, Medicare continues to	/ during 30 month coordinatio pay primary.	n period.			
IT NO, MEDICATE COntinues to					
B. Comments:		(MMDDCCYY)	Questions Asked By:	SDW	
-	12/18/2015				
B. Comments:	12/18/2015 12/18/2015	(MMDDCCYY)	Last Changed By:		

Medicare Questionnaire - Page 2 of 2 - Part VI

When all pages have been answered, the Medicare Questionnaire may be printed or the Trauma Questionnaire may be accessed.

At the top of the screen there are several options:

PgUp: The system will return to the previous page of the Medicare Questionnaire.

Print: This option will print the Medicare Questionnaire for the selected patient.

Trauma: This option will access the Trauma Questionnaire for the selected patient.

Delete: This option deletes the information entered in the Medicare Questionnaire, and returns to the Registration and ADT screen.

NOTE: The log name of the person entering the Medicare Questionnaire will pull to the Questions asked by field. The log name of the last person to make any changes will pull to the Last Changed by field.

4.4 Trauma Questionnaire

Medicare requires the Medicare Trauma Questionnaire to be answered for trauma patients. To access this questionnaire from the Registration and ADT screen, select the **MSP** button. The Trauma Questionnaire may then be accessed by selecting the **Trama** button.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > <u>Trauma</u>

÷						Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
ame:	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account:	357828	Enter Type:	TA	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn	Print Delete					
		CPSI Sys	tem - TRAUMA QUEST	IONNAIRE - Page 1 of	3	
/	Are these services related to any type	of accident, illn	ess, or injury?	(Y/N)		
,	Are they covered by a worker's compe	ensation plan?	(Y/N)			
	Are they covered by a Federal Black L	ung program?	(Y/N)			
	If Yes to 2 or 3, please provide.					
	Plan Name or Program Nam	ie:				
	Address:					
	Policy # or Identification #:					
	Is this illness/injury covered	by the Veterans	Administration?	(Y/N)		

Trauma Questionnaire, Page 1

Insurance User Guide 54

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > <u>Trauma</u>

÷				Signed On Emp: SDW_Dept: 058
ame:	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 357828	Enter Type: TA	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgDn	PgUp Print [Delete		
		CPSI System - TRAUMA QUI	ESTIONNAIRE - Page 2 of 3	
ls	this illness/injury due to a non-work-	related accident?	(Y/N)	
If	Yes, what kind of accident?			
	1			
V	Vhere did the cooldest cooler records	Home/Work/Other)	rk related?	
		ated to the accident by a personal auto		Personal injury Protection?
C	an payment be made for services	(Y/N)	b policy under Medical, No Fault, of	reisonal injury Protection?
	If Yes, please provide:			
	Insurer Name:			
	Address:			
	Policy Holder:			
	Policy #:			
	Telephone #:			

Trauma Questionnaire, Page 2

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Census > MSP > <u>Trauma</u>

				Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
me: BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	Account: 357828	Enter Type:	TB	PATIENT DATA SYSTEM
PgUp Print Delete				
	CPSI System - TRAUMA QUES	TIONNAIRE - Page 3 of	3	
Can payment be made for services r	elated to the accident by a liability insure	r? 🗌	(Y/N)	
If Yes, please provide:			()	
Insurer Name:				
Address:				
Policy Holder:				
Policy #:				
Telephone #:				
Attorney Name:				
Address:				

Trauma Questionnaire, Page 3

The Trauma Questionnaire can be deleted from the account by selecting **DEL** at the top of the screen.

4.5 **Printing Questionnaires**

The Medicare Questionnaire and the Trauma Questionnaire may be printed from the Census menu within Print Reports or from a single patient account.

When printing from the report section, select **Print Reports** from the Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Census > M'care Questionnaire. After selecting to print either the Medicare Questionnaire or the Trauma Questionnaire, the selection can be made for a single account or for a date range by Admit Date.

Another way to print the questionnaire is by entering a patient account number. From the Hospital Base Menu select Patient Account # > Census > MSP then select the **Print** button to print the individual account's Medicare Questionnaire. To print the Trauma Questionnaire, select **Trauma** once in the MSP then select the **Print** button.

4.6 Referring Data

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Referring Data

G		s	igned On Emp: SDW_Dept: 058
	ole - Referring Data		
Name: BEECH DAVIS	SANDERS Account:	357828	
		Referring Physician	
		Code: (Code XXX to enter a name not in the table)	
		Name:	
		Referring Facility	
		Code: (Code XXX to enter a name not in the table)	
		Name:	

Accounts Receivable - Referring Data

Referring Physician

- Code: Enter the 3-digit code set up for the desired physician in the Referring Physician table.
- Name: The name of the Referring Physician will be populated if the physician is chosen from the lookup. If XXX is entered in the code, the physician name will need to be manually entered in this field.

Referring Facility

- Code: Enter the 3-digit code for the desired facility in the Referring Facility table.
- Name: The name of the Referring Facility will be populated if the facility is chosen from the lookup. If XXX is entered in the code, the facility name will need to be manually entered in this field.

If the Referring Physician Code or the Referring Facility Code is not known, a lookup window is provided. Selecting the magnifying glass or entering a question mark (?) will display a listing alphabetically by codes.

The information loaded into the Referring Data screen will pull to locator 17a of the 1500 and locator 78 of the UB. This information will pull in place of the attending physician in the Stay tab of the Registration and ADT screen.

Chapter 5 Stages of an Insurance Claim

5.1 Overview

The TruBridge EHR Insurance Billing system is a daily process. To use the system most effectively, claims must be processed through stages. This section will discuss the stages of an Insurance Claim within TruBridge EHR.

5.2 **Progression of an Insurance Claim**

- **Unapproved Status:** Claims that begin at this status require some form of verification (ex: precertification or data verification). If this type of verification is not required, the claim should not start at this status.
- **Approved Status:** Claims at this status should be automatically generated and require no manual intervention.
- Unchecked Status: Claims at this status are here for one or two reasons. First, it may be an APC claim, which will automatically generate to the unchecked status if the Auto Gen Ready-to-Bill field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set to N. Second, if the claim is not an APC claim, it was most likely manually set back from the Ready to Bill status, and a reason was placed in the Comment field. APC claims will move to the Ready to Bill status once a M/R verified date has been placed on the claim, and the APC Claims to Ready to Bill report has been run. Other claims will have to be manually moved to Ready to Bill.
- **Ready to Bill Status:** Claims at this status will appear on the Insurance UB Edit List and the 1500 Edit List. These edits will print messages indicating any information that may be missing from the claims in this status. After reviewing each edit message and making the necessary corrections to the claim, Print UBs or Print 1500s may be selected. Once the forms are printed, the system gives the option to update claims. Once the claims are updated, the status is advanced to the Billed Status.
- **Pending Status:** Claims at this status are here for one or two reasons. First, it may be an Electronic Billed claim that has not been picked up by Electronic Billing Services, therefore it does not have an Electronic Billed date. Second, it may be a Secondary claim that has been initially moved to the billed status or fake billed.
- Billed Status: When a claim moves to the Billed Status, a note will be placed on the Account Detail stating the Insurance Company's name, Set Number, Billed Date, Service Dates and Expected Pay amount for that claim. Once the claim is at the billed status, the employee initials will pull to the Account Detail. The initials will be displayed in the Code column when the Initials option is selected. If TruBridge moved the claim to billed, the initials will pull as XXX. Claims at this status will appear on the Billed but Unpaid Claims report. The Billed but Unpaid Claims report may be printed by Insurance or by Physician. Once a payment is made for a claim, the Receipting personnel will post the payment information against the appropriate claim. This will advance the claim to the Paid Status. If a claim is rejected, a payment of \$0.00 should be posted against the appropriate claim using a payment code of **R**. The system will then reflect this rejection by advancing the claim to the Rejected Status.

Insurance Indices

In the Insurance Indices, all claims at the different statuses may be reviewed.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance

					S	igned On Emp: SWW_Dept: 001	
ance System - Claim Indices							
Go to Claims by Patient	Go to Cycle Billing Exception	ns					
Claim Type: O Unapproved	C Approved	O Unchecked O	Checked (Ready to Bill)	C Unpaid	C Ready to Transmit	C Pending	
Search:	۰ ۱	lame C Number	Go				
Patient Name	Number	s Stay Type	Admit Date	Discharge Date			
Previous Page	Next Page						

Insurance System - Claim Indices

There are several options on this page to view the claims of patients.

- **Unapproved Claims:** This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims at the Unapproved status. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Admit Date and Discharge Date.
- Approved Claims: This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims at the Approved status. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Admit Date and Discharge Date.
- Unchecked Claims: This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims at the Unchecked status. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Service To and Service From.
- Claims by Patient: This option will allow an account number to be entered to view the claims for that account.
- Checked Claims (Ready to Bill): This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims at the Ready to Bill status. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Service To and Service From.
- **Unpaid Claims:** This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims at the Billed Status and have not been Paid or Rejected. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Service To, Service From, Total Charges and Expected Payment.

60 Insurance User Guide

- Claims Ready to Transmit: This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims with the Elect Bill switch selected on the Detail Charges screen. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Service To, Service From, Total Charges and Expected Payment.
- **Pending Claims:** This will give a listing of all accounts who have claims at the Pending status. It will list the Patient Name, Account Number, Insurance code, Stay Type, Service To, Service From, Total Charges and Expected Payment.
- Search by Name: Enter the patient's name and select Go.

To view a claim in any of the indices, highlight the line, and the system will display the Claim Status screen for that account. Select any column header for the system to sort the claims based on that heading.

The following options are available at the bottom of the screen:

- Previous Page: This will display the previous page.
- Next: This will display the next page of accounts.

The following options are available at the top of the screen:

- Go to Claims by Patient: Select this option to display the Claims by Patient screen for a specific account. For more information, see <u>Claims by Patient</u> 5.
- Go to Cycle Billing Exceptions: Displays a list of claims that were not generated thru Cycle Billing. For more information, see Exceptions Screen 8.

5.3 Reversing Claims

Many times a claim may be advanced prematurely. For this reason, it may become necessary to reverse or change the claims' status back to a previous status.

Claims at the Approved Status may be set back to the Unapproved status by removing the Approval Received Date in the Policy Information screen.

Claims may also be set back from the Ready to Bill Status to the Unchecked Status by deselecting Ready to Bill field on the Detail Charges screen.

Claims that have reached the Billed Status may be reversed to the Ready to Bill Status by selecting **Reverse** at the top of the Insurance Claim Status screen. The original Billed Date is stored to the right of the Billed Date field on the Insurance Claims status screen. The second Billed Date will display on this screen when the claim is billed again. The next time the UB's or the 1500's are printed, a form will print for these claims provided Print Form is answered **Y**.

Claims may be deleted at any stage except the Paid Status. To delete a claim, select **Delete** at the top of the Insurance Claim Status screen. If a claim is at the Billed Status, it must first be reversed before the system will allow the claim to be deleted.

5.4 AutoGen Feature And Requirements

The AutoGen feature allows Non-APC claims to move from the Approved Status to the Ready to Bill status and APC Outpatient claims to move from the Approved Status to the Unchecked Status without manual manipulation by the insurance personnel. The criteria that must be met to allow a claim to drop into the autogen process is as follows:

The claim must be at the Approved Status.

AutoGen I/P? or AutoGen O/P? on page 1 of the Insurance Company table must be answered **Y**, depending on the type of insurance. This allows patient claims for this Financial Class to be eligible for autogeneration.

Lag Days on page 1 of the Insurance Company table is the number of days after the patient's Discharge Date that must be closed in Accounts Receivable to allow the claim to drop into the autogen process.

NOTE: If utilizing Auto Closing Days/Months in the Business Office Functions, the system is going to look at the Charges Closed thru date to autogen claims.

Medical Records Complete on page 1 of the Insurance Company table may be answered Y or N. If this field is answered Y, the DRG Grouper screen must have a finished date entered in order for the claims in this Financial Class to be eligible for autogeneration. If this field is answered N, a finished date is not required on the DRG Grouper screen for these claims to be automatically generated.

If these requirements are not met, the claim will not drop into the autogen process.

Chapter 6 The Insurance Billing Process

6.1 Overview

62

TruBridge EHR is a daily billing system. The following procedures are recommended for the daily activities of the insurance billing personnel. To use TruBridge EHR most effectively, claims must be processed on a daily basis.

6.2 Daily Procedures

The printing of these reports will advance the proper claims to the necessary status and provide a listing of claims that requires attention during the Primary Billing process. There are other reports that should be printed and worked after the Primary Billing process has been completed. Primary Billing should be done first thing each morning, and completed prior to moving on to any other billing function.

Print the Insurance Reports:

- 1. AutoGen Insurance Claims
- 2. APC Claims to Ready-To-Bill
- 3. Late Charge/Credit Report: This report is spooled once the day is closed. The first section is the Late Charge/Credit Report, which will show charges that have been posted to an account since discharge. The second portion of this report is the **Unbilled Charges**. Unbilled charges are charges that have been posted to a patient's account that have a billed or generated insurance claim. Billers will need to review this report to see accounts that may need the insurance claims regenned, adjusted or reversed due to late charges.
- 4. UB Edit List and 1500 Edit List: Correct all errors from the **UB Edit List** and the **1500 Edit List**, and reprint the edits to ensure that all errors have been corrected. This is the first step in making sure a claim is complete prior to the claim being sent.
- 5. Print UB and Print 1500. This step will advance the claims to the Billed status and allow the claims to be picked up in the Electronic Billing process.
- 6. Print EBOS Edits (Select Other Applications and Functions > Electronic Billing Outsourcing > Edit with Standard Codes Only or Edit with Payer Specific Codes and Other Applications and Functions > Electronic Billing Outsourcing > Process Commercial EBOS Claims for Commercial) and correct all errors. This is the final step in making sure a claim is complete prior to being sent to the intermediary.

If utilizing EBOS, please refer to the EBOS User Guide.

Insurance Verification/Pre-Authorization

This section of billing procedures will move claims to the correct status in order to fall into the Primary Billing process for the following day.
- 7. Unapproved Claims Report: Run this report and work all claims on the report. This report indicates claims that require some form of verification (ex: precertification or data verification). If this type of verification is not required, the claim should not start at this status. If there are additional insurance claims on the account, approve them also. Two asterisks will appear next to claims when the admit date is older than 20 days.
 - A. Enter the **Patient Account #** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen. Next select **Insurance** and the appropriate insurance **claim** from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen. Claims will be displayed in primary order. Work the primary claims first. Verify insurance claim and Stay Type. Create a new claim if necessary.
 - B. Select **Policy Information** from the Insurance Claim Status Screen. Enter the Approved date. Verify and add any other pertinent information.
 - C. Enter **Detail Benefits**. For primary claims complete the following fields:
 - 1. Enter Deductible amount.
 - 2. Enter Coverage % if not filing insurance at 100%. System will default to 100% if field is blank.
 - D. For secondary claims, complete steps A and B from above. If the primary insurance is not filed at 100%, you must enter the coverage percent in the Policy Detail Benefits Screen. If the Expected Pay on the secondary claim is the deductible from the primary claim, enter the deductible amount as a negative in the Detail Charges screen of the secondary claim.

Follow-up Procedures

Any claims previously held out of the Primary Billing process will be worked at this time. Claims corrected during this step will fall back into the Primary Billing process for the following day.

8. Claims with Missing Information: Run this report and process claims with a Y below M/R complete.

If a claim appears on this report, it should be for one of three reasons. First, it may be an APC claim, which will automatically generate to the Unchecked status if the Auto Gen Ready-to-Bill field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set to **N** and will contain the message "(APC Claim)" in the Comment field. Second, if the claim is <u>not</u> an APC claim, then it was manually set back from the Ready to Bill status and the reason should be placed in the Comment field. The APC claims will move to the Ready to Bill status once a M/R Verified Date has been placed on the claim and APC Claims to Ready to Bill report has been printed. The non-APC claims will not automatically move from the Unchecked status to the Ready to Bill status, and will need to be manually reset to Ready to Bill when ready. Third, if your facility utilizes EBOS, the claim may move back to Unchecked due to fatal ANSI edits. These claims would have "ANSI EDIT" in the Comment field. They must be manually reset to Ready to Bill when ready.

- A. Select **Generate Claim** to pick up any late charges which may have occurred after initial generation.
- B. Select **Stay Information** and verify the information on this screen. Select option **Medical Records Diags/Proc** to view all diagnosis and procedure codes. If changes need to be made to the codes, contact Medical Records. If there are discrepancies, enter these in the Comment field of the Claim Status screen.
- C. Select **Detail Charges** to change the status of the claim to Ready to Bill by selecting the **Ready to Bill** and **Print Form** fields. If this claim is to be transmitted electronically, select the **Elect Bill** field.

64 Insurance User Guide

D. Repeat steps A and C above for any secondary claims, but do <u>not</u> select the Print Form field. All claims should be at the Ready to Bill status, and the total expected pay of all the claims should be approximately equal to the total charges from the primary claim. E. Select the **Coding Screen** and verify all Condition, Occurrence and Value codes. All necessary codes must be present in order to print on the UB.

If utilizing EBOS, please refer to the EBOS User Guide.

9. **72 Hour Re-admissions:** Run this report to allow accounts to be reviewed that may need certain charges combined with inpatient accounts to comply with the 72- Hour Rule.

Secondary Billing

- 10. Process all Secondary claims.
 - A. If using the Automated Secondary Billing, print the Secondary Billing Auto Reverse report. Secondary claims at the Pending status with Primary claims that have been paid in full will be automatically reversed by the system. The Expected Pay will be adjusted to equal the amounts receipted to the Non-covered, Deductible, Co-Pay and Coinsurance of the primary claim, and the claim will be set to Ready to Bill and Print Form, depending upon the setting in the Automated Sec Billing fields on page 4 of the Insurance Company table.
 - B. To manually process Secondary claims, print the **Secondary Billing Report** to get a listing of paid Primary claims with non-Primary claims at the Pending status. Reverse the Billed date, and enter the correct Expected Pay on the Detail Charges screen.

Adjustment Claims/Rebilling

11.Process all Rejected claims and rebill.

- A. If using Rejection Codes, print the **Rejection Code Summary Report**. When in Receipting, select **Update Work Area from Electronic RA File** to locate this report. Rejected claims will be listed along with the Rejection Code Description to assist in easier processing of the claim.
- B. If using the Insurance Tickler, the system will update the Insurance Tickler File Maintenance Screen with a review code of I94-Claim Rejected.

6.3 Weekly Procedures

Print the Insurance Reports:

 Approved Claims: Review claims on this report weekly. Claims that are flagged with two asterisks means the account has been discharged for four days. Claims should move from this report to the Ready to Bill status once the claim meets the criteria for autogenning. Any claim that remains on the report once the account has been coded and lag days have been met should be researched further. 2. Billed But Unpaid & A/R Bal = 0: This report should first be run as an edit to determine which accounts to reject and then as an update to actually reject those selected accounts. This report should be run on a weekly basis to keep the Billed but Unpaid Claims report as clean as possible.

The edit version is an alpha listing of accounts that have a claim at the billed status with an A/R balance of zero. The update version is an alpha listing of accounts with a billed claim that has been rejected.

3. Billed but Unpaid Claims: This report provides an alpha listing by insurance of all outstanding insurance claims. Financial Classes that do not have any unpaid claims or claims that meet the report's criteria are excluded. The aging columns are Current, 30, 60 and 90 days. The last page of the report lists an aging break down of total dollars for each insurance company over each aging column. This report is helpful in showing which insurance is outstanding and how much payment is expected.

If utilizing EBOS, please refer to the EBOS User Guide.

6.4 Followup Procedures

The majority of an insurance processor's time should be spent following up on outstanding insurance claims and providing the necessary information to the intermediaries that will result in payment of those claims. This section discusses the Daily Insurance Billing procedures, Interim Billing procedures and Secondary Billing procedures. Along with these procedures are Followup procedures.

After claims are billed, it is crucial to the cash flow of the facility to work the claims that have not been paid. The **Insurance Tickler** as well as the **Billed but Unpaid Claims** reports are designed for this purpose.

The Insurance Tickler System is designed to simplify inhouse collection efforts on insurance accounts. Accounts may be moved into the Insurance Tickler File automatically or manually, depending on Business Office Table settings. Once assigned to the Insurance Tickler, accounts may be distributed for review based on either financial class or balance. Accounts dropped into the Insurance Tickler become eligible for review through the Insurance Tickler File Functions screen. For more information on the Insurance Tickler see the Collections User Guide.

If the Insurance Tickler is not being utilized, on a weekly basis the Billed but Unpaid & AR = 0 report should be printed. This report allows claims that have a zero Accounts Receivable balance and an outstanding insurance claim, to be reviewed. This report will display these claims on the screen and give the option to reject them. Once all claims have been displayed and the options to reject have been answered, a report will be printed. The claims that were rejected will be flagged with the word **Rejected**. Upon completion, the claims will be considered rejected in all insurance screens and an appropriate message will be entered on the Account Detail.

After printing and working the Billed but Unpaid Claims & AR = 0 report, the Billed but Unpaid Claims report should be printed. This report may be printed by Physician or by Insurance Company. The report that is most convenient for the Insurance personnel to work with should be printed and divided among the department. The information listed will age claims according to the billed date. The oldest claims should be worked first. Working a claim consists of researching the unpaid claim to determine why it has not been paid and contacting the intermediary with the information needed to have the claim processed.

In addition to working the Billed but Unpaid Claims reports, the daily reports should be viewed for discrepancies such as Financial Class information not matching the Stay Type. An Outpatient Stay Type should have an Outpatient Financial Class. The claims that should be addressed are claims that have mistakes. Claims that have not advanced from the daily reports should also be researched to determine why they are not being advanced.

If utilizing EBOS, please refer to the EBOS User Guide.

6.5 Secondary Billing Procedures

Secondary Billing of insurance claims is done on a daily basis as the primary claim on the account is paid or rejected by the insurance company. As seen in the section on Daily Procedures, the secondary claims on an account are worked and kept at the same status as the primary claim. There are two different methods for Secondary Billing. The following is a series of steps that allow for the most efficient and effective method to secondary bill.

If using the **Automated Secondary Billing**, the Automated Sec Billing field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table should be set to **Y**. The **Secondary Billing Auto Reverse** report should be printed. When printing the report, the system searches through all paid claims with a payment type of **F**, Paid in Full or **A**, Applied to Deductible, in the selected date range. If the account has a secondary claim, the secondary claim will be reversed to the Ready to Bill status with an expected pay equal to the sum of the Non-covered, Deductible, Co-pay and Coinsurance amounts from the claim that was paid. The Print Form will be selected or left blank, depending on how the Print Form field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set. The Elect Bill will be selected or blank depending on how the Elect Bill field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set.

NOTE: Non-Primary claims should be reviewed to ensure that the amounts are appropriately reflected on the claims.

If using the manual Secondary Billing method, and the intermediary requires a copy of the primary remit along with the secondary form during the receipting process, receipting personnel should highlight claims on the remittance being paid or rejected that have a secondary claim. The remittance is then given to the Insurance personnel in charge of secondary billing. This allows the Insurance personnel to determine which claims need to have a secondary claim worked. The **Secondary Billing Report** should also be printed. This report lists the claims that have been paid or rejected within the date range of the report that have other claims on the account. The remittance and the Secondary Billing report are the first steps in the process of manually billing secondary claims.

68 Insurance User Guide

When the remittance is received, the highlighted accounts should be accessed by entering the patient number on the Hospital Base Menu and selecting Insurance from the Patient Functions screen. All claims for this account will be listed on the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.

If electronically billing these secondary claims via EBOS, please refer to the EBOS User Guide.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > <u>Claims</u> By Patient

Claims By Patient

Select the primary claim. Once the primary claim is chosen, select **Detail Charges**.

On the Detail Charges screen, verify the Expected Pay amount. It should reflect the Non-covered, Deductible, Co-pay and Coinsurance amounts entered during receipting. It may be necessary to adjust the Denied Charges, Deductible, Blood Deductible, Co-pay or Coinsurance fields.

<u>R</u> ev C Patient: 3		COB Pmt BEECH DAVIS SAI	Additional Mods	s <u>N</u> ext Insurance	•	Previous Page MEDICARE (<u>)</u> elete Charges		
Code	Descrip	tion D	ate	Physician		Qty	CPT	MODS	Charges	Non-Cov
46	#250514ER 9	12/28/1	5			1.00	99202		659.80	
64	#371906EKG	12/28/1	5			1.00	93005		99.50	
43	CENTRAL SU	P 12/28/1	5			1.00			43.10	
45	IV SOLUTION	12/28/1	5			1.00			30.00	
78	PB 60MG	12/28/1	5			1.00			8.40	
78	MEPER25MG	IN 12/28/1	5			1.00			14.70	
84	#410050NEB	J 12/28/1	5			1.00	94640		42.60	
78	PROVENT-60	M 12/28/1	5			1.00			8.30	
								Blood:		
Blood Fur	n:	Replaced:	No	ot-Rep:	Rate:			Total:	906.40	
Denied C	hgs:	120.00								
Deductibl	e:			Med Nec Days:	0	Totals				
Blood De	duct:			BILLED		12/28/15	1	Print Form?	•	
Co-Pay:				Coinsurance:				Elect. Bill?		
Expected	Pay:	786.40		UB Bill Type :	131		I	Print Crossover?		

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Detail Charges

Insurance System - Detail Charges

Exit the primary claim. On the secondary claim, the Billed Date should be reversed. This is done by locking onto the secondary claim selecting **Reverse** at the top of the screen. Reversing the Billed Date will cause the secondary insurance to age properly on the Billed but Unpaid report and the Expected Pay will be correct. As seen below, after selecting Reverse, the Billed Date will be removed but will display the original date directly to the right.

Delet	e	DļA 🤇	Reverse						
atient:	357910	BEECH DAVIS	SANDERS		Insurance:	XBI	MEDICAID-O/P		
Approva	Sent:	12/28/15			Admitted:		12/28/15	357910X	X001XB
Approva	Received:	12/28/15			Discharged:		12/28/15		
Claim Ge	enerated:	12/28/15	MY		Service From:		12/28/15		
Claim Cl	necked:	12/28/15			Service To:		12/28/15		
Billed Da	ate:		12/28/15 <		Edit Date:				
Total Ch	-	906.40			Receipts			Remit	
	n-Covered:	0.00		1st			.00		
Deductib		0.00		2nd			.00		
Co-Pay/		0.00					.00		
Expected	d Payment:	0.00		Actual	Payment:	0	.00		0.00 REIM
	E	olicy Information	View All Claims		Detail Benefits		Coding So	creen	
		-					Coding Screen		
		<u>G</u> enerate Claim	Patient <u>F</u> unctions		Medical Necessity		Tickler System		
	2	Stay Information	Receipt Entry		De <u>n</u> y Claim	Receipt Information			
		<u>D</u> etail Charges	Line Item Receipt Deta	ail	<u>H</u> ospital Base Menu		Electronic Fi	le Mgmt	
		<u>C</u> overages			Popup <u>-</u> Edit		Print/View	<u>O</u> ptions	

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim

Insurance System - Claim Status

Select **Detail Charges** then **Expected Pay**. Enter the difference between the total charges and the actual payment of the primary claim. The claim should be set to the Ready to Bill status. From the Detail Charges screen, the **Ready to Bill** option should be selected, and **Print Form** option should also be selected. Selecting Ready to Bill will allow the claim to advance to the Billed status the next time UB's are updated. Selecting the Print Form field will allow a UB to print. If the secondary claims are not sent in the electronic file, Elect Bill should not be selected.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > <u>Detail</u> <u>Charges</u>



Insurance System - Detail Charges

The Expected Pay column on the Claims by Patient screen should now reflect the amount the claims expect to receive from the Insurance companies. The sum of the Expected Pay column should be equal to the total charges. An example of this is shown below.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance

 Insurance System 	m - Claims by	/ Patient				Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
New Insurance	Но	spital Base Menu				
atient: dmit Date: ischarge Date: tay Type:	357910 12/28/15 12/28/15 E.R.	BEECH DA	AVIS SANDERS			
Insurance	SW	Service From	Service To	Status	Total Charges	Expected Pay
MB	Y	12/28/15	12/28/15	PAID 12/28/15	906.40	786.40
XB	2	12/28/15	12/28/15	READY TO BILL	906.40	120.00

Insurance System - Claims By Patient

Staying current with the billing of secondary claims is important in the management of patient accounts. Once the primary claim is paid or rejected, the secondary claim should be billed as soon as possible to allow the flow of the billing cycle to continue. Once all claims are satisfied, the system will allow the remainder of the amount due to become the patient's responsibility, in accordance with billing policies and procedures.

6.6 Interim Billing Procedures

Insurance Billing procedures for Outpatient and Inpatient claims are done on a daily basis. Billing for Long Term and Recurring accounts should be done using the **Create Claims by Charge Period** program. This program is a generation program that moves claims from the Approved status to the Ready to Bill status for a chosen date range. **TruBridge** recommends that claims meet the following criteria when utilizing the Create Claims by Charge Period program:

- The patient Stay Type entered in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen should be 2, 3, 4 or 5.
- The account should be assigned a cycle code of 5 or 6 in the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

- The account should not have a discharge date in the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- The Financial Class should have a "B" in the second position to represent an Outpatient claim. TruBridge suggests the Financial Class code be three characters ending with "R", to represent a Recurring Financial Class, for example MBR, CBR, BBR.

NOTE: The above criteria will not determine if a claim falls into the Create Claims by Charge Period program.

In addition to the recommended settings, the following criteria must be met in order for claims to fall into the Create Claims by Charge Period program:

- The account must have charges for the date range selected. The charge period is determined by the Service Date or the AR Date on the Account Detail. If the CCBCP Gen by SVS Dates field on page 1 of AHIS is set to N, the system will generate the insurance claim based on AR Date instead of Service Date. Please contact a TruBridge Software Representative before changing this option.
- Charges within the date range chosen will not pull to these claims if the charge is not covered by insurance. This is controlled in the Summary Code table.
- If a date is loaded in Date Care Ended, on the Detail Benefits screen, the Create Claims by Charge Period program will not create a claim for the account after that date.

The Insurance Company table for the Financial Classes that will be used for the Create Claims by Charge Period program should have the following fields answered:

- Form Code: This field should be set to U so the system will print a UB.
- Bill Phy Chg Separate: This field should be set to Y to set up a Physician claim for accounts that have physician components. If answered Y, a Financial Class code representing a Physician claim must be entered. This is the code assigned when a Physician claim is created.
- Require Approval: This field should be set to N.
- Auto Gen I/P?: Auto Gen O/P?: Both fields should be answered N.
- **M/R Complete:** If this field is answered **Y**, the Medical Records coding screen must have a Finish Date to allow the claim to drop into the Create Claims by Charge Period program. If the Financial Class requires Medical Records coding to be complete before a claim is generated, the DRG Grouper screen must be updated with a Finish Date greater than the last Billed Date for each date range the Create Claims by Charge Period program is run. If this field is answered **N**, the Finish Date on the DRG Grouper screen will not be considered when the program is creating the claims for the charge period.

NOTE: See Tables Affecting Insurance for a complete list of the Insurance Company table fields.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Print Reports > Insurance > <u>Create Claims</u> By Charge Periods

Insurance Print Report		? ×
Create Claims By Charge Periods		- 🔀
Begin Date:	11/01/2015	
End Date:	11/30/2015 🗸	
Starting Account Number:	(Blank for all)	
Starting Insurance Company:	*BR (Blank for all, *H* for Home Health)	
Ready	Genera	ate

Create Claims By Charge Periods

The desired stay type should be entered, and the system will prompt to exclude any Financial Classes. Once the claims have been generated, the **Create Claims by Charge Period Exception Report** will print. This report will list any accounts which should have had a claim created but did not meet the criteria of a Medical Records Finish Date. This report is described in further detail in the Printed Reports section of this user guide.

💷 Insurance Print Repo	ort	? ×
Create Claims B	y Charge Periods 2	×
Patient Types:	(Leave all blank for 2-5)	
Exclude F/C's:		
Run As Update:	$\overline{\mathbf{v}}$	
Processing:		
Insurance:		
Ready		Print

Create Claims By Charge Periods 2

6.7 Cycle Billing Procedures

The Cycle Billing application provides a way to customize the length of interim billing cycles based on financial class and patient type. Cycle Billing is only available in TruBridge EHR UX. A TruBridge Client Services Representative will need to be contacted to turn on the Cycle Billing application prior to use. After the application is active, the Cycle Billing table will need to be set up. The Cycle Billing table determines the frequency of each cycle based on financial class and patient type. For more information, please see the Cycle Billing Table 76 section.

Once the Cycle Billing table is set up, an entry will need to be made in the Pay Source table on the accounts that will use Cycle Billing. For more information, please see the Pay Source Table $[a_1]$ section.

The initial entry in the Pay Source table should be made after the Insurance has been added on the Guarantor/Ins tab during the registration process. Subsequent entries will be automatically generated and placed in the Pay Source table as the Cycle Billing claim generation program runs. The Cycle Billing claim generation program will run automatically on a daily basis via CRON. The program will generate claims based on the following criteria:

- Autogen I/P? Autogen O/P on page 1 of the Insurance Company table should be blank (set to N). The Cycle Billing claim generation program ignores these fields when generating claims; however, TruBridge recommends that Autogen be turned off for financial classes that will use Cycle Billing.
- Medical Records Complete on page 1 of the Insurance Company table may be selected (set to Y) or blank (set to N). If this field is selected (set to Y), the Medical Records Grouper screen must be updated with a Finish Date that is greater than the last Billed Date for each billing cycle that is run. If this field is blank (set to N), the Finish Date on the Grouper screen will not be considered when the program is creating the claims for the cycle.
- Lag Days on page 1 of the Insurance Company are the number of Charge Days after the patient's Next Cycle Date that must be closed to allow the claim to generate via Cycle Billing. For example, if the Next Cycle End Date is 06/11/18 and Lag Days are set to 3, then the Charge Days will need to be closed thru 6/14/18 before the account meets the Lag Days criteria. The Charges Closed Thru Date is found in Business Office Functions.
- There must be a Coverage From Date but no Coverage To Date in the Pay Source Table. If the Coverage From Date is a Future Date, then a claim will not be generated. A future date is used to accommodate a coverage that is changing in the future.
- The Next Cycle End Date in the Pay Source table must be prior to the present date.
- If there is a Discharge Date prior to the present date on the account, but there is still a line without a Coverage To Date in the Pay Source table, then a claim will generate.

NOTE: The Cycle Billing claim generation program looks to the primary insurance claim when determining if a claim meets the criteria to generate. If there are entries in the Pay Source table for secondary and tertiary claims, they will generate when the primary claim meets the criteria to generate. If there is no primary claim entered, no other claims will be generated.

76	Insurance User Guide
----	----------------------

If the above criteria are met, TruBridge EHR will move the claim from the Approved Status to the Ready to Bill Status and create the next entry in the Pay Source table. The next entry will have a Coverage From Date that is equal to the present date plus 1. The Next Cycle End Date will also be updated to reflect the ending date for the next billing cycle.

If a claim cannot be generated, or if the Next Cycle End date cannot be computed, the account will pull to the Exceptions List to be reviewed. This list should be worked daily if using Cycle Billing. Please see the Exceptions List \mathbb{R} section for more information.

Cycle Billing Table

Each Financial Class that will use Cycle Billing must have an entry in the Cycle Billing table. The Cycle Billing Table determines the frequency of each cycle based on patient type. Cycles may be defined using Financial Class, Stay Type, Sub Type and Service Code. Cycles containing the same combination of Financial Class, Stay Type, Sub Type and Service Code may not be made within the table.

To begin select **Cycle Billing** from the Patient Intake tables screen.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Cycle Billing

🗧 🚱 New 📝 Edit 🥏 Refresh							
Cycle Billing Patient Type List							
Search:							
Description	Cycle Type	Use Cert Date					
Weekly Medicare SNF	Weekly	Ν					

Cycle Billing Patient Type List

The Cycle Billing Patient Type List will display. The following information displays for each existing cycle:

- **Description**: The name of the billing cycle.
- **Cycle Type**: The frequency of the cycle. This field will display either End of Month, Number of Days, Weekly, or None depending on the Cycle Type that was chosen for this cycle.
- Use Cert Date: This field will display a Y if Use Cert (Certification) Date was selected when the cycle was created. An N will display if this field was left blank.

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Back Arrow: Select this option to return to the Patient Intake table screen.
- New: Select this option to create a new billing cycle.

- Edit: Select an existing billing cycle from the list, then select Edit to update an existing billing cycle.
- Refresh: Select this option to update the Cycle Billing Patient Type List with recent changes.

Select **New** to create a new billing cycle.

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Cycle Billing > New

Image: Save of the service codes Imag									
Description: Cycle Type:	Weekly Medicare SNF	O Number of Days	: • Weekly On: Wednesday						
	Use Cert End Date: □ Stay Types: ☑1 □2 □3 □4 □5								
Financial Classe	s: 🗌 All		Sub Types: 🗹 All		Service Codes: All				
Financial Class MEC Medicar	9 - SNF		Sub Type		Service Code H SNF				
Duplicates Description Fin Class Stay Type Sub Type Service Code Cycle Type									
			out type out type out						

Cycle Billing Patient Type Edit

- **Description**: Enter a name for the billing cycle. A name is required for each billing cycle.
- Cycle Type: Select how often claims should be generated for this cycle.
 - None: Select for billing cycles that will not use the other cycle types. For example, if a cycle should be run based on Pre-Certification dates and not based on End of Month, Number of Days, or Weekly cycle types.
 - End of Month: Select for billing cycles that should generate claims on the last day of the month.
 - **Number of Days**: Select for billing cycles that should generate claims for a specified number of days. If selected, the length (in days) of the cycle will need to be entered.
 - Weekly: Select for billing cycles that should generate claims weekly. If selected, the day that the cycle should end should be selected from the drop-down.
- Use Cert End Date: Select this option when the cycle should be based on the Pre-Certification End Date that is entered in the Pay Source table. This option may be used along with other cycle types. If no other cycle types will be used, then None should be selected as the Cycle Type.
 - **Example1**: If Use Cert End Date is selected and Cycle Type is set to None, then the cycle will be generated using the Pre-certification From and To Dates. For example, if the Pre-Certification From date is 06/01/18 and the Pre-Certification To date is 06/15/18 the billing cycle would begin on 6/1 and end on 6/15; one claim would be generated for the Pre-Certification period.

NOTE: Billing cycles that have Use Cert End Date selected, and Cycle Type set to None, may have multiple entries in the Pay Source table. This will allow entries for different Pre-Certification periods to be entered at one time. For these types of billing cycles, the Pre-Certification From and To dates entered on the Pay Source table should not overlap. It is also important to note that when there is more than one entry in the Pay Source table, all entries will generate as soon as they meet the claim generation criteria - regardless of what Next Cycle End Date has been calculated.

- Example 2: If Use Cert End Date is selected and another Cycle Type is selected, then claims will generate based on the frequency designated by the Cycle Type, but claims will stop generating when the Pre-Certification To date is less than or equal to the Next Cycle End Date. For example, if the Pre-Certification To date is 06/10/18 and the Next Cycle End Date is 06/13/18, then a claim would not be generated because the Pre-Certification has expired for the billing period.
- Stay Types: Select the Stay Types that will use this billing cycle.
- Financial Class: This box identifies which financial classes will use this billing cycle. Select the All checkbox if all Financial classes will use this billing cycle or select Edit Financial Classes from the action bar to select specific financial classes. See below for details.
- Sub Type: This box identifies which Sub Types will use this billing cycle. Select the All checkbox if all Sub Types will use this billing cycle or select Edit Sub Types from the action bar to select specific Sub Types. See below for details.
- Service Code: This box identifies which Service Codes will use this billing cycle. Select the All checkbox if all Service Codes will use this billing cycle or select Edit Service Codes from the action bar to select specific Service Codes. See below for details.

NOTE: The Financial Class, Sub Type and Service Code fields must be answered; either the All box should be checked or the Edit options should be used to select specific codes. If these fields are not addressed, the **Check for Duplicates** option will not become active and the billing cycle cannot not be saved.

To add specific Financial Classes, Sub Types or Service Codes to the billing cycle, select **Edit Financial Classes**, **Edit Sub Types** or **Edit Service Codes** to display the selection screen. This screen allows codes to be searched and added to the billing cycle.

💠 🔇 Add To Selected 🔇 Clear All Selected 📀 Remove 🖨 Continue Insurance Company Selection Search MEC Medicare - SNE BLUE CROSS-I/P В B1 OUT/STATE B/C-I/P F B2 NATIONAL BLUE CROSS-I/P B3 FEDERAL BLUE CROSS-I/P F B4 COMPANION B/C-I/P G BB BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P BB1 OUT/STATE B/C-O/P F BB2 BLUE CROSS BB3 FEDERAL BLUE CROSS-O/P BB4 COMPANION B/C-O/P G 110 1 records

Select Web Client > Tables > Patient Intake > Cycle Billing > New > Edit Financial Classes

Insurance Company Selection

The following options are available on the action bar:

- Back Arrow: Select this option to return to the Cycle Billing Patient Type Edit screen.
- Add to Selected: After selecting a code from the Search list, select this option to add the code to the Selected list.
- Clear All Selected: Select his option to remove all codes from the Selected list.
- **Remove**: After selecting a code from the Selected list, select this option to remove the code from the Selected list.
- Continue: Select this option once all codes have been added to the Selected list.

Once the Cycle Billing Patient Type Edit screen is completed, select **Check for Duplicates**. This will populate the Duplicates box at the bottom of the screen. If duplicate entries exist they will display here. If no duplicates exist it will say "No Duplicates Found."

No billing cycle may have the same combination of Financial Class, Stay Type, Sub Type and Service Code. For example, if Billing Cycle 1 has Stay Type **1**, Financial Class **M**, Sub Type **01**, and Service Code **P** and Billing Cycle 2 has Stay Type **1**, Financial Class **M**, Sub Type **01** and Service Code **ALL** - then a duplicate entry would exist because the Service Code **P** is included in both billing cycles.

Check for Duplicates must be selected before the Save option will become active. If duplicates entries exist, the Cycle Billing table will need to be modified before the billing cycle can be saved. If there are no duplicate entries, select **Save** to add the billing cycle to the Cycle Billing table. The **Delete** option will allow the billing cycle to be removed from the Cycle Billing table. Select the **Back Arrow** to return to the Cycle Billing Patient Type List screen.

Pay Source Table

The initial entry in the Pay Source table should be made after the Insurance has been added and the account has been admitted during the registration process. Subsequent entries will be automatically generated and placed in the Pay Source table as the Cycle Billing generation program runs.

The Pay Source table may be accessed on the Guarantor/Ins tab in the Census screen or from the Insurance screen. To begin, select **Pay Source**.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Account Number > Census > Guarantor/Ins Tab > Pay Source

or Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Account Number > Insurance > Pay Source

4	Save Save Add 2 Edit Scorpute Next Cycle End Date														
Ir	Insurance Pay Source List														
S	357614 BLASE CLIFTON Staytype: 1 Subtype: Service Code: H Admit Date: 07/17/2018 Discharge Date: Process Complete: Mext Cycle End Date: 7/24/2018 B Process Complete:														
		Desc	SW	Coverage From	Coverage To		Co-Pay	Co-Ins	Precert#	Cert	Туре	Cert Beg	Cert End	Process Dt	1
	M	MEDICARE	Y	07/17/2018		0.00	0.00	0.00	123456						Ш

Insurance Pay Source List

The Insurance Pay Source List will display. The following information will display at the top of the screen: Account Number, Patient Name, Stay Type, Sub Type, Service Code, Admit Date and Discharge Date. The following information displays for each existing claim:

- FC (Financial Class): The Financial Class Code for the insurance claim.
- **Desc (Description)**: The description of the Financial Class Code from the Insurance Company Table.
- SW (Primary Switch): Set to Y for Primary claims, 2 for Secondary claims, and 3 for Tertiary claims.
- **Coverage From**: The beginning coverage date that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Coverage To: The ending coverage date that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Deductible: The deductible that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- **Co-Pay**: The co-pay that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.

82

- Co-Insurance: The co-insurance that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Precert# (Pre-Certification Number): The Pre-Certification number that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Cert Type (Pre-Certification Type): The Pre-Certification type that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Cert Beg (Pre-Certification Begin Date): The Pre-Certification From Date that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Cert End (Pre-Certification End Date): The Pre-Certification To Date that was entered on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.
- Process Dt (Process Date): The day the claim was processed thru the Cycle Billing claim generation program.

Choose an entry, then select Edit to update an existing entry or select Add to create a new entry.

Select <mark>Web Client</mark> > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Account Number > Census > Guarantor/Ins Tab > Pay Source > <u>Add</u>

or Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Account Number > Insurance > Pay Source > Add

🗢 🛛 🛃 Update 🛛	3 Delete										
Insurance	e Pay Source Edit										
359050 BE	359050 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS										
Stay Type: 1	Sub Type: 12 Service Code: H Admit Date: 05/29/2018 Discha	arge Date:									
Claim:	a,										
Primary:	~										
Coverage From:	n: 💼										
Deductible:	0.00										
Co-Pay:	0.00										
Co-Ins:	0.00										
Precert#:											
Precert Type:											
Precert From:											
Precert To:											
Contact:											
Contact Phone:	E										

Insurance Pay Source Edit

The following fields may be addressed on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen.

- **Claim**: Use the magnifying glass to display a list of claims that have been added to the account. Select the claim that will be generated using cycle billing. Private Pay will always be an option on the claim look up. A Claim must be selected to update the Pay Source table.
- **Primary**: Select the primary switch for the claim. Select **Y** for Primary, **2** for Secondary and **3** for Tertiary. The primary switch identifies which claim will be billed first. A Primary switch must be selected to update the Pay Source table.
- **Coverage From**: Select the date that coverage should begin for this claim. A Coverage From date must be selected to update the Pay Source table.

NOTE: The Claim and Coverage From date may not be edited after the entry is saved. If changes need to be made, the entry will need to be deleted and a new entry will need to be added.

- **Deductible**: Enter the deductible amount for this claim. This will impact the Expected Pay on the claim once the claim is generated.
- Co-Pay: Enter the co-pay amount for this claim. This will impact the Expected Pay on the claim once the claim is generated.

- Co-Insurance: Enter the co-insurance amount for this claim.
- **Precert# (Pre-Certification Number)**: This will pull the pre-certification number that was entered on the Policy Information screen.
- **Precert Type (Pre-Certification Type)**: The pre-certification type that was entered on Policy Information screen.
- Precert From(Pre-Certification From Date): The date the pre-certification period begins for this pre-certification number. A warning will display if the Precert From date is greater than the Coverage From date.
- Precert To (Pre-Certification To Date): The date the pre-certification period ends for this precertification number.
- Contact: Enter the name of the contact for the pre-certification.
- **Contact Phone**: Enter the pre-certification phone number. This may automatically populate with the pre-certification phone number entered on the Policy Information screen.

Once all information has been entered, select **Update**. **Delete** will remove this entry from the pay source table. Select the **Back Arrow** to return to the Insurance Pay Source List screen. After the initial entry has been made in the pay source table, the Next Cycle End Date needs to be calculated. This may be done manually or by selecting **Calculate Next Cycle Date**.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Account Number > Census > Guarantor/Ins Tab > Pay Source > Calculate Next Cycle Date

or Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Account Number > Insurance > Pay Source > Calculate Next Cycle Date

🗢 🛃 Update
Compute Next Cycle End Date
359050BEECH DAVIS SANDERSCycle Type:WCert To Date:N
Compute From: Admit Date: 05/29/2018 Current Date: 06/11/2018 Coverage From Date: 06/11/2018 Precert Date:

Compute Next Cycle End Date

The following options are available for calculating the Next Cycle End Date.

- Admit Date: Select this option to have TruBridge EHR use the Admit Date as the cycle begin date. TruBridge EHR will look to the cycle begin date and the setup in the Cycle Billing table to calculate the Next Cycle End Date.
- Current Date: Select this option to have TruBridge EHR use the Current Date as the cycle begin date. TruBridge EHR will look to the cycle begin date and the setup in the Cycle Billing table to calculate the Next Cycle End Date.

86 Insurance User Guide

- **Coverage From Date**: Select this option to have **TruBridge EHR** use the Coverage From Date as the cycle begin date. A drop-down menu is available to select the appropriate Coverage From Date that is loaded on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen. **TruBridge EHR** will look to the cycle begin date and the setup in the Cycle Billing table to calculate the Next Cycle End Date.
- Percert Date (Pre-Certification Date): Select this option to have TruBridge EHR use the Precert Dates as the cycle beginning and ending dates. A drop-down menu is available to select the appropriate Precert From date that is loaded on the Insurance Pay Source Edit screen. If selected, TruBridge EHR will use the Pre-Certification To Date as the Next Cycle End Date, even if the Billing Cycle has an additional Cycle Type (Monthly, Weekly, Number of Days) selected.

Once a Compute From method has been selected, select **Update**. The Insurance Pay Source List screen will display again with the Next Cycle End Date populated. After Next Cycle End Date has been added, it may not be removed and it may only be updated. Below is a description of additional options that are available on this screen.

- **Review Date**: This field is used to pull accounts to the <u>Cycle Billing Review Due</u> and review late should be entered here so that the account will display on the report when it is up for review. For example, a review date could be entered prior to the expiration of a Pre-Certification number, so that a new pre-certification number may be acquired prior to the next billing cycle.
- **Process Complete**: The Process Complete date will be automatically added to the Pay Source table after the account has been discharged and the last claim has been generated. A Process Complete date may also be manually added. A warning will display if there are unprocessed entries in the Pay Source table and a Process Date is added. Claims will not be generated on accounts that have a Process Complete date and the Add option will be inactive so no new entries may be added to the Pay Source table.

Select **Save** to keep any changes made to the Review Date and the Process Complete date. Select **Back Arrow** to exit the Pay Source table.

Exceptions List

The Exceptions List displays accounts that did not have a claim generated, or accounts where the Next Cycle End date could not be computed when the Cycle Billing claim generation program was run. This list should be worked daily if using Cycle Billing. The Exception List may be accessed from the Insurance System - Claim Indices screen by selecting **Go to Cycle Billing Exceptions**.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Master Selection > Insurance > Go to Cycle Billing Exceptions

💠 🚮 PDF ಚೀresh	
Cycle Billing Exceptions	
Search: Service Code V	
Account: 358798 COLEMAN JENNIFER SWEEN An Service Code: MA MEDICAL ACUTE	nit Date: 03/10/2018 F/C: B Stay Type: 2 Sub Type: 03 OP Reason: Unable to generate claim due to invalid Cycle Billing table setup

A search feature is available to search for exceptions by Account Number, Admit Date, Patient Name, Reason, Service Code, Stay Type, or Sub Type. If searching by Reason, a drop-down menu is available to select a specific reason. An account will pull to the Exceptions List for one of the following reasons:

- Unable to generate claim due to invalid Cycle Billing table setup: This exception occurs when the Stay Type, Sub Type, Service Code or Financial Class are changed either on the account or within the Cycle Billing table after the entry in the Pay Source table was made. For example, if a valid entry is made in the Pay Source table on an account, but later the Stay Type on the account is changed, and that Stay Type does not match what is set up on the Cycle Billing table then the entry would now be considered invalid.
- Unable to update Next Cycle End date due to lack of current precert dates: This exception may occur when the billing cycle uses the Pre-Certification End Date with or without other Cycle Types (ex. Monthly, Weekly, Number of Days). For those billing cycles that <u>ONLY</u> use the Pre-Certification End Date, it identifies accounts where the Pre-Certification Dates are missing. For billing cycles that use the Pre-Certification End Date <u>AND</u> another Cycle Type, it identifies accounts where the Pre-Certification To date is less than or equal to the Next Cycle End Date. For example, if the Pre-Certification To date is 06/10/18 and the Next Cycle End Date is 06/13/18, then a claim would not be generated because the Pre-Certification has expired for the billing period.
- Lab multi-channel overflow: This exception is not used.
- Unable to generate claim due to missing Next Cycle End date: This exception occurs when the Next Cycle End date was not calculated or manually entered in the Pay Source table on the account. For example, an entry was made in the Pay Source table, but the user exited the screen prior to calculating or entering the Next Cycle End date.
- Unable to generate claim due to missing MR Finish date: This exception occurs when Insurance Company Table, Page 1 has MR Complete selected (set to Y) and the account either does not have a Medical Records Finish Date in the Grouper or the Finish Date is not greater than the last billed date on the account. For example, if the last claim was billed on 06/13/18, but the MR Finish Date is 05/29/18, the claim would not generate because the Finish Date hasn't been updated since the last claim was billed.

Cycle Billing Exceptions

88 Insurance User Guide

- Unable to generate claim due to invalid financial class: This exception occurs when the Financial Class does not exist in the Insurance Company Table. For example, an entry is made in the Pay Source table on the account, but the financial class on the claim is later deleted from the Insurance Company Table.
- Unable to generate claim, no primary insurance in Pay Source: This exception occurs when there is not an entry in the Pay Source table with a Primary Switch of Y. The Cycle Billing claim generation program looks to the primary insurance claim when determining if a claim meets the criteria to generate. If there are entries in the Pay Source table for secondary and tertiary claims, they will generate when the primary claim meets the criteria to generate. If there is no primary claim entered, no other claims will be generated.

The following options are available on the action bar.

- PDF: Display the information on the Exceptions List in a report format.
- Refresh: Updates the information displayed on the Exceptions List.
- Back Arrow: Returns the user to the Insurance System Claim Indices screen.

The Pay Source Table may be accessed from the Exceptions List by selecting the account. This will allow the Cycle Billing information to be displayed and/or updated.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Master Selection > Insurance > Go to Cycle Billing Exceptions > Select an Account

	Save 🚯 Add 🍞	Edit	🛅 Compute Nex	t Cycle Date	8 Remove E	ception							
Insu	irance Pay S	ourc	e List										
358798								e to invalid Cycle Billing table setup					
	rpe: 2 Subtype: Cycle End Date:	03	Service Code: M/ Review D	ate: 6/6/2018		8 Discha	arge Date: 0	3/12/2018	Process Comp	ete:			
FC	Desc	SW	Coverage From	Coverage To	Deductible	Co-Pay	Co-Ins	Precert#		Cert Type	Cert Beg	Cert End	Gen Date
в	BLUE CROSS-I/P	Y	12/01/2017	5	0.00	0.00	0.00				12/20/2017	01/31/2018	

Insurance Pay Source List

Additional resources are available in the Pay Source Table for accounts that are on the Exception List.

• Exception Description: Displays the reason the account pulled to the Exception List.

• **Remove Exception**: Once the exception has been resolved, the account may be removed from the Exception List by selecting Remove Exception. If the exception is resolved and Remove Exception is not selected, the account will not be removed from the Exception List until the Cycle Billing claim generation program runs again. The **Save** option will need to be selected after Remove Exception is chosen.

For more details on the Pay Source Table, please see the Pay Source Table section.

6.8 RHC Billing Procedures for Preventative Health Services

Rural Healthcare Clinics are required to bill detailed claims and no longer bundle their charges. **TruBridge EHR** has created the RHC Qualifying Visit Codes table to determine how charge amounts should total within the system for billing purposes, dependent upon specific billing scenarios. This tables includes three types of HCPC's/CPT's: Medical Services, Preventative Health Services and Mental Health Services. The RHC Qualifying Visit Codes table will be controlled by the facility to determine which codes fall within each type. For more information about the RHC Qualifying Visit Codes table, please refer to the <u>Table Maintenance - Business Office</u> documentation.

Additionally, It is also imperative that the following table maintenance be performed.

- Insurance Companies Table
 - Page 1
 - UB Type of Bill field needs to be to 711
 - o Summarize O/P Insurance field needs to be set to N.
 - o Detail Charges field needs to be set to Y.
 - Pages 6 & 7
 - Combine Summary Codes fields need to be left blank and any existing codes should be removed.
 - Page 9
 - Bundle to Procedure field needs to be selected.
 - o List Procedures needs to be set to "7".
 - o Modifier field need to have "CG" loaded.
- Summary Code Table
 - Summarize OP needs to equal N.

Below are different scenarios to understand how TruBridge EHR determines which charge amounts should total.

Medical Services Visit

If a claim has a Medical Services HCPC Code with revenue code 052*, then that HCPC code will pull to the first line of the claim with the total charge amount for the entire visit and a modifier of CG. All other charges encountered during the visit will then be reported with the appropriate HCPC, revenue code and price.

Account Detail:			UB Detail Display:						
Revenue Cd	CPT	Price	Revenue Cd	CPT	Price	Modifier			
521	99213	\$100.00	521	99213	\$129.00	CG			
300	36415	<u>\$29.00</u>	300	36415	<u>\$29.00</u>				
Total Charges:		\$129.00	Total Charges:		\$158.00				

Medical Services Visit and Preventative Health Service

If a claim has a Medical Services HCPC code with revenue code 052* and has a Preventative Health Service HCPC code with revenue code 052*, then the Medical Services HCPC code will pull to the first line of the claim with the total charge amount of the entire visit with a CG modifier, minus the Preventative Health Service charge amount. The Preventative Health Service HCPC code will pull to its own line with its charged amount. All other charges encountered during the visit will then be reported on the subsequent lines with the appropriate HCPC, revenue code and price.

Account Detail:			UB Detail Display:					
Revenue Cd	СРТ	Price	Revenue Cd	CPT	Price	Modifier		
521	99213	\$100.00	521	99213	\$129.00	CG		
300	36415	\$29.00	521	G0101	\$50.00			
521	G0101	<u>\$50.00</u>	300	36415	<u>\$29.00</u>			
Total Charges:		\$179.00	Total Charges:		\$208.00			

Mental Health Service

If a claim has a Mental Health HCPC code with revenue code 0900, then that HCPC code will pull to the first line of the claim with the total charge amount for the entire visit with a modifier of CG. All other charges encountered during the visit will then be reported with the appropriate HCPC, revenue code and price.

Account Detail:			UB Detail Display:						
Revenue Cd	СРТ	Price	Revenue Cd	CPT	Price	Modifier			
900	90834	\$85.21	900	90834	\$110.63	CG			
900	90063	<u>\$25.42</u>	900	90063	<u>\$25.42</u>				
Total Charges:		\$110.63	Total Charges:		\$136.05				

Mental Health and Medical Services Visit

If a claim has a Mental Health HCPC code with revenue code 0900 and a Medical Services HCPC code with revenue code 052*, then the Medical Services HCPC will pull to the first line of the claim with the total charge amount for the entire visit with a modifier of CG, minus any Mental Health charge amounts with a 0900 revenue code. The Mental Health HCPC will pull to its own line with the total charges of all other 0900 revenue charges. All other charges encountered during the visit will then be reported on the subsequent lines with the appropriate HCPC, revenue code and price.

Account Detail:			UB Detail Displ	ay:		
Revenue Cd	СРТ	Price	Revenue Cd	CPT	Price	Modifier
900	90834	\$85.21	521	99213	\$100.00	CG
521	99213	\$100.00	900	90834	\$110.63	
900	90863	<u>\$25.42</u>	900	90863	<u>\$25.42</u>	
Total Charges	:	\$210.63	Total Charges:		\$236.05	

NOTE: Please contact a TruBridge Client Services Representative for additional setup that needs to be done in TruBridge EHR.

6.9 RUG-III Billing

Skilled Nursing facilities that will be reimbursed on the Skilled Nursing Prospective Payment System may use the Create Claims by Charge Period program or manually generate claims for RUG-III billing. Before billing claims, table maintenance must be performed:

- Set up a new Summary Code in the Charge Summary Code table and load Revenue Code 0022 in the UB Revenue Code field. This may be any available Summary Code other than a Summary Code beginning with "W".
- The Insurance Company table page 4, Skilled Nursing Prospective Payment field, should be answered **Y** for all insurance companies which reimburse based on the RUG-III category. Once the switch is set to **Y**, the new Summary Code should be loaded in the second portion of this field.
- The Insurance Company table page 4 Max Chg. Lines on Claim field, must have a setting greater than 25 for correct claims generation. The maximum number of lines allowed by a facility's intermediary should be loaded.

Billing procedures differ depending if a facility has the TruBridge Resident Assessment Instrument (RAI) software.

Facilities with TruBridge Resident Assessment Instrument (RAI) software

When claims are generated through Create Claims by Charge Period or manually, the system will pull the RUG-III categories and modifiers to the Detail Charges screen from the MDS that cover days for the billing period. Only MDS that have been locked will pull when claims are generated. The Locked/Unlocked MDS Records report will help identify unlocked MDS. Listed below is an example of the Detail Charges screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Detail Charges

e								Signed On Emp:	SDW Dept: 058
🌱 Insuran	nce Syster	n - Detail Charges							
<u>R</u> ev Co	odes	COB Pmt	Additional Mods	<u>N</u> ext Pa	age	Previous Page	Delete Charges		
Patient: 35	57828	BEECH DAVIS SAM	NDERS	Insurance:	MEC	Medicare - SNF			
Code		Charge	Description		RM-Typ	e Qty	Rate	Charges	Non-Cov
02	ROOM	CHG-S/PVT-MEDICAL/SURG	3		S	15.00	539.00	8085.00	
43	CENTRA	AL SUPPLIES NON-STERILI	E			1.00		43.10	
44	CENTRA	AL SUPPLY STERILE				2.00		41.00	
45	IV SOLU	TIONS				1.00		30.00	
55	LABORA	TORY				1.00		72.00	
73	RADIOL	OGY				1.00		400.00	
84	RESPIR	ATORY THERAPY				3.00		94.20	
RG	SE217 1	22815							
							Blood:		
Blood Furn	n:	Replaced:	Not-Rep	p:	Rate:		Total:	8765.30	
Denied Ch	igs:		P						
Deductible	÷		Med Ne	c Days:	Tota	ls			
Blood Ded	luct:		Ready	To Bill?	\checkmark		Print Form?		
Co-Pay:			Coinsu	rance:			Elect. Bill?		
Expected F	Pay:	8765.30	UB Bill	Туре:	211		Print Crossover	? 🗖	

Insurance System - Detail Charges

Facilities without TruBridge Resident Assessment Instrument (RAI) software

Claims should be generated using the Create Claims by Charge Period option or manually. When locked on the claim, the Detail Charges screen may be accessed. The new Summary Code may be entered on the first available line. There must be a different line for each RUG-III category if applicable. In the description column, enter the RUG-III category and modifier, enter one space, and then enter the date of the assessment. Listed below is an example of the Detail Charges screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Detail Charges

0								Signed On Emp:	SDW Dept: 058
🚏 Insuran	ce System	- Detail Charges							
Rev Cod	des	<u>C</u> OB Pmt	Additional <u>M</u> ods	<u>N</u> ext Pa	age	Previous Page	Delete Charges		
Patient: 357	7828	BEECH DAVIS SAM	IDERS	Insurance:	MEC	Medicare - SNF			
Code		Charge	Description		RM-Ty	De Qty	Rate	Charges	Non-Cov
02	ROOM C	HG-S/PVT-MEDICAL/SURG	;		S	15.00	539.00	8085.00	
43	CENTRA	SUPPLIES NON-STERILI	-			1.00		43.10	
44	CENTRA	SUPPLY STERILE				2.00		41.00	
45	IV SOLUT	IONS				1.00		30.00	
55	LABORAT	TORY				1.00		72.00	
73	RADIOLC	OGY				1.00		400.00	
84	RESPIRA	TORY THERAPY				3.00		94.20	
RG	SE101 12	2815							
RG	SE107 12	2815							
							Blood:		
Blood Furn:		Replaced	Not-Rep		Rate:		Total:	8765.30	
Denied Chg	gs:								
Deductible:			Med Nee	c Days:	Tota	lls			
Blood Dedu	uct:		Ready	To Bill?	V		Print Form?	V	
Co-Pay:			Coinsur	ance:			Elect. Bill?		
Expected P	Pay:	8765.30	UB Bill 1	Гуре:	211		Print Crossover?		



Chapter 7 Tables Affecting Insurance

7.1 Overview

94

Information that affects the insurance billing process pulls from all areas of the Accounts Receivable application. Table maintenance is an important part of the billing process. This section discusses the tables that have an impact in this process. Most of the tables used for insurance billing are found in Table Maintenance.

Select Web Client > Tables

Thrive UX Help		Wallace Samantha	- 8	×
\equiv TABLES \gg TABLE MAINTENANC	E » ACCOUNTING TABLES			
	Facility:			
System Menu	ACCOUNTING			
	Accounts Payable Vendors Currency			
Tables 🙁	Currency Curre			
V Accounting Tables				
Business Office				
🍞 Patient Intake				
Clinical				
Control				
P HIM				

Tables Maintenance

7.2 Business Office

Charge Summary Codes

The Charge Summary Code table is used to store information about different categories of chargeable items. A Summary Code is a 2-character code used to represent these groups of chargeable items. For example, there are several thousand unique chargeable items within a given department, such as Pharmacy. These items must be summarized into one or two categories for printing on an insurance form. The Summary Codes used to represent Pharmacy items are 45 for IV Therapy and 78 for Pharmaceuticals. All items that should be grouped together on insurance forms should use the appropriate Summary Charge Code. The typical range of Summary Charge Codes that are used on the system are listed below along with a description of the fields relevant to the insurance billing process.

Typical Ranges for Summary Charge Codes:

00-25	Room Charges
45, 78	Pharmacy
79	Pharmacy Injection
55-60	Lab
71-76	X-Ray
84	Respiratory Therapy
85	Physical Therapy
W*	Bad Debt Adjustments

ge Code: 32		
Page 2		
Description: OPERATING ROOM		Subject to NY Surcharge:
I/P Revenue GL#: 00000000		Insurance Claims: M X B/C Com
O/P Revenue GL#: 00000000		Place of Service:
E/R Revenue GL#: 00000000		Type of Service:
Employee Rev GL#: 00000000		
Other Revenue GL#: 00000000		
Covered by Ins?		
UB Revenue Code: 360		
Current DRG RCC: 0.57132 as of 0	9/30/1999	Executive Information Column:
Previous DRG RCC: 0.00000 as of		Non_Billable F/C:
Summarize O/P Ins? Y M X B	C W S	
Include in DRG Rep: Y M X B	C	Medicare Prov#:
Print Qty on UB? Y		Medicaid Prov#:
Adjustment Charge:		B/C Prov#:
ASSOCIATED PHYSICIAN CHARGE		Misc Use:
Normal Phy#: 0		OTHER REVENUE CODES
Normal Phy Charge: 0.00		F/C Rcode F/C Rcode F/C Rcode
UB Revenue Code: 0		
Therapy Value Code:		
DOS on LTC Stmts:		
		Need HCPC Codes: Rev Center:

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Charge Summary Codes > Select Code > Page 1

Charge Summary Codes, Page 1

- **Description:** The description of the Summary Code should be loaded in this field.
- Covered by Ins?: Non-Billable F/C: This field is used for the Create Claims by Charge Period program. When a claim is generated by the Create Claims by Charge Period program, and this field is left blank or answered Y, the items associated with the specific Summary Code will print on the insurance forms. All Summary Codes except adjustment Summary Codes should have this field answered Y. Adjustments should not appear on insurance forms; therefore, those Summary Codes should be answered N.

The "Non-Billable F/C" portion allows eight spaces for entering non-billable financial classes. Wildcarding may be used. For any financial class entered in this field, the summary code will not pull to the Insurance Detail Charges screen. This applies to claims that are manually generated, auto generated or billed through Claims Created by Charge Period.

• **UB Revenue Code:** The Revenue Code used for billing the group of items associated with the Summary Code should be loaded in this field. This will pull to the UB for charges associated with the specific Summary Code.

- Summarize O/P Ins?: This field will allow the items within this Summary Code for Outpatient Financial Classes to be summarized, detailed or summarized by date. To summarize an Outpatient's charges for specific Summary Codes, a Y should be placed after the corresponding letter of the Financial Class. To have the items print in detail, an N should be placed after the letter representing the specific Financial Class. If it is necessary to have the items associated with this Summary Code to summarize by the service date the item was charged, a D should be entered into this field. To have all Financial Classes react the same, a Y, N or D may be entered into the first position of this field.
- Print Qty on UB: This field should be answered Y or N. Answering this field Y will allow the quantity charged to be printed on the UB form.
- **UB Revenue Code:** If the Revenue Code for the physician components is different than the hospital revenue code, it may be loaded in this field.
- **Therapy Value Code:** If a specific Therapy Value Code needs to print on the UB for Medicare Outpatient claims, it may be loaded in this field. The Value Code will pull for Medicare Outpatient claims when an item is charged to the patient's account, and it is an interim billing account.
- Subject to NY Surcharge: If answered Y, the Summary Code will be subject to NY Surcharge.
- Place of Service: The Place of Service listed for the Financial Class category will pull to locator 24B of the 1500 form. Page two of the Summary Charge Code table allows the Place of Service to be designated for specific Financial Classes.
- **Type of Service:** The Type of Service listed for the Financial Class category will pull to locator 24B of the 1500 form. Page two of the Summary Charge Code table allows the Type of Service to be designated for specific Financial Classes.
- Medicare Prov# Medicaid Prov# B/C Prov#: For states "NH" and "VT", these provider numbers will pull to locator 33 of the 1500 claim for Medicare, Medicaid and Blue Cross.
- Misc Use: This field is used for state-specific miscellaneous uses.
- Other Revenue Codes: This field will allow up to six different Revenue Codes to be designated for specific Financial Class codes. Wild-carding is accepted. If entered, this will override the UB Revenue Code field for the specified Financial Class code.
- Need HCPC Codes: Rev Center: Enter a Y to allow the HCPC codes loaded on the DRG Grouper screen to pull to the UB, with a quantity of one, when the Combine O/R E/R field from the Insurance Company table page 2 is answered Y. Enter an N to allow the CPT codes from the Item Master to pull to the UB. Enter an S to allow the HCPC codes loaded on the DRG Grouper screen to pull to the UB, with the true quantity from the account detail, when the Combine O/R E/R field from the Insurance Company table page 2 is answered Y. Rev Center will allow any summary code to be assigned a specific revenue center.

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Charge Summary Codes > Select a Code > Page 2

Show Shared 🕹 Print 🔇 Delete 🗐 Save 🧟 Refresh			
GE LEVEL TABLE rge Code: 32			
ge 1 Page 2			
Toger			
Ins Code	Pat Type (1-5 or 'A'll)	Place Service	Type Service

Summary Code Table, Page 2

The second page of the Summary Charge Code table allows for certain Place of Service and Type of Service codes to print on the 1500 Physician Claims in locators 24B and 24C, respectively.

- Ins Code: The Financial Class code that needs a Place and/or Type of Service code to pull to the 1500 form for a Summary Code should be loaded in the first column. The system will allow an * to be entered for wildcarding purposes. If all Medicare Financial Classes should pull a specific Place or Type of Service for a specific Summary Code a "M**" may be entered. This will allow all Financial Class codes beginning with a "M" to pull the Place and Type of Service.
- **Pat Type:** The table will allow a Stay Type to be entered that will only pull the information to the 1500 for the specific Stay Type. If the change should take place for all patient Stay Types, an **A** should be entered.
- Place Service: The Place of Service Code should be entered. This will be the code that prints on the 1500 form.
- **Type Service:** The code that represents the Type of Service needed to print on the 1500 form should be loaded.
Referring Facilities

See the <u>Referring Facilities</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Referring Physicians

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Referring Physician > Select a Physician

Separate Andread Service Andrea	= 🔣 S	how Shar	ed 🔒	Print	🙆 Delete	🔚 Save ಿ Refres	h			
Physician Code: 800 Physician Name: KATHERINE WILLIAMS Phone: 251-639-8100 Address: 6100 WALL STREET Address: City: MOBILE State: State: AL Zip: 36695 Direct Address: Image: Comparison of the state Field Code Provider NPI Type NPI Type										
Physician Code: 000 Physician Name: KATHERINE WILLIAMS Phone: 251-639-8100 Vaddress: 6100 WALL STREET Vaddress: 6100 WALL STREET Vaddress: Address: State: AL Sign: 36695 Direct Address: kat williams@exident.com	CEDDING		TNEODN							
Physician Name: KATHERINE WILLIAMS Phone: 251-539-8100 Address: 6100 WALL STREET Address: 510 State: AL State: AL Jip: 36695 Jurict Address: kat williams@evident.com ns Code State Field Code				MATION						
Phone: 251-539-8100 Address: 6100 WALL STREET Address: City: MOBILE State: AL Zip: 36695 Direct Address: kat. williams@evident.com										
Address: 6100 WALL STREET Address: City: MOBILE State: AL Zip: 36695 Direct Address: kat. williams@evident.com Ins Code State Field Code Provider NPI Type NPI Type										
Address: City: MOBILE State: AL Zip: 36695 Direct Address: kat williams@evident.com Ins Code State Field Code Provider NPI Type NPI Type										
City: MOBILE State: AL Zip: 36695 Direct Address: kat.williams@evident.com Ins Code Summ Code State Field Code Provider NPI Type NPI Type			0100	VIII C	JINEE!					
State: AL Zip: 36695 Direct Address: kat.williams@evident.com Ins Code Summ Code State Field Code Provider NPI Type NPI Type			MOBI	LE						
Direct Address: kat williams@evident.com	State:									
Ins Code Summ Code State Field Code Provider NPI Type NPI Type	Zip:		36695	i						
	Direct Ad	dress:	kat.wi	illiams@	evident.com					
	Ine Cad-	C	Carda	Chata	Early Carts	Descider		וחו	Turne	NDLTure
		Summ	Code	State		Provider		11-1		NPI Type
	~									
			_							

Referring Physician Maintenance

- Physician Code: Enter a 3-character code to represent the Referring Physician.
- Physician Name: Enter the Referring Physician's name using up to 22 characters.

The lower section of the Referring Physician table allows for the set up of Insurance Codes, Summary Codes, Provider numbers and NPI numbers to manipulate the printing of 1500s and UBs. This table has specific codes the system recognizes that will determine where the Provider Numbers pull on 1500's and UB's.

• **Insurance Code:** The Financial Class Code for the particular insurance company that requires the number loaded in the Provider Number column to pull to the 1500 or UB. Wildcarding is allowed.

• Summary Code:

The 2-character Summary Charge Code should be entered in this column. The system will look at the Financial Class Code then the Summary Code to determine the lines of detail for the claims that should be affected.

- State: Enter the 2-character state code for the claims that require the number loaded in the Provider Number column to pull to the 1500 or UB.
- Field Code: The Field Code is a 1-character code that corresponds to a particular locator on the 1500 (Field Code 1 for locator 17a) or the UB form (Field Code U for locator 78) to which the Provider Number will be printed.
- **Provider:** This column stores the number that will print on the 1500 or the UB in the locator designated by the fourth column.
- NPI: This column stores the National Provider Identification that will print on the 1500 or the UB in the locator designated by the fourth column.
- **Type:** Enter the 4-character Physician Type that will pull to the electronic ANSI file for UBs and 1500s.
- **NPI Type:** Enter the qualifier that will pull to locator 78 and/or 79 on the UB.

Clinic Table

See the <u>Clinic Table</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance

Companies

The Insurance Company table is the most important table related to insurance billing. A table is set up for each Financial Class code used in the system to store specific information relating to the different insurance companies. Below is an explanation of each field.

Insurance Company table, Page 1

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 1</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 2

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 2</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 3

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 3</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 4

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 4</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 5

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 5</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 6

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 6</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 7

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 7</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 8

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 8</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 9

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Page 9</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Companies, Policy Information

See the <u>Insurance Companies</u>, <u>Policy Information</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Companies, Detail Benefits

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Detail Benefits</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Companies, Separate Claims

See the <u>Insurance Companies</u>, <u>Separate Claims</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Companies, Room Type Coverage

See the <u>Insurance Companies, Room Type Coverage</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Condition Codes

Please see the <u>Condition Codes</u> section in the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Occurence Codes

See the Occurrence Codes section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Value Codes

See the Value Codes section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Rejection Codes

See the <u>Rejection Codes</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

EB/CCI Edit Codes

See the <u>EB/CCI Edit Codes</u> Table section of the Business Office Table User Guide.

Treatment Qualifier Codes

See the <u>Treatment Qualifier Codes</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

7.3 Patient Intake

Accident Places table

See the <u>Accident Places Codes</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Patient Intake User Guide.

7.4 Control

Item Master

Each item that is used in the system should be set up in the Item Master. This table stores information relating to that item. Below is a list of the fields that affect insurance claims.

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Item Master > Select an item > Page 1

iption: DIPHENHYDRAMI	NE(BENADRYL)CAP	:25MG	
• 1	Page 2	Page 3	
GENERAL INFORMATION			
Short Description:	DIPHEN25MGCA	p	Conversion Factor: 2020.20
Inventory GL Number:	10112000		Activate(YVN):
Expense GL Number:	40380		Expense/Transfer:
Control Switches:	P		E - Expense
			N - Non-Stock T - Transfer
Service(YW):	Ν		OR Chargeable(Y\N):
Patient Chargeable(Y\N):	Y		OR Expense/Transfer:
Generic Number:	0		E - Expense
Insurance Summary Code		Code: 250	N - Non-Stock
Issuing Departments:	38 58	0 0	T - Transfer Default FC CPT Code:
	0 0	0 0	СРТ ДАТА
	0 0	0 0	
	0 0	0 0	FC CPT Codes
	0 0	0 0	
	0 0	0 0	
	0 0	0 0	
	U	UUU	
	0 0	0 0	
PHYSICIAN - SERVICE CHAR Physician Number	GE Current Price	Current Date	VEXCORS Supplier / Manufacturer Catalog Numbers Buyer ETA
	0.00	09/17/1998	10370 🔊 206192 0
Previous Price	Future Price	Future Date	%

Item Master Maintenance, Page 1

- **Insurance Summary Code:** The Summary Charge Code used to group this item with like charge item numbers should be loaded in this field. Once the summary code is entered, the revenue code associated with this summary code will display. Only a valid Summary Codes that is set up in the <u>Charge Summary Code</u> stable will be accepted in this field.
- Physician Number: The Physician number should be loaded for items that are physician components.
- **Physician Service Charge:** The dollar amount of the physician charge should be loaded in the Current Price field. This dollar amount is the portion of the item's price that is the physician's component.

104 Insurance User Guide

NOTE: The Physician Number and Physician Service Charge fields are only necessary for items that have physician components. If the physician number is not constant, 999999 maybe entered. This will allow the physician number to be entered during charging. If nothing is entered in the Physician Number field, yet there is a current amount entered, the system will stop on this field during charging requiring a physician number to be entered. The Current Price field may have 99999.99 entered in the item master where the physician component is different each time it is charged. This will pull the charge dollar amount as the amount of the physician component. If the Current Price field is blank the system does not consider the item to have a physician component.

- **Conversion Factor:** The APC Conversion Unit should be loaded in this field if applicable. This field will allow Pharmacy to charge the actual number of primary units dispensed to the patient. The system will apply the conversion unit to the CPT code to determine the correct number of CPT codes to charge.
- **Default FC CPT Code:** CPT Codes are 5-digit numbers that are significant for insurance billing. Not all items have CPT codes, such as Central Supply items. For those that do, the code should be entered in this field. Up to two 2-digit modifiers may be attached to the CPT code to pull to the insurance billing forms.
- FC: CPT Code: The default CPT code that is associated with this item should be loaded in the Insurance Summary Code field. If the item does not need a CPT code to print when it is charged, this field should be blank. These fields should be used for up to five specific Financial Class codes along with the CPT code that should pull to the claim when this item is charged for the specific Financial Class. Wildcarding may be used for these fields.
- **CPT Data:** When selected, this option will display the Item Master Financial Class CPT & MOD Maintenance screen. This screen allows Current, Future and Previous data to be stored for CPTs, Modifiers and APC-Conversion. This is used for the default and five financial class specific CPT Codes associated with the item. Any changes to a CPT code should be updated in these fields.

FC CPT Code	MODS CONV			
REVIOUS DATA	0.0111/	FUTURE DATA	2011/	D.4.75
CPT Code MODS	CONV	CPT Code MODS	CONV	DATE

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Item Master > Select an Item > <u>CPT Data</u>

CPT Data

Pharmacy Information

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Item Master > Select an item > Pharmacy Information > \underline{Page} <u>1</u>

armacy Item Inforr	nation					
Number: 381134	DIPHENHYDRAMINE(E	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5	Page 6	
ge I	ruge 1	1 dgc 0	ruge r	rageo	i uge u	
NDC: 0	0185064901	Charge Meds at Administration:				
NDC Unit:		Chartcart Selectable:				
Manufacturer:		Formulary Item:	V			
	5/16/2003	Estimate Creatinine Clearance:				
Prior NDC:	5/16/2003	Creatinine Clearance/Message:	0.00			
			0.00			
•			0.00			
Predefined Orders: 2 1 - IV	•	Pediatric Crcl/Messages:				
2 - Non-IV						
	0	9				
· · ·	•	Use Overdue Med Response:				
		Other Units				
		Example: 1EA = 500MG or 10	ML			
		Strength	Unit			
Formulary Code: 0.		50.0000	MG			
	40000	0.0000				
Reorder Days:		0.0000				
		0.0000				
		0.0000				
		Rounding Options:	None			
			None			

Pharmacy Information, Page 1

• NDC: Enter the NDC code or select the magnifying glass to see a listing of codes.

Detail Charges

Charges will be displayed on the Detail Charges screen for a claim after the claim is generated. The 2-digit Summary Code that relates to the 3-digit Revenue Code appears in the first column under Code. In order to view the Revenue Code select **Rev Code** at the top of the screen. The lines of detail that pull to this screen will have a pound sign ("#") preceding the item number and description when a CPT code is going to print to the insurance form. The CPT codes and modifiers will also show on the Detail Charges screen.



Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>Detail Charges</u>

Insurance System - Detail Charges

Physicians

The Physicians table stores information about individual physicians working in the hospital. A majority of the data in this table will affect insurance billing. Some of the information that is stored in this table will pull to UB's, 1500's and state-specific forms. The fields that affect insurance on this table are listed below.

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Physicians > Select a Physician > Page 1

CIAN INFORMATION					
sician Number: 100 ge 1	00 Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5	MU
- Physician Informat	ion -				
Name: Prefix: Suffix: Professional Suffix: Address 1:	BAXTER JAMES		Signon Name: Sliding Scale Code: Staff Phys? Resident? Physician Initials:	BAXTER	
Address 2: City:	1234 Medical Drive Mobile		NP#: UPIN#: CCN#:	AL4876 G56826	
State: Zip: County: %	AL 36608		Social Security#: DEA#/Suffix:	424586874 AL3939200	-
Phone 1: Phone 2: Name Abv:	2515109987 Ext: 0 2516398100 Ext: 0	Comment: Comment:	NADEAN: Transcription Order: Phys Rounds Group		
Mcare EKG#/Rad# Mcaid EKG#/Rad#	BAXTER J 123456		State ID (DPS): OR Sched / Surgeo		
Mcare E/R# Mcaid E/R# Mcaid I/P#	MCAID				
Nicald I/P# Blue Cross# Lic# or Tax# Misc 1:	BLUE AL9879				
Inactive Date Protocol Group	29				

Physician Maintenance, Page 1

- Physcian Number: The 6-digit numeric code that represents the physician.
- **Name:** The physician's name should be loaded in this field. The last name should be loaded, followed by the first name and middle initial.
- Address 1 & 2: Enter the address that will pull to statements and/or collection letters for this physician.
- City: Enter the city that will pull to statements and/or collection letters for this physician.
- State: Enter the state that will pull to statements and/or collection letters for this physician.
- Zip Code: Enter the zip code that will pull to statements and/or collection letters for this physician.

- County: Enter the county associated with this Physician.
- Phone 1: Phone 2: The phone numbers of the physician should be loaded in these fields.
- **Name Abbv:** The abbreviation of the physician's name should be loaded in this field. This will pull during registration and on the UB, 1500 and state specific forms.
- Mcare EKG# /Rad#: The physician's Medicare EKG or radiology number should be loaded in this field.
- Mcaid EKG# /Rad#: The EKG or radiology Medicaid number for this physician should be loaded in this field.
- Mcare E/R#: The physician's Medicare E/R number may be loaded in this field.
- Mcaid E/R#: The physician's Medicaid Emergency Room number may be loaded in this field.
- Mcaid I/P#: The physician's Medicaid Inpatient number may be loaded in this field.
- Blue Cross#: The Blue Cross physician number should be loaded in this field.

NOTE: The above six provider number fields may be left blank if the provider numbers are the same as the provider numbers used for the facility. If the numbers are different for specific physicians, they should be loaded on the individual physician's maintenance screen.

- Lic# or Tax#: The physician's License or Tax Identification Number should be loaded in this field. This pulls to locator 25 on the 1500.
- Staff Physician?: Resident: If this is a Staff Physician, this field should be selected. The switch will determine how the physician number is listed on screen displays. Select the box for Resident the physician is a Resident.
- NPI#: The physician's NPI number may be loaded in this field. This pulls to locator 76 on the UB.
- UPIN #: The physician's UPIN number may be loaded in this field. This pulls to locators 2 and 76 on the UB.
- Social Security #: This physician's Social Security Number may be loaded in this field.
- **DEA #:** The physician's Drug Enforcement Agency number should be loaded in this field.

The second page of the Physicians table allows for the setup of Insurance Codes, Summary Codes and Provider Numbers to manipulate the printing of 1500s and UBs. This table has specific codes the system recognizes that will determine where the physician numbers pull on 1500s and UBs.

Insurance User Guide 110

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Physicians > Select a Physician > <u>Page 2</u>

```
💠 🔄 Show Shared 😓 Print 😵 Delete 🗐 Save 🥏 Refresh
```

1		Page 2	Page 3	Page 4		Page 5	MU
sician Information -	page2						
s Cd Sum Cd	State Fld	Cd Provider Number	Phy Type	Remote Site	Remote Physician		
P	G	1235896851	1G		0		
					0		
					0		
					0		
					0		
				DICTATION PREF			
				Prompt:	0		
				Default Depar Default Printe			
				Autoprint on 3			
				Auto Consolio			
				7 1410 00110011			

Physician Maintenance, Page 2

- Ins Code: The Financial Class code for the particular Insurance Company to be affected should be entered into this column.
- **Summ Code:** The 2-character Summary Charge Code should be entered in this column. The system will look at the Financial Class code then the Summary Code to determine the lines of detail for the claims that should be affected.
- St: Enter the 2-character state code for the claims that the change needs to effect.
- **Fid Code:** The Field Code is a 1-digit code that corresponds to a particular field on the 1500 or the UB form in which the physician number will be printed.

1500 Field Codes:

- 1 Pulls the number loaded in column 5 Provider Number to locator 17a on the 1500. If the claim is a North Carolina or Kentucky Medicaid claim, the physician table for the referring physician will override anything loaded on this page. NOTE: When the system is searching for a code, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Referring Physician table Field Code 1
 - 2. Charging Physician table Field Code 1
 - 3. Billing Physician table Page 4, Billing Physician
 - 4. Attending Physician table Field Code 1
 - 5. Attending Physician table Page 1, UPIN#

- o 3 Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to the shaded portion of locator 24J on the 1500.
 NOTE: When the system is searching for a code to pull to the shaded portion of locator 24J for all states except KY and NM, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Charging Physician table Field Code 3
 - 2. Charging Physician table Page 1, Lic# or Tax# (Commercial) Mcare EKG#/Rad# - Blue Cross# fields Provider # (All other Financial Classes)
 - 3. Stay Info Physician table Field Code 3
 - 4. Stay Info Physician table Page 1, Lic# or Tax# (Commercial) Provider # (All other Financial Classes)
- o 3 (Continued) : For states of KY and NM, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Charging Physician table Field Code T
 - 2. Charging Physician table Field Code 3
 - 3. Charging Physician table Page 1,Lic# or Tax# (Commercial) Provider # (All other Financial Classes)
 - 4. Stay Info Physician table Field Code T
 - 5. Stay Info Physician table Field Code 3
 - 6. Stay Info Physician table Page 1, Lic# or Tax# (Commercial) Provider # (All other Financial Classes)
- 4 Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to the unshaded portion of locator 24J on the 1500.
 NOTE: When the system is searching for a code to pull to the unshaded portion of locator 24J, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Charging Physician table Field Code 4
 - 2. Charging Physician table Page 1, NPI
 - 3. Stay Info Physician table Field Code 4
 - 4. Stay Info Physician table Page 1, NPI
 - 5. Physician 999999 table Page 1, NPI
- $_{\odot}$ 5 Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 33b on the 1500.
- o 6 Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 33b on the 1500, if nothing is loaded for Field Code 5. NOTE: When the system is searching for a taxonomy code to pull to locator 33b on the 1500, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Charging Physician table Field Code 5
 - 2. Charging Physician table Field Code 6
 - 3. Attending Physician table Field Code 5
 - 4. Attending Physician table Field Code 6
 - 5. Physician 999999 table Field Code 5
 - 6. Physician 999999 table Field Code 6
 - 7. Insurance Company table Page 1 Provider Number
- **N** Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 17b and 24J on the 1500. **NOTE:** When the system is searching for a code to pull to locator 24J, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Charging Physician table Field Code 4
 - 2. Charging Physician table Field Code N
 - 3. Charging Physician table Page 1, NPI
 - 4. Stay Info Physician table Field Code 4
 - 5. Stay Info Physician table Field Code N
 - 6. Stay Info Physician table Page 1, NPI
 - 7. Physician 999999 table Page 1, NPI
- T Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to the locator 24J if state code loaded in physician table page 1 is "KY" or "NM".

- **n** Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 33a on the 1500. **NOTE:** When the system is searching for a code to pull to locator 33a, the following hierarchy will be followed:
 - 1. Charging Physician table Field Code n
 - 2. Attending Physician table Field Code n
 - 3. Physician 999999 table Field Code N
 - 4. Physician 999999 table Page 1, NPI
- $_{\odot}$ E Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 25 on the 1500.

• UB Field Codes:

- 1 Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 79 on the UB if state code loaded in physician table page 1 is "KY".
- T If the claim is Kentucky Medicaid, the number loaded in column 5 will pull to locator 81a, if attending physician, or 81b, if operating physician.
- \circ N Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 78 and/or 79.
- U Pulls the number loaded in column 5 to locator 76 QUAL on the UB. If the claim is an lowa Medicaid claim, the number loaded in column 5 will pull to locator 79 on the UB.
- When determining which physician's information to display in locators 78 and 79, TruBridge EHR will use the hierarchy listed below.

Locator 78:

1. Referring Physician loaded in Referring Data

2. Primary Procedure's Secondary Physician in the Grouper (Physician Type must be Surgeon or Assisting Surgeon)

3. Secondary Procedure's Primary Physician in the Grouper (Physician Type must be Surgeon or Assisting Surgeon. This Physician will not pull if this is the same Physician as the Operating Physician in Locator 77)

4. Secondary Procedure's Secondary Physician (Physician Type must be Surgeon or Assisting Surgeon)

The Physician's information will pull from the following tables.

- Referring Physician table NPI
- Referring Physician table Provider Number
- Physician table Field Code N (NPI)
- If there is not a Field Code N loaded, ZZ will pull to the box in front of the NPI field.
- Physician table Field Code U (QUAL)
- Physician table Page 1, NPI
- Physician table Page 1, Lic# or Tax# (QUAL)
- Physician table Page 1, UPIN (QUAL)
- Blank field if Insurance Company table Page 6, NPI Only is selected.

Locator 79:

- 1. If Locator 78 is displaying a Referring Physician, the Primary Procedure's Secondary Physician in the Grouper (Physician Type must be Surgeon or Assisting Surgeon. This Physician will not pull if this is the same Physician as the Operating Physician in Locator 77)
- 2. If Locator 78 is NOT displaying a Referring Physician, TruBridge EHR looks to the additional procedures in ranking order to find a Primary or Secondary Physician that is not listed as the Operating Physician in Locator 77 or the Other Physician in Locator 78 (Physician Type must be Surgeon or Assisting Surgeon)

The Physician's information will pull from the following tables.

- Physician table Field Code N (NPI); If there is not a Field Code N loaded, ZZ will pull to the box in front of the NPI field.
- Physician table Field Code U (QUAL)
- Physician table Page 1, NPI
- Physician table Page 1, Lic# or Tax# (QUAL)
- Physician table Page 1, UPIN (QUAL)
- Blank field if Insurance Company table Page 6, NPI Only is selected.
- **Provider Number:** This column stores a number, up to 15 digits long, that will print on the 1500 or the UB in the field designated by the fourth column.
- **Phy Type:** Enter the 4-character Physician Type that will pull to the electronic ANSI file for UB's and 1500's.

NOTE: To set up more Provider Numbers, choose **Next** beneath the More Providers option.

Page 4 of the Physicians table allows the setup for billing physicians and the ability to have billing information pull to the Physician Electronic Log.

e 1	Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5	MU
- Physician Information - page 4					
Notification Letter:		Ir, P-Pt, B-Both)			
Pt Recall Letter? (Y/N)	Y				
Copy to Doctor? (Y/N)	N				
Dr Recall List? (Y/N)	Y N Y				
Notification Cover Letter:	Ν				
Recall Cover Letter:	N				
Mammo Address #1: Mammo Address #2:					
Mammo City / St / Zip		0			
Contractual GL Dept#:					
Billing Physician:	0				
Use Attending Phy: Include Physician in Electronic F	Dhu Quainna Lanu 📼				
HPSA Modifier:	Phy Services Log:	for summary Cds:	for Fr	orm Cd:	
E-mail address:		ior summary ous.			
Fee Ticket Format Cd:	P	A Mod: S/C:	F/C:		
ELECTRONIC FORMS OPTIONS					
Send Mode:	('F'ax, 'L'ink, 'M'odem)				
0 10 ··· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	Att Sec Pri Cons				
Send Document Type (?):	PATIENT TYPE				
Send Document Type (?):	PATIENT TYPE				

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Physicians > Select a Physician > Page 4

Physician Maintenance, Page 4

- **Billing Physician:** If an alternate physician number is loaded in this field, the alternate physician's UPIN number will pull to locator 76 of the UB04 instead of this table's physician (when loaded as the Admitting Physician).
- Use Attending Phy: Setting this field to N allows the billing physician's information to pull to the 1500 form. If set to Y, the attending physician pulls from the Attending field in the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Include Physician In Electronic Phy Services Log: If selected, the Services Log By Dictating Physician for this physician will be generated through cron and placed in a file on the hospitals NT server to be accessed by the physician's billing service. If not selected, the billing physician's information will only print on the Physician's Services Log.
- HPSA Modifier: for Summary Cds: for Form Cd: This field contains three parts. The first part allows up to two valid modifiers to pull automatically to a Medicare physician claim with the subsequent Charge Summary Code loaded. The second part is the summary codes that the modifiers need to pull. This field works in conjunction with the Medicare Part B Health Professional Shortage Area Program. The third part allows a J to be entered to pull modifiers to a 1500 or a U to pull the modifiers to a UB (if using Method II billing for Critical Access.)

116 Insurance User Guide

• **PA Mod S/C F/C:** This field contains three parts. The first part allows a valid modifier for a pro fee charge to pull automatically to the claim. The second part allows up to three Summary Codes to be entered. If this field is left blank, the system will look at all Summary Codes. The third part allows up to five Financial Class codes to be entered. Wildcarding is allowed in this field.

NOTE: The modifier will pull to the Detail Charges screen for the listed Summary Code. If there are modifiers pulling from the Item Master, the modifiers listed above will pull to the Additional Modifiers screen.

Physicians 999999 Maintenance

Physician number 999999 in the Physicians table is used to represent the facility. The information that is the same for all physicians at the facility may be entered in this table. Any information that is specific for a physician should be loaded in the individual table. This information will override the Physician 999999 table.

TAN INFORMATION					
ician Number: 999	999				
je 1	Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5	MU
- Physician Informati	ion -				
Name:	Evident Community Hospital		Signon Name:	CCHS12	
Prefix:			Sliding Scale Code:	: []	
Suffix:			Staff Phys?		
Professional Suffix:			Resident?		
Address 1:	6600 Wall Street		Physician Initials:		
Address 2:			NPI#:	1743523467	
City:	Mobile		UPIN#:	UPIN	
State:	AL		CCN#:		
Zip:	36695		Social Security#:		
County: 🦘			DEA#/Suffix:	19283756	-
Phone 1:	2516398100 Ext: 0	Comment:	NADEAN:		
Phone 2:	0 Ext: 0	Comment:	Transcription Order:		
Name Abv:	Global Phy		Phys Rounds Group	p:	
Mcare EKG#/Rad#			State ID (DPS):		
Mcaid EKG#/Rad#			OR Sched / Surgeo	in: 🛄	
Mcare E/R#					
Mcaid E/R#					
Mcaid I/P#					
Blue Cross#					
Lic# or Tax#	411563345				
Misc 1:					
Inactive Date					

Select Web Client > Tables > Control > Physicians > Physician 999999 > Page 1

Physician Maintenance, Page 1

- Name: The name of the hospital should be loaded in this field.
- Address 1: Address 2: The hospital's address is loaded in these fields.
- **City/St/Zip:** The hospital's City, State, and Zip Code is loaded in this field. The state code that is loaded in this field allows the system to react to programs that are designed to read the hospital's state.
- Phone 1: Phone 2: The phone numbers of the hospital should be loaded in these fields.
- Mcare EKG# /Rad#: The hospital's Medicare EKG or radiology number is loaded in this field.
- Mcaid EKG# /Rad#: The hospital's EKG or radiology Medicaid number is loaded in this field.
- Mcare E/R#: The hospital's Medicare E/R number is loaded in this field.
- Mcaid E/R#: The hospital's Medicaid Emergency Room number is loaded in this field.
- Mcaid I/P#: The hospital's Medicaid Inpatient number is loaded in this field.
- Blue Cross#: The hospital's Blue Cross number is loaded in this field.
- Lic# or Tax #: The hospital's Tax Identification number is loaded in this field. This pulls to locator 5 on the UB.

118	Insurance User Guide

• **NPI#**: Enter the Hospital's National Provider Identification number. This pulls to locator 56 on the UB.

NOTE: The name and address in the Physician 999999 table will pull to locator 1 of the UB.

7.5 Business Office Table Maintenance

AHIS

The AHIS Control Record is a table that contains information about various areas of TruBridge EHR. The insurance billing programs read several fields in this table to pull information to specific areas in the billing system and to react to this information. The fields that affect insurance billing are listed below.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 1

Administration	AUTC Control Decord Deco				
	AHIS Control Record Page				
A/R Close Date:	110415 The Following Screens Can Post Receipts				
Prior Close Date:	110415 1 Y 2 Y 3 Y 4 Y 5 Y 6 Y 7 Y 8 Y 9 Y				
General Ledger	10 Y 11 Y 12 Y 13 Y 14 Y 15 Y 16 Y 17 Y 18 Y				
A/R GL#:	10230000 19 Y 20 Y 21 Y 22 Y 23 Y 24 Y 25 Y 26 Y 27 Y				
Cash GL#:	10000000 28 Y 29 Y 30 Y 31 Y 32 Y 33 Y 34 Y 35 Y 36 Y				
Second Cash GL#:	10010000 Used by Cpware: 054 801 145 210 000				
Insurance Control	Prior Rate: .00 Central Supply				
Fut. Semi-Pvt Rate:	.00 As Of: 000000 Dept #: 025				
SEMI-PVT RATE	539.00 As Of: 010101 Rev GL: 30000025				
Criteria for Purging Out-dated Insurance Data					
Data to Drop or Mon	ths to Keep Journals: 33192 Storeroom				
Date to Drop or Mon	ths to Keep M & X Stay Info 33192 Dept #: 026				
# of Days to Keep N	on-Journal Claims: 30 P.O. #: 0000210				
# Of Days to Keep N	on-Journal Stay Info: 30				
Miscellaneous Control Information					
A/R Log Keep Months	: 12				
Inventory Activity Last Run: 010101 Non-Staff Phys Numbering: 0					
Print Receipts to D	ept Printer N Max Dsk Users: 99				
Type A/R Bill to be					
Medical Record Syst	em Active: Y PACS Interface? Y				
CCBCP Gen by SVS Da	tes: Y Auto City, State, Zip? C (Y/N/C)				
Enter :	Exit Next Page P# for Page Number				



- **Prior Rate:** This is the semi-private room rate used to determine the calculation of non-covered room charges for patients with a service date prior to the As Of date of the current Semi-Pvt Rate.
- Fut. Semi-Pvt Rate: As Of: Enter the facility's future semi-private room rate. This allows for upcoming room rate changes to be put in place in advance. Enter the date the new semi private rate will go into effect in the As Of field.

120 Insurance User Guide

- Semi-Pvt Rate: As Of: This field is the current semi-private room rate and the date this rate took effect. The difference between a private room rate and the amount in this field will pull as non-covered on a UB for private room charges with a service date since this As Of date.
- Date to Drop or Months to Keep Journals: Enter a date to purge or the number of months to keep journal insurance claims. The TruBridge recommended setting is 24 months.
- Date to Drop or Months to Keep M & X Stay Info: Enter a date to purge or the number of months to keep Medicare and Medicaid claim stay information. The TruBridge recommended setting is 24 months.
- **# of Days to Keep Non-Journal Claims:** Enter the number of days to keep non-journal claim detail. The TruBridge recommended setting is 180 days.
- **# of Days to Keep Non-Journal Stay Info:** Enter the number of days to keep non-journal stay information. The TruBridge recommended setting is 180 days.

NOTE: The Insurance Purge is an automatic weekly function. The purge program reads these fields to determine when the journal, M & X stay information detail, non-journal claims and non-journal stay information is purged. The months or days entered in the Criteria For Purging Out-Dated Insurance Data fields are calculated from the date the claims are paid or rejected. The purge program will only purge claims that have been receipted as "F"ull, "R"ejected, or "A"pplied to Deductible during receipt entry.

• CCBCP Gen by Svs Dates: If answered Y, when Create Claims by Charge Period is performed, claims will generate based on Service Date. If answered N, claims will generate based on AR Date. The default will be Service Date. When accessing this field, the system will prompt for an override password. TruBridge Financial Support must be contacted.

I

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 6

				AHIS	Control Rec	ord Page 6
Optical Disk Number For				Restrict	Diag/Proc	Changes
Report Image	System: 01				Info Screen	
Clin./AR/INS	. Hist: 01	01		Depts with Interfa	ce systems	
ScanImage/EF	'ileMgmt: 01	03		Census		
Medicare DRG Disproportio	nate Share Fields			Order Entr		
	Amount	Date		Digital	Signature?	Y
Current:	1196.01	100114		Home Hea	lth Disk: 🗍	
Prior:	.00			Ins Tick	ler Update	(Y/N/1/2) Y
Other 1:	.00			InfoNetw	ork printer	no: 000
Other 2:	.00			Contract	: Management	(Y/N): K
Other 3:	.00			HIMS pri	nter no.:	000
				Ins. Ver. TP Login	1:	CPSImeme
Running Diet	ary OE?: Y	2nd Diet Column:	:	TP Password:		XrG56nMKcc
MR Chart Per	m.Loca.: RAD	IOLOGY		TPID / CI	120004	100292
				Food/Dru	ıg Interacti	on: Y
Use Nursing	Home MDS Sys	s? Y		Collecti	on Agency R	cpts:
Print B/D Ba	lance on Rec	ceipt? Y		MR OE Tr	anscription	IF?:
Bad Debt Rec	overy Item#:	00099004		Host Sys	tem Name:	
M/R Code Fin	der ID: f 🛛	M APCFINDER	Medi	care Part	A #:	
Word Process	or ID:			Grouping	f Interface	ID: N
	Enter:	Exit Next Page				

AHIS Control Record, Page 6

- **Restrict Diag/Proc Changes On Stay Info Screen:** This field may be answered **Y** or **N**. If this field is answered **Y**, it will force the Medical Records information entered on the Stay Information screen to be view only. An **N** will allow the diagnosis and procedure codes to be manipulated when accessed from the Stay Information screen in the Insurance Billing screens. Changes made on the Stay Information screen to Medical Records codes will not affect the DRG Grouper screen.
- Ins. Ver. TPLogin: TPPassword: These fields are used in conjunction with the purchased interface to the Passport insurance verification system. For further information, contact a TruBridge Marketing Representative.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 8

Auto Calculate 23-Hou Accommodation codes t Observation charge fo Observation charge fo	AHIS Control Record Page 8 Anical Reports: Evident Community Hospital ar Observation Charges: Y (Y/N) Round Hour: N (Y/N) that identify observation patients: OB or the first 1 hour(s)? 100.00 or each additional hour? 25.00 or 23-Hour Observation Charges: 255117
Print 1ST Time Stmts:	Last AR Notes Number: 00000642 Ins. Verification Program: Ins. Verification Dept Num.: Use Remove Collect Code Prompt? Y/N: Y Ins Tickler Notes to Account Detail? Y/N: Y Copy Guarantor Info to Ins. Subscriber? P Bold Statement Messages? Y/N: Y Auto Charging for OR Mgt? Y/N: Clinical History Reverse Chronological: Y M Y B Y C Y W Y S Y (Y/N/P) Stem? Y Stay type? 1 # Of Days to Keep: 999 Exit NextPage

AHIS Control Record, Page 8

- Ins. Verification Program: Ins Verification Dept. Num.: These fields are used in conjunction with the purchased interface to the WebMD insurance verification system.
- Copy Guarantor Info to Ins. Subscriber?: Enter Y, and the system will automatically pull guarantor information to the insurance subscriber information fields when adding insurance during registration. Enter N, and the system will not copy any information to the subscriber fields. Enter P, and the system will automatically pull the patient information to the insurance subscriber information fields. The default will be Y. This does not affect Medicare and Medicaid financial classes.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 9

AHIS Control Record Page 9
Critical Access Hospital: M G X G B G S G W G C G ALL Critical Access Hospital discharge days: 00 Prompt for 1-Day Stay Room Charge: Y N N N Enhanced Temporary Registration? Y (Y/N) Use Electronic File Management Software: P Display Patient Account Note? Y
NDC Charging Prompt (1-5): Y Y Y Y Y Pathology Application? Y (Y/N) Include Autogen in Autoclose: N (Y/N) Clinic Stay Type for MPM use: 5 (1/2/3/4/5) H ("P"hy/"H"osp)
Autosend to CNIFX on Eform Updates? Update Image URL on Order Completion? N (Y/N) Clinics use MPMACD? Y (Y/N) Neotools Interface? N (Y/N) Print Consent Form? (Y/N) Private Pay Auto Discount 10 % Item# 99010 Generate Census Changes Index for 27X? (Y/N)
Enter: Exit

AHIS Control Record, Page 9

 Include Autogen in Autoclose: When this is set to Y, "Autogen" and "APC Claims to Ready to Bill" will run automatically when the Charges Closed thru date meets the lag days criteria set in the Insurance Company table. This will move the appropriate claims to the Ready to Bill or Billed status depending on how the Auto Gen Ready-to-Bill field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set and whether or not the facility has purchased Electronic Billing Outsourcing. APC claims will also move to the Billed status if claims have a verified date.

Medical Records

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > <u>Medical Records</u>

•	Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058							
T Medical Record Control Record								
EMR Control Old Transcription Descriptions	5							
Transcription Order: C By Patient	tion							
Generate APC Claims via Grouper Screen								
Release of Information Access								
Update Medicaid DRG Table with Medicare Information								
Real Time Coding Interface Department:								
Allow Charts to Main File if "MR Complete = "N"								
Print E-Sign Mnemonics								
Grouper/OR Management IF								
Send Transcription to Dictating Physician Only								
Default to "Complete Chart"								
POA Default: C Yes C No 📀 Blank								
Report Hospital Acquired Conditions								
HIE Default: N								
Default Coding System: ICD9 ICD10 								

Medical Record Control Record

• Generate APC Claims via Grouper Screen: If this field is selected, and the account meets the regular criteria to autogen the claim, an APC claim will generate once the Finish Date is entered in the Grouper screen.

7.6 Summarizing Revenue Centers

To enable the system to report procedures in the Revenue Center in which the procedure was performed and have a HCPC code pull from the Medical Records DRG Grouper screen, several tables must be manipulated. Below is a description of the fields for each table that must be manipulated.

Insurance Company table

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Insurance Companies > Page 2

1 Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5	Page 6	Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	Policy Information	Detail Benefits
Provider Name: Address 1: Address 2: City: Zip: UB Locator#2 Description: Phy Name of 1500-33: Lab Multi-Channel#: Combine Bill OR / ER: Net Reimbursements: DRG Grouper Version: Phy Chgs on UB: Minn Medicaid SNF Claim: P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB) SOP Typology: Collector ID: Use Diag Pointers: CT State Tax Exempt: Det Desc on UB: 3-Digit Rev Code;	0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0			DRG COST PER Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.	D NUMBERS	Date			

Insurance Company Maint., Page 2

• **Combine Bill OR & ER:** This field should be answered with a **Y** for all Financial Classes that require OR and ER charges to be combined or that require Revenue Centers to be summarized.

Summary Code table

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Chg Summary Cds > Page 1

e Code: 32	Page 2	
1	Page 2	
Description:	OPERATING ROOM	Subject to NY Surcharge:
/P Revenue GL#:	0000000	Insurance Claims: M X B/C Com
O/P Revenue GL#:	0000000	Place of Service:
E/R Revenue GL#:	00000000	Type of Service:
Employee Rev GL#:	0000000	
Other Revenue GL#:	00000000	
UB Revenue Code:	360	
Current DRG RCC:	0.57132 as of 09/30/1999	Executive Information Column:
Previous DRG RCC:	0.00000 as of	Non_Billable F/C:
Summarize O/P Ins?		
nclude in DRG Rep:		Medicare Prov#:
Print Qty on UB?	Y	Medicaid Prov#:
Adjustment Charge:		B/C Prov#:
ASSOCIATED PHYSICIA		Misc Use:
Normal Phy#:	0	OTHER REVENUE CODES
Normal Phy Charg		F/C Rcode F/C Rcode F/C Rcode
UB Revenue Code:		
Therapy Value Coo		0 0
DOS on LTC Stmt	S:	
		Need HCPC Codes: Rev Center:

Charge Summary Codes, Page 1

• Need HCPC Codes: Rev Center: Enter a Y to allow the HCPC's loaded on the DRG Grouper screen to pull to the UB when the Combine O/R E/R field on page 2 of the Insurance Company table is answered Y. Enter an N to pull the CPT code assiciated with an item in the Item Master but not pull any HCPC's entered in the DRG Grouper screen. Enter an S to allow charge items without CPT code(s) loaded to pull to a separate line of detail on the UB and not combine with any other summary code even when the Need HCPC Codes field is marked Y. Rev Center will allow any summary code to be assigned a revenue center.

Grouper Screen

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Medical Records > Grouper > Procedures > double-click a Procedure

BEECH DAVIS SANDERS Account: 357910 Pt Type: 3 Service Code: ER BMI: 0 kg/m2 BSA: 0.00 m2 Image: Service Code: ER BSA: 0.00 m2	Sex: M DOB: 02/05/1951 Financial Class: MB Admit Weight: 0 Ibs 0.00 kg 0.00 g	310 Attending Phy: BAXTER JAMES NBA tes: 12/28/2015 - 12/28/2015 Disc Cd: H	Total Charges: \$1,024.98 Bill Date: 01/04/2016
Procedure Detail Description: PRESSURIZED/NONPRESSURIZED INHA ICD-9-CM: ICD-10-PCS: SNOMED: MCE's: HCPC: 94640 AIRWAY INHALATION TREATM Modifier: Revenue Center: EQ Q Revenue Center: Date: 12/28/2015 Physician: 003767 SAMANTHA WALL	INT		

Grouper - Procedures

The Revenue Center field is used to designate the place of service the procedure was performed. An alpha revenue center code from A-Z can be assigned to each summary code loaded in the <u>Charge Summary Code</u> table, page 1. HCPCs that are associated with a revenue center will be broken out on a separate detailed line on the Detail Charges screen. If there are no Revenue Center codes loaded on the Grouper Screen, the system will look at all charges on the patient's Account Detail until the system reaches the first item charged that has a summary code with the Need HCPC field marked **Y**es. The system will then use the summary code and combine the charges into one line of detail on the Detail Charges screen. If there are several HCPC codes loaded, the system will produce multiple lines on the UB with the same summary code.

7.7 Waste Capture for Pharmacy Items

The Medication Waste feature will allow medication waste that is captured during charging to display on the insurance claim.

The following set up must be completed for the Waste Modifier to be display on the claim.

- Insurance Company Table, Page 9 must have a Waste Modifier loaded (JW)
- Insurance Company Table, Page 4 APC Reimburse must be selected (or set to Y) -OR-Insurance Company Table, Page 7 must have Conversion Factor for Pharmacy Charges selected (or set to Y)
- Item Master Pharmacy Information, Page 1 must have Capture Waste set to Y or P

If the above table set up is complete and the quantity administered/wasted is captured during charging, then when the claim is generated the charge will be broken into two lines. The first line will pull the quantity administered and the charge amount for the administered portion. The second line will pull the quantity wasted, the charge amount for the wasted portion, and the modifier that is listed in the Waste Modifier field.

If the amount wasted is less than one, then the first line will pull the quantity administered along with a modifier of JZ. The JZ modifier is hard coded to pull for charges with waste amounts less than one when there is a Waste Modifier loaded on Page 9 of the Insurance Company Table.

<u>R</u> ev Code	s <u>c</u> ob p	'mt Av	dditional <u>M</u> ods	<u>N</u> ext Pa	ge	Pre	vious Page		Delete Charges		
Patient: 357	996 SMITH EL	LA KATHERINE		Insurance:	MB	MED	ICARE OP				
Code	Description	Date		Physician			Qty	CPT	MODS	Charges	Non-Cov
	#3814600TAX	11/16/16					21.00	J9265		112.00	
AP	#3814600TAX	11/16/16					9.00	J9265	JW	48.00	
				_							
				_							
				-							
									Blood: Total:	160.00	
Blood Furn: Denied Chgs:		Replaced:	Not-Rep:		Rate:	I					
Deductible:			Med N	ec Days:	0	Totals					
Blood Deduct:			Ready	to Bill?					Print Form?		
Co-Pay:			Coinsu						Elect. Bill?		
Expected Pay:		160.00	UB Bill	Type :	131				Print Crossover?		

Detail Charges

When the Item has a Conversion Factor loaded on Page 1 of the Item Master, TruBridge EHR will use the following calculations to determine the quantity and charge amount. Each calculation will be done once for the Administered amount and once for the Wasted amount.

Quantity

Quantity Administered or Wasted

- + Pharmacy Strength (Item Master Pharmacy Information, Page 1)
- = True Quantity Administered or Wasted
- **X** Conversion Factor (Item Master, Page 1)
- = Administered or Wasted Quantity on Detail Charges

The Administered and Wasted quantities will be rounded using the following guidelines.

- If the Administered quantity computes to a value that is not a whole number, TruBridge EHR will round the units up to the next whole number. For example, if the Administered quantity computes as 7.2 mg, then 8 mg will display on the claim.
- If the Wasted quantity computes to a value that is greater than 1.0 but not a whole number, <u>TruBridge EHR</u> will round the units down to the next lower whole number. For example, if the Wasted quantity computes as 2.8 mg, then 2 mg will display on the claim.
- If the administered units compute to a value less than 1, the claim will display only one charge line for the quantity of 1 with the full charge amount; there will be no second line for the wasted quantity.

Charge Amount

Quantity Administered or Wasted

- + Pharmacy Strength (Item Master Pharmacy Information, Page 1)
- = True Quantity Administered or Wasted
- X Item Price (Item Master, Page 3)
- = Administered or Wasted Charge Amount on Detail Charges

The Administered and Wasted charge amounts will be rounded using the following guidelines.

If the Administered amount computes with a digit in the thousandths place, TruBridge EHR will
round up to the next highest hundredth. For example, if the Administered charge amount computes
as \$2185.075, then \$2185.08 will display the claim.

130 Insurance User Guide

• If the Wasted amount computes with a digit in the thousandths place, **TruBridge EHR** will round down to the next lowest hundredth. For example, if the Wasted charge amount computes as \$437.015, then \$437.01 will display on the claim.

NOTE: The Item Price will be displayed on Page 3 in the traditional Item Master (Hospital Base Menu > Charge Tables and Inventory > Enter Item Number > Item Master > Page 3). In the updated Item Master, the Item Price is located under the Item Pricing Information option (Tables > Control > Item Master > Select Item > Item Pricing Information).

Chapter 8 Insurance Tickler

8.1 Overview

The Insurance Tickler System is designed to simplify inhouse collection efforts on insurance accounts. Accounts may be moved into the Insurance Tickler File automatically or manually, depending on Business Office Table settings. Accounts dropped into the Insurance Tickler become eligible for review through the Insurance Tickler File Functions screen.

The system will automatically assign accounts to the Insurance Tickler based on criteria set up in AHIS, page 6. They may be set to update the tickler when a claim is moved to the Billed status and/or Paid status. Once assigned to the Insurance Tickler, accounts may be distributed for review based on either financial class, collector or balance.

Although the Insurance Tickler File is designed for automatically assigning accounts, manual assignment may be done. By selecting the **Insurance Tickler System** when locked onto an Patient Account in Patient Functions, the system will display all claims for that account. By selecting the sequence number of a claim not already in the Tickler File, the system will place this claim into the file.

If the claim is not given a reason code once it has been manually entered into the Tickler File, the system will list this claim as "Invalid", when it is accessed by selecting Process Accounts by Date and Display Accounts by Date on the Insurance Tickler File Functions screen.

Another way to enter a claim into the Tickler File is by selecting Tickler System from the Insurance Claim Status screen. This claim will also be listed as "Invalid" if no reason code is assigned.

If table settings are set up properly, there should be no reason to enter claims into the Insurance Tickler manually, and all "Invalid" claims should be deleted from the Tickler File.

Each collector begins processing the Insurance Tickler by selecting Collector Signon, using a code previously set up and defined in the Collector ID's table. The Insurance Tickler File Functions screen is displayed, listing the following options: Claim Maintenance, Transfer Claims, Process by Date, Display by Date and Display Calendar.

Before any Insurance Tickler functions may be performed, table maintenance must be performed in AHIS, the Collector ID's table, the Insurance Company tables and Review Codes table.

8.2 Table Maintenance

Prior to using the Insurance Tickler system, table maintenance must be performed.

AHIS, Page 6

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 6

				AHIS	Control Rec	ord Page 6
Optical Disk Number For				Restrict	Diag/Proc	Changes
Report Image	System: 01				Info Screen	-
Clin./AR/INS	. Hist: 01	01		Depts with Interfa	ce systems	
ScanImage/EF	ileMgmt: 01	03		Census		
Medicare DRG Disproportio	nate Share Fields			Order Entr		
	Amount	Date		Digital	Signature?	Y
Current:	1196.01	100114		Home Hea	lth Disk: 🗌	
Prior:	.00			Ins Tick	ler Update	(Y/N/1/2) Y
Other 1:	.00			InfoNetw	ork printer	no: 000
Other 2:	.00			Contract	: Management	(Y/N): K
Other 3:	.00			HIMS pri	nter no.:	000
			_	Ins. Ver. TP Logir	1:	CPSImeme
Running Diet	ary OE?: Y	2nd Diet Column	n:	TP Password:		XrG56nMKcc
MR Chart Per	m.Loca.: RAD	LOLOGY		TPID / CI	120004	100292
				Food/Dru	ıg Interacti	on: Y
Use Nursing	Home MDS Sys	? Y		Collecti	on Agency F	Cpts:
Print B/D Ba	lance on Rec	eipt? Y		MR OE Transcription IF?:		
	overy Item#:	00099004		Host Sys	stem Name:	
M/R Code Fin	der ID: f 🛛	M APCFINDER	Medi	care Part	A #:	
Word Process	or ID:			Grouping	g Interface	ID: N
	Enter:	Exit Next Page				

AHIS Control Record, Page 6

• Ins Tickler Update (Y/N/1/2): Entering a Y will cause the Tickler to be auto-updated when a claim is moved to the Billed status and when the claim is Paid. Entering an N will not move any information into the Insurance Tickler. Entering a 1 will update the Tickler only when a claim is moved to the Billed status, and entering a 2 will update the Tickler only when an existing claim within the Tickler is Paid.

AHIS, Page 8

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > <u>Page 8</u>

AHIS Control Record Page 8 Company name for Clinical Reports: Evident Community Hospital Auto Calculate 23-Hour Observation Charges: Y (Y/N) Round Hour: N (Y/N) Accommodation codes that identify observation patients: OB Observation charge for the first 1 hour(s)?
Item number to use for 23-Hour Observation Charges: 255117 Alt Radiology Charge #s: Last AR Notes Number: 00000642 Ins. Verification Program: Ins. Verification Dept Num.: Ins. Verification Dept Num.: Ins. Verification Dept Num.: Use Remove Collect Code Prompt? Y/N: Y Ins Tickler Notes to Account Detail? Y/N: Y Ins. Verification Info to Ins. Subscriber? P Bold Statement Messages? Y/N: Y Auto Charging for OR Mgt? Y/N: Y Clinical History Reverse Chronological: Y
A/R Auto Close Days/Months: Y (Y/N) Lag Days: Print 1ST Time Stmts: M Y B Y C Y W Y S Y (Y/N/P) Use Call Referral System? Y Stay type? 1 # Of Days to Keep: 999 Enter Exit Next Page

AHIS Control Record, Page 8

• Insurance Tickler Notes to Account Detail? Y/N: Entering a Y will allow any notes entered on a claim through the Tickler File Maintenance screen to be included on the Patient Account Detail. Entering an N will keep the notes in the Notes area of the Tickler system.



Collector ID's

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > Collector ID's or Web Client > Tables > Business Office Tables > Collector ID's

			A/R Collector ID's
Code: SDI	Й (0-Ехіt)		
	MANTHA D WALLACE	(0-Next	"DEL"ete

A/R Collector ID's

The Collector ID's are set up in the Collector ID's table. Generally, the collector's three initials are entered as the code.

If a code was entered in error, or one is no longer valid, type **DEL** in the Name field to remove it from the Collector ID's table.
Review Codes

Please see the <u>Review Codes</u> section of the Table Maintenance - Business Office User Guide.

Insurance Company table, Page 2

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Insurance Companies > Page 2

1 Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5	Page 6	Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	Policy Information	Detail Benefits
Provider Name:				DRG COST PER ST	ΆY				
Address 1:				Amount		Date			
Address 2:				0.00		Date			
City:				0.00					
State:				0.00					
Zip:	00000			0.00					
UB Locator#2 Description:				0.00					
				0.00					
Lab Multi-Channel#:	0								
Combine Bill OR / ER:				UB PROVIDER/ID	NUMBERS				
Net Reimbursements:	Ν			BCBS Prov#:				1	
DRG Grouper Version:				Fedtax#:					
Phy Chgs on UB:				Medicare#:					
Minn Medicaid SNF Claim: P - Pharmacy	•			Medicaid#:					
R - Room				Signature:					
Source of Payment Code (EB):	G			All Payor:					
SOP Typology:				Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
Collector ID:	RDR			Prior Disc Rat	e: 0.00000				
Use Diag Pointers:				Bank Plan:					
CT State Tax Exempt:									
Det Desc on UB:				INS SUMM CODES	110			_	
3-Digit Rev Code:				INS SOMM CODES					
								1	

Insurance Company Maint., Page 2

- **Collector ID:** Enter the code for the Collector who works insurance collections for this company. The code is not valid unless it is first set up in the Collector ID's table. When a claim is Billed and automatically placed into the Tickler File, it will be assigned by the system to the Collector ID listed in this field.
 - Entering **NA** in this field will exclude this insurance company's claims from moving into the Tickler File.
 - If this field is left blank, the Collector ID will default to the insurance company code. For example, Medicare O/P claims will be assigned to Collector MB. If this method is chosen, the Insurance Company Code IDs must also be set up in the Collector ID table. This will allow the ability to transfer files from one Collector to another. If the IDs are not set up, the system will consider the Collector ID invalid.

NOTE: This field is <u>only</u> used when assigning accounts to collector's based on the patient's financial class.

Insurance Company table, Page 3

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Insurance Companies > Page 3

1 Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5 Page	e 6 Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	Policy Information	Detail Benet
CAPITAL PAYMENT CALCULA	TION RATES	o	HER					
Print Address on Top of			Summary Codes to Detail:					
Justification:	(CTR		Core Measures Payment Source					
HOSPITAL SPECIFIC			Reference 141:					
Amount	Date		Src of Pmt Code (ABS):					
0.00			Nedigap #:					
0.00			IMO/PPO: Prior Contr. GL#:	Y				
0.00			Add days to review date:	0				
0.00			Auto-update finish date:	30				
0.00			Print UB Address to 1500:	V				
Amount 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00	Date							
HOLD HARMLESS								

Insurance Company Maint., Page 3

- Add Days to Review Date: The number of days entered here will be added to the claim's Billed date and become the Review Date. If left blank, the Review Date will be one day past the Billed Date.
- Auto Update Finish Date: If selected, when a claim has a full payment posted against it, the system will place the receipt date in the Finish Date field of the Insurance Tickler file when the Daily Receipts List is printed.

Insurance Company table, Page 6

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Insurance Companies > Page 6

1 Page 2	Page 3	Page 4	Page 5 Page 6	Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	Policy Information	Detail Benefits
Semi-Priv Rate: Future Rate: Future Rate: LA Mandated Service Cha D - Day V - Visit Inpatient Rehab PPS?: Contract Management Coo Auto Crossover: Keep EOB Information: Use ERA Reject Codes: COMBINE SUMMARY CODES Base Code: Combined Codes: Full Days: Life Days: 0 Life Days: 0	CMG Summa	ny Code:	Report Group Code:	N				
DSURANCE TICKLER Coll ID Low Balanci 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 Dy Expected Pay or AF Tickler Retention Days:	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00							

Insurance Company Maint., Page 6

- **Insurance Tickler:** This is a 4-part question that requires establishing the parameters that should be met in order to have the system distribute claims based on account balance.
 - Coll Id: The first prompt is for Collector Id. The collector identification code previously set up in the Collector ID's table should be entered in this field. Typically this will be the collector's three initials.
 - Low Bal/Hi Bal: These fields establish the low and high account balances to be distributed to the specified collector.
 - By Expected Pay or AR Bal: This field determines which balance the system should read for collector account assignment. To have the system assign accounts based on the Expected Pay amount, enter an E in this field. To have the system assign accounts based on the full AR Balance, enter an A in this field.

138	Insurance User	Guide

NOTE: This field is <u>only</u> used when assigning accounts to collector's based on the patient's balance. This field overrides the Collector ID loaded on page 2.

• **Tickler Retention Days:** The number of days entered in this field represents the number of days past the finish date the claim will remain in the system before being automatically purged. The default for this is 31 days; (i.e., if the field is left blank or 0, the system retains the claim in the tickler for 31 days past the finish date.)

Insurance Company table, Page 7

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Insurance Companies > Page 7

Page 2 Pa	ige 3	Page 4	Page 5	Page 6 Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	Policy Information	Detail Benefit
LONG-TERM ACUTE CARE RATES								
Display in Lookup for Stay Type:		3 4	5 IP DEDUCTABLE		PHP PER DIEM			
Active?: Inactive Date:	V		Current Amount	0.00	Current Amount: 0.00			
Send in CHS SSI File?			Date:		Date:			
Use HIPPA Patient Relationship Cod			Prior Amount:	0.00	Prior Amount: 0.00			
As of Date: Clinic Code:	12/30/2009							
Hospital Address 2 to UB?:			ADDITIONAL COMB	INE SUMMARY CODES				
Finish Tickler when Rejected?:	V		Base Code:					
Conv Factor for Phar Charges?:		_	Combined Code	es:				
Physician Reim %: 3 Decimal Places for Room Rates?:	0.00							
Medicare Adv:	Ins:							
ASC Summary Code:			Base Code:					
Linked F/C Code:			Combined Code	es:				
POA:								

Insurance Company Maint., Page 7

• Finish Tickler when Rejected?: If this field is blank, the system will not put a finish date so the claim will be in the tickler and can be reviewed to determine if the rejection is valid.

NOTE: If this field is set to Yes, the system will put a finish date if the claim is rejected through Receipting, the Billed But Unpaid & A/R Bal=0 report or the Deny Claim option in the Claim Status screen.

8.3 Using The Insurance Tickler

Once the Insurance Company table, the Collector ID's table, the Review Code table, and AHIS are set up, the Tickler System is ready for utilization. Once in the Insurance Tickler System, the following menu will display:

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System

e					Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
🍟 Insurance Syst					
Collector Code:	SDW	Name:	SAMANT	HA D WALLACE	
				Insurance Company	
				Collector Signon	
				Claim Maintenance	
				Transfer Accounts	
				Process Accounts by Date	
				Display Accounts by Date	
				Display Calendar	
				Collector Account Report	
				Multi Facility	

Insurance System - Tickler File Functions

- **Collector Signon:** Selecting this option will prompt for a Collector ID code. The system will verify the code with the Collector ID's table. The benefit of using this option is the timesaving aspect of insurance personnel processing only those accounts that are assigned to their code.
- Claim Maintenance: Selecting this option allows access to the Insurance Tickler File Maintenance Screen by entering a specific account number. All claims on this account will list on the screen. After selecting one of the claims, the system will go directly into the Tickler File. If there is no previous tickler entry for that claim, the system will create one.
- **Transfer Accounts:** The Transfer Accounts option allows transferring of accounts from one insurance clerk to another. This feature will only recognize collector ID's that have been set up in the Collector ID's table in the Business Office Tables. This feature gives the Business Office Manager a quick and easy way to ensure an absent Collector's accounts will be reviewed. It will move all file entries from a specified date range from one collector to another.

Insurance Tickler	141
-------------------	-----

142 Insurance User Guide

• Process Accounts By Date: This option allows the signed on insurance clerk to access and perform maintenance to the accounts assigned to that clerk by date. Upon selecting this option, the system will first prompt for a starting date. The next prompt allows the collector to include claims with finish dates. If selected, the system will include accounts set with the review date selected that have finish dates entered. It will then display the Insurance Tickler File Maintenance screen for the account that appears first in that day's index.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System > Process Accounts By Date

Patient Functions Insurance Notes	Delete Next Exit	
ient: 357872 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS ector: SDW SAMANTHA D WALLACE	Patient Information	Claim Information
ector: SUW SAMANTHA D WALLACE r Col: BBR BBR iew Date: 08/03/15 Start Date: sh Date: Changed Date: 08/03/15 de Review Reasons/Codes BILLED CLAIM BILLED CLAIM	Admit/Disc: 07/01/15 - 07/01/15 Stay Type: 2 O/P Financial Class: BBR BLUE Service: T PHYSICAL Birth Date: 02/05/51 Insurance Information Name: BBR BLUE CROSS-RECURRING Address-1: 450 RIVER CHASE PKWY Address-2: Phone Number: City/State: BIRMINGHAM AL 35298 Contact:	Service Prd.: 07/01/15 - 07/31/15 Billed Date: 07/31/15 Expected Pay: 345.00 Claim Status: BILLED Last Payment Date: Total Paid: Sub: BEECH DAVIS Policy#: PPA7896531 Bill Code: Credit Code: Contr. Code: Guar. Phone: 251-555-6899

Insurance System - Tickler File Maintenance

Once all the necessary tasks have been completed for the account, the collector should select the next button at the top of the screen. This will display the next account's Tickler File Maintenance screen. This routine will continue until all claims for the selected date and clerk have been processed or until the process is exited by pressing exit at the top of the screen.

After all of the files for the selected dates have been worked, the system will prompt that the end of the file for that date has been reached. If there are no subsequent days to work, the system will prompt, "Hit Return To Continue." If there are more claims with review dates after the completed date, the system will prompt, "Do You Want the Next Day?" Answering with a **Y** will allow the collector to continue on to the next day's followups. Answering with an **N** will take the collector back to the Insurance Tickler base screen. While working claims for a selected date, entering exit at the bottom of the claim's Tickler File Maintenance Screen will allow the collector to exit from processing claims.

• **Display Accounts by Date:** Selecting this option will display all claims assigned to a particular collector.

The signed-on collector will display in the Enter Collector Code field. To view claims for another collector, enter in the Collector ID. If the Collector ID is unknown, enter a ? in the Enter Collector Code field and select **Go**, to display a listing of all Collector ID's along with the quantity of claims assigned to each one. To view all claims that need to be reviewed, enter **ALL**.

A review starting and ending date range may be entered or may be left blank to view all claims that need to be reviewed. Select **Go** to view claims.

The columns will display the Collector ID, Review Date, Patient Name, Account Number, Review Code, Review Code Description, Service From and To Dates, Financial Class and Billed Amount. The columns may be sorted, ascending or descending, by selecting the column headings. The order of the columns may also be changed by selecting the column heading and dragging it to the desired location.

To enter a specific Tickler File, select the claim from the listing.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System > Display Accounts By Date

Ins	urance Svs	tem - Collect	ions by Date						Signe	d On Emp: SDW De	pt: 058
	ollector Code			or "ALL")							
nter S	tarting Review	v Date:	08/01/15	(Blank for all)	E	inter Ending Review Date:	08/07/15	(Blank for all)		Go	
D	Date	Patient Nar	ne	Acct #	Code	Description	Service From	Service To	Ins	Billed	
SW	08/03/15 08/03/15 08/03/15	WATZ LUC REED GRA BEECH DA		357648 357843 357872	CIM 192 190	CHECKS IN THE MAIL REJECTED CLAIM BILLED CLAIM	08/29/13 05/26/15 07/01/15	08/29/13 05/27/15 07/31/15	BB B BBR	\$ 338.80 \$ 1748.40 \$ 345.00	

Insurance System - Collections By Date

• **Display Calendar:** This option displays the Insurance Tickler File Schedule. The schedule display is a date grid containing daily totals of accounts to be reviewed over a selected time period. The system defaults to the current date and calculates the end date, but these dates may be overkeyed. A specific Collector ID may also be selected, or enter **All** for all Collector IDs.

Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday 31 31 31 31 31	Friday 1	Saturday
		2
None	None	None
3 4 5 6 7	8	9
None None None None None	None	None
10 11 12 13 14	15	16
None None None None None	None	None
17 18 19 20 21	22	23
None None None None None	None	None
24 25 26 27 28	29 3	
None None None None None	None	None

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System > <u>Display Calendar</u>

Insurance System - Tickler Calendar

- **Collector Account Report**: The Collector Account Report will provide a listing of claims that need to be reviewed in the Insurance Tickler File. Please see the <u>Collector Account Report</u> section for more information.
- **Multi Facility:** This option will allow insurance claims across multiple facilities to be worked from one location in the Insurance Tickler. Please see the <u>Multi Facility</u> section for details on the functionality of this option.

8.4 Multi Facility

The Multi Facility option will allow insurance claims across multiple facilities to be worked from one location in the Insurance Tickler.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System > <u>Multi Facility</u>

wer Date 0101/2015 12/211/2015 Soft By ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS IP home: 800-282-2888 ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS RECURRING F home: 1 Total Amount: 277 00 ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS RECURRING, ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS OF ALLA OP, ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS ARCURRING, ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS OF ALLA OP, ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS ARCURRING, ILLE CROSS OF ALLA OP, BLUE CROSS ARCURRING, <					
Phone: 800-292-8868 Count: 5 Total Amount: 4,935.90 BLUE CROSS-RECURRING F	view Date 01/01/2015 - 12/31/2015	Sort By Insurance Compa	ny Phone Number		
ILUE CROSS-RECURRING F Phone: 251-555-1212 Count: 1 Total Amount: 277.00					
Phone: 251-555-1212 Count: 1 Total Amount: 277.00 BLUE CROSS-RECURRING, BLUE CROSS-RECURRING F	Phone: 800-292-8868	Count: 5	Total Amount:	4,935.90	
BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P, BLUE CROSS-RECURRING, BLUE CROSS-RECURRING F					
	Phone: 251-555-1212	Count: 1	Total Amount:	277.00	
hone: Count: 4 Total Amount: 942.00	BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P, BLUE CROSS-RECURRIN	IG, BLUE CROSS-RECURRING F			
	Phone:		Total Amount:	942.00	
					Total:

Multi Facility Insurance Tickler

Once the Multi Facility option is selected, a list of claims will be displayed. Options for pulling and sorting claims in the listing are available at the top of the screen.

♥ Review Date	12/01/2015	-	12/31/2015	Sort By	Total Amount	. C Ascending	Oescending	
Sorting Options								

- **Review Date**: A review starting and ending date range may be entered to view all claims that need to be reviewed.
- Sort By: Claims pulling to the listing may be sorted by the following options.

Total Amount Record Count Insurance Company Phone Number

• Ascending/Descending: Select Ascending or Descending to view the results by the Sort option selected.

(Filters): The filters will only display if they have been set up by the signed-in user. Not every user will see the same filters at the top of the screen. For more information on how to set up filters, see the Filters section.

Once the sorting option has been selected, claims will pull to the listing based on the criteria chosen. Claims will be grouped together by insurance company telephone number and the following information will display.

BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P, BLUE CROSS-I/P Phone: 800-292-8868

9

3.914.20 Count: 2 Total Amount: **Claim Group**

- Insurance Company Name: This is the name of the insurance company. Multiple insurance company names will pull to this line if more than one insurance company has the same phone number.
- **Phone**: This is the phone number of the insurance company for the claims in this group.
- **Count**: This is the number of claims with this phone number in this group.
- Total Amount: This is the sum of all the billed dollar amounts for all the claims in this group.

Select the claim group to view all the claims in that grouping.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System > Multi Facility > Select Claim Group

wiew Date 12/01/2015	12/31/2015	Sort By		Ascending	Dec	scending	
			xpected Pay	- Ascending	€ Des	scenting	
SMITH ELLA KATHERINE (INSURANG DKP 5 Billed Amount: 3,375.20	C) Phone: 800-292-886		DSS OF ALA-O/P Review: 2015-12-29		190	EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL BILLED CLAIM	
SMITH ELLA KATHERINE (357600) RDR 1 Billed Amount: 539.00	Phone: 800-292-886	BLUE CRC	DSS-I/P Review: 2015-12-29		190	EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL BILLED CLAIM	

Claim Grouping

Options for pulling and sorting claims in the listing are available at the top of the screen. Once the sorting option has been selected, claims within this group will pull to the listing based on the criteria chosen. There is also a search. The following information will be displayed for each claim:

SMITH ELLA KAT	HERINE (INSURANC)			BLUE CROSS OF ALA-0	/P			1
DKP	5	Phone:	800-292-8868	Review:	2015-12-29	190	BILLED CLAIM	- 1
Billed Amount:	3,375.20							- 1
								_



- Patient Name: This is the name of the patient on the account.
- Patient Account Number: This is the account number of the patient associated with the claim.
- Insurance Company Name: This is the insurance company name that is loaded in Policy Information.
- Facility Name: This is the name of the facility where the claim originated.
- Collector ID: This is the Collector ID that is assigned to the claim.

Insurance Tickler	149
-------------------	-----

150 Insurance User Guide

- Financial Class Set Number: This field represents the sequence number of a particular financial class on a patient account. If there are multiple claims with the same financial class on the account, the system will assign a set number of 1, 2, etc.
- Phone: This is the insurance company phone number that is loaded in Policy Information.
- Review: This is the date the account is scheduled for review.
- **Review Code**: This is the last Review Code that was assigned to the account in the Insurance Tickler.
- Review Description: This is the description of the Review Code listed for the claim.
- Billed Amount: This is the billed amount on the insurance claim.

The following options are available on the action bar at the bottom of the screen:

- **PDF**: Display the information in the claim listing in a report format.
- Filters: Allows Filters to be created and added. Please see the additional documentation on Filters for more information.

Select **Back Arrow** to return to the previous screen.

Select the claim to access the Insurance Tickler File Maintenance screen and work the insurance claim.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler System > Multi Facility > Select Claim Group > <u>Select Claim</u>

Insurance System - Tickler			
Patient Functions	Insurance No	tes Delete Next Exit	
Patient: INSURANC SM	ITH ELLA KATHERINE		
Collector: DKP DEST	INY K PRICE	Patient Information	Claim Information
Prior Col:		Admit/Disc: 11/03/15 - 11/03/15	Service Prd.: 11/03/15 - 11/03/15
Review Date: 12/29/15	Start Date:	Stay Type: 2 O/P	Billed Date: 11/03/15
inish Date:	Changed Date: 01/04	^{/16} Financial Class: BB BLUE CROSS	Expected Pay: 3375.20
Code Review F	Reasons/Codes	Service: M MEDICAL	Claim Status: BILLED
90 BILLED CLAIM		Birth Date: 02/09/43	Last Payment Date:
		Insurance Information	Total Paid:
			Sub: SMITH ELLA
		Name: BB BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P	Policy#:
		Address-1: 450 RIVERCHASE PKWY	Bill Code:
		Address-2: Phone Number: 800-292-8868	Credit Code: Contr. Code:
			Guar. Phone: 251-639-8200
Collect Code:		City/State: BIRMINGHAM AL 35298 Contact:	Guar. Phone. 251-639-6200
Cycle Code:		Contact.	

Multi Facility - Insurance Tickler File Maintenance

Please see the <u>Insurance Tickler File Maintenance</u> section of this user guide for more information on this screen.



8.5 Collector Account Report - Report Writer

The Collector Account Report will provide a listing of claims that need to be reviewed in the Insurance Tickler File.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Report Dashboard** from the Application Drawer.
- 2. Select Collector Account Report.
- 3. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Facility:"

5. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "Collector Code:"

6. Enter in a Collector ID to print claims assigned to a specific Collector ID, or leave blank to include all Collector ID's.

System prompts, "Insurance:"

7. Enter in an Insurance Financial Class code to print claims for a specific insurance, or leave blank to include all Insurance Financial Classes.

System prompts, "Review Date Range:"

8. Enter in the desired review date range, the information is for. A date range is required in order to pull information to the report.

System prompts, "Status:"

9. Select one of the following tickler status'. A status is required in order to pull the information to the report:

Unfinished Finished All

System prompts, "Changed Status:"

10. Select one of the following options to see claims that have been assigned to different collectors. A Changed Status is required in order to pull the information to the report:

All Changed Only

System prompts, "Change Date Range:"

11. Enter in a date range for claims that have a changed status.

System prompts, "Sections to Exclude:"

12. Select one or more of the following desired sections to exclude, or leave blank to print all: **Exclude Collector Totals Exclude Grand Totals**

System prompts, "Level of Detail:"

13. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options:

```
Detail
Summary
Report Summary Only
```

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet:"

14. Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

15. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:

HTML
PDF
XML
CSV

System prompts, "Run Report"

16. Select **Run Report** to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Collector Account Report may be printed for specific collectors or for all collectors. The report will produce a recap page listing each Collector ID code and the number of accounts being worked. Patient Number, Name, Review Date, Review Reason and Expected Pay will be shown on this report.

The Report Writer application allows the user to filter, sort and manipulate this report to customize the data extracted out of the system. See the additional documentation on Report Writer for more information on these options.

01/04/2016 08:00				Insurance Tickler -Collector Account List 12/29/2015 - 12/29/2015		ins_tick_colle	ector_accts.template
ID Patient#	Patient Name	Review Dt	Code	Reason	Exp Pay Ins	Ins Name	Ph/Chg/Fin
SDW 357648	WATZ LUCY ELLEN	12/29/2015	190	BILLED CLAIM	338.80 BB	BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P	800-292-8868
SDW 357843	REED GRACE ELLEN	12/29/2015	190	BILLED CLAIM	1,748.40 B	BLUE CROSS-I/P	
SDW 357872	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	12/29/2015	190	BILLED CLAIM	345.00 BBR	BLUE CROSS-RECURRING	
Collector ID	Total Accounts	Total Expected Pa	ау				
SDW	3	2,432.2	20				

Collector Account Report - Report Writer

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- ID: Collector ID on the claim in the Insurance Tickler File.
- Patient #: Patient's account number pulls from Account field on the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Patient Name:** Patient's name pulls from the Full Name field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen.
- Review Dt: Review date pulls from the Insurance Tickler File.
- **Code:** Review code pulls from the Insurance Tickler File. The last code entered in the tickler will pull to the report.
- Reason: Description of the reason associated with the associated review code.
- Expect Pay: Expected pay amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Ins: Insurance Company Code pulls from the Policy Information screen.
- Ins Name: Insurance Company Name pulls from the Policy Information screen.
- Phone/Change/Finish Date: Depending on the options selected during the file build of this report, either the Insurance Company phone number (Policy Information Screen), the Changed Date (in the Insurance Tickler File), or the Finish Date (in the Insurance Tickler File) will pull to this column.
- Totals: Total amount of claims to be reviewed and the total expected pay for the date range selected.

8.6 Insurance Tickler Report

The Insurance Tickler Report will assist in the monitoring of accounts within the Insurance Tickler File.

How to Print

1. Select Report Dashboard from the Application Drawer.

2. Select Insurance Tickler Report

System prompts, "Facility:"

6. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "Collector ID:"

7. Enter in a Collector ID to print claims assigned to a specific Collector ID, or leave blank to include all Collector ID's.

System prompts, "Insurance Code:"

8. Enter the desired financial class. Use * to wildcard insurance companies or leave blank to print for all financial classes.

System prompts, "Review Date Range:"

9. Enter in the desired review date range.

NOTE: If an account in the tickler has a finish date, it will still be included on this report until it is either deleted or purged from the tickler.

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet"

10.Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Safe Mode:"

11. Select this option if the report would not build due to bad data being in a field. If the report has bad data, a message will appear stating to run report using the Safe Mode. If selected, Safe Mode will replace all of the bad characters with a ?. This will allow the intended report to generate. The bad data may then be seen and can be corrected from the account level.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

156	Insurance	User	Guide

12. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:

HTML
PDF
XML
CSV
MAPLIST

System prompts, "Run Report"

13. Select Run Report to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Insurance Tickler Report will assist in the monitoring of accounts within the Insurance Tickler File. This report may be printed for specific collectors or for all collectors. It groups the claims first by collector ID and then by insurance code and phone number.

The Report Writer application allows the user to filter, sort and manipulate this report to customize the data extracted out of the system. See the additional documentation on Report Writer for more information on these options.

Insurance Tickler Report - Report Writer

01/04/20	16									
08:05					Insurance T	ickler Report				insurance_tickler.templat
Coll ID	Ins	Ins Phone	ARID	Account#	Patient Name	Billed Amount	Review Dt	Code	Description	
SDW	в		1	357843	REED GRACE ELLEN	1,748.40	12/29/2015	190	BILLED CLAIM	
SDW	BB	800-292-8868	1	357648	WATZ LUCY ELLEN	338.80	12/29/2015	190	BILLED CLAIM	
SDW	BBR		1	357872	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	345.00	12/29/2015	190	BILLED CLAIM	

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Coll ID: Collector ID on the claim in the Insurance Tickler File
- Ins: Insurance company code pulls from the Policy Information screen
- Ins Phone: Insurance company phone number pulls from the Policy Information screen
- ARID: Pulls the id number of the facility the report is being run
- Account#: Patient's account number pulls from Account field on the Registration and ADT screen
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field on the Patient tab in the Registration and ADT screen
- Billed Amount: Pulls from the Expected Pay field on the Detail Charges screen
- Review Dt: Review Date pulls from the Insurance Tickler File
- Code: Review code pulls from the Insurance Tickler File

• Description: Description of the reason associated with the associated review code

8.7 Insurance Tickler File Maintenance

The following is an example of the Insurance Tickler File Maintenance screen.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Insurance Tickler File Maintenance

Patient Functions Insurance Notes	Delete Next Exit	
Patient: 357872 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS collector: SDW SAMANTHA D WALLACE	Patient Information	Claim Information
Solid Coli Standard FAR D WALLACE Prior Coli BBR Review Date: 08/03/15 Start Date: Changed Date: OB/03/15 Start Date: Code Review Reasons/Codes 80 BILLED CLAIM	Admit/Disc: 07/01/15 - 07/01/15 Stay Type: 2 O/P Financial Class: BBR BLUE Service: T PHYSICAL Birth Date: 02/05/51 Insurance Information Name: BBR BLUE CROSS-RECURRING Address-1: 450 RIVER CHASE PKWY Address-2: Phone Number:	Service Prd.: 07/01/15 - 07/31/15 Billed Date: 07/31/15 Expected Pay: 345.00 Claim Status: BILLED Last Payment Date: Total Paid: Sub: BEECH DAVIS Policy#: PPA7896531 Bill Code: Credit Code: Contr. Code:
Collect Code: 2 Cycle Code: 2	City/State: BIRMINGHAM AL 35298 Contact:	Guar. Phone: 251-555-6899

Insurance System - Tickler File Maintenance

This screen may be accessed from the Patient Functions screen or the Insurance Claim Status screen by selecting Tickler System. If the claim is not already set up in the tickler, the system will place this claim into the file. It may also be accessed by selecting one of the options in the Tickler File Functions screen. This screen provides information pertaining to the patient's account and claim and displays the Admit and Discharge Dates, the Stay Type, the patient's primary Financial Class, the Service Code, etc. If this information is changed on the Registration and ADT screen, it will be reflected here. A description of the various options follows.

158 Insurance User Guide

- **Collector:** This field lists the Collector ID that is assigned to the claim. The name associated with the ID code will display. The Collector ID may be changed by keying in a different Collector ID.
 - **Prior Col:** This field is not accessible. This field will display the last Insurance Collector assigned to this account if it has been changed.
- **Review Date:** This field will contain the date the account is scheduled for review. This date is used for the assigning of accounts worked, by day, for the Collector. This field will be completed by the system automatically when a claim is Billed and placed into the Tickler by the system. The Review Date is based on the number of days loaded in the Add Days to Review Date field on page 3 of the Insurance Company table.

For example, if this field had 15 days loaded, and the UB was printed and updated to the Billed status on 11/1/13, the claim will be set up in the Insurance Tickler with a Review Date of 11/16/13. If this field is blank, the system will automatically assign a Review Date for the day after the claim's Billed date. If the review date is changed, the system will update the Chngd Date field with the current date.

- Start Date: This field will contain the date this claim was placed in the Tickler.
- Finish Date: This field is used by the Collector to signal to the system that all Collection efforts have been exhausted. It also signals the system that the account can be dropped from the Tickler File. Once a month, the system will automatically run a purge and delete all claims from the Tickler that have a Finish Date older than 31 days.

If the Auto Update Finish Date field on page 3 of the Insurance Company table is set to **Y**, and the claim has a full payment posted against it, the system will place the receipt date in this field.

If a Finish Date is manually entered in this field, the system will update the Changed Date field with the current date.

- Changed Date: This field will update automatically whenever the Review Date or Finish Date is changed. A report may be run based on the Change Date and can be used for collector productivity.
- Review Reasons/Codes: When entering Review/Reason Codes, a lookup help screen may be accessed by entering a ? in this field. The system will automatically update the file entry with one of the listed codes. If a claim is manually entered into the tickler, a reason code must be entered or the system will list the claim as Invalid.
 - I90 Claim Billed
 - I91 Claim E/B
 - I92 Claim Paid In Full
 - **I93** Claim Partial Payment
 - I94 Claim Rejected
 - I95 Claim Payment Other

The above codes, as well as any user-defined codes, will need to be set up in the Review Codes table prior to using the Insurance Tickler System.

- **Collect Code:** The Collect Code pulls from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen. Any change in this field will be automatically updated in the Registration and ADT screen.
- Cycle Code: The Cycle Code pulls from the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen. Any change in this field will be automatically updated in the Registration and ADT screen.

NOTE: If the collect or cycle codes are manually changed on the Tickler File Maintenance screen, a note will be placed on the Account Detail. The note will include the AR date of the change, the initials of the employee who made the change, the time the change was made and the old and new collect or cycle codes.

- **Patient Information:** The Patient's Admit/Discharge dates, Stay Type, Financial Class, Service Code and Birth Date will pull to this section.
- **Insurance Information:** The Insurance Tickler will pull information directly from the claim's Policy Information screen. This will include the Financial Class name, Address, Phone Number, City, State, Zip and Contact.
- Claim Information: This will pull the insurance claim's information.
- **Patient Functions:** Select this option to access the Patient Functions screen. Any option may be chosen from this screen. Select Insurance Tickler System to return to the Insurance Tickler.
- **Insurance:** Select this option to access the Insurance Claim Status screen on the insurance claim. From this screen, the Tickler File may be re-entered by selecting Tickler System.
- Notes: Select this option to display the Insurance Tickler Note Maintenance screen. Notes may be entered and will be retained within this screen unless the field labeled "Insurance Tickler Notes to Acct Detail" is set to Y in the AHIS table, page eight. If this field is set, the notes entered here will pull to the Account Detail.
- **Delete:** Select this option to manually delete the claim from the Insurance Tickler System. Once a month the system will automatically run a purge and delete all claims from the Tickler that have a Finish Date older than 31 days. Therefore, it is important to remember to enter a Finish Date when all collection efforts on that claim have been completed or exhausted. Refer to the System Security User Guide for more information on manually deleting a claim from the tickler.
- Next: Select this option to return to the Hospital Base Menu.
- Exit: Select this option to return to the Tickler File Functions screen.

In addition to using the Insurance Tickler, there are several reports that may be helpful in facilitating the research of insurance claims.

The Billed But Unpaid Claims report is an aging report for insurance claims. It is used to ensure that unpaid claims do not go unnoticed for an unlimited amount of time. It should be printed on a regular basis for research purposes, to determine if unpaid claims should be re-billed or rejected. It is an alpha listing by insurance company of all outstanding insurance claims. Also, it is helpful in monitoring the expected pay due from each insurance company.

160 Insurance User Guide

The Billed but Unpaid & A/R Bal = 0 is used by the Business Office to reduce the number of claims with a zero balance on the Billed But Unpaid report. It should first be run as an edit to determine which accounts to reject and then as an update to actually reject those selected accounts. This report should be run on a weekly basis to keep the Billed but Unpaid report as clean as possible. The edit version is an alpha listing of accounts that have a claim at the Billed status with an A/R balance of zero. The update version displays the word "Rejected" to the right of the claim's Expected Pay. The report lists the patient's account number, patient's name, insurance, whether the claim is primary or secondary, the Billed date and the Expected Pay amount.

The Insurance Billing Time Analysis should be printed and reviewed on a regular basis for the purpose of analyzing the turn-around-time between insurance submittal and payment. Also, it will greatly aid in the identification of problem areas and help in eliminating unnecessary delays in submission. It also provides the number of days between the Admission date and the date the approval was sent, the Approval Sent date and the Approval Received date, the Discharge date and date the claim was generated, the generation date and the date the claim was billed, the Billed date and the date payment was received, and the Discharge date and the Payment Received date.

The Secondary Billing Report is used by the Business Office to list accounts that have a secondary claim, and the primary has been paid within the date range selected. It is a list of accounts that had a claim paid during the date range entered with another claim on the insurance screen. The report is a numeric listing of the secondary accounts, which page breaks by the primary Financial Class. The last page of the report gives recap by insurance company, with the total number of claims and the total billed amount for each. The Secondary billing Report may be printed and worked every time a remittance is entered and posted during receipting. Secondary Billing may also be automated. For further information, see Tables Affecting Insurance.

Chapter 9 Insurance Journals

9.1 Overview

Insurance Journals may be kept on any Financial Class desired. Journals are used to store information about specific Financial Class claims for audit and internal survey purposes. The options for building, sorting and printing journals are found in the Insurance Print Reports menu shown below.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Print Reports > Insurance

illing & Followup Reports		Journals
AutoGen Insurance Claims	Create Ad Hoc Report	Build File
Unapproved Claims	Claim <u>R</u> eimbursement Report	Sort (Paid Date)
Approved Claims (Chgs Needed)	Create Claims By Charge Periods	Sor <u>t</u> (Pat Name)
Claims With Missing Info(by Ins)	Secondary Billing Report	Print Journal
Claims With Missing Info(by Phy)	Ins. Company Name-Address Labels	Non-Standard Insurance Forms
Print <u>U</u> Bs	Locked/Unlocked MDS Records	Print I/P Eorms
Print <u>1</u> 500s	Secondary Billing Auto Reverse	Print O/P Eorms
Billed But Unpaid Claims(by Ins)	APC Claims to Ready-to-Bill	Print State Insurance Eorms
Billed But Unpaid Claims(by Phy)	Unbilled Insurance Report	Print Form 1491's (Ambulance)
Insurance Billing Time Analysis	Crossover Forms Auto Reverse	Claim Edit Lists
Insurance Adjustments To A/R	Ins. Reimbursement Analysis	UB0 <u>4</u> Edit List
Billed But Unpaid & <u>A</u> /R Bal = 0	<u>R</u> eject \$0 claims	1 <u>5</u> 00 Edit List
Billed Claims by Date Range	Pending Clai <u>m</u> s	



9.2 Table Maintenance Affecting Journals

Specific fields in the AHIS Control Record and the Insurance Company table must be set up in order for information from specific claims to be retained on the system in the Insurance Journal files. The purging criteria for insurance data is loaded in AHIS. The next few pages list descriptions of each field the system reads before purging information.

AHIS Control Record

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 1

Administration		Record Page		
A/R Date Control	Install Date : 000000			
A/R Close Date:	110415 The Following Screens Can Post Receipts			
Prior Close Date:	110415 1 Y 2 Y 3 Y 4 Y 5 Y 6 Y	7 Y 8 Y 9 Y		
General Ledger	10 Y 11 Y 12 Y 13 Y 14 Y 15 Y	16 Y 17 Y 18 Y		
A/R GL#:	10230000 19 Y 20 Y 21 Y 22 Y 23 Y 24 Y	25 Y 26 Y 27		
Cash GL#:	10000000 28 Y 29 Y 30 Y 31 Y 32 Y 33 Y	34 Y 35 Y 36 Y		
Second Cash GL #:	10010000 Used by Cpware: 054 801 145 21	0 0 0 0		
nsurance Control	Prior Rate: .00 Central Su	pply		
Fut. Semi-Pvt Rate:	.00 As Of: 000000 D	ept #: 025		
SEMI-PVT RATE:	539.00 As Of: 010101 R	ev GL: 30000025		
Criteria for Purging Out-dated Insurance Data				
Data to Drop or Mon	ths to Keep Journals: 33192 Storeroom	1		
Date to Drop or Mon	ths to Keep M & X Stay Info 33192 D	ept #: 026		
# of Days to Keep No	on-Journal Claims: 30 P	.0. #: 0000210		
# Of Days to Keep No	on-Journal Stay Info: 30	30		
Aiscellaneous Control Information				
A/R Log Keep Months	: 12			
Inventory Activity 1	Last Run: 010101 Non-Staff Phy	s Numbering: 🛛		
Print Receipts to De	ept Printer N Max Dsk Users	: 99		
Type A/R Bill to be	Printed: 1 (1=Mailer 2=Stmt) Stub Side	e? L (L or R)		
Medical Record Syste	em Active: Y PACS Interfac	e? Y		
CCBCP Gen by SVS Dat	tes: Y Auto City, State,	Zip? C (Y/N/C)		
Enter :	Exit Next Page P# for Page Number	*		

AHIS Control Record Page

- Date to Drop or Months to Keep Journals: The detail kept on the system for journaled insurances will eventually purge. A date or a number of months may be loaded in this field. If a date is loaded, the system will purge the journal data based on this date. Dates should be loaded in the MMDDYY format. Entering a number of months will allow the system to retain the journal information data for the requested number of months in this field. The system will only purge claims that have been paid or rejected through the receipting functions.
- Date to Drop or Months to Keep M & X Stay Info: The Stay Information detail kept on the system for journaled insurances will be purged. The system will allow a date or a number of months based on claims' service dates to purge this data. Dates should be loaded in the MMDDYY format. Entering a number of months will allow the system to retain Stay Information data for the requested number of months in this field.
- **# Of Days To Keep Non-Journal Claims:** The number of days the system will retain non-journal claim information should be loaded in this field. Only claims that have been paid or rejected will qualify for purging.

k.

• **# Of Days To Keep Non-Journal Stay Info:** The number of days the system will retain nonjournaled insurance Stay Information data should be loaded in this field. This is based on the service date of the insurance claim.

NOTE: The insurance purge is a weekly function. The purge program will read these fields to determine when detail information and stay information data on insurance claims should be purged.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Master Selection > Business Office Tables > Business Office Tables Maintenance > AHIS > Page 4

tient Types							AHIS Control Record Pa			
	All	Census	Auto	LT-Stn	mt Ord.	Long	Notify Dept at Order	Time		
-Desc-	laint	Rep's	Dates	Summ.	YN Days	Term				
I/P	Y	Y	N	N	000					
O/P	N	N	Y	N	000		LTCH:	Y		
E.R.	N	N	Y	N	000		Prt Access:			
SNF	Y	Y	Y	Y	000	Y	Prt Charge Item: 🛛			
CLINIC	N	N	N	Ν	000		Prt Credit Item: 0			
Master Patient Ind	ex Y/N?			Y			Print PO on White Paper	? Y		
Birth Date?				Y			Generic Forms			
Guarantor Name?				Y			Receipts:	Y		
Medical Records I	Number?			Y			First Time Statements:	Y		
Patient Name?				Y			Cycle Statements:	Y Y Y N		
Social Security Number?			Y			Long Term Statements:	Y			
Xray Number?			Y			Purchase Orders:	Y			
Admit Date?				Y			Miscellaneous Use:	N		
First-Tir					-Old N/A					
First-Tir					-Old Ins	Area	,	_		
TA Syster	-			в	re neerpoor rer rage.					
M/R Chart	-			Y			Foreign Addresses:	1 Y B		
Acuity Mo		-					Enterprisewide/or <u>Sched</u> :	в		
Normal Pa	ayrol	L (B/W/S	S/M):	в			Esign Start Date: 010103			
		Enter:		Exit	Next Page	P#	AP Interface CSNUM:			

AHIS Control Record, Page 4

• **Patient Types:** When building and printing journal files, the system will look to the Long Term column for each Stay Type to determine if the file should include information for long term patient accounts. If this column is answered **Y** for a specific stay type, the system will allow accounts with no discharge date to pull to journals that are built for incurred claims.

Insurance Company table

The Insurance Company table stores the fields the system reads to denote which Financial Classes should retain journal information and the information that is kept. Below is a list of these fields.

Insurance User Guide 164

ge 1 Page 2	Page 3		Page 4	Page 5	Page 6	Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	Policy Information	Detail Benefits
Name:	BLUE CROSS OF	ALA-0/P							Auto Gen I/P's:	
Address 1:	450 RIVERCHASI		AST						Auto Gen O/P's:	
Address 2:									Primary Cov Rate: 1.00	
City:	BIRMINGHAM								Secondary Cov Rate: 0.00	
State:	AL								Lag Days: 0	
Zip:	35298								Multiple 1500's:	
Ins Prov Phone:	8002928868								M/R Complete:	
Ins Phone 1:	0002020000								Contractual %: 0.000	
Ins Phone 2:									Contractual GL#: 5011	5000
Ins Website:									Other AR GL#: 0	
Form Code:	U								UB Type of Bill: 131	
Journal Insurance:	V									by item#
Provider Number:	PROVIDER								Auto Write-Off: C	
Ask DRG Number:									Transmit Claim: Y	Group: 01
Current Per Diem Rate:	0.00	as of							Detail Charges: 🛛 🕅	
Prior Per Diem Rate:	0.00									
Type of Proc Codes Used:	9 (4=CPT4,	9=ICD9)								
Bill Phy Chg Sep:	Y Ins Code:	BP								
Require Approval:										
P.S.R.O. Code:										
Ask Reimburse Amt:										
Reject After #Days:	35									
Submitter ID#:	SUBID									

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Companies

Insurance Company Record Maint., Page 1

- Journal Insurance: This field should be answered Y, N or C. If journals are kept for this Financial Class, this field should be answered with a Y. If no journal information is required for this Financial Class, this field should be answered with an N. If this Financial Class does not require journal information to be kept, this field could be answered with a C. Loading a C will give the ability to enter a Deductible and Co-pay during the receipting process for an insurance with no contractual adjustment.
- Ask DRG Number: This field affects the receipting of insurance claims. If this Financial Class does not require a DRG to be entered and stored in journals, this field should be answered **N**. Answering **Y** will allow a DRG to be entered at the time the claim is receipted, and the information will be stored in the insurance journal for this Financial Class code. The DRG will only need to be entered for primary claims if a **P** is entered.
- **Current Per Diem Rate:** The current Per Diem rate should be used for Financial Classes that use a Per Diem for reimbursement rather than a DRG. If a Per Diem rate is loaded when journals are printed, the reimbursement will be computed using this rate. Otherwise, the system will calculate a reimbursement based off the rate computed on the DRG Grouper screen.

0-33: 0.00 #: 0 IER: Y Its: N BCBS Prov#: BCBS Prov#: IF Claim: Medicare#: If Claim: JUDI L ASH			Page 5	Page 6	Page 7	Page 8	Page 9	1	Detail Benefit
Amount Date 0.00 0.00									
00000 0.00 00000 0.00 0.00 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>DRG COST PER STA</td> <td>Y</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				DRG COST PER STA	Y				
00000 0.00 00000 0.00 0.00 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Amount</td> <td>Date</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				Amount	Date				
00000 0.00 iscription: 0.00 j-33: 0.00 #: 0 VER: Y IBPC/VIDER/ID NUMEERS BCBS Prov#: Sion: BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Image: Comparison of the state of the				0.00					
00000 0.00 iscription: 0.00 j-33: 0.00 #: 0 VER: Y ISER: Y ISER: N BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Image: Comparison of the state of the stat	City:								
00000 0.00 J-33: 0.00 #: 0 FE: Y Its: N BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L ASH	State:								
J-33: 0.00 #: 0 IER: Y Ision: BCBS Prov#: Sion: Fedtax#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH		00							
F-33: Image: Constraint of the second seco	UB Locator#2 Description:								
FER: Y Ints: N sion: BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Image: Compare the second secon				0.00					
nts: N sion: BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH	Lab Multi-Channel#: 0								
Sion: JF Claim: JF C	Combine Bill OR / ER: Y			UB PROVIDER/ID N	JMBERS				
Sion: Fedtax#: Medicare#: Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH				BCBS Prov#					
JF Claim: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH	DRG Grouper Version:								
F Claim: Medicaid#. Signature: JUDI L. ASH	Phy Chgs on UB:								
Signature: JUDI L. ASH	Minn Medicaid SNF Claim:	-							
nt Code (EB): G All Payor:	P - Pharmacy				JUDLI ASH				
Dire Date: a second	P - Pharmacy R - Room			-					
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G			All Payor:		as of			
Prine Brine Brites	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID: Use Diag Pointers:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
: Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID: Use Diag Pointers: CT State Tax Exempt:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID: Use Diag Pointers: C State Tax Exempt: Det Desc on UB:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate Bank Plan:	0.00000	as of			
Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID: Use Diag Pointers: CT State Tax Exempt: Det Desc on UB:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate Bank Plan:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy				JUDLI ASH				
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID: Jse Diag Pointers:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Sollector ID: Jse Diag Pointers:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Bank Plan:	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Sollector ID: Jse Diag Pointers:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology: ollector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.0000	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Collector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0 00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room burce of Payment Code (EB): G DP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G			All Payor:		as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room iource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room source of Payment Code (EB): G			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
Print Disc Rate: a oppop	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology: Sollector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Jource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology: Jollector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Jource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology: Jollector ID:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room iource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room iource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room Source of Payment Code (EB): G SOP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate: Prior Disc Rate	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
Prior Disc Rate: 0.00000	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G OP Typology:			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G			All Payor: Disc Rate:	0.00000	as of			
	P - Pharmacy R - Room ource of Payment Code (EB): G			All Payor:		as of			
Disc Rate: 0.00000 as of	P - Pharmacy R - Room			All Payor:					
Disc Rate: 0.00000 as of	P - Pharmacy R - Room			-					
	P - Pharmacy R - Room			-					
	P - Pharmacy			orginataro.					
nt Code (EB): G All Payor:				Signature	JUDIT ASH				
Signature: JUDI L. ASH		•		Medicaid#:					
Signature: JUDI L. ASH	Ainn Medicaid SNF Claim:	-							
Signature: JUDI L. ASH	Ainn Medicaid SNF Claim:	-							
Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH	Vinn Medicaid SNE Claim			Medicare#:					
Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH				Medicare#:					
F Claim: Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L ASH				Medicare#					
F Claim: Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L ASH	hy Chgs on UB:								
F Claim: Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L ASH				Fedtax#:					
JF Claim: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH				Fedtax#		_			
IF Claim: Medicare#: Medicare#: Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L. ASH									
Signature: JUDI L ASH				BCBS Prov#					
Sion: JF Claim: JF C	et Reimbursements:			UB PROVIDER/ID N	JMBERS				
If Claim: If Cla	Combine Bill OR / ER: Y				MPEDC				
If Claim: If Claim: JUDI L ASH									
ER: Y Ints: N sion: BCBS Prov#: IF Claim: Fedtax#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L ASH	.ab Multi-Channel#:								
ER: Y Ints: N sion: BCBS Prov#: IF Claim: Hedicare#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L ASH									
#: 0 ER: Y IB FRONDER/ID NUMERS sion: BCBS Pro#: Fedtax#: Image: Compare the second sec	Dhu Name of 1500 22:			0.00					
F-33: Image: Constraint of the second con	JB Locator#2 Description:								
b-33: 0.00 F: 0 ER: Y IB ER: BCBS Prov#: Fetta:#: Prov#: IF Claim: Medicaid#: Signature: JUDI L ASH		00		0.00					
scription: 0.00 >33: 0.00 ##: 0.00 ER: Y ts: N sion: BCBS Prov#: IF Claim: •	lip: 000	00							
00000 0.00 J-33: 0.00 #: 0 IER: Y Ision: BCBS Prov#: Ision: Fedtax#: IF Claim: Image: State of the state o				0.00					
00000 0.00 0.33: 0.00 #: 0 FER: Y Its: N sion: BCSS Pro#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Medicard#: Medicard#: Signature: JUDI L ASH	State:	1		0.00					
00000 0.00 scription: 0.00 j-33: 0.00 #: 0 VER: Y IER: Y BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: Signature: JUDI L ASH	City:								
00000 0.00 iscription: 0.00 j-33: 0.00 #: 0 VER: Y IBPC/VIDER/ID NUMEERS BCBS Prov#: Sion: BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Image: Comparison of the state of the	City			0.00					
00000 0.00 scription: 0.00 J-33: 0.00 #: 0 *ER: Y IHF: N BCBS Prov#: Fedtax#: Fedtax#: Hedicare#: Medicare#: Medicare#: Signature: JUDI L ASH	Address 2:				Date				
00000 0.00 00000 0.00 0.00 <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>Amount</td> <td>Date</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>				Amount	Date				
00000 0.00 00000 0.00 0.00 <td>Address 1:</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td>•</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Address 1:				•				
Amount Date 0.00 0.00	Provider Name:			DRG COST PER STA	Υ				

Select Web Client > Tables > Business Office > Companies > Page 2

Insurance Company Maint., Page 2

Net Reimbursements: The Net Reimbursement field will default to Y and will add multiple receipts made to the same claim. When the receipt amount is displayed on the Insurance Claim Status screen, the total amount of the reimbursements made to this claim will be added together. To display only the amount of the last payment reimbursement, answer this field N. The information that is displayed on the Insurance Claim Status screen is the data that is stored in the journal files for this Financial Class.

9.3 Building And Sorting Journals

The system will allow up to 10 journals to be built at one time. The ability to wildcard journals is permitted using **. To build a journal, choose **Build File** from the Journals section of the Insurance Reports menu. Specific information must be answered about the journal that is desired. Below is a list of the fields that must be answered when building a journal.

Insurance Print Report		?)
Build Journals		×.
Journal: 1 🔽		
Journal Settings		
Insurance Types:		
Patient Types:	("I" for I/P "O" for O/P or Stay Type # or "A" for all)	
Incur or Paid:		
Incurred From:	01/04/16 🗸	
Incurred Thru:	01/04/16 🗸	
Paid, Unpaid or Both:	P •	
Payments Thru:	01/04/16 🗸	
Primary, Secondary or Both:	P •	
Include Rejects:		
Ready	G	enerate

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Print Reports > Insurance > Build File

Insurance Print Report

- Journal: Select a number to assign the journal being created.
- **Insurance Types:** This allows specific Financial Class codes to be entered that will pull to the printed report. Wildcarding is allowed in this field. If wildcarding is not used, up to 10 financial classes may be entered which will comprise one journal.
- Patient Types: The Patient Type must be entered. The system will pull information about specific claims based on one of the following: Enter an I for Inpatients (Stay Type 1), O for Outpatients (Stay Types 2-5), the number (1-5) for Specific Stay Types or A for All Stay Types.
- **Incurred or Paid:** This will allow the journal to be printed for claims with service dates that fall in the date range of the from and thru dates specified by entering an I for incurred. To pull claims that were paid during the chosen date range, a **P** should be entered. Generally, journals that are built to balance to remittances use the paid option.
- Paid From Paid Thru: The time frame of the period of claims that will print in the journal must be entered in this field. If the Incur or Paid option has Incurred claims, this journal will pull information about claims using the Service From and Service To dates on the claim to determine if it should fall into this journal. If the Service From date on the claim falls into the date range chosen for the file build of incurred claims, this claim will drop into the file. This is true for all Financial Classes except Medicare. When building an incurred Medicare journal, the system will look at the Service To date of the claim. This is the date that must be in the chosen file date range to allow Medicare claims to drop into the journal file build. Answering column 3 to pull paid claims will allow the system to pull claims that were receipted as paid during the date range of the journal file build.
- Paid, Unpaid or Both: Incurred journals may be built for claims that are paid, unpaid or both. The system will allow this field to be answered with a P, U or B when building a file for an incurred journal. When building a journal file for paid claims, the system will bypass this column assuming this file is for paid claims only.

• **Payments Thru:** The date that is entered will capture the information pulling to the journal as of this day. This field may be entered for incurred journals. The system assumes the Payment Thru date is the same as the Thru date entered in the fourth column for a paid claim's journal.

168 Insurance User Guide

- Primary, Secondary or Both: This prompt will allow the file build to pull primary claims only by choosing option P. To pull only non-primary claims a S should be chosen. To build a file for claims regardless of the claim being primary or secondary B should be entered. Once the field is answered the code entered will pull next to the sequence number of the journal being built.
- Include Rejects Y/N?: If the journal should include rejected claims, this prompt should be selected.
- Generate: After answering all the prompts, select this option to build the journal.

There are three options for sorting claims. The first is option **Paid Date** from the Insurance Reports menu. This option allows the journal that was just built to be sorted by the paid date. The other sorting option is **Patient Name** from the Insurance Reports menu. This will sort the journal by the patient's name. If neither of these options is chosen, the system will sort the journal by the patient's account number. The file build for a journal will remain on the system until another file is built for a journal.

9.4 **Printing Journals**

To print a specific journal or all journals that were built, choose **Print Journal** from the Insurance Reports menu. After choosing this option, the prompt "Did You Sort by Paid Date?" will be displayed. If the journal file was not sorted by paid date select **No**. If the journal file that was built was sorted by the paid date select **Yes**. This will display the prompt "Enter Fiscal Year Begin Date". The screen will now display the journals that were built. Below is an example of this screen.

Insurance Print Rep Print Journals	port					?
	Print	All Journals		C Print Sel	lected Journal	
Insurance	Patient Type	Incur/Paid	From	Thru	Paid/Unpaid/Both	Payments Thru
MB*			010416	010416	Р	010416
Print all claims i	in detail:					
Print only claim:	s with errors:					
	vpe:	(E	Blank for all)			
Enter Service Ty	/ ·		,			
Enter Service Ty		65 and Ove	r 🚽			
Enter Service Ty Which group:		65 and Ove	:r <u>•</u>			Print

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Print Reports > Insurance > Print Journal

Insurance Print Report

Several prompts are given after the journals are listed. These questions must be answered to direct the system on printing the journal.

- Print All Journals: Select this prompt to print all journals currently built.
- **Print Selected Journal:** Select this option to only print a portion of the journals currently built. Select the desired journals highlighting the ones to be printed.
- **Print All Claims In Detail?:** Select this option to print journal(s) by account number.
- Print Only Claims With Errors?: Select this option to print only the journals with errors.
- Enter Service Type: (Blank for all) If a journal is to print for a specific Service Type, enter the service code. Claims with the selected service code from the Registration and ADT screen screen under the Patient tab will print. If this field is blank, all the claims will print to the journal regardless of the service code.
- Which Group?: Select 65 & Over, Under 65 or Both: Journal files built for Medicare claims will receive this prompt. These journals may be printed for specific age groups.

9.5 Insurance Journals

RUN DATE 01/04/16 RUN TIME 08:22		THRU 12/31/					NOT ON FIL	E (ALL AGES)	PAG	~ ~
PATIENT NUMBER NAME			TO	DATE					CONTRACT #	AGE
		DAYS TO	12)TALS	2/01/15	12/01/15				A123456789 .00-PAID -ALLO	ANCE
	E JANE P S 0-NON COV RY DAYS 0-CC	73 #360030 73 #360030 DAYS TO	06MAMMO 07MAMMO 0TALS		8/26/15		145.00 145.00 290.00		A123456789 290.00-PAID 152.82-ALLO	8/26/15 F
357910 BEECH DAY	VIS SANDERS 1	46 #250514 64 #371906 43 CENTRAI 45 IV.SOLU 78 PB.60M0 78 MEPER25	IER.91 SEKG SUPPL JTIONS G SMGINJ DNEBULI				659.80 99.50 43.10 30.00 8.40 14.70 42.60 8.30		A123456789	
1-COVERED DAYS 0-MED-NECESSAJ ** ERROR ** ERROR ** ERROR ** ERROR	** ERROR ******	-DAYS **** 786	0-LIFE- 5.40-EXPE	DAYS CTED PA		 PAY 786		D PAY	786.40-PAID 146.20-ALLO 906.40	ANCE
		NON-COV	VERED CHA	RGES				120.00 120.00 240.00		
Insurance Journals (Totals)

RUN DATE 01/04/16 RUN TIME 08:22	FROM 01/01/15							PACIS	GE 3 JPRT
PATIENT NUMBER NAME		SERVICE FROM TO				OTAL CHARGES		CONTRACT #	AGE
***** T	OTALS ***				 .00 DR	G/PER	640.20 REIM	[
PINTS OF BLOOD:	0-FURNISHED	0-REPLACED	0-NOT	REPLACED					
		43 CENTRAL SUPP	LIES NON-S	STERILE	1	43.10			
		45 IV SOLUTIONS			1	30.00			
		46 EMERGENCY RO	OM		1	659.80			
		64 EKG/ECG			1	99.50			
		78 PHARMACY			3	31.40			
		84 RESPIRATORY	THERAPY		1	42.60			
1-COVERED DAYS	0-NON COV	DAYS TOTALS.				906.40		786.40-PAID	
								146.20-ALLO	ANCE
		INPATIENT DE	DUCTIBLE.						
		BLOOD DEDUCT	IBLE						
		COINSURANCE.							
		CO-PAY							
		DENIED CHARG	ES				120.00		
		NON-COVERED	CHARGES				120.00		
		TOTAL DEDUCT	IONS				240.00		
*** TOTALS	***	2-ERRORS 0-TOTAL CO-DAYS		S IN ERROR 0-TOTAL LIF	1-TOTA	L CLAIMS	0-TOT	AL DAYS MED-NE	CESSARY

RUN DATE 01/04/16 RUN TIME 08:22		THRU 12/31/15								AGE 4 SJPRT
PATIENT NUMBER NAME				DISCHARGE DATE					CONTRACT #	AGE
***** T () T A L S ***				.0	0 DRG	/PER	777.38 REIM		
PINTS OF BLOOD:	0-FURNISHED	0-REPLAC	ED 0-NO	T REPLACED						
		43 CENTRAL S	UPPLIES NON	-STERILE		1	43.10			
		45 IV SOLUTI	ONS			1	30.00			
		64 EKG/ECG				1	99.50			
		73 RADIOLOGY				2	290.00			
		78 PHARMACY.				3	31.40			
		84 RESPIRATO	RY THERAPY.			1	42.60			
2-COVERED DAYS	0-NON COV 1	DAYS TOTA	LS				1196.40		1076.40-PAI)
						-			299.02-ALL	WANCE
		INPATIENT	DEDUCTIBLE							
		BLOOD DED	UCTIBLE							
		COINSURAN	CE							
		CO-PAY								
		DENIED CH	ARGES					120.00		
		NON-COVER	ED CHARGES.					120.00		
		TOTAL DED	UCTIONS					240.00		
*** TOTALS	***			MS IN ERROR 0-TOTAL LIF		TOTAL	CLAIMS	0-TOT.	AL DAYS MED-N	CESSARY

172 Insurance User Guide

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Patient Number/Name: Patient account number and name from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Service From/To: Specifies the start and stop date the claim was generated, from the insurance Claim Status screen.
- Admit/Discharge Date: Patient admit and discharge date from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Total Rate/Qty/Charges: Rate, Quantity and Total of charged item from Detail Charges screen.
- Non Cov Charges: Charges not covered by insurance from the Detail Charges screen.
- **Contract #:** Insurance contract number from Policy Information.
- Age: Patient's age from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Per Diem/DRG: This column will either pull the per diem rate loaded on page 1 of the Insurance Company table or the DRG and reimbursement calculated in the Medical Records Grouper screen on the account.

NOTE: If an ICD-10 DRG is present on the account, **TruBridge EHR** will use the ICD-10 DRG and reimbursement information. If an ICD-10 DRG is not present on the account, **TruBridge EHR** will use the ICD-9 DRG and reimbursement from the Medical Records Grouper screen.

- Reim (Reimbursement): The reimbursement amount entered during receipting.
- Summary Code: Charge item summary code from the Detail Charges screen.
- **Paid/Allowance:** The amount that has been receipted to this claim and the total charges less the DRG reimbursement. The Allowance is the contractual amount.
- Errors: The total amount of errors on all claims.
- Claims in Error: The total number of claims found with errors.

9.6 Correcting Journal Errors

Claims in the journal program may appear with an error message when the number of room charges on a claim and the number of days stayed do not match. The print program will also look at the expected pay amount on the claim. If this amount does not equal the actual payment, the system will consider this an error.

To correct errors on a claim, the Detail Charges screen must be adjusted.

Select Web Client > System Menu > Hospital Base Menu > Patient Account # > Insurance > Claim > <u>Detail Charges</u>



Insurance System - Detail Charges

The receipting functions update claims with the deductible, denied charges and co-pay dollar amounts from the remittance the insurance company sends with the claims payment. The dollar amounts will be displayed on the journal. If the deductible, denied charges or the co-pay was not entered during receipting, the journals will reflect this error. The correction must be made on the Detail Charges screen. Once the correct amounts are entered into these fields, the expected payment will be adjusted.

Claims with a different number of room charges than the length of stay will display an error message. This is to indicate that there was an error at the time the claim was billed. Before printing an insurance form an edit is run. This edit will list the room charge error and it should be corrected before the claim is billed. If it is not corrected at the time the claim is billed, it should not be adjusted for printing journals.

Chapter 10 Printed Reports

10.1 Overview

The TruBridge EHR Printed Reports system will provide information concerning Insurance activity. It is important to understand each of the following reports and how to print them. This section contains examples and explanations for all Printed Reports.

10.2 AutoGen Insurance Claims

The AutoGen Insurance Claims is used by the Business Office to move Non-APC Outpatient claims from the Approved status to the Ready to Bill status and APC Outpatient claims from Approved status to the Unchecked status.

NOTE: The APC claims will advance to the Unchecked status depending on how the Auto Gen Ready-to-Bill field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select AutoGen Insurance Claims.

System prompts, "Are You Sure You Want To Auto Gen Insurance Claims?"

4. If the above information is correct, select **Yes** to continue. Select **No** to exit without AutoGenning.

Description and Usage

The AutoGen Insurance Claims option moves Non-APC Outpatient claims from the Approved status to the Ready to Bill status automatically. The Insurance Company table directly affects this option, and the following fields should be manipulated:

Auto Gen I/P's: **Y** (Y OR N) Auto Gen O/P's: **Y** (Y OR N) Lag Day: M/R Complete: **Y** (Y OR N) Summarize O/P Ins? By Item #:

When the AutoGen option is selected, the system will determine if the above criteria are met, based on these fields. For a claim to be automatically generated, at least three days must have been closed since the Discharge Date (Lag Days). Also, if M/R Complete? is set to **Y**, then there must be a date in the Finished Date of the Medical Records Grouper screen for the claim to generate. This indicates that the Medical Records department has completed coding.

The AutoGen feature will also summarize or detail the charges, depending upon the setting of the Summarize O/P Ins field. On the following page is an example of a claim at the Approved status, which is automatically set up at the time of registration. A claim that has been automatically generated and moved to the Ready to Bill status is also displayed.

NOTE: The date the Autogen was last run will display at the top of the Insurance Print Reports screen (Print Reports > Insurance).

Below is an example of a claim created at the Approved status at the time of registration.

New Insurance Hospital Base Menu ttient: 357911 BEECH DAVIS SANDERS mit Date: 01/04/16 scharge Date: 01/04/16	Insurance System	m - Claims by	v Patient				Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 058
mit Date: 01/04/16 scharge Date: 01/04/16 ay Type: E.R. Insurance SW Service From Service To Status Total Charges Expected Pay BB Y APPROVED .00 .00							
BB Y APPROVED .00 .00	atient: dmit Date: ischarge Date: ay Type:	01/04/16 01/04/16	BEECH D	AVIS SANDER	S		
BB Y APPROVED .00 .00	Insurance	SW	Service From	Service To	Status	Total Charges	Expected Pay

Insurance System - Claims By Patient

Choose AutoGen Insurance Claims and claims that meet certain criteria will move from the Approved to the Ready to Bill status.

Insurance Syste	21	y Patient				Signed On Emp: SDW Dept: 05
atient:	357911		AVIS SANDER	3		
dmit Date:	01/04/16	DELOITD				
scharge Date:	01/04/16					
ay Type:	E.R.					
Insurance	SW	Service From	Service To	Status	Total Charges	Expected Pay
BB	Y	1/04/16	1/04/16	READY TO BILL	586.96	586.96
CB1	2	1/04/16	1/04/16	READY TO BILL	586.96	.00

Insurance System - Claims By Patient

Notice that Physician claims will also generate if there are charges present with physician components.

10.3 Unapproved Claims

The Unapproved Claims report lists all claims at the Unapproved status. All claims should be worked to move them to the Approved status.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select **Insurance**.
- 3. Select Unapproved Claims.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort By:"

5. Select a sort option. The options include:

а	Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins	d	Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha
-			

- **b** Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd **e** Ins-Alpha-ServCd
- c Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins f Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha

System prompts, "Service Codes or All:"

6. Enter up to 10 desired Service Codes or select ALL to pull all Service Codes.

System prompts, "Print:"

7. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Unapproved Claims report should be printed and worked daily. This report page breaks and subtotals by Financial Class, with a grand total number of Unapproved claims printing at the end of the report.

The report indicates claims that require some form of verification (ex: pre-certification or data verification). If this type of verification is not required then the claim should start at the Approved status rather than the Unapproved status. If there are additional insurance claims at the Unapproved status on the account then approve them also. Two asterisks will appear next to claims when the admit date is older than 20 days.

For primary Inpatient claims, it will be necessary to enter the Full Days, Co Days and Life Days fields in Detail Benefits for Medicare claims and the Full Days for all other Financial Classes. These fields will automatically populate once the claim is generated when setup in the Insurance Company table, page 6.

RUN-DATE: 04/08/15 TIME: 10:31	UNAPPROVED	INSURANCE			SORT BY.: Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins BREAK BY: N TO Z	PAGE 14 H5ISUNAPP2
PATIENT NAME	NUMBER. INS	ADMIT DATE	DISC. SERV DATE CODE	SENT DATE	PREADMIT DATE	
RUSSELL NANCY K SMITH MARY TILLMAN BRAD RACHEL SANDY WILLIAMS HALEY CRAWFORD BRADLEY	016391 B 016401 B 016391 C 016401 C 016391 X 016401 X	04/04/15 04/05/15 04/06/15 04/05/15 04/05/15 04/05/15	M S M		** NOT PRIMARY ** NOT PRIMARY NOT PRIMARY ** NOT PRIMARY	
FOR ALPHA SPLIT: N	TO Z TOTAL UNAPPRO					

Unapproved Claims

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen. If the account is a repeat admission within 72 hours, the flag "72H" will print after the Account Number.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Disc Date (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv Code (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Sent Date: Pulls from the Policy Information screen, Sent Date.
- **Pre admit Date:** If there is no Admit Date, the pre-Admit Date pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

10.4 Approved Claims (Chgs Needed)

The Approved Claims (Chgs Needed) report lists claims at the Approved status. Claims at this status should be automatically generated and require no manual intervention.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Approved Claims (Chgs Needed).
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort By:"

5. Select a sort option. The options include:

а	Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins	d	Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha
---	-------------------	---	-------------------

- **b** Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd **e** Ins-Alpha-ServCd
- c Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins f Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha

System prompts, "Service Codes or All:"

6. Enter up to 10 desired Service Codes or select ALL to pull all Service Codes.

System prompts, "Include Secondary Claims:"

7. Select this option to include secondary claims or leave blank to exclude secondary claims from the report.

System prompts "Print Medical Records Complete:"

8. Select **Yes** if the report should only print the accounts that have Medical Records complete, or select **No** if the report should only print the accounts that do not have Medical Records complete. Select **Both** and the report will print all accounts that have both Medical Records complete and not complete.

System prompts, "Exclude Patients with a Discharge Date:"

9. Select this option to exclude claims with no Discharge date or leave blank to include all claims.

System prompts, "Print:"

10. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Approved Claims Report should be printed and reviewed weekly. This report page breaks and subtotals by Financial Class, with a grand total number of Approved claims printing at the end of the report. The two asterisks appear 4 days after the discharge date.

Claims should move from this report to the Ready to Bill status once the claim meets the criteria for autogenning. Any claim that remains on the report once the account has been coded and lag days have been met should be researched further.

Approved Claims (Chgs Needed)

RUN-DATE: 4/30/19 TIME: 11:22	5		APPR	OVED	INSURANCE	E (WAITIN	NG FOR CHA		BY: Serv Cd EAK BY:	-Alpha-Ins	PAGE 53 H5ISAPP2
PATIENT NAME		NUMBER	РТ	INS	ADMIT DATE	DISC. DATE		E APPROVAL RECEIVED	CHARGES	COMMENTS	M/R COMP
ADAMS JIMMY		356823	1	x	03/15/15	03/25/15	5 S	03/15/15	** 919.60		Y
BOLTON GLORIA		356830	1	х	04/07/15	04/08/15	5 M	03/01/15	**15996.80		Y
CHAMBERS STEPHEN		356787 :	1	х	04/01/15	04/03/15	5 M	04/01/15	7745.30		Y
JOHNSON CELESTE	+	987654	2	х	04/24/15	04/24/15	5 N	04/27/15	200.00		Y
INS CODE: X	TOTAL	APPROVE	D	4	TOTAL CHA	RGES	24861.70				

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Pt (Stay type): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): The insurance code pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Disc Date (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Service Code: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Approval Received: Pulls from the Policy Information screen.
- Charges: The total amount of charges pulls from Account Detail.
- Comments: The Comments pull from Comments on the Insurance Claims Status screen.
- M/R Comp (Medical Records Complete): A Y indicates Medical Records coding is complete and the Finish Date has been added to the grouper screen. An N indicates that coding is not complete.

10.5 Claims With Missing Information (By Ins)

The Claims with Missing Information (By Ins) report lists all claims at the Unchecked status. This report should be printed and worked daily as part of the Followup Procedures once Primary Billing is complete.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Claims With Missing Information (By Ins).
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort By:"

- 5. Select a sort option. The options include:
 - a Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins d Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha
 - **b** Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd **e** Ins-Alpha-ServCd
 - c Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins f Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha

System prompts, "Include Secondary Claims:"

6. Select this option to include secondary claims on the report. If left blank the secondary claims will not print to the report.

System prompts, "Print:"

7. Select **Print** to start the generation process.

System prompts, "Enter as of Date:"

8. Enter the date the report will be run through and select "Ok."

If the Sort By option is by Service Code, the system will prompt, "Service Codes: Or Select All:"

9. Enter the desired Service Code. If all Service Codes are to print, select **Ok**.

System prompts, "Would you like to pull coder initials?"

10.If this prompt is answered **Yes**, the coders initials will replace the "Current, 30, 60, 90 days" columns.

The report will print once this prompt is answered

Description and Usage

The Claims With Missing Information report should be printed and worked daily. This report page breaks and subtotals by insurance company. The last page of the report ages the expected payment under the columns Current, Over 30, Over 60 and Over 90. The last page also gives the total number of claims for each insurance company. There is a grand total that gives the totals of each aging column for all insurance companies and a grand total of the number of claims at the Unchecked status.

If a claim appears on this report, then it should be for one of two reasons. First, it may be an APC claim, which will autogen to the Unchecked status if the Auto Gen to Ready-to-Bill field on page 4 of the Insurance Company table is set to **N** and will contain the message "APC Claim" in the Comment field. Second, if the claim is <u>not</u> an APC claim, then it was most likely manually set back from the Ready To Bill status and the reason should be placed in the comment field. The APC claims will move to the Ready To Bill status once a M/R Verified Date has been placed on the claim and the APC Claims to Ready to Bill report has been run. The non-APC will not automatically move from the Unchecked status to the Ready To Bill status and will need to be manually reset to Ready To Bill when ready.

NOTE: The advancement of APC claims depend on how the Insurance Company table is set.

Claims With Missing Information (By Insurance)

RUN DATE: 06/03/15 TIME: 11:53	CLAIMS WITH MISSIN AS OF 05/25/15		GE 36 ISUNCKP
	UNT TO BILLED CUR 30 60 90	PHYSICIAN REASON FOR NOT BILLING	M/R SERV COMP CD
PRI. 413862 SMITH JOHN 05/01/15 SEC. 416216 ABBEY CAROLINE 04/18/15 PRI. 416815 72H CRAWFORD BRADLEY 03/28/15 SEC. 700000 SMITH JUSTIN 04/25/15	100.00 X 54.50 X 3754.96 X 500.00 X 4409.46 TOTAL	BEVER MISSING DIAG CODE SWEENEY MISSING MODIFIER SWEENEY MISSING MODIFIER ADAMS MISSING DIAG CODE CLAIMS 4	N B Y O Y E N A

Claims With Missing Information (By Insurance Totals)

	E: 06/03/15 E: 11:53		CLAIMS WITH MISSING INFORMATION (BY INSURANCE) AS OF 05/25/15							
NUMBER	NAME	CURRENT	OVER-30	OVER-60	OVER-90	BALANCE	CLAIMS			
в	BLUE CROSS I/P	101.40	421.18	87.25	424.16	78.99	67			
BP	BC/BS - PHYSICIAN	167.00	52.83	40.90		560.73	22			
M	MEDICARE I/P	60.58	45.94	499.32	482.62	88.46	154			
MB	MEDICARE-0/P	83.13	350.57	997.94	68.56	95.20	290			
MBR.	MEDICARE RÉCURRING		571.78			571.78	7			
х	MEDICAID INSURANCE DESCRIPTION		58.72	1182.00	19.75	340.72	14			
ХВ	MEDICAID-0/P	190.25	983.81	57.75		115.06	69			
	* * * T O T A L S * * *	547.36	2484.83	2865.16	995.09	1847.94	593			

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Ins (Insurance code): The Insurance code pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen. If this account is a repeat admission within 72 hours, the flag "72H" will pull after the Account Number.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Disc Date (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Amount to be Billed: The expected pay amount pulls from the detail charges screen.
- Current: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is less than 30 days old.
- 30: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is over 30 but less than 60 days old.
- 60: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is over 60 but less than 90 days old.
- 90: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is over 90 days old.
- **Physician:** The attending physician pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Reason for Not Billing: The comments pull from the Comment field of the Insurance Claims Status screen.
- M/R Comp (Medical Record Complete): A Y indicates Medical Records coding is complete and the Finish Date has been added to the grouper screen. A N indicates that coding is not complete.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

10.6 Claims With Missing Information (By Phy)

The Claims with Missing Information (By Phy) is used by the Business Office to advance Inpatient claims to the Ready to Bill status and by Medical Records to review which patient accounts need to be coded.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Claims With Missing Information (By Phys).
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Include Secondary Claims? Yes/No:"

5. Select Yes to include secondary claims or No to exclude secondary claims from the report.

System prompts, "Would you like to pull coder initials?"

6. If answered **Yes**, the coders initials will replace the "Current, 30, 60, 90 days" columns.

System prompts, As of date for insurance aging:"

7. Enter the date the report will be run through.

System prompts, "Print medical record number?:"

8. Select this option to print the patient medical record number to report or leave blank to omit the Medical Record Number from the report.

System prompts, "Print:"

9. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Claims with Missing Information (By Phy) report should be printed and worked on a daily basis. The report page breaks and subtotals by physician. The last page of the report ages the expected pay under the columns Current, Over 30, Over 60 and Over 90. The last page also gives the total number of claims for each physician.

Medical Records may use this report to see what needs to be coded. If they are waiting on the doctor to assign a diagnosis, this report may be used to determine which physicians are holding up the billing.

To advance the claim to the Ready to Bill status, the patient's Account Number should be locked onto, and **Insurance** should be selected. Verify the Stay Information and all Condition, Occurrence and Value codes in the Coding Screen. After all of this is completed, Detail Charges should be selected. The Ready to Bill and Print Form fields should be selected for all primary claims. Ready to Bill should be selected and Print Form blank for all secondary claims.

If a Non-APC Outpatient claim appears on this report, a reason should be noted in the Comment field of the Insurance Claim Status screen. These claims automatically generate from the Approved status to the Ready to Bill status. Any Non-APC Outpatient claims that appear on this report will need to be manually set to Ready to Bill.

For an APC claim, the system will advance the claim to the Unchecked status and place "APC Claim" in the Comment field once the claim is autogenned. Once the Medical Records Verification Date has been placed on the account, and APC Claims to Ready-to-Bill report has been run, the claim will move to the Ready to Bill status.

NOTE: The advancement of APC claims depend on how the Insurance Company table is set.

Claims With Missing Information (By Physician)

	DATE: 16/01 TIME: 09:25			CLAIMS WIT AS OF 01/0		SING IN	FORMA		CAL RECORD		PAGE 1 ISPHYP		
	INSURANCE NUMBER	NAME	0100	AMOUNT TO BE BILLED	CUR	30 60	90	#DAYS C DISC. L		#DAYS LOCA.	INSURANCE		M/R COMP
	NOT ON F	ILE											
PRI.	348069	CHAPMAN COREY	12/20/19			-		15			CIGNA	М	N
PRI.	356942	ARTHUR BART	REASON FOR NO 12/22/15	5 216.5	6 X			12	ANSI ED		BLUE CROSS-0/P	ER	N
PRI.	523558	ALEXANDER BETTY L	REASON FOR NO 12/02/15 REASON FOR NO	5 215.0	00	х		32 CLAIM)	ANSI ED ANSI ED		MEDICARE-0/P	ER	N
		* * * T 0 T A L S * *	*	992.73	т	DTAL CL	AIMS	3					

Claims With Missing Information (By Physician Totals)

TIME: 09:25			CLAIMS WITH M AS OF 01/04/1		RMATION (BY F	PHYSICIAN)	ISPHYP
NUMBER NAME		CURRENT	OVER-30	OVER-60	OVER-90	BALANCE	CLAIMS
4100 LOWERY J 10000 BAXTER J 30000 CRABTREE J 68000 BIXLER S 100000 BROWN A 110000 MAYSON H 705000 TAYLOR J 805000 DIXON J 860000 KENNEDY I 900000 WILLIAMS J 997000 BAYLOR A 999999 Global Phy			16236.45		200.00 16729.26 63.20 142.28 1229.30 28694.30 45215.10 299.40 1294.25 2365.90 1780.80 7921.95 1978.60	200.00 32965.71 63.20 142.28 1229.30 28694.30 45215.10 299.40 1294.25 2365.90 1780.80 28072.40 1978.60	1 14 3 5 2 3 1 3 1 3 6 6
* * * T O T A L S * *	*		16236.45		107914.31	124150.76	49
TOTAL NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS CURR TOTAL NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS OVER TOTAL NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS OVER TOTAL NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS OVER TOTAL NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS	-30 1 -60 0						

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen. If this account is a repeat admission within 72 hours, the flag "72H" will print after the Account Number.
- Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Med. Rec.# (Medical Record Number): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen., if the prompt "Print Medical Record Number" is answered Y.
- Disc Date (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Amount to be Billed: The expected pay amount pulls from the detail charges screen.
- Current: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is less than 30 days old.

- 30: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is over 30 but less than 60 days old.
- 60: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is over 60 but less than 90 days old.
- 90: An "X" pulls to this column if the Discharge Date is over 90 days old.
- **# Days Disc:** The number of days since discharge.
- Chart Location: The location of the patient's medical record chart pulls from Medical Records.
- # Days Loca: The number of days that the Medical Record chart has been in its current location.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- M/R Comp (Medical Record Complete): A Y indicates that Medical Records coding is complete and the Finish Date has been added to the grouper screen. A N indicates that coding is not complete. The report is divided into two sections. The first section are accounts that have not been coded, therefore do not have a finish date. The second section are accounts that have been coded, therefore have a finish date.

Totals Section

- Totals: The total amounts for each physician.
- Total Number of Accounts: The number of accounts Current, Over-30, Over-60 and Over-90 past discharge.

10.7 Print UBs

The UB billing forms may be printed as necessary by the facility.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the **Hospital** Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print UBs.

After selecting UB the user may print on the new form by including or excluding certain claims based on the parameters described below.

4. Select a print option.

<u>.</u> !							?	×
	Insurance Print Me	nu						
	Print	<u>S</u> ave	Delete		<u>R</u> eset			
	File Build Options							
	Saved Param:	•						
	Form Type:	Name Order	Ţ					
	Restart Acct:		rint Totals Page	Test ICD10s				
	Claim Parameters				Include/Exc	lude Claims]	
	 All Coverages Primary Secondary Stay Types: 		□ 3 □ 4 □	5	Included c	laims	Add Remove Cl <u>e</u> ar	
	Paper/Electronic: Print Billed: Address at Top:	Both	Y					

Print UBs Insurance Print Menu

File Build Options

• Saved Parameters: Prior to printing the UB, it will be necessary to determine how to separate the claims billed on the new forms from the claims printed on the old forms. This option contains a drop-down menu with the following selections in addition to some user-defined selections, which are explained below:

Print All	By Intermediary
By Account	By Stay
By Insurance	By Restart

Select the option that will be used to determine which claims will be billed on the UB form. The option selected in this field will adjust remaining prompts. For example if **By Insurance** is selected, the option to select financial classes will be available. If **By Restart** is selected, an account number may be entered to begin the printing process with that account number.

User-defined selections within the Saved Parameters drop-down menu are also available. Once all fields on this Insurance Print Menu have been selected, the user may save these parameters eliminating the need to complete all fields every time certain types of claims are printed. Printing the same type of claims in the future will be as easy as selecting the desired user-defined saved parameter from the drop-down menu. The **Save** option is explained under Other Options within this document.

- Form Type: UB will display.
- Sort Order: This option will print the claims in order by either Account Number or Financial Class.
- w/Form: Selecting this option will generate the UBs on a laser form. Do not select this option if printing to a preprinted UB.
- **Restart Acct:** If **By Restart** is selected in Saved Parameters, an account number may be entered in this field as the account number to begin printing the UB forms. This option will gather information from the last file build created.
- Test ICD10s: This option allows the ability to create ICD-10 test print files. See ICD-10 Test Print Files 198 for more information.

Claim Parameters

- All Coverages: Selecting this option will print all UB claims at the Ready to Bill status.
- **Primary:** Selecting this option will only print primary UB claims at the Ready to Bill status.
- Secondary: Selecting this option will only print secondary UB claims at the Ready to Bill status.
- **Stay Types:** Select the desired stay types to print the new UB forms. Any combination or all stay types may be selected. This selection is available if the Saved Parameter **By Stay** is chosen.
- **Paper/Electronic:** This option will allow the UB claims to be produced in paper form, electronically or both.
- Print Billed: This option will allow the user to print UB claims at the Billed status.
- Address on Top: This option will print the address loaded on page 1 of the Insurance Company table to the top of the UB.

Include/Exclude Claims

Include/Exclude Claims will allow the addition or removal of claims by account number, financial class or intermediary. Depending on what is selected in Save Parameters, the options in this section will differ.

- Account Numbers: If By Account is selected from the Save Parameters drop-down menu, a list of all the accounts that will print claims on a new UB form will display. The user may add or remove claims from the existing list. A lookup may be accessed by selecting the magnifying glass. The Patient List will display to assist in adding accounts. Accounts may also be added by keying the account number in the field at the top of the displayed list and selecting Add (Alt-A). To remove an account, highlight the account and select **Remove** (Alt-m). To remove all accounts in the list, select Clear (Alt-e).
- Financial Classes: If By Insurance is selected in Save Parameters, a list of financial classes that will print claims on a new UB form will display. The user may add or remove financial classes from the existing list. A lookup may be accessed by selecting the magnifying glass this will display all financial class codes to select. Financial classes may also be added by keying the financial class code in the field at the top of the displayed list and selecting Add (Alt-A). Wildcarding may be used for financial classes. To remove an insurance code, highlight the code and select Remove (Alt-m). To remove all financial class codes in the list, select Clear (Alt-e).
- Intermediary: If By Intermediary is selected in Save Parameters, a list of intermediary groups that will print claims on a new UB form will display. The user may add or remove intermediaries from the existing list. A lookup may be accessed by selecting the magnifying glass. This will display all intermediaries available for selection. Intermediaries that are not linked to a specific financial class will not be allowed for selection. Intermediaries may also be added by keying the intermediary code in the field to the left of the magnifying glass and selecting Add (Alt-A). To remove an intermediary, highlight the code and select **Remove** (Alt-m). To remove all intermediaries in the list, select **Clear** (Alt-e).

NOTE: If **Print All** is selected in Save Parameters, a list of all accounts that will print claims on a new UB form will display yet may not be manipulated

After all prompts have been answered, the following options located at the top of the screen are available:

- Print: This will print the UB forms to the print option selected.
- Save: Select Save (Alt-S) to save a set of user-defined parameters, which will prevent having to answer all prompts each time UB claims are printed. The system will prompt, "Create a name for the saved parameters." Enter a description under which the current selections will be stored. The description entered will be displayed in the Saved Parameters drop-down menu and may be selected for the future printing of UB claims. After entering the description select **OK** (Alt-O).
- **Delete:** Select **Delete** (Alt-D) to remove any entry from the Saved Parameters drop-down that will no longer be needed.
- **Reset:** Select **Reset** (Alt-R) to set the screen back to the original information before choosing any option after Saved Parameters.

System prompts, "Printing Options:"

System prompts, "Did It Print Correctly?:"

5. Select **No** to reprint the first UB again. Select **Yes** to continue to the next prompt.

System prompts, "Insurance Update is next, Do You Wish To Update?:"

6. Select **Yes** to move the claims to the Billed status or **No** to leave the claims at the Ready to Bill status.

Description and Usage

The UB provides the information charged to a patient's account in a format that is accepted by Insurance Providers.

When printed as an update, the system advances claims from Ready to Bill to the Billed status. Once printed, the biller should verify that all necessary information has printed on the form. If changes need to be made to the claim, select "Reverse" and make the necessary changes. A corrected UB will generate the next time bills are printed.

An explanation of each locator on the UB may be found in the Insurance Procedures and Edits User Guide.

Print UBs

											3a PAT CNTL 4 b. MED REC. #	-	Location and the second					
											5 FED.	TAX NO.	6	FROM	ENT COVER	IS PERIOD		
PATIENT N	IAME	a				9 PATIE	NT ADDRES	s a										
BIRTHDAT	E 11 8	EX 12 DATE	ADMISSION 13 HR 14 TY	DF 16 90	C 16 DHR	b 17 STAT	18	19 20	21	CONDITION 22		4 25	26 27	¢ 28	d 29 ACDT STATE	30		9
0000																	37	
OCCU	DATE	32 OCCURRENO CODE DAT	E CODE		ATE	CODE	OCCURRENCI DATI	C C	5 ODE	OCCURREN FROM	T	HROUGH	36 CODE	FROM	RENCE SPAN	THROUGH	01	
3	I		I				1		1 20	VALUE	CODES		O VALU		1	La		
									a 39 CC	DE AN		č	0 VALU ODE A	IE CODES MOUNT		41 CODE	VALUE CODES AMOUNT	
									b									
									d									
REV. CD.	43 DESCRIPTION					44 HCPC	IS / RATE / HIPF	*S CODE		45 SERV. DATE	4	SERV. UNITS	47 TOT	AL CHARG	ES	48 NON-C	OVERED CHARGES	49
	PAGE	OF					CREA	TION D	ATE		7	OTALS						_
PAYER NA		_ 0		51 HEAL	TH PLAN IC	C	011271	52 REL. INFO	53 ASG BENL 54	I PRIOR PAYMEI	NTS .	55 EST. AM	IOUNT DUE		NPI			
														57 OT	THER			
															IV ID			
INSURED'	'S NAME				59 P. REL 6	30 INSURE	ED'S UNIQUE	ID			61 GROU	P NAME		62	INSURANC	E GROUP N	10.	
TOF 6TME	NT AUTHORIZATI					015	OCUMENTIC	ONTROL M	MDED				65 EMPLOYER					
INEAIME	NT AUTHORIZATI	JN CODES				04 D	OCOMENT O	JATHOL NO	MIDEN				65 EMPLOTER	n NAME				
6	7	A	В		С	_	D						G		H		68	
ADMIT			K		Ľ.		Ń	74 000		170	(P		G			
	RINCIPAL PROCE	70 PATIENT REASON DX DURE a.	OTHER PF CODE	ROCEDUR	E	b.	C OTHER CODE	71 PPS CODE PROCEDUR	E	72 ECI 75	2 76 AT	TENDING	NPI		С	7: QUAL		
											LAST				FI	RST	1	
COD	OTHER PROCEDU	JRE d. DATE	OTHER PF CODE	IUGEDURI E	e)ATE	e.	OTHER I CODE	PHOCEDUR	e ATE		77 OP	ERATING	NPI			QUAL		
REMARKS	\$	I		B1CC a							78 OT	HER	NPI			QUAL		
				b							LAST 79 OT	HED	NPI			RST		
				d							LAST				FIE	RST		
-04 CMS-14	150	APPROVE	D OMB NO.				NIL	BC" National U	and the second se		THE C	RTIFICATION	IS ON THE REV	ERSE APP	PLY TO THIS	BILL AND /	ARE MADE A PAR	T HEREO

10.8 Print 1500s

The 1500 billing forms may be printed as necessary by the facility

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base screen or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print 1500s.
- 4. Select a print option.

To print the old 1500 form, select **1500 (08-05).** To print the new 1500 form, select **1500 (02-12)**. After selecting 1500 (02-12) the user may print 1500s on the new form by including or excluding certain claims based on the parameters described below.

View					?
Insurance Print M	enu				
Print	<u>s</u> ave	Delete	Reset		
File Build Options					
Saved Param:					T
Form Type:	1500-0805	T	Sort Order: Patient	t Name Order	•
Restart Acct:		v	v/ Form	Print Totals Page	Test ICD10s
Claim Parameters			Include/Ex	clude Claims]
Claim Parameters			Include/Ex	clude Claims]
Claim Parameters All Coverages			Include/Ex	clude Claims	
			Include/Ex		Add
All Coverages					Add Remove
 All Coverages Primary Secondary 		□ 3 □ 4 □	Included		
 All Coverages Primary Secondary 		3 4 T	Included		Remove
 All Coverages Primary Secondary Stay Types: 		□ 3 □ 4 □	Included		Remove

Print 1500 Insurance Print Menu

File Build options

• Saved Parameters: Prior to printing the new 1500, it will be necessary to determine how to separate the claims billed on the new forms from the claims printed on the old forms. This option contains a drop-down menu with the following selections in addition to some user-defined selections, which are explained below:

Print All	By Intermediary
By Account	By Stay
By Insurance	By Restart

Select the option that will be used to determine which claims will be billed on the new 1500 form. The option selected in this field will adjust remaining prompts. For example if **By Insurance** is selected, the option to select financial classes will be available. If **By Restart** is selected, an account number may be entered to begin the printing process with that account number.

User-defined selections within the Saved Parameters drop-down menu are also available. Once all fields on this Insurance Print Menu have been selected, the user may save these parameters eliminating the need to complete all fields every time certain types of claims are printed. Printing the same type of claims in the future will be as easy as selecting the desired user-defined saved parameter from the drop-down menu. The **Save** option is explained under Other Options within this document.

- Form Type: 1500-0212 will display.
- Sort Order: This option will print the claims in order by either Account Number or Financial Class.
- **w/Form:** Selecting this option will generate the 1500s on a laser form. Do not select this option if printing to a preprinted 1500.
- **Restart Acct:** If **By Restart** is selected in Saved Parameters, an account number may be entered in this field as the account number to begin printing the 1500 forms. This option will gather information from the last file build created.
- Test ICD10s: This option allows the ability to create ICD-10 test print files. See ICD-10 Test Print File 198 for more information.

Claim Parameters

- All Coverages: Selecting this option will print all 1500 claims at the Ready to Bill status.
- Primary: Selecting this option will only print primary 1500 claims at the Ready to Bill status.
- Secondary: Selecting this option will only print secondary 1500 claims at the Ready to Bill status.
- Stay Types: Select the desired stay types to print the new 1500 forms. Any combination or all stay types may be selected. This selection is available if the Saved Parameter **By Stay** is chosen.
- Paper/Electronic: This option will allow the 1500 claims to be produced in paper form, electronically or both.
- Print Billed: This option will allow the user to print 1500 claims at the Billed status.

• Address on Top: This option will print the address loaded on page 1 of the Insurance Company table to the top of the 1500 form if the Print Addr on top of 1500 field on page 3 of the Insurance Company table is set to Y.

Include/Exclude Parameters

Include/Exclude Claims will allow the addition or removal of claims by account number, financial class or intermediary. Depending on what is selected in Save Parameters, the options in this section will differ.

- Account Numbers: If By Account is selected from the Save Parameters drop-down menu, a list
 of all the accounts that will print claims on a new 1500 form will display. The user may add or
 remove claims from the existing list. A lookup may be accessed by selecting the magnifying glass.
 The Patient List will display to assist in adding accounts. Accounts may also be added by keying
 the account number in the field at the top of the displayed list and selecting Add (Alt-A). To remove
 an account, highlight the account and select Remove (Alt-m). To remove all accounts in the list,
 select Clear (Alt-e).
- Financial Classes: If By Insurance is selected in Save Parameters, a list of financial classes that will print claims on a new 1500 form will display. The user may add or remove financial classes from the existing list. A lookup may be accessed by selecting the magnifying glass, which will display all financial class codes to select. Financial classes may also be added by keying the financial class code in the field at the top of the displayed list and selecting Add (Alt-A). Wildcarding may be used for financial classes. To remove an insurance code, highlight the code and select Remove (Alt-m). To remove all financial class codes in the list, select Clear (Alt-e).
- Intermediary: If By Intermediary is selected in Save Parameters, a list of intermediary groups that will print claims on a new 1500 form will display. The user may add or remove intermediaries from the existing list. A lookup may be accessed by selecting the magnifying glass which will display all intermediaries available for selection. Intermediaries that are not linked to a specific financial class will not be allowed for selection. Intermediaries may also be added by keying the intermediary code in the field to the left of the magnifying glass and selecting Add (Alt-A). To remove an intermediary, highlight the code and select **Remove** (Alt-m). To remove all intermediaries in the list, select **Clear** (Alt-e).

NOTE: If **Print All** is selected in Save Parameters, a list of all accounts that will print claims on a new 1500 form will display yet may not be manipulated.

196 Insurance User Guide

Other Options

After all prompts have been answered, the following options located at the top of the screen are available.

- Print: This will print the 1500 forms to the print option selected prior to entering the print report.
- Save: Select Save (Alt-S) to save a set of user-defined parameters, which will prevent having to answer all prompts each time 1500 claims are printed. The system will prompt, "Create a name for the saved parameters." Enter a description under which the current selections will be stored. The description entered will be displayed in the Saved Parameters drop-down menu and may be selected for the future printing of 1500 claims. After entering the description, select **OK** (Alt-O).
- **Delete:** Select **Delete** (Alt-D) to remove any entry from the Saved Parameters drop-down that will no longer be needed.
- **Reset:** Select **Reset** (Alt-R) to set the screen back to the original settings before choosing any option after Saved Parameters.

NOTE: If there is a revenue code in the range 100-219, the claim is flagged as a UB and nothing will print.

If printing to a laser printer the system will prompt, "You are printing to a multitray printer Print from tray (1,2,3):"

5. Enter the tray number.

System prompts "Insurance Update is next, Do You Wish To Update?:"

6. Yes will move the claims to the Billed status, and No will leave the claims at the Ready to Bill status.

Description and Usage

The 1500 form provides the physician charges in a format that is accepted by Insurance Providers.

When printed as an update, the system advances claims from Ready to Bill to the Billed status. Once printed, the biller should verify that all necessary information has printed on the form. If changes need to be made to the claim, select "Reverse" and make the necessary changes. A corrected 1500 form will generate the next time bills are printed.

An explanation of each locator on the 1500 may be found in the Insurance Procedures and Edits User Guide.

Print 1500's

		AIN FUR	IVI .										
PROVED BY NATION	IAL UNIFORM CLAIM CO	DMMITTEE (NU											
PICA					- 14	and a	-	1a. INSURED'S LC	-	-		PIC	
-	VEDICAID TRICA		CHAMPVA (Member IG	- HEA	LTH PLAN	BLK LUN (ID#)		TR. INSURED S CL	NUMBER			(For Program in Iten	1.1]
PATIENT'S NAME (L	eat Name, First Name, M	licidie initial)		3. PATIENT	S BIRTH DY		SEX	4. INSURED'S NA	ME (Last Na	ume, First	Name, M	iddle Initial)	
PATIENT'S ADDRES	S (No., Street)			6. PATIENT	RELATION	M SHIP TO INSU	F	7. INSURED'S AD	DRESS (No	., Street)	_		_
				Self	Spouse	Child	Other						
TY			STATE	8. RESERVI	ED FOR NU	CC USE		CITY				STAT	E
P CODE	TELEPHONE	(Include Area C	(adie)					ZIP CODE		TELE	EPHONE ((Include Area Code)	
	()										[)	
OTHER INSURED'S	NAME (Last Name, First	Name, Middle In	nitial)	10. IS PATIE	INT'S CON	DITION RELA	TED TO:	11. INSURED'S PI	OLICY GRO	UP OR P	ECA NUN	(BER	
OTHER INSURED'S	POLICY OR GROUP NU	MBER		a EMPLOY		rrant or Previo	us)	a INSURED'S DA	TE OF BIRT	H		SEX	
RESERVED FOR NL	JCC USE			b. AUTO AC	YES CIDENT?	NO		5. OTHER CLAIM			M	F	
					YES	NO	LACE (State)	C. OTHER COMM	-> (rosaĝna	non of the			
RESERVED FOR NU	ICC USE			C. OTHER A				C. INSURANCE PI	AN NAME (OR PROC	GRAM NA	ME	
INSURANCE PLAN N	NAME OR PROGRAM NA	AME		100. CLAIM	CODES (De	NO beignated by M	UCC)	d. IS THERE AND	THER HEAD	TH BEN	EFIT PLA	N7	
								YES	NO			items 9, 9a, and 9d.	
PATIENT'S OR AUT	READ BACK OF FOR THORIZED PERSON'S SI	IGNATURE 1 au	MPLETING athorize the o	& SIGNING elease of any	THIS FORM medical or o	t. oher informatio	in necessary	cayment of me	cics/ benefit	IZED PER	ISON'S S ndersigns	IGNATURE I authori of physician or suppl	ze ier for
to process this claim, below.	. I also request payment of	r government be	nens enner t	to impage or to	the party we	no accepts ass	grimeor	services descr	ced celow,				
SIGNED					ATE		-	SIGNED					_
MM DO	ULIAL OLIAL	PREGNANCY (CMP) 15.0 QUA		MM	DD	YY	16. DATES PATIE MM	DD	- Jo wo	TO	HRENT OCCUPATI	PN -
NAME OF REFERR	RING PROVIDER OR OTH	HER SOURCE	178	+	1000				TION DATE	S RELAT		MM DD	s YY
ADDITIONAL CLAIR	UNFORMATION (Desire		17b	NPI							TO		
		nated by NUCC)	1				FROM 20. OUTSIDE LAB	17		SCH	ARGES	
								20. OUTSIDE LAE	NO	1	\$ CH	ARGES	
	ATURE OF ILLNESS OR		A-L to servi	ce line below	(24E) ji	CD Ind.		20. OUTSIDE LAB	NO	ORIG	S CH		
				ce line below	(24E) ji	D. L		20. OUTSIDE LAE		_	INAL RE		
	BLLNESS OF ILLNESS OF I BL F. L J. L	INJURY Relate	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L		_	D H	1 -	20. OUTSIDE LAE YES 22. RESUBMISSIO		NUMBER	INAL RE		
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	INJURY Relate	G. L G. L K. L D. PROCE	DURES, SER	WICES, OR	D. L	E. DIAGNOSIS POINTER	20. OUTSIDE LAE YES 22. RESUBMISSIO		NUMBER	INAL RE		
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	INAL RE	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	I, ID, OUAL, NPI	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	INAL REI	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	I, ID, OUAL, NPI	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	IINAL REI	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OF I B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	IIINAL REI III IIII OUAL NPI NPI NPI	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
L A DATE(S) OF From	ATURE OF ILLNESS OR B. L F L F SERVICE To R	B. C.	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCEI (Expla	DURES, SER	WCES, OR	D. L	DIAGNOSIS	20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER	IINAL RE	F. NO. J. RENDERIN	
A DATE(S) OL From DD YY		B. G. ACCOF	A-L to servi C. L G. L G. L C. PROCE (Expla CPT/HCP)	DUPIES, SEF	MCES. OR incurrentance MOCIF			20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUMMISSI 23. PRIOR AUTH F. S. CHARGES		NUMBER S EPSOT S Anny B PRO	II.	F. NO.	D. 4
A DATE(S) OL From DD YY		B. G. ACCOF	A-L to servi C. L G. L G. L C. PROCE (Expla CPT/HCP)	DURES, SER	MCES. OR incurrentance MOCIF	D. L		20. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESUBMISSI CODE 23. PRIOR AUTH		NUMBER S EPSOT S Anny B PRO	IIINAL REI III IIII NPI NPI NPI NPI	F. NO.	D. 4
A DATE(S) OL From M DD YY 		INJURY Petete	A-L to servi C. L G. L K. L D. PROCE (Expla OPT/HOP	DUPIES, SEF	WICES, OR MODIF MODIF			29. OUTSIDE LAE VES 22. RESLAMISSH 23. PRIOR AUTH F. S CHARGES		NUMBEF	II.	F. NO.	D. 4

10.9 ICD-10 Test Print File

TruBridge has developed functionality to create ICD-10 Test Print Files for internal testing needs. This functionality may be found in the <u>Print UBs</u> and <u>Print 1500s</u> options on the Insurance Print Reports Menu. This section will detail the steps required to build an ICD-10 test file. Facilities who submit files directly to a payer or another clearinghouse (i.e. hardcopy) will be responsible for performing all applicable testing for their facility.

The following criteria must be met in order to use the ICD-10 Test Print File option:

- The facility must have version 1906 of ClientWare installed.
- The new Medical Record Grouper screens must be used.
- The existing ICD-9 codes must be linked to the applicable ICD-10 codes.

Please contact TruBridge's Financial Software Support for information regarding these requirements.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the **Hospital** Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print UBs or Print 1500s
- 4. Select a Print Option

System prompts, "Test ICD10s:"

5. If this option is selected, claims may be printed with ICD-10 codes.

NOTE: The user may include or exclude certain claims based on the parameters described in the <u>Print UBs</u> and <u>Print 1500s</u> section.

After all prompts have been answered and the user selects Print:

System prompts, "Insurance Update is next, Do You Wish To Update?:"

6. Select **No** to leave the claims at the Ready to Bill status when printing the ICD-10 Test Print File. If **Yes** is selected claims will move to the Billed status.

Description and Usage

The ICD-10 Test Print File option will give users the ability to preview what a UB04 or 1500 will look like using ICD-10 codes. This is a temporary measure that may be used until ICD-10's are fully implemented.

The following locators will be affected on the UB04:

- Locator 66: will pull a 0 instead of a 9
- Locators 67, 69, 70, 72, 74: will pull ICD-10 codes

The following locator will be affected on the 1500:

• Locator 21: will pull ICD-10 codes

10.10 Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Ins)

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Ins) is used by the Business Office to do follow-up work on claims that have been billed but payment has not been made against the claim.

NOTE: This report is also available in the Report Writer format on the Report Dashboard. Please refer to the <u>Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Ins) - Report Writer</u> and topic in the Report Dashboard section of this user guide.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Ins).
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort By:"

- 5. Select a sort option. The options include:
 - a Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins d Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha
 - **b** Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd **e** Ins-Alpha-ServCd
 - c Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins f Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha

System prompts, "Enter Insurance Companies, * to wildcard, (Blank for all):"

6. Up to 10 financial classes may be entered. Use "*" to wildcard insurance companies or leave blank to print for all financials classes.

System prompts, "Sort By Balance:"

7. Select this option to sort report by account balance.

System prompts, "Generate:"

8. Select this option to begin the printing process.

System prompts, "As of date for Insurance aging:"

9. Enter the date the report will be run through.

System prompts, "Include Claims:"

10.Select **Primary** to print only Primary claims. Select **Secondary** to print only secondary claims. Select **Both** to print both Primary and Secondary claims.

System prompts "Expected Pay Low: High:"

11.Enter the range of dollar amounts for the expected pay the report will print or return for all claims with an expected pay to print to the report.

System prompts, "Which Claims:"

12.Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options:

For Claims in Current For Claims in Over-30 Day For Claims in Over-60 Day For Claims in Over-90 Day For All Claims

System prompts, "Sort by balance:"

13.Select this option to sort the report by balance.

System prompts, "Service Codes to pull (Blank for all):"

14.Enter up to 10 desired Service Codes or leave blank to pull all Service Codes.

System prompts, "Print:"

15.Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Ins) report provides an alpha listing by insurance of all outstanding insurance claims. Financial Classes that do not have any unpaid claims or claims that meet the report's criteria are excluded. The report lists insurance, patient account number, patient name, billed date, billed amount, aging columns, subscriber name, contract number and group information.

The aging columns are Current, 30, 60 and 90 days. The last page of the report lists an aging breakdown of total dollars for each insurance company in each aging column.

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (By Ins) report should be printed and worked on a weekly basis. This report is helpful in showing which insurance is outstanding and how much payment is expected.

Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Insurance)

RUN DATE: 04/05/15 TIME: 10:44		UNPAID INSURANCE F 04/30/15	506	RT BY.: Alpha-Balan	CE PAGE 1 H5ISAGE
	NAMECD DATE		60 90	SUBSCRIBER	CONTRACT # GROUP
P 04/08/12 Z06070 ADAMS P 11/06/11 232784 BARNES P 03/31/11 000935 BARNES P 02/14/11 001402 BARNET P 01/24/11 415738 CAMERO P 10/11/11 415174 CANNON P 12/03/11 418283 FRANKS P 07/02/11 417874 FREELE P 10/23/11 000414 GAHAGA	Y JAMES PAUL 0 04/12/11 JOHN H M 04/27/11 S RACHEL 03/30/11 S PAYNE P M 08/14/11 TE PATRICIA F 10/27/11 IN CHARLIE 06/19/11 GLENDA 08/14/11 S CHARLES W 06/19/11 S CHARLES W 06/19/11 Y TAYLOR ANN 03/30/11 N BILL 11/20/11	5 X 5 X 4 4 5 X 5 X 5 X	X X X X CLAIMS	BARNETTE PATRICIA CAMERON CHARLIE CANNON GLENDA FRANKS CHARLES FREELEY TAYLOR AMM	434388949A

Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Insurance Totals by Alpha Split)

	TE: 04/05/15 HE: 10:44		BILLED BUT U AS OF 04/30/	PAGE 5 H5ISAGE			
NUMBER.	NAME	CURRENT	OVER-30	OVER-60	OVER-90	BALANCE	CLAIMS
ALPH ALPH	A SPLIT: A TO J A SPLIT: K TO R						43 37
	* * * T O T A L S * * *						

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- **Insurance:** Pulls from Policy Information. This indicates whether the insurance is primary or secondary.
- Date: Pulls the ending service date of the claim.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Billed Date and Amount: The billed date and expected pay amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Current: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is less than 30 days old.
- 30: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is over 30 but less than 60 days old.

- 60: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is over 60 but less than 90 days old.
- 90: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is over 90 days old.
- Subscriber: Pulls from Policy Information.
- **Contract #:** Pulls from Policy Information.
- **Group:** The group information pulls from Policy Information.

10.11 Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Phy)

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Phy) is used by the Business Office to perform follow-up work on claims that have been billed but payment has not been made against the claim.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Phy).
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Include Secondary Claims?:"

5. Select **Yes** to include secondary claims or **No** to exclude secondary claims from the report.

System prompts, "As of Date for Insurance Aging:"

6. Enter the date the report will be run through.

System prompts, "Print:"

7. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Phy) report provides an alpha listing by physician of all outstanding insurance claims. The report should be printed to determine the dollar amount that has been billed based on the admitting physician.

The report indicates whether the insurance is primary or secondary, then lists the patient number, patient name, billed date, billed amount, aging columns and insurance name. The aging columns are Current, 30, 60 and 90 days. The last page of the report gives an aging break down of total dollars for each physician.

Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Physician)

RUN DATE: 03/03, TIME: 08:55	/16		UNPAID AS OF			E CL	AIMS	(BY PHYSICIAN)	PAGE 9 H5ISPHYP2
	PATIENT NAMECD		AMOUNT BILLED	CUR	30	60	90	INSURANCE	
PRI. 416907 PRI. 415790 PRI. 414703 PRI. 414703 PRI. 416911 PRI. 416911 SEC. 416175 SEC. 415825 PRI. 415791	JONES KENNY A LONGHORN STEVE E HODGE PREE K POWELL JEREMY M SANDSON JASON M ZARON BRENDA M ROSEN MARY M	03/29/15 07/08/15 01/17/15 05/30/15 08/06/15 10/09/15 08/07/15 07/26/15 07/26/15	16908.75 720.00 40.00 728.50 122.00 12.00				X X X X X X X X	BLUE CROSS I/P SOUTHWEST REHAB HOSPITAL BLUE CROSS MCAID/MCARE CROSSOVER MEDICARE OUTPATIENT MEDICARE OUTPATIENT BLUE CROSS 0/P BLUE CROSS I/P BLUE CROSS 0/P	

Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Physician Totals)

RUN DATE: 03/03/16 TIME: 11:44		UNPAID INSURANCE CLAIMS (BY PHYSICIAN) AS OF 03/26/15							
NUMBER NAME	CURRENT	OVER-30	OVER-60	OVER-90					
333341 LOWERY J 331000 HENDERSONT 332000 HOLLINGER S	930.00 68.54	3344.55	1201.80	141.30	930.00 4756.19				
322077 ALBY 322105 WEISS LEE 333000 DAWDY 334000 DOUGLASS J	885.00 933.25	1288.60	723.00	100.00	1288.60 1708.00 933.25				
334231 NOVAK 100000 PORTERHOUS 1100000 MAYSON H 111111 BULLOCK 123001 SMITH D	703.20 309.05 350.00	140.00	1861.00 20.00	2137.80 44.80	3998.80 748.00 469.05 350.00				
123654 CRED DOC 333421 SCHRINER J 444569 NEWBARRY 555555 PAIDAPATY 705000 THRASH J	1410.00 614.73 75.00 92.25			680.50	1410.00 614.73 75.00 772.75				
777636 MCGUIRE M 802000 BROWNING J 805000 DEXTER 900900 ANDERSON M	2514.50	8489.69		283.50 594.35 291.30 774.55	2798.00 594.35 291.30 9264.24				
* * * T 0 T A L S * * *	9399231.49	15894.30	4175.00	81538.11	9500838.90				

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- **Insurance:** This field indicates if the insurance claim is primary or secondary.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv Cd (Service Code: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Billed Date: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Amount Billed: The expected pay amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.

- Current: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is less than 30 days old.
- 30: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is over 30 but less than 60 days old.
- 60: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is over 60 but less than 90 days old.
- 90: An "X" pulls to this column if the billed date is over 90 days old.
- Insurance: Pulls from Policy Information.
- Physician: The attending physician pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.

10.12 Insurance Billing Time Analysis

The Insurance Billing Time Analysis should be printed and reviewed on a regular basis for the purpose of analyzing the turn around time between insurance submittal and payment. Also, it will greatly aid in the identification of problem areas and help in eliminating unnecessary delays in submission.

How to Print

204

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Insurance Billing Time Analysis.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort by:"

- 5. Select a sort option. The options include:
 - a Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins d Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha
 - b Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd e Ins-Alpha-ServCd
 - c Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins f Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha

System prompts, "Service Codes (Blank for all):"

6. Enter up to 10 desired Service Codes or leave blank to pull all Service Codes.

System prompts, "Insurance Codes (Blank for all):"

7. Enter up to 10 desired Financial class codes or leave blank to pull all Financial classes. The wildcard option (*) may be used.

System prompts, "Starting Payment date:" and "Ending Payment date:"

8. Enter the date range of payments to pull to report.

System prompts, "Claim Types:"

 Use the drop-down box to select from the following options. Select **Primary** to print only Primary claims. Select **Secondary** to print only Secondary claims. Select **Both** to print both Primary and Secondary claims.

System prompts, "Totals Only:"

10.If this field is selected the report will print only the Total lines from each report section. If unchecked it will print in Detail with the addition of a Totals page.

System prompts, "Print:"

11.Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Insurance Billing Time Analysis report provides the number of days between the Discharge date and the Medical Record finish date, the Admission date and the date the approval was sent, the Approval Sent date and the Approval Received date, the Discharge date and the date the claim was generated, the generation date and the date the claim was billed, the Billed date and the date payment was received, and the Discharge date and Payment Received date. The report will subtotal by financial class code, and give averages for each column.

Insurance Billing Time Analysis

TIME: 10:15 INSURANCE BILLING TIME ANALYSIS H PAYMENTS RECEIVED 1/01/1512/31/15										PAGE 1 H5ISTIME			
FOR ALPHA SPLIT: PATIENT	A TOZ NUMBER		SRV	PRIM/SEC: PI / CONTRACT#	RIMARY DISC. MR FIN	ADMIT SEND	SEND RECD	DISC. GEN	REC/DIS GEN	GEN BILL	BILL PAY	DISC. PAY	EXPECTED PAYMENT
BEECH DAVIS SAND	357910	001MB	ER	A123456789	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	786.40
GILLESPIE JANE P	357885	001MB	R	A123456789	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	290.00
REED GRACE ELLEN	357843	001B	М	PPA12345648674	0	0	1	0	0	0	96	96	1748.40
SMITH ELLA KATHE	357351	001BB	М	PPL5454518744	0	1020	0	4	4	0	0	4	9127.47
WATZ LUCY ELLEN	357648	001BB	R	123456789	0	0	0	0	0	0	52	52	338.80
WILSON MARTIN E	357677	001B	M	123456789	0	0	637	637	0	0	1	638	539.40
		AVER	AGE	FOR 6 CLAIMS	: .0	170.0	106.3	106.8	.7	.0	24.8	131.7	2138.41

Insurance Billing Time Analysis (Totals)

RUN DATE: 1/04/16 TIME: 10:15												
		DISC. MR FIN	ADMIT	SEND	DISC.	REC/DIS GEN			DISC. PAY	EXPECTED PAYMENT		
	PRIM/SEC:PRIM 2 CLAIMS:	.0	.0	319.0	318.5	.0	.0	48.5	367.0	1143.90		
	PRIM/SEC:PRIM 2 CLAIMS:	.0	510.0	.0	2.0	2.0	.0	26.0	28.0	4733.13		
	PRIM/SEC:PRIM 2 CLAIMS:	.0	.0	.0	.0	.0	.0	.0	.0	538.20		
	PRIM/SEC:ALL PF 6 CLAIMS:		170.0	106.3	106.8	.7	.0	24.8	131.7	2138.41		
	PRIM/SEC:ALL CI 6 CLAIMS:		170.0	106.3	106.8	.7	.0	24.8	131.7	2138.41		

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Insurance: Pulls from Policy Information.
- Patient: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number: Pulls the Patient Control Number from the Claims Status screen.
- Subscriber: Pulls the Subscriber Name from the Policy Information screen.
- Srv (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Contract #: Pulls from Policy Information.
- **Disc MR Fin:** This column is the number of days between the Discharge date and the Medical Record finish date.
- Admit Sent: This column is the number of days between the Admission Date and the date the approval was sent.
- Send Recd: This column is the number of days between the Approval Sent date and the Approval Received date.
- **Disc Gen:** This column is the number of days between the Discharge Date and date the claim was generated.
- **Rec/Dis Gen:** If the Approval has not been received before the Discharge date, then it is the number of days between the Approval Received date and the date of Generation. If Approval has been received then it is the number of days between the Discharge date and the date of generation.
- Gen Bill: This column is the number of days between the Generation date and the date the claim was billed.
- Bill Pay: This column is the number of days between the Billed date and Payment Received date.
- **Disc Pay:** This column is the number of days between the Discharge date and Payment Received date.
- Expected Payment: The expected pay amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.

10.13 Insurance Adjustments To A/R

The Insurance Adjustments to A/R report offers the ability to make G/L entries to the Accounts Receivable and Contractual Adjustment accounts in order to reflect a more realistic A/R balance on financials. The report estimates the Contractual Adjustment for claims in the Billed but Unpaid status and may include claims in the Ready to Bill status. The Contractual Adjustment may be estimated in several ways depending on how the Contractual Method field on page 6 of the Insurance Company table and the Current P/D Rate, Contractual %, Contractual GL and Other AR GL# fields on page1 of the Insurance Company table are set.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Insurance Adjustments to A/R.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Include claims that are at the ready to bill stage:"

5. Select this option to have the report include claims at the Ready to Bill status. Leave blank to omit claims at the Ready to Bill status from the report.

System prompts, "Enter Insurance Companies (Blank for All):"

6. Enter up to 10 Financial class codes to print to the report. Enter **ALL** to run report for all financial classes.

System prompts, "As of date:"

208 Insurance User Guide

7. Select an "As of date." G/L Transactions may only be created if the last day of the month is used. This report will allow the system to be back-dated up to 31 days. It will also allow a future date to be entered up to seven days. This report will pull claims with a Billed date that is less than the as of date or a Paid date that is greater than the as of date.

System prompts, "Generate:"

8. Select generate to start the process.

System prompts, "Summarize by Discharge Month?:"

9. If this field is selected, the detail under each financial class will be sub-sorted by discharge date with a subtotal for every month with activity.

System prompts, "Include inhouse accounts:"

10. If this field is selected, the system will include any accounts not yet discharged.

System prompts, "Print:"

11.Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

System prompts, "Do you want to generate G/L Entries?:"

12.If **Yes** is selected, the system creates journal entries for the A/R account and the Contractual Adjustment account on the last day of the month and creates reversing entries on the first day of the following month.

After creating the entries, it will be necessary to enter the GL system and post the transactions to permanent file. The edit list must be run from the same terminal that created the entries.

Description and Usage

The Insurance Adjustments to A/R report provides an alpha list by insurance company of all claims at the Billed and Ready to Bill (if included) status.

The report also gives the Contractual G/L and Other G/L numbers based on what is loaded on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. The Expected Pay, Reimbursement, Contractual amount, Length of Stay and DRG are reported, and the last page of the report gives a summarized break down by G/L number.

Insurance Adjustments To A/R

RUN DATE: 04/26/15 TIME: 09:03	INSURANCE ADJUSTING ENTRIES TO A AS OF 03/31/15	/R G/L ACCOUNT	PAGE 3 H5ISADJP
INSURANCE B BLUE CROSS - INPATIENT	CONT/GL OTH/GL 20100000 20000000		
NUMBER NAME 000270 BUSCHMANN BRUCE 081091 LEE LUCY A 100120 BROWN ANNA MARY	BILL-DATE EXPECT-PAY REIMB. CONTR. A 03/01/12 15370.27 58050.00 42679. 03/23/12 58800.00 64680.00 5880. 02/21/12 .00 .00 .	73 125	
* * * T O T A L * * *	74170.27 122730.00 48559.	73 756	

- **Insurance:** Pulls from Policy Information.
- Cont/GL (Contractual GL Number): Pulls from the Contractual GL# field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table.
- Oth/GL (Other GL Number): Pulls from the Other AR GL# field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Bill-Date:** Pulls from Insurance Claim Status screen. If the claim is at a Ready to Bill status the bill date will be the claim generation date.
- Expect-Pay: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Reim (Reimbursement): To determine the Reimbursement for this report, the system will look to the Contractual Method field on page 6 of the Insurance Company table. Enter D for Per Diem to have the Current P/D Rate field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table to be used to determine Reimbursement. Enter P for Percent Discount to use the Contractual % field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table. For APC claims, Reimbursement and Contractual amounts will pull from the APC Detail screen of the claim. This field will default to N, which will use the following hierarchy:
 - 1. Current per diem (Insurance Company table, page 1, Current P/D Rate field).
 - 2. Contractual % (Insurance Company table, page 1 Contractual % field)-The Hospital will need to estimate the percentage it collects (not what is written off) from a particular insurance company. This percentage figure is entered in the Contractual % field on page 1 of the Insurance Company table and is multiplied by the Expected Pay to determine the Reimbursement.
 - 3. Computed DRG (Medical Records Grouper Screen)
 - 4. Claim's Expected Pay (Insurance Claim Status Screen)
- Contr Amt (Contractual Adjustment Amount): The difference between the Expected Pay and the Reimbursement will be the Contractual Adjustment.
- LOS (Length of Stay): This column shows the actual length of stay.
- **DRG:** The computed DRG pulls from the Medical Records Grouper screen.

210	Insurance User Guide	
		Ī

The last page of this report will give a break down of what will be posted to the General Ledger. The system will list the General Ledger account number and description along with the amount to be debited or credited. The system will also provide a Total line. The Debit and Credit amount in this line should match.

10.14 Billed But Unpaid & A/R Balance = 0

The Billed but Unpaid & A/R Balance = 0 report is used by the Business Office to reduce the number of claims with a zero balance on the Billed but Unpaid report.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Billed But Unpaid & A/R Balance = 0.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Update run"

5. If blank the system will print an edit report with all insurance claims with a zero A/R balance. Select this option for the system to stop on every claim with a zero A/R balance and prompt "Reject".

System prompts, "Exclude financial classes:"

6. Enter the financial classes to exclude from this report.

7. Select Continue.

If the Update option is selected, the system will stop on every claim with a zero A/R balance. The system will prompt, "Yes, No or Reject All".

8. Selecting **Yes** will reject the current claim. **No** will not reject the claim. **Reject All** will reject the current claim and the remainder of claims to the end of the file.

Description and Usage

The Billed but Unpaid & A/R Balance = 0 report should first be run as an edit to determine which accounts to reject and then as an update to actually reject those selected accounts. This report should be run on a weekly basis prior to working the Billed but Unpaid report in order to keep that report as clean as possible.

The edit version is an alpha listing of accounts that have a claim at the pending or billed status with an A/R balance of zero. The update version is an alpha listing of accounts with a pending or billed claim that has been rejected. The report lists the patient account number, patient name, insurance, whether the claim is primary or secondary, the billed date and the expected pay amount.

Billed But Unpaid & A/R Balance = 0

RUN DATE 10/31/15 TIME 13:59	BILLED BUT	UNPAID	INSURANCE	*UPDATE* WITH ZERO A/R BALANCE	PAGE 1 H5ISUNPDZ
NUMBER NAME	INS PRIM	SRV	BILLED	EXPECTED PAY	
357227 BASS EARNEST T	CB Y	0	8/06/15	80.00 REJECTED	
356841 BLACKWELL CHARLES	BB N	L	2/29/15	75.63 REJECTED	
356866 BOURNE STEVE	MB Y	E	2/29/15	163.00 REJECTED	
356882 BOURNE STEVE	MB Y	L E O	2/29/15	3005.00	
356874 BROWN JONATHON	BB Y	0	2/29/15	200.51 REJECTED	
357104 BRYARS CARLEEN	ΜY			191.00	
	BB Y	0		454.25 REJECTED	
352221 GREEN JOE	ΒY	М	4/17/15		
	BB N	М		284.36 REJECTED	
300940 GREEN MAXINE	в 3	S O E E E	4/16/15	7896.25	
313504 HAS ROSA M	MB N	0	4/04/15	741.00	
357087 MILFORD FELICIA	BB Y	E	9/07/15	25.00 REJECTED	
357130 NICHOLAS SPARKS	BB Y	E	1/24/15	82.36	
480164 OLSON LORAINE	BB 2	E	1/12/15	741.36	
480164 OLSON LORAINE	MB Y	0	1/12/15	1236.52	
	BB Y		2/29/15	635.00	
	MB Y	0	8/06/15	852.25	
356881 ROGERS CHARLIE C	BB Y	E	2/29/15	1452.63	

- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Prim (Primary Switch): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Billed: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Expected Pay: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.

10.15 Billed Claims By Date Range

The Billed Claims By Date Range report will pull claims with a billed date that is within the date range entered.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Billed Claims By Date Range.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Enter beginning billed date:" and "Enter ending billed date:"

5. Enter the billing date range for the report.

System prompts, "Include specific financial classes: (Blank for All)"

6. Enter up to 20 financial class codes or leave blank for the report to run for all financial classes. This field may be wildcarded.

System prompts, "Exclude specific financial classes: (Blank for None)"

7. Enter up to 20 financial class codes to exclude from this report. This field may be wildcarded.

System prompts, "Select claim type:"

8. Use the drop-down box to select **All**, **Electronic Claims**, **Paper** or **Unprinted**. If All is selected the report will page break by section with subtotals and a grand total at the end of the report.

System prompts, "Select primary switch:"

9. Use the drop-down box to select **Primary** to report only Primary claims, **Secondary** to report only Secondary claims, or **All** to report Primary and Secondary claims.

System prompts, "Exclude Bill Types: (Blank for None)"

10. Enter up to 20 Bill Types to exclude from this report. This field may be wildcarded.

11.Select Print.

Description and Usage

Billed Claims By Date Range

RUN DATE: 08/30/ TIME: 13:59													
INS PRI PATIENT CD SW NUMBER	PATIENT NAME	SV CD	ADMIT DATE	DISCH DATE	SERVIC FROM	E TO	TOTAL CHARGES	DATE	.ED AMOUNT	CD			
BB Y 13132558 BB 2 13156982 BB Y 13132144 BB Y 13132145 BB Y 13132145 BB Y 13156984 BB Y 13136954	SANDERS J WESLEY KERVIN DEBORAH HOLBERG C TONY DALE D JOAN DALE JONATHAN VANS PATRICK GIBSON L BRIDGET S FOR BB ***	ER ER O ER O ER	07/20/15 06/22/15 04/29/15 05/31/15 05/31/15 06/01/15 06/01/15 CLAIMS	07/20/15 06/22/15 00/00/00 05/31/15 05/31/15 06/21/15 06/08/15 5: 32	07/18/15 06/22/15 04/29/15 05/31/15 05/31/15 06/01/15 06/01/15	07/18/15 06/22/15 05/01/15 05/31/15 05/31/15 06/21/15 06/08/15	440.00 123.00 2508.26 405.00 998.65 1056.23 765.00 271,015.96	07/20/15 08/24/15 08/02/15 07/11/15 07/11/15 07/20/15 07/26/15 215	1919.45 405.00 998.65 1056.23	E* E E* E* E* E* E*			

- Ins Cd: Pulls from Policy Information. This indicates whether the insurance is primary or secondary.
- Pri Sw (Primary Switch): Pulls a Y for Primary, 2 for Secondary or 3 for Tertiary.
- Patient Number: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Disc Date (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Service From/To: Specifies the start and stop date the claim was generated, from the insurance claim status screen.
- Tot-Charges: This column lists the Total Charges on the Account Detail.
- Billed Date: The billed date of the claim.
- **Billed Amount:** For Billed claims, the Expected Pay amount pulls. For Paid or Rejected claims, the Total Charges amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- CD:
 - This column should be an E if the Ready to Bill field on the Detail Charges screen is set to Yes or No and Elec. Bill is set to Yes. An asterisk (*) will pull next to the E if there is an Electronic Billed Date.
 - A **P** indicates that the Ready to Bill field on the Detail Charges Screen is set to **Yes** and Elec. Bill is set to **No**.
 - A U if the Ready to Bill field on the Detail Charges Screen and Elec. Bill is set to No.

10.16 Claim Reimbursement Report

The Claim Reimbursement Report will give an estimated expected reimbursement by using totals from unbilled and/or unpaid claims. This report will break by financial class listing all accounts and totals for each.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Claim Reimbursement Report.

System prompts, "Claim Types:"

4. Select **Unbilled**, **Unpaid** or **Both**.

System prompts, "Claim delimiter:"

5. Select All Payors, Selected Insurances or All Claims.

If the above prompt is answered **Selected Insurances**, the system will prompt, "Enter Insurance Companies, (Blank for All):"

- 6. Enter the desired financial class codes.
- 7. Select Generate.

Description and Usage

Claim Reimbursement Report

RUN DATE: 05/23/15 TIME: 09:18	ALL	UNPAI	D CLAIM	5	CLAIM	REIMBURS	SEMENT	REPORT	FOR M	FROM MEDICARE	CLAIM REIM	FILE	PAGE 216 H5ISCRP
PATIENT NAME/NUM DRG ADKINS ETHEL	TOT CHGS	NCOV CHGS	CO-INS RATE	BASIC REIM	OUTLIE REIM	R DISCOUNT	COV RATIO	COV REIM	DEDUCT	CO-INS AMT	PAYOR RESP	PAT. NCOV	PAT. RESP
416242	365.50	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	1.00	.00	44.23	91.03	135.26-	.00	135.26
TOTALS	365.50			.00		.00			44.23		135.26-		135.26

- Patient Name/Num: The patient's name pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- DRG: The DRG pulls from Medical Records Grouper screen.
- Tot Chgs (Total Charges): This column lists the Total Charges on the insurance claim.
- Ncov Chgs (Total Charges): The non-covered charges pull from the Detail Charges screen.
- Co-Ins Rate (Co-Insurance Rate): Pulls from Detail Benefits screen.
- Basic Reim (Basic Reimbursement): This is the Payment Amount entered in receipting.
- Outlier Reim Discount (Outlier Reimbursement Discount): Pulls from AHIS page 5.
- Cov Ratio (Covered Ratio): This is the Covered Days in Detail Benefits.
- Cov Reim (Covered Reimbursement: This is the Payment Amount entered in receipting.
- Deduct (Deductible): The deductible amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Co-Ins Amt (Co-Insurance Amount): The copay amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Payor Resp (Payor Responsibility): This is the Payment Amount entered in receipting.
- Pat. Ncov (Patient Non-Covered): Pulls from the Detail Benefits screen.
- Pat. Resp(Patient Responsibility): Amount due from patient.

10.17 Create Claims By Charge Period

Create Claims by Charge Period is used by the Business Office to generate interim bills.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Create Claims by Charge Period.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Begin Date:" and "End Date:"

5. Enter the date range for the report. If CCBCP Gen by Svs Dates field on page 1 of AHIS is set to **N** system will look at AR Date range instead of Service Date range.

System prompts, "Starting Account Number (Blank for all):"

6. Enter a starting account number and the report will begin printing. Leave blank to have the report print for all accounts.

System prompts, "Starting Insurance Company (Blank for all) (*H* for All Home Health):"

7. Enter a financial class code for which the report will run. Leave blank if report will run for all financial classes.

System prompts, "Generate:"

8. Select this option to begin the printing process.

System prompts, "Patient Types (Leave all blank for 2-5):"

9. Enter the stay types for which the report will run. Leave blank to pull stay types 2-5 to the report.

System prompts, "Exclude F/C's:"

10. If this prompt is selected, enter up to 5 F/C'S to exclude.

System prompts, "Run As Update:"

11. Selecting this prompt will generate the claims to the Ready To Bill Status. If this box is not selected, an edit report will print with the claims that meet the criteria to generate to the Ready To Bill Status.

System prompts, "Print:"

12. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

System prompts, "Do you wish to identify duplicate dates of service?:"

13. If this prompt is selected **Yes** the system will identify patients with the same Social Security Number during the same billing cycle.

Description and Usage

Create Claims by Charge Period is used for the interim claims for long term and/or recurring patients. This will generate claims for accounts without a discharge date and advance it to the Ready to Bill status, based on the above prompts.

TruBridge recommends that claims meet the following criteria when utilizing the Create Claims by Charge Period program:

- The patient Stay Type entered in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen should be 2, 3, 4 or 5.
- The account should be assigned a cycle code of 5 or 6 in the Guarantor/Ins tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- The account should not have a discharge date in the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- The Financial Class should have a "B" in the second position to represent an Outpatient claim. **TruBridge** suggests the Financial Class code be three characters ending with "R", to represent a Recurring Financial Class, for example MBR, CBR, BBR.

NOTE: The above criteria will not determine if a claim falls into the Create Claims by Charge Period program.

In addition to the recommended settings, the following criteria must be met in order for claims to fall into the Create Claims by Charge Period program:

- The account must have charges for the date range selected. The charge period is determined by the Service Date or the AR Date on the Account Detail. If the CCBCP Gen by SVS Dates field on page 1 of AHIS is set to N, the system will generate the insurance claim based on AR Date instead of Service Date. Please contact a TruBridge Software Representative before changing this option.
- Charges within the date range chosen will not pull to these claims if the charge is not covered by insurance. This is controlled in the Summary Code table.
- If a date is loaded in Date Care Ended, on the Detail Benefits screen, the Create Claims by Charge Period program will not create a claim for the account after that date.

The Exception Report follows the creating of claims and provides a list of patients that meet the above criteria but either the Medical Records Finish Date is not present on the account or the Medical Records Finish Date is not greater than the billed date of last months claim which causes no claim to be created. The report is numeric and page breaks by insurance company.

Exception Report

	: 01/11/15 : 15:28		CLAIMS E AS OF 12		PERIOD EXCEP	TION REPORT		PAGE 1 ISAGNP
INSURANC	E NUMBER PATIENT NAME	ADMIT DATE	LAST BILL DT	BILL AMT	SERVICE DESC.	PHYSICIAN	COMMENT	FINISH DATE
BBR.	BLUE CROSS RECUR							
PRI. PRI. PRI.	60013422 ANDREWS BOBBY T 60017519 LANDON LAWRENCE R 60016523 MURRAY TOMMY A	10/12/15 11/19/15 11/10/15	12/08/15 12/09/15 12/09/15	288.00 822.00 771.13	PHY THER PHY THER PHY THER	WILSON J SMITH C DOUGLAS D		10/23/15 11/24/15 11/13/15

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Ins (Insurance): The insurance pulls from Policy Information. This indicates whether the insurance is primary or secondary.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Last Bill Date: Pulls from the Claims by Patient screen.
- Bill Amt (Billed Amount): The expected pay amount pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Service Desc (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Physician: The attending physician pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Comment: Pulls from the Claim Status screen.
- Finish Date: Pulls from the Medical Records Grouper screen.

10.18 Secondary Billing Report

The Secondary Billing Report is used by the Business Office to list accounts that have a secondary claim when the primary has been paid within the date range selected.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Secondary Billing Report.
- 4. Select a print option.

220 Insurance User Guide

System prompts, "Beginning Receipt Date:" and "Ending Receipt Date:"

5. Enter the receipt date range for the report.

System prompts, "Print Paying Insurance Code?:"

- 6. If selected, the report will print the last paid insurance in the date range selected and print billed claims below. The report will print UB and 1500 claims on separate pages. If not selected, the report will print in the original format.
- 7. Select Generate to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Secondary Billing Report is a list of accounts that had a claim paid during the date range entered with another claim on the insurance screen. The additional claim must have an expected pay amount equal to zero. The report is a numeric listing of the secondary accounts, which page breaks by the primary Financial Class. The last page of the report gives a recap by insurance company with the total number of claims and the total billed amount for each.

The Secondary Billing Report should be printed and worked daily. Secondary Billing may also be automated. For further information on this, see Tables Affecting Insurance.

Secondary Billing Report

RUN DATE: 03/29/15 TIME: 08:58	INSURANCE SECONDARY BILLING REPORT ISSECBILP CLAIMS PAID FROM: 03/01/15 THRU: 03/01/15	
FINANCIAL CLASS: MB - MEDIC	ARE OUTPATIENT	
NUMBER NAME	BILLED SRV PRIM INS DATE AMOUNT CUR 30 60 90 SUBSCRIBER CONTRACT	# AR BALANCE
400108 APPON JOHN 401712 ACOFF VIVIAN 412702 MILLER EVAN 400089 WILSON JANSON 414297 ATKINS JENNY S 400509 CROSS FRANCIS 412599 SMITH JASON L	U Y MB 10.00 APPON JOHN 417424254 U 2 CB 110115 1102.00 X ACOFF VIVIAN J 2 XB1 031315 290.00 X MILLER GEORGE E Y MB 031115 25.00 X WILSON JANSON E 2 XB 1761.61 ATKINS JENNY A 2 CB2 031815 20.00 X CROSS FRANCIS V Y BP 032515 96.50- X TETTON JAMES 111112213	3A 10.00 1102.00 954.00 100.00 1751.56 330.00 L1 297.97
TOTALS 7		4545.53
RUN DATE: 03/29/15 TIME: 08:58	EVIDENT COMMUNITY HOSPITAL PAGE 11 INSURANCE SECONDARY BILLING REPORT ISSECBILP CLAIMS PAID FROM: 03/01/15 THRU: 03/01/15	
F/C CLAIMS A/R BALANCE B 1 230.00 BB 13 7970.17 CBA 3 2953.75 DB1 1 1323.00 MB 9 205433.53 MBR 2 55.00 X 1 .00 X1 1 22.00 XB2 1 270.00 XTA 2 15.00		
TOTAL 34 218272.45		

- Number (Account number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Primary (Primary Switch): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Ins (Insurance code): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Billed Date and Amount: Pulls from of the Detail Charges screen.
- Cur 30 60 90: This column ages the claim from the billed date.
- Subscriber: Pulls from Policy Information.
- Contract (Contract Number): Pulls from Policy Information.
- A/R Balance (Account Balance): Pulls from the patient's Account Detail.

10.19 Insurance Company Name-Address Labels For Last Printed Claims

The Insurance Company Name/Address Labels For Last Printed Claims option prints labels to be used when mailing claims.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Insurance Company Name-Address Labels.
- 4. Select a form version.
- 5. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Print Labels For Secondary Claims?"

- 6. Select this option to print labels for secondary claims. Leave blank if no labels are needed for secondary claims.
- 7. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Insurance Company Name/Address Labels For Last Printed Claims option prints labels to be used when mailing claims. The labels may be printed with the insurance company's name and address for claims that printed an insurance form in the last run printed. The address information pulls from the Insurance Company section of the claims' Policy Information screen.

Insurance Company Name/Address Labels

PRUDENTIAL INS CO AARP CLAIMS UNIT P O BOX 13999 PHILIDELPHIA PA 19187 COMMERCIAL - O/P 123 NORTH ST LOUISVILLE KY 44519 MEDICARE-I/P 450 RIVERCHASE RD BIRMINGHAM AL 39566-0123 MEDICARE O/P P O BOX 3824 NEW ORLEANS KS 66629 BLUE CROSS PO BOX 35 DURHAM NC 27702 MEDICARE RECURRING PO BOX 660 TX 75266-0030 DALLAS MEDICAID UB92 INPATIENT INVOICES P O BOX 19129 SPRINGFIELD IL 62794-9129

COMMERCIAL - O/P 123 NORTH ST LOUISVILLE KY 44519

10.20 Locked/Unlocked MDS Records

The Locked/Unlocked MDS Records report looks at the RAI (Resident Assessment Instrument) application and determines if the MDS (Minimum Data Set) is locked or unlocked.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Locked/Unlocked MDS Records.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Beginning Date:" and "Ending Date:"

5. Enter the date range for the report.

System prompts, "Print."

6. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Locked/Unlocked MDS Records report is similar to the Claims with Missing Information report, only showing if the account is locked or unlocked.

The RAI application drives the reimbursement process, but the software application files the claims for reimbursement. This report allows the two departments to communicate effectively to facilitate accurate and timely submittal of data to the separate reporting entities.

Locked/Unlocked MDS Records

	E: 04/11/15 E: 15:41				05 RECORDS 09/01/15	TO 11/03/1	PAGE 1 HSISLUMDS		
NUMBER	PATIENT NAME	ADMIT DATE	DISC DATE	PHYSICIAN	MDS DATE	ASSESS REF DATE	MDS LOCK DATE	RUG CODE TYPE OF ASSESSMENT	
706254 700166 700450 700450	HARMONY MARY BAXTER CARLEEN STEVE EDWARDS WILMINGTON KIMBERLY	10/21/15 10/22/11 10/01/11 10/01/15	10/22/11 10/02/15 10/02/15		10/25/11 10/10/15 10/10/15	10/26/11 10/27/11 10/12/15 10/12/15		PA152 MEDICARE 30 DAY ASSESSMENT	
700460 700461 700516	JOHNSON CONNIE HAYES BILLY PETER JENNIGNGS	10/19/15 10/22/15 11/01/15	10/22/15		11/03/15	10/12/15 11/05/15 11/18/15		RHB01 Medicare 5 day assessment	

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

• Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.

- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Disc Date (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Physician: The attending physician pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- MDS Date (Minimum Data Set): Pulls from the RAI application.
- Assess Ref Date (Assessment Reference Date): Pulls from the RAI application.
- MDS (Minimum Date Set): The MDS Lock Date is the date this account was locked. This pulls from the RAI application.
- **Rug Code (Resource Utilization Groups):** The code that is calculated for the MDS and pulls from the RAI application. This code is used when billing insurance.
- Type of Assessment: Pulls from the RAI application.

10.21 Secondary Billing Auto Reverse

The Secondary Billing Auto Reverse is used to automatically reverse the secondary claim once a payment has been made on the primary claim.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance Reports.
- 3. Select Secondary Billing Auto Reverse.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Beginning Receipt Date:" and "Ending Receipt Date:"

- 5. Enter the receipt date range for the report.
- 6. Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

System prompts, "Print EOB's?:"

 Select Yes to have the system print all EOB's posted during the date range entered in the same order that UB's print (Insurance Company table, page 6, Keep EOB information field must be set to Y).

Description and Usage

The Secondary Billing Auto Reverse report provides an automated means of billing secondary claims when the primary insurance has paid. When printing the report, the system searches through all paid claims with a payment type of "F" Paid in Full or "A" Apply to Deductible in the selected date range. The secondary claim will be reversed to the Ready to Bill status with an expected pay equal to the sum of the deductible, co-pay, coinsurance and non-covered amounts from the claim that was paid. The report will also denote if the reversed claim is marked as electronically billed. This will need to be set up for auto reversal in the Insurance Company table.

This report will also print an Exceptions Report of claims that did not auto reverse. The first section will provide a list of accounts that have claims that have not been reversed because the secondary claim's new calculated expected pay would equal zero. This would be in the case of a recurring account where the primary insurance paid for that date of service in full. The second section will provide a list of accounts that have claims that were not auto reversed for any other reason other than a calculated zero expect pay. This report should be reviewed to make sure that secondary claims are billed for the correct expected pay or manually rejected.

Secondary Billing Auto Reverse

	: 04/30/15 : 08:17		IN	5URA	NCE SE	PAGE 1 ISAUTOSEC					
					-PAID	CLAIM		REVERSED	CLAIM	PRINT	ELECT
NUMBER	NAME	SRV	INS	SET	PRIM	PAID-AMT	PAID-DT	INS SET PRIM	EXP-PAY	FORM	BILL
152574	DONNELL E BERT	+ M	М	2	Y	1800.00	01/07/15	в 22	1200.00	Y	Y
142896	EASTER B NELLY	M	м	1	Y	2456.25	01/10/15	C 1 2	2300.00	Y	Y
156890	FOSTER M FRANK	ER	MB	4	Y	.00	02/04/15	REJECTED			
169893	GILLES R DAVID	ER	MB	2	Y	.00	02/04/15	REJECTED			
160896	HANES SALLY	ER	MB	2	Y	.00	02/04/15	REJECTED			
160292	JAMES L KIMBERLY	OP	MB	1	Y	.00	02/04/15	REJECTED			
150994	MOORE CAROLINE	ER	MB	1	Y			REJECTED			
140491	NEWTON V JOHN	OP	MB	1	Y			REJECTED			

Secondary Billing Auto Reverse (Zero Expect Pay)

RUN DATE: 04/30/15 TIME: 08:17					CONDARY BILL Pay Claims	ING EXCEPT	IONS REPO	RT		AGE SAUTO	1 DSEC	
					PAID CLAIM					EX	CEPTIONS	
NUMBER NAME	SRV	INS S	SET P	RIM	TOT CHGS	PAID-AMT	PAID-DT	INS :	SET F	PRIM	TOT CHGS	AR BAL
150199 JOHNSON B ERICA	OP	BB	1	Y	75.00	65.00	03/05/15	XB	1	2	25.00	10.00
166391 KELLER M HRALEY	PT	MBR	1	Y	340.00	255.00	03/15/15	BBR	1	2	340.00	285.00
146392 KOMER K JERRY	PT	MBR	1	Y	395.12	195.12	03/12/15	BBR	1	2	45.00	58.00
166398 LAMB T MANNY	PT	MBR	1	Y	2056.20		03/12/15		-	2	71.20	71.20
156360 LONG R CYNTHIA T	ER	MB	1	Y	108.00	100.00	03/12/15	BBR	1	2	8.00	8.00
156192 REEVES K JEFFERY	ER	MB	1	Y	1145.00		03/12/15		1	2	145.00	145.00
160187 ROSTER HAROLD	OP	BB	1	Y	250.00	200.00	03/18/15	XB	1	2	250.00	50.00
150300 SMITH G BETTY	ER	BB2	1	Υ	850.00	800.00	04/01/15	SB	1	2	850.00	50.00

Secondary Billing Auto Reverse (Exceptions)

RUN DATE TIME	: 04/30/15 : 08:17		INS	SURAN	NCE SE	ECONDARY BIL	LING EXCEPT	TIONS REPO	ORT		AGE SAUTO	1 SEC	
						-PAID CLAIM-					EX	CEPTIONS	
NUMBER	NAME	SRV	INS	SET	PRIM	TOT CHGS	PAID-AMT	PAID-DT	INS	SET I	PRIM	TOT CHGS	AR BAL
163638	BAHLBERG KATHERINE	М	М	1	Y	588433.46	856325.36	02/08/15	в	1	2	588193.46	252604.91
156984	CLAPPER RIAN ELIZABETH	ER	BB	1	Y	32.00	22.00	02/18/15	MB	1	2	572.00	5609.00
149870	CLAPPER F SARHA	OP	BB	1	Y	456.00	431.00	02/19/15	MB	1	2	572.00	5609.00
165231	DOWNS N CARRIE	ER	BB	2	2	780.50	580.50	03/18/15	MB	1	3	1449.40	95.90
161158	EVENS H MONICA	ER	BB	2	2	780.50	580.50	03/18/15	MB	1	3	130.00	95.90
152235	LEWIS AVERY	OP	MB	1	Y	4200.00	3000.00	04/08/15	BB	1	2	666.00	1866.00
169447	MARKEY V JAKE	ER	MB	1	Y	4200.00	3000.00	04/08/15	BB	1	2	1000.00	1866.00
140168	MONT B SUSAN	OP	MB	1	Y	2060.00	450.00	04/23/15	BB	1	2	1060.00	1060.00
152247	NEVELL T AVERY	ER	MB	1	Y	1000.00	50.00	04/23/15	BB	1	2	1060.00	1060.00
156982	WILSON B MARK	ER	MB	ī	Ŷ	1305.00		04/24/15		1	2	3175.14	2787.14

- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from Policy Information.

Insurance User Guide

228

- Set: Refers to which claim has been paid. The system assigns a set number for each primary claim on the account. If there are more than one insurance claims with the same Financial Class code, the system will assign a set number of 1, 2, etc.
- Prim (Primary Switch): Pulls from the Policy Information screen on the paid claim.
- Paid Amt (Paid Amount): The actual payment of the claim. This includes the Reimbursement and the Contractual amount of the claim.
- Paid Dt (Paid Date): The date the claim was paid.
- Ins (Insurance Code): This column lists the insurance code of the claim that is reversed for secondary billing.
- Set: Refers to which claim has been reversed. The system assigns a set number for each secondary claim on the account. If there are more than one insurance claims with the same Financial Class code, the system will assign a set number of 1, 2, etc.
- Prim (Primary Switch): The primary switch of the reversed claim pulls from the Policy Information screen.
- Exp-Pay (Expected Pay): The sum of the deductible, co-pay, coinsurance, and non-covered amounts from the claim that was receipted. This is the new expected pay of the secondary claim.
- **Print Form:** The print form field of the reversed claim pulls from the Detail Charges screen. Depending on how Automated Sec Billing field of the Insurance Company table is set, the system will either select the Print Form field or leave it blank when the claim is reversed.
- Elect Bill: The Elect. Bill field of the reversed claims pulls from the Detail Charges screen. Depending on how Automated Sec Billing field of the Insurance Company table is set, the system will either select the Elect. Bill field or leave it blank when the claim is reversed.

10.22 APC Claims To Ready to Bill

The APC Claims to Ready-to-Bill report should be run daily as part of the Insurance daily procedures. This option moves APC claims with a Medical Record Verified Date at the Unchecked Status to the Ready to Bill Status.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select APC Claims to Ready-to-Bill.

Description and Usage

The APC Claims to Ready-To-Bill report moves APC claims with a Medical Record Verified Date at the Unchecked Status to the Ready to Bill Status. This report should be run daily and will list each APC claim that was moved to the Ready to Bill Status.

APC Claims To Ready-To-Bill

RUN	DATE: 11/22/15 TIME: 10:25	Insurance Move APC Claims to Ready-To-Bill	PAGE 1 ISAPCRTB
		Insurance Move APC Claims to Ready-To-Bill NUMBER FROM THRU VERIFIED TOT-CHARGES EXPECT-PAY 701668 11/11/15 11/11/15 11/22/15 269.75 269.75 701071 10/18/15 10/18/15 11/22/15 419.26 419.26 701230 11/06/15 11/06/15 11/21/15 125.05 125.05 701216 11/17/15 11/18/15 11/21/15 62.50 62.50 701216 11/17/15 11/18/15 11/21/15 92.75 702.75 701468 11/02/15 11/22/15 568.02 568.02 708.02 701251 11/03/15 11/21/15 92.75 92.75 701246 11/15/15 11/21/15 92.75 702.75 701241 11/18/15 11/21/15 92.75 92.75 701246 11/15/15 11/21/15 623.02 623.02 623.02 701238 11/18/15 11/22/15 87.23 87.23 87.23 701611 11/16/15	
MB	WILLIAMS BRENDA N WILLIAMS RONALD JR TOTAL CLAIMS 16	701327 11/16/15 11/16/15 11/22/15 231.50 231.50 12241.68 12241.68	

- Ins (Insurance Code): This column lists the Financial Class code of the APC claim.
- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.

- From: The Service From date is the beginning date of service for the claim and pulls from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- Thru: The Service Thru date is the end date of service for the claim and pulls from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- Verified: The Medical Records Verified Date pulls from the Medical Records Insurance Modifier Maintenance screen.
- Tot-Charges: This column lists the Total Charges on the insurance claim.
- Expect-Pay: This column lists the Expected Pay on the insurance claim.

10.23 Unbilled Insurance Report

The Unbilled Insurance report provides a complete listing of all insurance claims that have not been billed.

NOTE: This report is also available in the Report Writer format on the Report Dashboard. Please refer to the <u>Unbilled Insurance Report - Report Writer</u> [267] topic in the Report Dashboard section of this user guide.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Unbilled Insurance Report.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts "Sort By:"

- 5. Select a sort option. The options include:
 - a Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins
 - **b** Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd
 - c Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins
 - d Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha
- e Ins-Alpha-ServCd
- f Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha
- g Status-Alpha-Serv Cd
- h Reason Cd-Alpha-Ins

System prompts, "Enter stay types (Blank for ALL):"

6. Up to five Stay Types may be entered or all Stay Types may be reported by leaving this option blank.

System prompts, "Enter service codes (Blank for ALL):"

7. Up to ten service codes may be entered or all may be reported by leaving this option blank.

System prompts, "Include blank codes?:"

Printed Reports	231

232 Insurance User Guide

8. If selected, accounts without service codes will pull to the report. If blank, accounts without service codes will not print on the report.

System prompts, "Primary, Secondary or Both:"

9. Use the drop-down box to select **P** to report only Primary claims, **S** to report only Secondary claims or **B** to report Primary and Secondary claims.

System prompts, "Report Type:"

- 10.Use the drop-down box to select **Details** or **Totals**. If Totals is selected, a 1-page summary of the number of accounts, total charges, total balances and expected pay for the specified accounts will print. If Details is selected, detailed information will print for each patient number followed by a Grand Totals page.
- 11.Select Generate to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Unbilled Insurance report provides a listing of all insurance claims that have not been billed. It will pull a reason code for not being billed as well as the comment listed on the Insurance Claim Status screen.

Unbilled Insurance Report

RUN-DATE: 05/29/15 TIME: 08:57	REPOR	UNBILLED INSURANCE REPORT TYPE: Detailed CLAIM TYPES: All Claims									AGE UNBIL	1 ሆ
PATIENT NAME	ACCT #	ADMIT DT	DISCH DT	TOTAL CHGS	ACCT BAL	INS	EXPECT PAY	CLAIM STATUS	STAY	LOS	SVC	REASON
ADAMS RANDY ALLEN PATRICK K COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM)	414391 357987	05/14/15 05/18/15 (APC)	CURR ACC 05/18/15	900.40 303.35	900.40 303.35	B MB	0.00 303.35	UNAPPROVED UNCHECKED	1 2	15 1	м	D U
BARNES HEATHER COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM)	414090		04/10/15	814.55	814.55	MB	739.55	UNCHECKED	2	1		U
EDLUND MELVIN COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM)	322373 413989	03/27/15 03/01/15	03/27/15 03/01/15	280.50 344.60	280.50 344.60	BB MB	280.50 166.45	UNCHECKED UNCHECKED	3 2	1 1	М	U U
FLANDERS OLÂN FRANKLIN RONALD M FREEMAN NICHOLAS R HALLMAN MICHAEL	123123 414138 463022 414107	05/01/15 05/03/15 04/04/15 05/10/15	CURR ACC CURR ACC 04/04/15 05/10/15	39.00 9863.75 831.00 1015.00	39.00 9863.75 831.00 1015.00	M M XB MB1	0.00 0.00 831.00 1015.00	UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNCHECKED READY TO BILL	1 1 2 3	28 26 1 1	7	D D U R
COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM) HALLMAN STEPHEN COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM)	414115	05/10/15	05/10/15	1015.00	1015.00	MB 2	1015.00	READY TO BILL	3	1	7	R
HALLMAN TERRY COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM)	414108	03/31/15	04/01/15	411.00	411.00	MB1	220.00	UNCHECKED	3	1	7	U
COMMENTSS CAPE CLAIM) JONES JIM MAURIN CATHERINE M PARKER GARRY PHILLIPS CAMMIE RAHWAY LYDIA COMMENTS: (APC CLAIM)	414457 414048 413854 654987 414087	05/22/15 03/28/15 02/19/15 05/03/15 04/11/15	CURR ACC 03/30/15 02/19/15 CURR ACC 04/11/15	230.00 8.25 30.00 4953.00 162.00	230.00 8.25 30.00 4953.00 162.00	S B B B MB	0.00 0.00 30.00 0.00 162.00	UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNCHECKED UNAPPROVED UNCHECKED	1 1 2 1 2	7 2 1 26 1		D U D U
RUSTAND FELECIA SMILEY RICKY SMITH JOHN SMITH MARY SMITH MARY SMITH PATRICIA SMITH ROBERT THOMAS ELIZABETH M WILLOWS CATHERINE M	413906 414454 413806 413806 357709 357709 414229 413752 357950 357950 413896	02/28/15 05/21/15 02/10/15 01/12/15 01/12/15 04/26/15 05/21/15 05/21/15 05/21/15 05/03/15	CURR ACC CURR ACC 02/11/15 01/16/15 01/16/15 05/04/15 05/04/15 05/21/15 05/21/15 CURR ACC	764.00 39.00 1055.00 809.60 809.60 1177.45 125.00 436.60 436.60 4382.40	764.00 39.00 1055.00 809.60 1177.45 125.00 436.60 4382.40	B C8 C6 C W M CB3 BB C1	0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 0.00 416.60 20.00 0.00	UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED UNAPPROVED READY TO BILL READY TO BILL UNAPPROVED	1111112221	90 8 11 4 4 8 11 1 26	E	DD H M H H H M R R D

Unbilled Insurance Report (Totals)

RUN-DATE: 05/29/15 TIME: 08:57	REPORT TYPE: Detailed	UNBILLED INSURAN	CE CLAIM TYPES: A	II Claims	PAGE 2 ISUNBILLP
	NUMBER OF ACCOUNTS	TOTAL CHARGES	TOTAL BALANCES	EXPECTED PAY	
PATIENTS NOT YET DISCHARGE < 8 DAYS SINCE DISCHARG 8-14 DAYS SINCE DISCHARG 15-21 DAYS SINCE DISCHARG 22-28 DAYS SINCE DISCHARG > 28 DAYS SINCE DISCHARG	E 0 E 2 E 2 E 1	7039.45 0.00 1177.45 2030.00 873.20 21171.55	7039.45 0.00 1177.45 2030.00 873.20 21171.55	2732.85 0.00 2030.00 436.60 0.00	
TOTAL	.5 28	32291.65	32291.65	5199.45	

- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Admit Dt (Admit Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Disch Dt (Discharge Date): Pulls from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Total Chgs (Total Charges): The total amount charged to the patient account.
- Acct Bal (Account Balance): Pulls from the Patient Account Detail screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): This column lists the Insurance code of the claim that is set up in the Insurance Claims by Patient screen but is not at a Billed, Paid or Rejected status.
- Expect Pay (Expected Pay): Pulls from the Detail Charge screen for that claim.
- Claim Status: Pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Stay (Patient Stay Type): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- LOS (Length of Stay): Is calculated as Discharge Date minus Admit Date. If the patient has not been discharged, it is calculated as Run-Date minus Admit Date.
- Serv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Reason: The Reason Code is determined by the system. The codes are as follows:
 - A Patient has not been admitted
 - **D** Patient has not been discharged
 - **G** Insurance has not been generated
 - I Insurance has not been verified (Policy Information "Received" is blank
 - M Medical Records has not coded or verified the account
 - **R** Claim is Ready to Bill
 - U Claim is Unchecked
 - P Claim is Pending
- Comments: Comments pull from the Insurance Claim Status screen.

- Totals: Totals are based on the number of days between discharge date and the date of the report.
- Number of Accounts: The total number of accounts reported.
- Total Charges: The total amount of the Total Charges column.
- Total Balances: The total amount of the Account Balance column.
- Expected Pay: The total amount of the Expected Pay column.

10.24 Crossover Forms Auto Reverse

For states that must submit state-specific forms for Medicaid claims that are crossing over from Medicare this report will be utilized.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Crossover Forms Auto Reverse Report.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Beginning Receipt Date:"

5. Enter the receipt date to begin printing the report.

System prompts, "Minimum days since receipt: will include payments before MMDDYY:"

6. A number of days can be entered or return will pull zero days. The date payments will be included before will display.

System prompts, "Receipted insurance code: Blank for all, wildcarding Ok:"

7. Leave blank for all financial classes or up to 5 financial classes may be entered, using wildcarding if necessary.

System prompts, "Crossover insurance code: Blank for all, wildcarding Ok:"

8. Leave blank for all financial classes or up to 5 financial classes may be entered, using wildcarding if necessary.

System prompts, "Run type:"

9. Use the drop-down box to select "Print only" or "Update". "Print only" will print a list of paid claims, the claims that will be reversed, and if the crossover form will print. Entering "Update" will reverse the claims.

System prompts, "Print:"

10.Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

This report will print a list of receipted primary claims in the range specified and will check all other claims on the accounts to see if one or more has Auto Crossover selected with a Billed Date older than the minimum days. If the report is run as an "Update", the secondary crossover claims will be reversed, set to Ready to Bill, the Expected Pay updated and the Print Crossover field in Detail Charges selected. Only financial classes with Auto Crossover = **Y** on page 6 of the Insurance Company table set will actually be reversed, even when wildcarding is used.

Once the report has been run as an update, the claims are ready to be moved to the Billed status by printing the state-specific crossover forms through the Custom Reports Menu.

This report should be run daily to ensure the billing is current.

Crossover Forms Auto Reverse

236

TIME: 15:29	INSURANCE	CROSSOV	ER FOR	м АНТС	REVERSE	RUN TYPE:	PRINT O	NLY	ISAUTOX
		PA	ID CLA	IM		REVERSED	CLAIM-		PRINT
NUMBER NAME	INS	SET PRIM	PAI	D-AMT	PAID-DT	INS SET PRIM	I EXP	-PAY	FORM
329868 HODGE LILLIE J	MB	1 Y		.00	01/02/15	REJECTED			
329610 RESTER HAROLD M	MB	1 Y		.00	01/10/15	REJECTED			
300167 O'CAIN SHANELL	MB	1 Y			01/15/15				
331562 PARKER DON G	MB	1 Y			01/15/15				
300071 BRYAN JATAVIOUS	MB	1 Y			01/15/15				
332379 PHILLIPS KEITH	MB	1 Y			01/18/15				
331581 BURTON ROBERT	MB	1 Y			01/21/15				
330718 COOPER CRESSIE D	MB	1 Y			01/22/15				
330916 TIMMS STEPHEN M 330901 SPIVEY VONDA	MB	1 Y			01/22/15				
330750 RUSTAND HANNAH L	MB	1 Y 1 Y			01/22/15				
331189 MATHER ROSANNA	MB MB	1 Y 2 Y			01/22/15 01/24/15				
300182 THARNISH ADAM	MB	ĺΎ			01/24/15				
332360 DOMNING BRENDA	MB	ΊΎ			01/25/15				
332400 DOMNING BRENDA	MB	īΎ			01/25/15				
330784 BEDFORD FRANCES A	MB	ĪÝ			01/28/15				
300037 SUMMERLIN THERESA	MB	1 Y		.00	01/29/15	REJECTED			
330862 SUMMERLIN THERESA	MB	1 Y		.00	01/29/15	REJECTED			
330666 CORBETT JEFFERSON	G MB	1 Y		.00	01/30/15	REJECTED			
331603 COPELAND LORI	MB	1 Y			01/30/15				
331655 ADAMS WAUTINE	MB	1 Y			02/05/15				
300158 WILLIAMNS SAMUEL T		1 Y			02/06/15				
331150 BAGWELL JESSICA R	MB	1 Y			02/06/15				
332378 LAMB JOEY	MB	1 Y			02/06/15				
331319 BRINKMAN JOHN G 330566 STORER JOHN	MB MB	1 Y 1 Y			02/11/15 02/13/15				
330535 BRADLEY CAROLYN N	MB	1 Y			02/13/15				
332008 MARKS JESSICA	MB	1 Y			02/14/15				
331710 BRINSON DIANE W	MB	iγ			02/14/15				
330976 FRANKS SHIRLEY	MB	īΫ́			02/14/15				
331853 GIBSON PATRICIA	MB	Ī Ý			02/18/15				
328939 MALONE BESSIE R	MB	1 Y			02/19/15				
331251 MALONE BESSIE R	MB	1 Y		.00	02/19/15	REJECTED			
331590 STEPP WILLIAM	MB	1 Y			02/22/15				
U32415 STEPP WILLIAM	MB	1 Y			02/22/15				
300374 O'LEARY LILLIE A	MB	1 Y			02/26/15				
331601 BARNES SHARON F	MB	1 Y			02/26/15				
331809 RICHARDSON DIANE E		1 Y			02/27/15				
332014 RICHARDSON DIANE E 332168 RICHARDSON DIANE E		1 Y 1 Y			02/27/15 02/27/15				
332240 COREY JANICE	MB	1 Y			02/27/15				
331728 SIMMONS KEVIN	MB	1 Y			02/27/15				
330260 NELSON LANA	MB	iγ			02/28/15				
U32443 FRANSEN JOEY	MB	ΊΎ			03/01/15				
U32314 RIKARD LLOYD	MB	īΎ			03/05/15				
M40016 COLE DENISE	MB	1 Y			03/05/15				
331585 WILSON BARBARA	MB MB	1 Y			03/08/15				
332115 DUKES CALVIN	MB MB	1 Y			03/08/15				
U32435 ELLIOT JOEY		1 Y			03/11/15				
332050 MOCK ELIA	MB	1 Y		.00	03/11/15	REJECTED			

- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): The Financial Class code of the claim that was paid.
- Set: This field represents the sequence number of a particular financial class on a patient account. If there are multiple claims with the same financial class on the account, then the set number will indicate which of these claims was paid on.
- **Primary:** Pulls from the Policy Information screen.
- Paid Amount/Date: These fields pull from the Claim Reimbursement Information screen.

- Ins (Insurance Code): The Financial Class code of the claim that was auto reversed.
- Set: This field represents the sequence number of a particular financial class on a patient account. If there are multiple claims with the same financial class on the account, then the set number will indicate which of these claims was reversed.
- Primary: This field pulls from the Policy Information screen.
- Expected Pay: This field pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Print Form: This field pulls from the Detail Charges screen.

NOTE: The "Run Type" is reflected in the upper right of the header of the report.

10.25 Insurance Reimbursement Analysis

The Insurance Reimbursement Analysis Report is an optional report developed to provide reimbursement information on claims setup on patient accounts. This report will retain data for up to 365 days. If this report is used routinely, it is recommended that it be Spooled on a monthly basis and moved to ADR (permanent storage) in the Report Image System.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Ins. Reimbursement Analysis.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Discharge Date Range:"

5. Enter the desired range of patient discharge dates.

System prompts, "Print Payor Detail:"

6. If selected, the report will detail each patient's reimbursement information, as well as sub-totaling each financial class and grand totaling all financial classes. If this prompt is left blank, the report will print in a summarized format listing totals by financial class and the number of claims that contributed to that total. The report will give grand totals.

System prompts, "Payor: (Wildcard = *)"

7. Enter the desired financial class to pull to the report. Note the wildcard option (*) may be used. The system defaults to blank, which will pull reimbursement information for all financial classes during the date range selected.

System prompts, "Include Secondaries:"

8. Selecting this option includes secondary financial classes on the report only if "Read AR for Charges" is answered "N".

System prompts, "Include Pd/UnPd/Both:"

9. Use the drop-down box to select "Paid", "Unpaid" or "Both". The system defaults to pull both paid and unpaid claims. To include only paid claims, select "Paid". To include only unpaid claims, respond "Unpaid."

System prompts, "Include Rejected:"

10.Selecting this option includes rejected claims on the report. Leaving it blank will omit rejected claims from the report.

System prompts, "Read AR for Charges? Include Adj:"

11. If this field is selected the Total Charges figure that prints on the report will pull from the patient's Account Detail. If this field is blank, the Total Charges figure will pull from field Expected Pay of the patient's Detail Charges screen for that claim. If secondary claims are included on the report, this prompt should be blank. If "Include Adj." is selected, adjustment charges will pull to the total charges figure that prints on the report.

System prompts "Read AR for Receipts:"

12.Selecting this option indicates the Insurance Receipts, Contractual, Reimbursement, Co-Pay, Coinsurance and Deductible figures will pull from the patient's Account Detail. If this field is blank, those figures will pull from Receipt Information from the Insurance Claim Status screen. The Receipt Information screen can retain receipt information of up to 3 payments per claim. Therefore, if a site frequently receives more than 3 payments per claim for certain financial classes, then this field should be selected so it will read all receipt information from the Account Detail.

System Prompts, "Print:"

13.Select **Print** to begin the printing process.

Description and Usage

The Insurance Reimbursement Analysis Report shows patient name and account number, total charges, insurance receipts and contractual adjustments, as well as co-pay, co-insurance and deductible information. The report breaks by financial class.

This report may be utilized by the Business Office to compare estimated vs. actual reimbursement for the selected payor. Thus it is a "true-cash" report illustrating what actual dollar amount affected A/R.

Insurance Reimbursement Analysis

RUN DATE 08/02/15 RUN TIME 17:24	INSURANCE CO: MB1 FROM 01/03/15 THRU 0	8/02/15	REIMBURSEM	ENT ANALYSIS	(PAID ON (SECOND)	LY) ARY EXCLUE		AGE 11 SREIMANAL	
NAME	N UMB ER.	TOTAL CHARGES	IN SURANCE RECEIPTS	IN SUR CON TR	ANCE REIMB	CO-PAY	CO-INS	DEDUCT	LOS
CALVIN JOHN B MILLER SEBERT J SIMMONS SHAWN WILLIS BRUCE	004586 090707 800556 800557	1299.75 .00 775.00 500.00	1299.75 1463.13 400.00 400.00	.00 1557.74 100.00 100.00	1299.75 684.26 300.00 300.00	.00 191.98 20.00 20.00	.00 .00 30.00 30.00	.00 .00 10.00 10.00	1 1 1 1
Total: MEDICARE -0/P	(4 Claims)	2574.75	3562.88	1757.74	2584.01 231	.98 60	.00 20	.00 4	

- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.

240 Insurance User Guide

- Total Charges: If "Read AR for Charges" was selected when building the report, the Total Charges figure pulls from the patient's Account Detail. If that field was left blank, then the Total Charges figure pulls from "Expected Pay" of the patient's Detail Charges screen.
- **Insurance Receipts:** If "Read AR for Receipts" was selected when building the report, then the Insurance Receipts figure pulls from the patient's Account Detail. If that field was left blank, then the Insurance Receipts figure pulls from Receipt Information from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- **Insurance Contr/Reimb:** If "Read AR for Receipts" was selected when building the report, then the Insurance Contractual and Reimbursement figures pull from the patient's Account Detail. If that field was left blank, then the Insurance Contractual and Reimbursement figures pull from Receipt Information from the Insurance Claim Status screen.

NOTE: If Net Reimbursement is set to **N** (ICT p2), the report will pull the last reimbursement amount of payment. If the field is set to **Y** (as is the default), the report will pull all reimbursement amounts to the INSURANCE REIMB column.

- **Co-Pay:** If "Read AR for Receipts" was selected when building the report, then the Co-Pay figure pulls from the patient's Account Detail. If that field was left blank, then the Co-Pay figure pulls from Receipt Information from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- **Co-Ins:** If "Read AR for Receipts" was selected when building the report, then the Co-Pay figure pulls from the patient's Account Detail. If that field was left blank, then the Co-Pay figure pulls from Receipt Information from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- **Deduct:** If "Read AR for Receipts" was selected when building the report, then the Deductible figure pulls from the patient's Account Detail. If that field was left blank, then the Deductible figure pulls from Receipt Information from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- Los: Patient's length of stay reported in days.

10.26 Reject \$0 claims

The Reject \$0 claims report is used to reduce the number of claims with a zero dollar charge amount, eliminating unnecessary claims in the billing process.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Reject \$0 Claims.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Update run"

5. If blank the system will print an edit report with all insurance claims with a zero dollar charge amount.

6. Select Continue.

7. If the Update option is selected, the system will stop on every claim with a zero dollar charge amount. The system will prompt, "Yes, No or Reject All \$0 Claims".

8. Selecting **Yes** will reject the current claim. **No** will not reject the claim. **Reject All \$0 Claims** will reject the current claim and the remainder of claims to the end of the file.

Description and Usage

The Reject \$0 claims report should first be run as an edit to determine which claims to reject then as an update to actually reject those selected claims. This report should be run as often as needed to clean up unnecessary claims.

The edit version is an alpha listing of accounts that have a claim at the billed status with a a zero dollar charge amount. The update version is an alpha listing of accounts with a billed claim that has been rejected or is still outstanding, dependent upon how prompts were answered. The report lists the patient account number, patient name, insurance, whether the claim is primary or secondary, service code, the billed date and the total charge amount.

Reject \$0 claims

RUN DATE TIME		BILLED IN	SURAN	CE C	LAIMS WITH	ZERO TOTAL	*UPDATE* CHARGES	PAGE XISREJTO	1 C
NUMBER 560021 560867 500153 503413 561470 561470 561471 561471 561472 562143 562144	NAME MCCASKEY DENISE ORGANT GANT O REID MICHELLE SHANNON DAVID WALKER BRAD WALKER BRAD WAN BROOKE WAN BROOKE WILIJAMS BOB WILSON AMY	INS M BB MB1 CB MB BB BB BB MB	PRIM Y 2 Y			DTAL CHARGE .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00 .00	REJECTED REJECTED REJECTED REJECTED	AISKEJI	
561473 571959	YOUNG MARY ZORTMAN SHARON LYNN	MB BB CB	Y 2	P W	12/07/15 12/07/15 9/22/15	.00	REJECTED REJECTED REJECTED		

- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Name (Patient Name): Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Prim (Primary Switch): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Srv (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Billed: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Total Charges: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
10.27 Pending Claims

The Pending Claims report lists all Insurance claims at the Pending status.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection Screen
- 2. Select Insurance
- 3. Select Pending Claims

System prompts, "Facility:"

4. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "As of Date:"

5. Use the drop-down box to select a date, or choose Manual Selection to enter a date manually. This date is used to determine the aging of the insurance claim.

System prompts, "Primary Switch:"

6. Select **Primary** to print only Primary claims. Select **Secondary** to print only Secondary claims. Leave blank or select **Both** to print the Primary and Secondary claims.

System prompts, "Expected Pay Range:"

7. Enter the range of dollar amounts for the Expected Pay the report will print or leave blank for all claims with an Expected Pay to print to the report.

System prompts, "Insurance Code:"

8. Enter the desired financial class. Use * to wildcard insurance companies or leave blank to print for all financial classes.

System prompts, "Service:"

9. Enter the desired Service Code. Leave blank to print all Service Codes.

System prompts, "Claim Type:"

10. Select **Electronic** to print claims at the Pending status that have the Elect box selected in the Detail Charges screen. Select **Unprinted** to print claims at the Pending status that have both the Elect and Print box unselected in Detail Charges screen. Select **All** to print both Electronic and Unprinted claims.

System prompts "Aging Selection:"

Insurance User Guide 244

- 11. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options or leave blank to print all aging selections:
 - Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90

System prompts, "Sections to Exclude"

12. Select one or more of the following desired sections to exclude or leave blank to print all: Exclude Insurance Summary Exclude Grand Totals

System prompts, "Level of Detail:"

13. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options:

Detail
Summary
Report Summary Only

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet"

14. Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Safe Mode:"

15. Select this option if the report would not build due to bad data being in a field. If the report has bad data, a message will appear stating to run report using the Safe Mode. If selected, Safe Mode will replace all of the bad characters with a ?. This will allow the intended report to generate. The bad data may then be seen and can be corrected from the account level.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

- 16. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:
 - HTML PDF XML CSV MAPLIST

System prompts, "Run Report"

17. Select **Run Report** to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Pending Claims report provides a listing by insurance of all Pending insurance claims. Financial Classes that do not have any pending claims or claims that do not meet the report's criteria are excluded. The report lists insurance code, primary switch, patient account number, patient name, service code, admit date, discharge date, pending date, aging selections, print form and elect bill.

The aging selections are Current, Over 30, Over 60 and Over 90 days. The last page of the report lists the Insurance Summary with an aging breakdown of total dollars for each insurance company in each aging column followed by a breakdown of total expected pay for each insurance company.

The Report Writer application allows the user to filter, sort and manipulate this report to customize the data extracted out of the system. See the additional documentation on Report Writer for more information on these options.

Pending Claims

01/04/2016									1
13:18			I	Insurance Pend	ding Claims			ins_	pending_claims.template
				As of Date: 0	1/04/2016				
			I	nsurance - MEI	DICAID-O/P				
Ins Account		Service	Admit	Discharge	Pending		Insurance Age (Expect	ed Pay)	Print Elect
Code Prim Number	Patient Name	Code	Date	Date	Date	Cur	30	60	90 Form Bill
XB S 357910	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	ER	12/28/2015	12/28/2015	01/04/2016	120.00			ΥY
Insurance: XB	MEDICAID-O/P		Expected Pay:	120.0	0 Total Claims:	1			

Pending Claims (Grand Totals)

13:18			ce Pending Claims			ins_pending	g_claims.templa
		As of I					
		Insu	ance Summary				
Code	Name	Current	Over 30	Over 60	Over 90	Total	Claims
в	BLUE CROSS-I/P	3,926.60				3,926.60	2
BB	BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P	4.00				4.00	3
BBR	BLUE CROSS-RECURRING	622.00				622.00	2
М	MEDICARE-I/P	1,282.40				1,282.40	2
MB	MEDICARE OP	13.20				13.20	1
MB1	MEDICARE O/P C	0.00				0.00	1
MP	MEDICARE-PHYSICIAN	175.00				175.00	1
XB	MEDICAID-O/P	120.00				120.00	1
	Grand Totals	6,143.20				6,143.20	13

- Ins Code (Insurance Code): Pulls financial class code of the claim in Pending status from Policy Information screen
- Prim (Primary Switch): Indicates whether this is the Primary or Secondary claim, pulls from Policy Information screen
- Account Number: Pulls the patient's account number from the Registration and ADT screen

246 Insurance User Guide

- Patient Name: Pulls the patient's name from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen
- Service Code: Pulls the patient's service code from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen
- Admit Date: Pulls the patient's admit date from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen
- **Discharge Date**: Pulls the patient's discharge date from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen
- Pending Date: Date the claim was moved to Pending status, pulls from Detail Charges screen
- Cur (Current): The Expected Pay pulls to this column if the pending date is less than 30 days old.
- 30: The Expected Pay pulls to this column if the pending date is over 30 but less than 60 days old.
- 60: The Expected Pay pulls to this column if the pending date is over 60 but less than 90 days old.
- 90: The Expected Pay pulls to this column if the pending date is over 90 days old.
- Print Form: A Y pulls to this column if the Print Form box is selected in the Detail Charges screen.
- Elect Bill: A Y pulls to this column if the Elect Bill box is selected in the Detail Charges screen.

10.28 Journals

A file build will need to be performed prior to printing journals. Once the file build has been completed select how the journal will be sorted. The journals may be sorted by paid date, patient name or if neither is selected the journal will sort by patient account number. Refer to Insurance Journals for more information.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print Journal.

Description and Usage

Insurance Journals may be kept on any Financial Class desired. These journals are used to store information about specific Financial Class claims for audit and internal survey purposes. A more detailed description of the journals may be found in Printed Reports.

<u>Journals</u>

RUN DAT RUN TIM	E 06/30/15 E 13:53	CLAIMS PA: FROM 01/0: WITH PAYM	ID 1/12 THRU ENTS THRU	05/31/15	±≈ Δ[]	INSURAN	E JOURNAL0/P	MEDICARE	OP (ALL AGES)	PAG ISI	PRT
) PATI	1) E 13:53 ENT NAME			(2) SERVICE M TO	ADMIT	(3) DISCHARGE	T	(4) OTAL	(5) NON COV	(6) CONTRACT #	(7)
NUMBER.	NAME		FRO								
RDRD11 0- 0-	LASSITER COVERED DAYS MED-NECESSAR	FRANK S 5 O-NON Y DAYS	12/2 (10) 89 COV DAYS 0-CO-DAY	26/15 12/26/15 AUDIOLOGY TOTALS 'S 0-LIF	12/2/1 E-DAYS	5 12/26/15	(8) 7303.40 DR 1500	G 125 .00 1500.00	(9) 1500.00 REIM	(11) 1500.00-PAID -5803.40-ALLOV	36 1/10/15 F ANCE
964429 1-	WARREN KY COVERED DAYS MED-NECESSAR	'LIE 5 0-NON 1Y DAYS	9/01 39 COV DAYS 0-CO-DAY	L/15 9/01/15 BIRTHING.CENT 5 TOTALS 7S 0-LIF	8/30/1	.5 9/01/15		750.00 750.00		XAA123456 750.00-PAID 750.00-ALLOV	41 1/30/15 A
0-	TRESSER S COVERED DAYS MED-NECESSAR	0-NON Y DAYS	2/17 COV DAYS 0-CO-DAY	/15 2/17/15 5 TOTALS 'S 0-LIF	E-DAYS					.00-PAID -ALLOV	102 2/17/15 F ANCE
JR0110	TRISTAN L	.0YD	1/28	/15 1/28/15	, 1/28/1	.5 1/28/15		120.00	10.00 REIM	1234567	39
1- 0- ** ERRO	COVERED DAYS	O-NON Y DAYS	COV DAYS	S TOTALS S 0-LIF 120.00-E	E-DAYS	PAY 10.0	0-ACTUAL PAY	120.00		1234567 10.00-PAID -ALLOV	2/17/15 F ANCE
414744	VICKERY F	ATRICIA	7/25/ BB PM 94 33 RW COV DAYS	15 7/25/15 BEGINNING.BAL MAURIN.CONVEN #13000MAURIN. #13006MAURIN. 5 TOTALS.	7/25/15	7/25/15		205.00 15.99 51.00 630.00 50.00 951.99	900.00 REIM	422119999 951.99-PAID 51.99-ALLOV	31 2/20/15 F
416637 1- 0-	VIOLET MA COVERED DAYS	RIA A 5 0-NON 1Y DAYS	7/01/19 01 COV DAYS 0-C0-DAY	7/01/15 2/ ROOM.CHG-PRIV TOTALS. 'S 0-LIF	18/15 		.00 DRG 2	51 1 115.00 115.00	00.00 REIM	115.00-PAID 15.00-ALLOV	2/21/15 F ANCE
416222	SHIPMAN F	ARKER	12/27	/15 12/27/15 PHARMACY	12/27/1	.5 12/27/15	1555.80 DR	G 100 79.50	60.00 REIM		4
1- 0-	COVERED DAYS	0-NON Y DAYS	COV DAYS	S TOTALS S O-LIF	E-DAYS			86.00		86.00-PAID -1469.80-ALLOV	2/23/15 F ANCE
416222	SHIPMAN F	ARKER	12/27 55 89	/15 12/27/15 LABORATORY.(L	12/27/1	5 12/27/15		79.50	60.00 REIM		4
1- 0-	COVERED DAYS	0-NON Y DAYS	COV DAYS	S TOTALS S O-LIF	E-DAYS			86.00		86.00-PAID 26.00-ALLOV	2/25/15 F ANCE

Journals (Totals)

***** TOTALS ***		86667.47 DRG/PER	17470.40	RETM	
PINTS OF BLOOD: 0-FURNISHED	0-REPLACED 0-NOT REPLACED				
	01 ROOM CHG-PRIVATE ROOM	1	85.00		
	10 ROOM CHG BED HOLD ADMIT OTHER.	2	216.00		
	22 NO GL NUMBERS	1	200.00		
	27 PHARMACY	2 1	.000.00		
	34 RADIOLOGIC	1	600.00		
	36 EMERGENCY ROOM	1	82.00		
	43 CENTRAL SERVICES/SUPPLIES	1	45.00		
	45 IV SOLUTIONS	1 -	100.00		
	46 EMERGENCY ROOM EVAL	3 1	602.00		
	54 DRUGS INCIDENT TO OTHER SERVIC	1	4.00		
	55 LABORATORY (LAB)	12 2	559.80		
	61 BLOOD ADMINISTRATION	1	54.00		
	67 EMG	1	100.00		
	71 PHARMACY		945.00		
	73 RADIOLOGY		.031.00		
	78 PHARMACY-INJECTED		518.48		
	79 PHARMACY - OTHER		764.30		
	85 PHYSICAL THERAPY		.008.00		
	89 AUDIOLOGY		12.00		
	BB BEGINNING BALANCE		462.32		
	OTHER CHARGES		6.00		
80-COVERED DAYS 0-NON COV	DAYS TOTALS	14	234.90		19709.40-PAID
		===			-81909.69-ALLOWANCE
	INPATIENT DEDUCTIBLE		56	2.00	
	BLOOD DEDUCTIBLE				
	COINSURANCE		32	4.60	
	DENIED CHARGES				
I	NON-COVERED CHARGES				

- Patient Number/Name: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Service From/To: Specifies the start and stop date the claim was generated, from the insurance claim status screen.
- Admit / Discharge Date: Patient admit and discharge date from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Total Rate/Qty/Charges: Rate, Quantity and Total of charged item from Detail Charges screen
- Non Cov Charges: Charges not covered by insurance from the Detail Charges screen.
- Contract #: Insurance contract number from Policy Information.
- Age: Patient's age from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Per Diem/DRG: The per diem rate used to calculate the reimbursement or the DRG calculated on a claim from the Insurance Company table, page 1 or DRG Grouper screen.
- Reim (Reimbursement): The reimbursement amount entered during receipting.
- Summary Code: Charge item summary code from the Detail Charges screen.
- **Paid/Allowance:** The amount that has been receipted to this claim and the total charges less the DRG reimbursement.

10.29 Print I/P Forms

This print option is for state specific forms.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print I/P Forms.

Description and Usage

This print option is for state specific forms. A hospital would choose this option if their state requires an insurance form other than the UB and the 1500 forms.

10.30 Print O/P Forms

This print option is for state specific forms.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print O/P Forms.

Description and Usage

This print option is for state specific forms. A hospital would choose this option if their state requires an insurance form other than the UB and the 1500 forms.

10.31 Print State Insurance Forms

This print option is for state specific forms.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print State Insurance Forms.

Description and Usage

This print option is for state specific forms. A hospital would choose this option if their state requires an insurance form other than the UB and the 1500 forms.

10.32 Print Form 1491's (Ambulance)

This print option is for Ambulance forms.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select Print Form 1491's (Ambulance).

Description and Usage

This print option is for states that require Ambulance charges be billed on a Form 1491.

10.33 UB04 Edit List

The UB Edit List is used by the Business Office to determine what additional information should be included on the insurance claims prior to billing.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select UB Edit List.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort By:"

5. Select a sort option. The options include:

а	Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins	е
b	Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd	f

- b Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd
- Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins С d Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha

Ins-Alpha-ServCd Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha

Dept Flag-Ins-Alpha

System prompts, "Enter account numbers:"

6. If selected patient account numbers will need to be entered and edits will be printed only for the claims on the accounts. The system brings up every claim for the given account number and prompts "Include this Claim" or "Exclude this Claim".

System prompts, "Type of Claim to be edited (U-Unbilled, T-To be xmitted):"

q

7. Enter **U** to print edits for claims that are not billed and **T** to print edits for claims that are ready to be transmitted to the intermediary.

System prompts, "Specific companies (Blank for all):"

8. If selected enter up to six company codes.

System prompts, "Intermediary Codes (M, B, X, C or All):"

9. ALL will print the report for all financial classes, or enter the desired Financial Class codes for which the report will run.

System prompts, "Include Secondaries:"

- 10.Select this option to include secondary claims or leave blank to exclude secondary claims from the report.
- 11.Select Generate to begin the printing process.

If sort option g-Dept Flag-Ins-Alpha is selected the following prompt will appear:

System prompts, "Print for dept (Blank for all):"

12.Enter I for Insurance, M for Medical Records, or R for Registration to receive edits for the specified department. If left blank all edits will print.

Description and Usage

The UB Edit List should be printed and worked on a daily basis.

The report prints a list of all insurance claims with problems that may cause the claim to be rejected. The report should be worked, reprinted and worked again until no errors exist.

If there are edits that should be suppressed for a specific Financial Class, this can be done in the Billing Edits field on page 3 of the Insurance Company table. A maximum of 50 edit numbers may be entered for each insurance company, preventing these edits from appearing on the report.

UB Edit List

252

RUN DATE: 03/26/15 TIME: 09:04		DEPT	FLAG:	R		INSUR	ANCE C	LAIMS	EDIT	UNBILLED	CLAIMS	PAGE 21 ISUBEDIT
PATIENT NAME	.NBR	INS CO.	STAY TYPE	FROM	RVICE TO	SR\ CD	/ EXP'D PAY	IN	EDIT NUM	ERROR C	ONDITIONS	
ALLEN TOM	418142	661	0/P	03/01/1	5 03/14/	'15 A	100.	00	N 04 04 04 06 16 16 23 25 25 26 26 26 29	0 PATIENT'S C 1 PATIENT'S C 2 PATIENT'S C 3 PATIENT'S Z 0 INVALID PAT 0 ADMIT SOURC 9 NEED HCPC C 0 ADMIT SOURC 9 NONCOVERED 3 MISSING INS 3 MISSING INS 0 CONTRACT/CE 8 MISSING CPNI	TREET NOT ENTERED ITTATE NOT ENTERED ITATE NOT ENTERED IIP CODE NOT ENTERED IIENT SEX E MISSING NODE WITH LISTED REV CD RADIOLOGY HCPC CODE CHARGES GREATER THAN 2 URED'S NAME IN FIELD S URED'S NAME IN FIELD S INTFICATE NUMBER DLANK ITTACT NUMBER IN FIELD NCTPAL DIAGNOSIS CODE	S AND BILL TYPE ERO 8 8 60 1N FIELD 67
HARRISON BILLY	414280	881	I/P	03/01/1	5 03/15/	'15 E	50.	00	Y 37 32 06 15 23 26 29 30	7 INPATIENT C 9 DUP REV COD 0 ADMIT SOURC 7 NEED ROOM C 1 ROOM CHARGE 2 CONTRACT NB 2 MISSING PRI 4 ADMITTING D	HARGE AMOUNT IS LESS T E AND CPT CODE 0000 IHARGE SUMMARY CODES FC :QUANTITIES NOT = COVE IR IS BLANK OR ALL ZERC INCIPAL DIAGNOSIS CODE INCIPAL DIAGNOSIS E ENTER	HAN 0 R. THIS BILLTYPE RED DAYS IS IN FIELD 67 ED IN FIELD 76
	415022	881	0/P	03/10/1	5 03/11/	'15 B	10.	00	N 06 22 23 26 26 38 31 33 32	0 ADMIT SOURC 4 SERVICE DAT 9 NONCOVERED 3 MISSING INS 0 CONTRACT/CE 8 MISSING CON 6 EXPIRED DIA 0 PRINCIPAL P 5 ATTENDING P 7 MISSING SUR	E MISSING CHARGE QREATER THAN Z URED'S NAME IN FIELD S KITFICATE NUMBER IN FIELD GNOSIS CODE 1234 HYSICIAN'S UPIN NBR MI GEON'S UPIN NBR MI GEON'S UPIN NBR MI	I STATEMENT DATE IERO 8 60 FROM' DATE ISSING
SMITH DONALD	415022	881	0/P	02/01/1	5 02/28/	'15 A	50.	00	N 06 22: 42 23 25 26 26 38 31 31 32	0 ADMIT SOURC 4 SERVICE DAT 1 ER OR OP ST 9 NONCOVERED 3 MISSING INS 0 CONTRACT/CE 8 MISSING CON 6 EXPIRED DIA 0 PRINCIPAL P 5 ATTENDING P 7 MISSING SUR	TE MISSING TE ON CHARGE NOT WITHIN AY WITH ROOM CHARGES (CHARGES GREATER THAN 2 JURED'S NAME IN FIELD 5 KITFICATE NUMBER IN FIELD VGNOSIS CODE 1234 ROCEDURE DATE < STMT ' HYSICIAN'S UPIN NBR MI GEON'S UPIN NBR MI GEON'S UPIN NBR MI	STATEMENT DATE REV CD 10X-21X) ERO 8 5 60 FROM' DATE SSING
									Y 03 23	9 PATIENT NAM 6 TOTAL CHARG	IE MUST INCLUDE LAST NA SES NOT GREATER THAN ZE NY NOT GREATER THAN ZER	ME AND FIRST IN RO

- Patient Name: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Stay Type: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen, page 1.
- Service From and To: The service dates pull from the Insurance Claims Status screen. This will usually be the admit and discharge dates except for recurring patients.
- Srv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Exp'd Pay (Expected Pay): Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.

- The next column pulls from the Detail Charges screen. This indicates if this claim is going to be billed electronically.
- Edit Num (Edit Number): The number that corresponds to the error that may cause this claim to reject.
- Error Conditions: The reason claim may be rejected.

10.34 1500 Edit List

The 1500 Edit List is used by the Business Office to determine what additional information should be included on the form prior to billing.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Print Reports** from the Hospital Base Menu or the Master Selection screen.
- 2. Select Insurance.
- 3. Select 1500 Edit List.
- 4. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Sort By:"

5. Select a sort option. The options include:

а	Alpha-Serv Cd-Ins	е
b	Alpha-Ins-Serv Cd	f
С	Serv Cd-Alpha-Ins	g

- Ins-Alpha-ServCd
- Ins-Serv Cd-Alpha
- g Dept Flag-Ins-Alpha
- d Serv Cd-Ins-Alpha

System prompts, "Enter account numbers:"

6. If selected patient account numbers will need to be entered and edits will be printed only for the claims on the accounts. The system brings up every claim for the given account number and prompts "Include this Claim" or "Exclude this Claim."

System prompts, "Type of Claim to be edited (U-Unbilled, T-To be xmitted):"

7. Enter **U** to print edits for claims that are not billed and **T** to print edits for claims that are ready to be transmitted to the intermediary.

System prompts, "Specific companies (Blank for all):"

8. If selected enter up to 6 company codes.

System prompts, "Intermediary Codes (M, B, X, C or All):"

9. ALL will print the report for all financial classes or enter the desired Financial Class codes for which the report will run.

System prompts, "Include Secondaries:"

- 10.Select this option to include secondary claims or leave blank to exclude secondary claims from the report.
- 11.Select Generate to begin the printing process.

If sort option g-Dept Flag-Ins-Alpha is selected the following prompt will appear:

System prompts, "Print for dept (Blank for all):"

12.Enter I for Insurance, **M** for Medical Records, or **R** for Registration to receive edits for the specified department. If left blank all edits will print.

Description and Usage

The 1500 Edit List should be printed and worked on a daily basis. The report gives a list of all Physician claims with problems that may cause the claim to be rejected. The report should be worked, reprinted and worked again until no errors exist.

If there are edits that should be suppressed for a specific Financial Class, this can be done in the Billing Edits field on page 3 of the Insurance Company table. A maximum of 50 edit numbers may be entered for each insurance company, preventing these edits from appearing on the report.

1500 Edit List

RUN DATE: 08/15/15 TIME: 15:51	DEPT F	LAG:	R	HCFA	1500 CLAIMS	EDIT		E 1 SBLEDP
PATIENT NAMENBR	INS CO.		SERVICE FROM	- SR\ TO CD	/ EXP'D PAY	E - B	ERROR CONDITIONS	
ARNAU LUCY 417640	BP	I/P	05/01/15 07/09	/15 A	10.00	Y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	005 PATIENT ADDRESS BLANK 010 PATIENT ZIP CODE MISSING 024 SUBSCRIBER NAME BLANK 025 SUBSCRIBER ADDRESS OR CITY BLANK 028 SUBSCRIBER STATE BLANK 029 SUBSCRIBER ZIP MISSING 031 INCORRECT CLAIM TYPE - NOT OUTPATIENT 047 NO DIAGNOSIS CODE PRESENT 062 ATTENDING PHYSICIAN NAME MISSING 067 EXPECTED PAY IS NOT GREATER THAN ZERO	
ARNAU LARRY 417643	BP	I/P	05/31/15 07/09	/15 E	50.00	Y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	005 PATIENT ADDRESS BLANK 010 PATIENT ADDRESS BLANK 016 CONTRACT/CERTIFICATE NUMBER BLANK 024 SUBSCRIBER NAME BLANK 025 SUBSCRIBER STATE BLANK 028 SUBSCRIBER STATE BLANK 029 SUBSCRIBER STATE BLANK 029 SUBSCRIBER ZIP MISSING 031 INCORRECT CLAIM TYPE - NOT OUTPATIENT 047 NO DIAGNOSIS CODE PRESENT 062 ATTENDING PHYSICIAN NAME MISSING 067 EXPECTED PAY IS NOT GREATER THAN ZERO	
BORDEN CAROL 415385	BP	I/P	01/02/15 07/09	/15 A	11000.00	Y 0 0 0 0	011 ADMISSION DATE INVALID 016 CONTRACT/CERTIFICATE NUMBER BLANK 031 INCORRECT CLAIM TYPE - NOT OUTPATIENT 047 NO DIAGNOSIS CODE PRESENT	
CAMERON COLLEEN + 417160	BP	I/P	05/01/15 07/09	/15 E	85.00	Y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	005 PATIENT ADDRESS BLANK 010 PATIENT ZIP CODE MISSING 016 CONTRACT/CERTIFICATE NUMBER BLANK 024 SUBSCRIBER NAME BLANK 025 SUBSCRIBER ADDRESS OR CITY BLANK 028 SUBSCRIBER STATE BLANK 029 SUBSCRIBER ZIP MISSING 031 INCORRECT CLAIM TYPE - NOT OUTPATIENT 047 NO DIAGNOSIS CODE PRESENT 065 SURGEON NBR, PRIM PROC CODE OR PROC DATE MI	SSING
CARLINO ASHLYN 414578	BP	0/P	06/15/15 06/15	/15 V	75.00	Y 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	005 PATIENT ADDRESS BLANK 010 PATIENT ZIP CODE MISSING 016 CONTRACT/CERTIFICATE NUMBER BLANK 024 SUBSCRIBER NAME BLANK 025 SUBSCRIBER ADDRESS OR CITY BLANK 028 SUBSCRIBER STATE BLANK 029 SUBSCRIBER ZIP MISSING 033 DETAIL CHARGE DATE INVALID 033 DETAIL CHARGE DATE INVALID 045 MISSING CPT CODE 067 EXPECTED PAY IS NOT GREATER THAN ZERO	

- Patient Name: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Number (Account Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Ins (Insurance Code): Pulls from Policy Information.
- Stay Type: Pulls from the Patient tab of the Registration and ADT screen.
- Service From and To: The service dates pull from the Insurance Claim Status screen. This will default to the admit and discharge dates, except for recurring patients.
- Srv Cd (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Exp'd Pay (Expected Pay): Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- E B (Electronic Bill Switch): Pulls from the Detail Charges screen. This indicates if this claim is going to be billed electronically.

256 Insurance User Guide

- Edit Num (Edit Number): The number that corresponds to the error that may cause this claim to reject.
- Error Conditions: The reason for which this claim may be rejected.

10.35 Diagnosis Variance Report

The Diagnosis Variance Report will list billed insurance claims where diagnosis information differs between Insurance and Medical Records.

How to Print

1. Select Report Dashboard from the Application Drawer.

2. Select Diagnosis Variance Report

System prompts, "Facility:"

3. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "Billed Date Range"

4. Enter the desired billed date range or leave blank for all billed claims.

System prompts, "Financial Class:"

5. Enter the desired financial class. Use * to wildcard insurance companies or leave blank to print for all financial classes.

System prompts, "Account Number:"

6. Enter in the desired account number or leave blank for all account numbers.

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet"

7. Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Safe Mode:"

8. Select this option if the report would not build due to bad data being in a field. If the report has bad data, a message will appear stating to run report using the Safe Mode. If selected, Safe Mode will replace all of the bad characters with a ?. This will allow the intended report to generate. The bad data may then be seen and can be corrected from the account level.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

9. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:

HTML PDF XML CSV MAPLIST TXT

System prompts, "Page Orientation"

10. Select the desired page orientation.

System prompts, "Run Report"

11. Select Run Report to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Diagnosis Variance Report will list billed insurance claims where diagnosis information differs between Insurance and Medical Records. Insurance diagnosis information pulls from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper when the Insurance and Insurance Admitting radio buttons are selected. Medical Records diagnosis information pulls from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper when the Diagnosis radio buttons are selected. If the admitting and other diagnoses loaded on the account differ in these two areas the account will pull to the report.

See <u>Insurance Diagnoses</u> ¹⁷ for more information.

Diagnosis Variance Report

01/04/2016							1
13:48		Diag	gnosis \	/ariance Report		diagno	sis_variance.template
		11/	/01/201	5 - 11/30/2015			
Account Number	Patient Name	Fin. Class	Set	Billed Date	Total Charges	Diagnosis Grouper	Diagnosis Insurance
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	07983
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	4280
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	43491
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	49390
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	7840
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	94214
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	BB	001	11/05/2015	9,127.47	0	2801
Account Number	Patient Name	Fin. Class	Set	Billed Date	Total Charges	Diagnosis Grouper	Diagnosis Insurance
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	07983
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	4280
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	43491
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	49390
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	7840
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	94214
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	0	2801
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	07983	0
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	4280	0
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	43491	0
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	49390	0
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	7840	0
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	94214	0
357351	SMITH ELLA KATHERINE	XB	001	11/05/2015	0.00	2801	0

- Account Number: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen
- Fin. Class (Financial Class): Pulls from Policy Information
- Set: This field represents the sequence number of a particular financial class on a patient account. If there are multiple claims with the same financial class on the account, the system will assign a set number of 001, 002, etc.
- Billed Date: Pulls the billed date of the claim
- Total Charges: The total amount of charges pulls from Account Detail
- **Diagnosis Grouper**: Pulls diagnosis codes that are listed when the Diagnosis and Admitting Diagnosis radio buttons are selected from within the lns Diag/Proc option or the Grouper
- **Diagnosis Insurance**: Pulls diagnosis codes that are listed when the Insurance and Insurance Admitting radio buttons are selected from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper

10.36 Procedures Variance Report

The Procedures Variance Report will list billed insurance claims where procedure information differs between Insurance and Medical Records.

How to Print

1. Select Report Dashboard from the Application Drawer.

2. Select Procedure Variance Report

System prompts, "Facility:"

3. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "Billed Date Range"

4. Enter the desired billed date range or leave blank for all billed claims.

System prompts, "Financial Class:"

5. Enter the desired financial class. Use * to wildcard insurance companies or leave blank to print for all financial classes.

System prompts, "Account Number:"

6. Enter in the desired account number or leave blank for all account numbers.

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet"

7. Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Safe Mode:"

8. Select this option if the report would not build due to bad data being in a field. If the report has bad data, a message will appear stating to run report using the Safe Mode. If selected, Safe Mode will replace all of the bad characters with a ?. This will allow the intended report to generate. The bad data may then be seen and can be corrected from the account level.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

260	Insurance User	Guide

9. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:

HTML PDF XML CSV MAPLIST TXT

System prompts, "Page Orientation"

10. Select the desired page orientation.

System prompts, "Run Report"

11. Select **Run Report** to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Procedure Variance Report will list billed insurance claims where procedure information differs between Insurance and Medical Records. Insurance procedure information pulls from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper when the Insurance radio button is selected. Medical Records procedure information pulls from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper when the Procedure radio button is selected. If the ICD-9, HCPC or procedure date loaded on the account differ in these two areas the account will pull to the report.

See <u>Insurance Procedures</u> ¹⁹ for more information.

Procedure Variance Report

01/04/2016											1
13:50 Procedure Variance Report procedure_variance.templat											
				01/01/2	015 - 01/04/2016	6					
Account		Fin.	Set	Billed		Gro	ouper	Grouper	Insu	rance	Insurance
Number	Patient Name	Class	Num.	Date	Total Charge	ICD9	HCPC	Date	ICD9	HCPC	Date
357648	WATZ LUCY ELLEN	BB	001	05/29/2015	338.80	0	43773		0	0	

- Account Number: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen
- Fin. Class (Financial Class): Pulls from Policy Information
- Set: This field represents the sequence number of a particular financial class on a patient account. If there are multiple claims with the same financial class on the account, the system will assign a set number of 001, 002, etc.
- Billed Date: Pulls the billed date of the claim

- Total Charges: Total amount of charges pulls from Account Detail
- Grouper ICD9/HCPC: Pulls the ICD-9 and HCPC codes listed when the Procedure radio button is selected from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper
- **Grouper Date**: Pulls the procedure date listed when the Procedure radio button is selected from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper
- **Insurance ICD9/HCPC**: Pulls the ICD-9 and HCPC codes listed when the Insurance radio button is selected from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper
- **Insurance Date**: Pulls the procedure date listed when the Insurance radio button is selected from within the Ins Diag/Proc option or the Grouper

Chapter 11 Report Dashboard

11.1 Billed But Unpaid Claims (By Ins) - Report Writer

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Ins) report is used by the Business Office to do follow-up work on outstanding claims. This report can now be open within the Report Writer application for enhanced reporting capabilities.

How to Print

262

1. Select **Report Dashboard** from the Application Drawer.

2. Select Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Ins).

3. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Facility:"

4. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "As of Date:"

5. Use the drop-down box to select a date, or choose Manual Selection to enter a date manually.

System prompts, "Primary Switch:"

6. Select **Primary** to print only Primary claims. Select **Secondary** to print only Secondary claims. Leave blank to print both Primary and Secondary claims.

System prompts, "Expected Pay Range:"

7. Enter the range of dollar amounts for the Expected Pay the report will print or leave blank for all claims with an Expected Pay to print to the report.

System prompts, "Insurance Code:"

8. Enter the desired financial class. Use * to wildcard insurance companies or leave blank to print for all financial classes.

System prompts, "Service:"

9. Enter the desired Service Code. Leave blank to print all Service Codes.

System prompts "Aging Selection:"

- 10. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options or leave blank to print all aging selections:
 - Current Over 30 Over 60 Over 90

System prompts, "Sections to Exclude"

11. Select one or more of the following desired sections to exclude or leave blank to print all: Exclude Insurance Summary Exclude Grand Totals Exclude Summary Totals

System prompts, "Level of Detail:"

12. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options:

Detail	
Summary	
Report Summary	Only

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet"

13. Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

14. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:

HTML PDF XML CSV

NOTE: When using the CSV option, additional fields may be included in the report that are not available in PDF format. Examples include: Accountants Category Code, GL Revenue Reclassification, Accommodation Code Data Base Code. To include these fields or view the full list of additional fields, from the parameters screen, select **Advanced** and then choose **Columns**.

System prompts, "Run Report"

15. Select Run Report to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Ins) report within the Report Writer application provides a listing by insurance of all outstanding insurance claims. Financial Classes that do not have any unpaid claims or claims that meet the report's criteria are excluded. The report lists insurance, patient account number, patient name, billed date, billed amount, aging, subscriber name, contract number and group information.

The aging selections are Current, Over 30, Over 60 and Over 90 days. The last page of the report lists the Insurance Summary with an aging breakdown of total dollars for each insurance company in each aging column followed by a breakdown of total expected pay for each insurance company.

The Billed but Unpaid Claims (By Ins) report should be printed and worked on a weekly basis. This report is helpful in showing which insurance is outstanding and how much payment is expected.

The Report Writer application allows the user to filter, sort and manipulate this report so that he may customize the data extracted out of the system. See the additional documentation on Report Writer for more information on these options.

Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Insurance) - Report Writer

09:45					Insurance Bil	led but Unp	paid		ins_billed_unpaid.templat
					As of Date:	01/04/201	6		
				Insurar	nce - BLUE C	ROSS-RE	CURRING		
P-S Serv To Dt	Account	Patient Name	Serv	Billed Dt	Billed Amt	Ins Age	Subscriber	Contract#	Group#
P 07/31/2015	357872	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	т	07/31/2015	345.00	Over 90	BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	PPA7896531	/86521
P 04/30/2014	357716	GREEN CHARLES WATSON	т	06/13/2014	345.00	Over 90	GREEN CHARLES WATSON	PPA12345678	/12458
Insurance:	BBR BL	UE CROSS-RECURRING		Expected Pay:	690	0.00	Total Claims: 2		

Billed but Unpaid Claims (by Insurance) - Insurance Summary - Report Writer

09:45			e Billed but Unpaid Date: 01/04/2016			ins_billed	I_unpaid.templ
		Insu	ance Summary				
Code	Name	Current	Over 30	Over 60	Over 90	Total	Claims
В	BLUE CROSS-I/P				8,803.59	8,803.59	12
BB	BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P			3,375.20	1,038.50	4,413.70	8
BBR	BLUE CROSS-RECURRING				690.00	690.00	2
BP	BLUE CROSS PHYSICIAN				948.64	948.64	10
CB1	HMO O/P F			0.00		0.00	1
CBR	COMMERCIAL-RECURRING F				174.00	174.00	1
CP	COMMERCIAL 1500'S				118.58	118.58	1
DB1	AETNA -O/P				506.90	506.90	2
s	CHAMPUS-I/P				225.89	225.89	2
XB	MEDICAID-O/P			0.00	400.00	400.00	2
	Grand Totals			3,375.20	12,906.10	16,281.30	41

/04/2016							12
:45			Insu	urance Billed but	Jnpaid		ins_billed_unpaid.template
			A	s of Date: 01/04/	2016		
Insurance:	в	BLUE CROSS-I/P	Expected Pay:	8,803.59	Total Claims:	12	
Insurance:	BB	BLUE CROSS OF ALA-O/P	Expected Pay:	4,413.70	Total Claims:	8	
Insurance:	BBR	BLUE CROSS-RECURRING	Expected Pay:	690.00	Total Claims:	2	
Insurance:	BP	BLUE CROSS PHYSICIAN	Expected Pay:	948.64	Total Claims:	10	
Insurance:	CB1	HMO O/P F	Expected Pay:	0.00	Total Claims:	1	
Insurance:	CBR	COMMERCIAL-RECURRING F	Expected Pay:	174.00	Total Claims:	1	
Insurance:	CP	COMMERCIAL 1500'S	Expected Pay:	118.58	Total Claims:	1	
Insurance:	DB1	AETNA -O/P	Expected Pay:	506.90	Total Claims:	2	
Insurance:	S	CHAMPUS-I/P	Expected Pay:	225.89	Total Claims:	2	
Insurance:	XB	MEDICAID-O/P	Expected Pay:	400.00	Total Claims:	2	

- P-S (Primary-Secondary): Indicates whether this is the Primary or Secondary claim. Pulls from Policy Information.
- Serv To Dt: Pulls the ending service date of the claim.
- Account (Number): Pulls from the Registration and ADT Screen.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Serv (Service Code): Pulls from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Billed Dt: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Billed Amt: Pulls from the Detail Charges screen.
- Ins Age: Pulls as Current if the billed date is less than 30 days old. Pulls as Over 30 if the billed date is over 30 but less than 60 days old. Pulls as Over 60 if the billed date is over 60 but less than 90 days old. Pulls as Over 90 days old.
- Subscriber: Pulls from the Policy Information.
- Contract #(Number): Pulls from the Policy Information.
- Group #(Number): Pulls from the Policy Information.

11.2 Cycle Billing Review Due

The Cycle Billing Review Due report will display accounts that have a Review Date in the Pay Source Table for a selected date range.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Report Dashboard** from the Application Drawer.
- 2. Select Cycle Billing Review Due
- 3. Select report parameters:
 - **Facility**: Select the desired Facility from which to pull information. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)
 - **Review Date Range**: Select a Date Range option from the drop down. Or select Manual Selection to enter dates manually.
 - Financial Class: Enter the desired financial class or leave blank for all financial classes.
 - Stay Type: Enter the desired Stay Type or leave blank for all stay types.
 - **Sub Type**: Enter the desired Sub Type or leave blank for all sub types.
 - Service Code: Enter the desired Service Code or leave blank for all service codes.
 - Include Cover Sheet: Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.
 - Safe Mode: Select this option to print report in safe mode.
 - Output Format: Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:
 PDF
 - XML
 - CSV
 - HTML
 - MAPLIST
 - TXT

4. Select **Run Report** to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Cycle Billing Review Due report is used to identify accounts that need their Pay Source Table entries reviewed prior to billing. This report will display accounts that have Review Date in the Pay Source Table for the selected date range. For example, a Review Date could be entered prior to the expiration of a Pre-Certification number, so that a new pre-certification number may be acquired prior to the next billing cycle. These accounts will then pull to the report based on their Review Date so that they may be addressed. In order to pull to the report, there cannot be a Complete Date or a Coverage To date in the Pay Source Table.

Cycle Billing Review Due

06/18/201	8											
15:10							Cycle Billing Review Due				ins_paysource_revie	ew_date.templat
							was generated by the Thrive EHR Sof 05/01/2018 - 05/31/2018	tware				
Account I	Number	r	Patient Name			Review Date		Stay Type	Sub Type	Service Code		Admit Date
20001404	1		MAY JENNIFER			05/16/2018		4	LTC	LTC		02/01/2018
	Financi	ial Class		Sw	Coverage From Date	Precert Number		Cert Begin Date	Cert End Date	Contact		Contact Phone
	BB3	FEDERA	L BLUE CROSS-0/	Y	05/09/2018							
Account I	Number	r	Patient Name			Review Date		Stay Type	Sub Type	Service Code		Admit Date
20001424	1		MAY WILL			05/09/2018		4	LTC	LTC		05/15/2018
	Financi	ial Class		Sw	Coverage From Date	Precert Number		Cert Begin Date	Cert End Date	Contact		Contact Phone
	BB2	BLUE CF	ROSS	Y	06/14/2018							

Listed below is an explanation of each column.

- Account Number: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Patient Name: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Review Date: Pulls from the Pay Source table.
- **Stay Type**: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Sub Type**: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Service Code: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Financial Class: Pulls the Claim from the Pay Source table.
- Sw (Primary Switch): Pulls the Primary Switch from the Pay Source table.
- Coverage From Date: Pulls the Coverage From Date from the Pay Source table.
- Precet Number (Pre-Certification Number): Pulls the Pre-Certification Number from the Pay Source table.
- Cert Begin Date: Pulls the Pre-Certification From Date from the Pay Source table.
- Cert End Date: Pulls the Pre-Certification To Date from the Pay Source table.
- **Contact**: Pulls the Pre-Certification contact from the Pay Source table.
- Contact Phone: Pulls the Pre-Certification contact phone number from the Pay Source table.

11.3 Unbilled Insurance Report - Report Writer

The Unbilled Insurance Report provides a complete listing of all insurance claims that have not been billed.

How to Print

- 1. Select **Report Dashboard** from the Application Drawer.
- 2. Select Unbilled Insurance Report.
- 3. Select a print option.

System prompts, "Facility:"

4. Select the desired Facility. (Only Facilities selected for access under that User Based Login will be available for selection.)

System prompts, "Stay Type:"

5. Select a stay type, or leave blank to print all.

System prompts, "Service Code:"

6. Enter a Service Code, or leave blank to print all.

System prompts, "Insurance Code:"

7. Enter an Insurance Financial Class code, or leave blank to print all.

System prompts, "Primary Switch:"

8. Select one of the following or leave blank to print all: **Primary Only Secondary Only**

System prompts, "Sections to Exclude:"

 Select one or more of the following desired sections to exclude, or leave blank to print all: Exclude Grand Totals Exclude Reason Code Descriptions

System prompts, "Level of Detail:"

10. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following options:

Detail Summary Report Summary Only

System prompts, "Include Cover Sheet:"

11. Select this option to include a Cover Sheet with the report.

System prompts, "Output Format:"

12. Use the drop-down box to select one of the following report Format options:

HTML
PDF
XML
CSV

NOTE: When using the CSV option, additional columns may be included in the report that are not available in PDF format. Examples include: Accountants Category, Accountants Category Description, GL Revenue Reclassification, Accommodation Code Data Base Code, HIM Coding Status, HIM Coding Status Date/Time, and HIM Coding Status User Name. To include these columns or view the full list of additional columns available, from the parameters screen, select **Advanced** and then select **Columns**.

System prompts, "Run Report"

13. Select **Run Report** to display the report in the selected output format.

Description and Usage

The Unbilled Insurance report provides a listing of all insurance claims that have not been billed. It will pull a reason code for not being billed as well as the comment listed on the Insurance Claim Status screen.

The Report Writer application allows the user to filter, sort and manipulate this report so that they may customize the data extracted out of the system. See the additional documentation on Report Writer for more information on these options.

Unbilled Insurance Report - Report Writer

12-02				Unbilled Income of De-								
13:02				Unbilled Insurance Re						II	is_unbi	led.templat
				Claim Breakdown: - >	(B							
Name	Account#	Admit Date	Disch Date	Total Chgs	Acct Bal	Exp Pay	Ins	Claim Status	Stay	LOS	Serv	Reason
BEECH DAVIS SANDERS	357910	12/28/2015	12/28/2015	1,024.98	238.58	120.00	XB	Ready to Bill	3	1	ER	R
BETKOWSKI JAMES MARTIN	B01121	08/11/2015	08/11/2015	100.00	100.00	0.00	XB	Approved	5	1	CL	м
ХВ			Claims		Charges			Balance				Exp Pag
Not Discharged												
Less than 8 days since discharge			1		1,024.98			238.58				120.0
8-14 days since discharge												
15-21 days since discharge												
22-28 days since discharge												
29-60 days since discharge												
61-90 days since discharge												
91-120 days since discharge												
121-180 days since discharge			1		100.00			100.00				0.0
181-365 days since discharge												
Greater than 365 days since discharge	e											
Totals:			2		1,124,98			338.58				120.0

Unbilled Insurance Report (Grand Totals) - Report Writer

3:03	Link	illed Insurance Report		ins unbilled.template
3.03				ins_unbilied.template
		Report Summary		
Grand Totals:	Claims	Charges	Balance	Exp Pay
Not Discharged	91	120,168,308.89	120,168,308.89	881.00
ess than 8 days since discharge	3	1,024.98	238.58	706.96
-14 days since discharge	0			
5-21 days since discharge	0			
2-28 days since discharge	0			
9-60 days since discharge	2	16,236.45	16,236.45	16,236.45
1-90 days since discharge	6	13,550.80	13,550.80	6,750.40
1-120 days since discharge	1	0.00	0.00	0.00
21-180 days since discharge	13	2,567.75	2,567.75	0.00
81-365 days since discharge	18	30,349.05	28,726.05	0.00
Greater than 365 days since discharge	117	2,301,064.19	2,296,685.79	12,062.38
Grand Totals:	251	122,533,102.11	122,526,314.31	36,637.19

- **Name:** Pulls the patient's name from the Full Name field in the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Account #: Pulls the patient's account number from the Registration and ADT screen.
- Admit Date: Pulls the patient's admit date from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- **Disch Date:** Pulls the patient's discharge date from the Stay tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Total Chgs: The total amount charged to the patient account.
- Acct Bal: Pulls from the Patient Account Detail screen.
- Exp Pay: Pulls from the Detail Charge screen for that claim.

- Ins: This column lists the Insurance code of the claim that is set up in the Insurance Claims by Patient screen but is not at a Billed, Paid or Rejected status.
- Claim Status: Pulls from the Insurance Claims by Patient screen.
- Stay: Pulls the patient's stay type from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- LOS: Pulls the patient's Length of Stay and is calculated as Discharge Date minus Admit Date. If the patient has not been discharged, it is calculated as Run-Date minus Admit Date.
- Serv: Pulls the patient's service code from the Patient tab on the Registration and ADT screen.
- Reason: The Reason Code is determined by the system. The codes are as follows:
 - A Patient has not been admitted
 - **D** Patient has not been discharged
 - **G** Insurance has not been generated
 - I Insurance has not been verified (Policy Information "Received" is blank
 - M Medical Records has not coded or verified the account
 - **R** Claim is Ready to Bill
 - U Claim is Unchecked
 - P Claim is Pending
- **Comments:** Comments pull from the Insurance Claim Status screen.
- **Ins Totals:** Totals are based on the number of days between discharge date and the date of the report.
- Claims: The total number of accounts reported.
- Charges: The total amount of the Total Charges column.
- Balance: The total amount of the Account Balance column.
- Exp Pay: The total amount of the Expected Pay column.